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PREFACE

This Genealogy was commenced many years ago for

my children, with no intention of publishing. The early

notes were jotted down, sometimes without giving the

authorities, because, in those days, there did not seem to

be need of it. The facts were, however, taken from the

most reliable sources, among them the following : Family

Bibles
;
Court records

;
William and Mary Quarterly ;

Virginia Magazine of History and Biography; letters

written by members of the family between 1793 and 1824 ;

letters of more recent date from different branches of

the family; Life of George Mason, by Kate Rowland;

Life of General Lee, by Fitzhugh Lee; Life of John P.

Kennedy, by Tuckerman; wills of Andrew and Anthony

Kennedy, 178G and 1828; "Belles, Beaux and Brains of

the '60's," by T. C. De Leon
;
Baltimore Sun

; Hayden's

Genealogy; Old Families and Churches, by Bishop

Meade; St. Mark's Parish (corrected), by Rev. PhiHp

Slaughter; History of the Kennedys by Pitcairn, an old

English edition, now out of print ;
Goode's Virginia Cous-

ins
; Hening's Statutes.

The w^ork is intended to cover the records of de-

scendants of Samuel and Rebecca (Yeo) Selden, the first

in Virginia, following out, as far as possible, all lines. It

has been our aim to include an account of the families

with which they have allied themselves by marriage. As

some of these are extensive, they will be found after the

main body of Selden data. Owing to the general inter-

marriages between families, some lines are included that,
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8 Seldens of Virginia

at first, seem to have no connection with the Seldens, but

the notes of reference will, it is hoped, make clear the

connection.

"The original home of the name [Selden] was pre-

sumably in one of the dens of Southeastern England.
The surname had spread to Warwickshire and Leicester-

shire before the end of the Thirteenth Century. The

prototheme is the Anglo-Saxon sei, sele, 'a dwelling, man-

sion, palace, hall.' The German saal, 'hall, large room;'

Old and Middle High German, sal, 'hall, seignorial resi-

dence,' a building generally only one room used especially

for assemblies
;
Old Saxon, sell, a building consisting of

one large room; Old High German and Old Saxon,

selihiis, with the same meaning; Old High German,

selida, 'a dwelling;' Middle High German, selde, the

same
;
Old Norse, salr, 'a dwelling ;' Gothic, salian, 'to

find shelter,' and salithivos, 'lodging, guest-chamber;'

Swedish and Danish, sal, 'a dwelling;' Old Slavonic, selo,

'an estate, farm;' selitva, 'dwelling.' From the Teutonic

were borrowed the Italian, sala, and the French, salle,

'a house room.'
"

The most renowned of the name in English history

was John Selden, born December 16, 1584, died 1654.

He left no children, but there is strong evidence that the

Virginia family of Selden is descended from the same

branch in England. John Selden used the coat of arms

and crest belonging to his mother, w4io was Margaret,

daughter of Sir Thomas Baker of Rushington, England.
The crest was a swan's head and neck grasped by a man's

hand. John Selden had no other coat of arms and it is

his mother's that is on his tomb in the Temple Church

where he was buried with great honor, December 14,

1654.
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There are several references to the Seldens of Virginia

whose record has not been traced.''' In the will of

George Yeo, of Elizabeth City County, Virginia, dated

March 15, 1742, and proved April 20, 1743, he bequeaths

to his cousin, ''George Arnold, merchant in London,"
H< H^ ii^ "to cousin John Selden, i20 and all of his law

books ''' * * ''to Joseph, son of cousin John Selden "^'^ '^
*, to

"^ "^

*, to Elizabeth, daughter of said cousin Selden
"^ *

*," to his wife's daughters, "Mary and Grace Sel-

den," and to her granddaughters, "Agnes and Ann How-

ard, and Mary Douglas
"^ "^ *."

From this it would seem that there had been another

Selden who had married and had children, at least four

daughters, viz., Mary and Grace Selden, and the mother

of Ann Howard, and the mother of Mary Douglas. They
are not mentioned in the will of Samuel SeMen, dated

1726. If anyone knows the history of these, the writer

would be glad to have further record. Samuel Selden,

the eldest son of the immigrant Samuel, has no record

after 1715. Joseph Selden, son of Rev. Miles Selden,

left bequests in his will to nieces, Polly Leigh, Rebecca

Watkins, Rebecca Macon, Patsy Selden, and Lucy Tem-

ple. William Temple was executor of the will. (Does

anyone know of a Selden who married a Temple?)
The author of this genealogy would like to thank all

who have so kindly helped in its compilation, without

whose assistance it would have been an impossibility to

collect and arrange the mass of material.

MARY SELDEN KENNEDY.

 For more recent records of these, see appendix.
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SELDEN FAMILY

1 "Samuel^ Selden was born in England. He mar-

ried Rebecca, daughter of Sir James Yeo, who received

from her father, by way of settlement, extensive landed

estates, granted under Patent from the Crown, and lying

principally in the Northern Neck of Virginia. Samuel

Selden and his wife migrated to America about 1690,

bringing with them four sons, Samuel, Bartholomew,

John, and Joseph. The first two died without issue
;
from

John is decended the Norfolk branch of the family."

The William and Mary Quarterly says : "The founder

of the Selden family in Virginia was Samuel Selden, a

lawyer, who, according to a deposition in Elizabeth City

records, came to Virginia in 1699 and boarded in 1700 at

Mr. Bertram Servant's. He married Rebecca Yeo, cousin

and heir-at-law of Rebecca Yeo, wife of John Lear, Esq.,

member of the Colonial Council. He was Justice of the

Peace of Elizabeth City."

Mrs. Rebecca Selden was cousin and heir-at-law of

Rebecca Yeo, wiie of John Lear, member of the Colonial

Council. (See Virginia Magazine of History and Biog-

raphy, Vol. n, p. 385) Mrs. Lear was three times mar-

ried. (Ibid, Vol. VIII, p. 194), first to Leonard Yeo,

second, to Richard Moryson, third, to Col. John Lear.

Col. Leonard Yeo was granted 850 acres in Elizabeth City

County, where he settled in 1637. He was a member of

the House of Burgesses, 1644-5, 1663-6, and died in 1670.

His will dated March 15, 1670, mentions his cousins,

Joseph and John Selden, and George Selden. [Is there

19



20 Seldens of Virginia

any record of George Selden with any living member of

the family ?] Rebecca married again but willed her estate

to her daughter by the first husband, Col. Leonard Yeo.

The father of Leonard, Rev. George Yeo, graduate of Ex-

eter and Cambridge, held the living of Wilsborough, and

was ejected from it in 1()()2, under the Act of Uniformity.

He had, at least, one brother in Virginia. In September,

1654, Robert Yeo was granted 050 acres of land in West-

moreland County. On October 11, 1650, Leonard Yeo,

brother and administrator of the estate of Robert Yeo,

made an assignment of their patent.

The Western Antiquary, a periodical published at Ply-

mouth, England, gives some notice of Devonshire Yeos.

Leonard Yeo was a member of Parliament for Totness,

1555, '57, 1558 and 1570, and he was Mayor of Totness.

The family was connected with Totness for some years,

and in the church were formerly tombs of George and

William Yeo. Westcote, in his Devonshire FamiHes,

mentions the Yeos of Hetherleigh (see the wall of George
Yeo below).

"There was also a Hugh Yeo of Accomac County,

'merchant,' 1049, and Burgess in 1063. A deed in Acco-

mac, dated February 7, 1680, shows that he died without

issue, and that he was the son of Justinian Yeo of Hart-

land, in Devonshire, England. Two brothers are men-

tioned, Richard, the eldest, and Justinian, to whom Rich-

ard sold the Virginia estate inherited from his brother,

Hugh.
"Col. Leonard Yeo and Mrs. Clare Yeo were head

rights in a patent in 1652. In 1667, after the Dutch inva-

sion, he was empowered by council to impress men and

materials for mounting eight guns on the Fort at Point

Comfort. He died during the year 1670, since, in the
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General Court records for that year, it is stated that

Charles Moryson had married the relict of Col. Leonard

Yeo. In 1G91 John Lear patented land in Elizabeth City

County in right of his wife, Rebecca, said land formerly

belonging to Col. Leonard Yeo. In 1690 Leonard Yeo, of

Back River, Elizabeth City County, probably a son of Col.

Leonard Yeo, died and gave all his property to his v^ufe,

Mary. In 1719-20 George Yeo, Jr., of Elizabeth City

County, married Elinor, widow, first, of Coleman Brough,

and second, of Captain William Boswell, and the mother

of Grace Boswell, who married John Selden. He died

about 1743, without issue, and with him the Elizabeth

City Yeos became extinct. (William and Mary Quarterly,

I, p. 157, V, p, 61.)

Yeo and Lear are both Devonshire names. Peter Lear,

of Devonshire, was created a baronet for his loyalty to

Charles I, and Leonard Yeo was one of the gentlemen

who subscribed for the defence of the country against

the Armada of 1588.

The following is from the Virginia Historical Magazine,

Volume 7, page 190. "Francis Osborne was given 1,300

acres on Appomattox River, for transporting 26 persons to

Virginia, July 14, 1637. One of these was John Yeo."

"Leonard Yeo received 850 acres in the County of EHza-

beth City, upon the head of a branch of the old Poquoson

Creek, given for transporting 16 persons into Virginia in

1637, one of these was Leonard Yeo." "Leonard Yeo

settled in Elizabeth City County and was long a man of

prominence there. In 1639 he was one of the viewers

of tobacco, appointed throughout the Colony. At the Ses-

sion of February, 1644-5, as 'Capt. Yeo,' he was a mem-

ber of the house of Burgesses for Elizabeth City County,

and was again a member at the Session of September,
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1GG3, and in June and October, 1666. In that year he was

commander-in-chief of EHzabeth City County (Robinson's

Notes), and the next year held the same command, while

the hostile Dutch fleet was in Hampton Roads. He died

in or before June, 1670, as there was at that time a suit in

the General Court against Charles Moryson, who married

the executrix of Col. Yeo, deceased. This Captain Charles

Moryson was afterward commander of Elizabeth City.

After Moryson's death, his widow, Rebecca, who had

been the widow of Col. Yeo, married John Lear, of the

Virginia Council."

The will of George Yeo, of Elizabeth City (probably
a descendant of Col. Leonard Yeo) was dated March 15

1712, and proved April 20, 1743. He gives to his cousin,

George Arnold, a merchant in London, ''certain tenements

in the Burrow of Hatherley, commonly called by the name
of Wadlands and Finch Parkes," and gives him also the

plate he brought from England; to his cousin, John
Selden, he bequeaths £20, all his law books, The Whole

Duty of Man, Sherlock on Providence, St. Augustine's
Meditations

;
to Joseph, son of his cousin, John Selden,

his dictionary and Grammar; '*to Elizabeth, daughter of

said cousin Selden one silver ribbon and a book entitled

The Master's Blessing;" to Robert Brough, son of Wil-

liam Brough, deceased, "Owen's Epigrams, Norvell's

Catechism, Thomas a Kempis in Latin and one in English,

Sherlock on Judgm't and the five bishops and the doc-

tors." "My wife's clothes to be divided betwixt her

children and grandchildren viz I give to her daughter

Mary one new gown not finished and one old stuff gown
and whatever else my executor John Selden shall think

propper
=^ * *

I give her granddaughters Mary and Grace

Selden * * ^ and to her granddaughters Agnes and Ann
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Howard and Mary Douglas
"^ "^^ "^ '' He also bequeaths

various legacies of clothing, furniture and books to his

wife's daughters.
'"^^ "•' *

daughter Agnes Howard ^ '^ *

I give unto her grand daughter Ann Howard * =^ ^^^ I give

unto her granddaughter Mary Douglas
"^^ ^'' ''

I give the

remaining part of my Sd wives clothes unto her daughter
Grace Selden."

The William and Mary Quarterly gives the following
information regarding the Morysons and Lears. "Among
the residence on Mill Creek, none were more interesting

than Major Richard Moryson and his brothers, Lieut.

Robert Moryson and Col. Francis Moryson, who, with

Col. Charles Moryson, son of Major Richard Moryson,

successively commanded the Fort at Point Comfort.

They were sons of Sir Richard Moryson, a member of

Parliament, and Lieutenant-general of Ordinance. Sir

Richard married Elizabeth, daughter of Sir Henry Har-

rington. They had issue: Sir Henry, Major Richard, of

Virginia, appointed Commander of the Fort at Point

Comfort, March 20, 1638, and in February, 1641, was a

member of the Council in the place of Roger Wingate,
deceased. Hence the title of Esquire which he gave him-

self in his will. He died at his Plantation on Mill Creek

(Point Comfort Creek), before December 27, 1648, when
his will was proved. He left, it appears, two sons,

Richard, mentioned in his will, made in 1626, and Charles.

The former died without issue. There is a letter dated

1665 from Col. Francis Moryson, soliciting from Lord

Clarendon the Captaincy of the Fort for his nephew, Col.

Charles Moryson—a place which Lord Falkland had got

from his father. There is an order of the General Court

which shows that Col. Charles Moryson 'married the ex-

ecutrix of Col. Leonard Yeo' and a land grant dated 1691
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shows that Rebecca, widow of Col. Charles Moryson,
married Col. John Lear of Nansemond. Charles Moryson
in 1G80, was presiding Magistrate of EHzabeth City

County, and Lieutenant Colonel of the Militia. He died

in 1G88 of smallpox at Plymouth, England, when about

to return to Virginia. Robert Moryson had command in

1641 of the fort at Point Comfort in the absence of his

brother and was Lieutenant thereof in 1645. (Hening, I,

320.) In York County records letters of administration

were granted to Jane Moryson on the estate of Robert

Moryson, October 25, 1647. He died without issue.

Major Francis Moryson served in King Charles' Army,
came to Virginia in 1649, and was appointed Captain of

Point Comfort Fort. He was Speaker of the House of

Burgesses, Acting Governor, etc. He returned to England
in 1677. His eldest son, Henry, was born in the Parish

of Bishop's Waltham, Southhampton County, England,
October 21, 1669, and in 1699 was Lieutenant Colonel in

Lord Cutt's regiment of Foot Guards. Fines (named for

his uncle. Fines Moryson, M. A., of Peter House, Cam-

bridge, extensive traveller. Chief Secretary to the Deputy
Governor of Ireland, mentioned in Dictionary of National

Biography),
^^ "=' ^'' was another son. One daughter, Let-

tice, married the celebrated Lucian Gary, Lord Falkland,

the English Chevalier-Bayard, who was killed at the battle

of Newberry, September 20, 1643. His wife was noted

for her goodness and piety. John Duncan wrote a

pamphlet on the 'Holy Life and Death of the Lady
Lettice, Vicountess Falkland.' She died February, 1646,

in her thirty-fifth year, leaving three sons, the eldest of

whom, Harry, Lord Falkland, married Rachel, who sur-

vived her husband."

"Col. John Lear was for many years an active resident
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of Nansemond County, member of the Council, etc. He
died June 37, 1696. He married, at least, four times, the

first marriage being prior to 1678. The name of his first

wife is not known. His children by her were Martha,
who married, first, Col. William Cole, and, second. Major
Lewis Burwell (see Burwell Family, Number 2), and a

son, Thomas. After his first wife's death, he married,

second, after 1678, Anne, Widow of Col. John George.
His third marriage was after 1688. His third wife was

Rebecca, widow of Col. Leonard Yeo and Charles Mory-
son. He married, fourth, Anne Willis, of Ipswich,

Mass., widow of Seth Sothel, Governor of North Caro-

lina. She died before 1695. Thomas Lear, son of Col.

Lear, by his first wife, married Elizabeth, daughter of

Col. Joseph Bridges of Isle of Wight County, another

member of the Council. He died before his father,

leaving issue, named in Col. John Lear's will (see William

and Mary Quarterly, VII, page 309), Thomas, John,

Elizabeth, and Martha. Of these, John was living in

1712. He married Elizabeth, the executrix of Isabella

Haveild of Nansemond, who was the executrix of Luke

Haveild of Nansemond. He was Sheriff of Nansemond
in 1723."

Samuel Selden's Virginia home was the estate of Buck-

roe, one of the most interesting of the old Plantations.

Concerning it, the William and Mary College Monthly

published the following account:

''The names of our old Virginia estates are often

curious, but yet attractive. There is something about

them which links one to the past, and involuntarily we

find ourselves trying to imagine where the name could

have originated, or why it was used in connection with

the place. The history of some is deeply buried under
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the dust of centuries
;
a few date back to the Indians and

their poetic way of designating a place; many were

brought over from England. But there are others whose

source is merely a matter of conjecture. It is one of the

latter class which forms the subject of our sketch. No
one knows what the name Buckroe signifies. It has

been in constant use ever since the early colonial days,

and yet there is no legend to tell the curious antiquarian

whence Buckroe derived its name.

''In the county of Elizabeth City, at the extremity of

the 'Peninsular,' the student of history will find much
that is interesting and instructive. Kiquotan, now Hamp-
ton, is the site of the second landing of the English on

Virginia soil. Here the first 'pipe of peace' was smoked,

and near this town was placed one of the earliest and

most prosperous of the branch colonies. It was well

adapted for a settlement because the Indians had made

it as one of their chief villages. In the lower part of

this country, stretching along the shores of the Chese-

peake is a farm, well known in the section, and now

rapidly acquiring a reputation as a summer resort. Every
one in the country knows where Buckroe is situated.

"This place used to be one of the most valuable estates

in that section. It covered a thousand acres, supported a

hundred slaves, and was managed by a charming and

beautiful widow. The homestead was large and hospit-

able, and was situated in well-kept grounds. The land

was very productive ;
a white-oak wood covered several

hundred acres
;
and two fisheries furnished additional in-

come and employment. But war has brought many
changes. The valuable tract of wood was converted into

waste by General Butler. The property was allowed to

deteriorate, and now the Buckroe estate is not more than

half of its original size.
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"But we wish to trace the earhest history of this place.

There are many infalHble proofs that this section was
used by the Indians. At one point the property is bound-

ed by a creek, and for several acres there is a bank of

oyster shells. These shells have been hauled away for

decades, and yet the soil seems to be full of them. Among
these shells are found pieces of Indian pottery and arrow-

heads. Sometimes the searcher finds a curious, sun-dried

brick, which appears as hard as stone. They must have

lain there for two hundred and fifty years, and yet they
show no sign of crumbling. We cannot say that they are

of Indian manufacture, but the fact is clear that they are

not the work of skilled brick-makers.

''The name Buckroe is found among the earliest records

of the colony. It seems then to have been applied to a

district, possibly the whole of the lower portion of the

county. It is mentioned oftener than most of the places,

and must have been a prosperous section. In 1624 we
see that Governor Wyatt granted to Peter Arundel of

Buckroe two hundred acres of land as the payment of a

claim 'for two shares as a bill of adventure for two hun-

dred and eighty-seven poimds, ten shillings.' We find that

this Peter Arundel was a native of Normandy. He went

to London as a French teacher, took stock in the Virginia

company, and finally came over to Virginia in 1620.

About four years later the records state that he was

living at Buckroe with his wife, Elizabeth, and their two

children, John and Margaret. The father did not live

long, but his son later on became a commissioner and

also a member of the House of Burgesses. Bartholomew

Hoskins was a neighbor of the Arundels, and was record-

ed as owning a hundred acres of Buckroe due him as his

personal venture.

http://stores.ebay.com/Ancestry-Found
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"An old list of emigrants to America between IGOU and

1700 gives the following item: 'Living in Virginia, Febru-

ary 16, 1623, at Btickroe, thirty persons, twenty-six men
and four women, two of whom were wives/

"The spelling at this early period was in a very un-

settled condition. People seemed to spell just as they

chose, and it is curious to note the ways in which the

name of this place has been spelt. Buck Roe was the

most common, but some people wrote it Buck Row.

Others have it Bucke Row, and still another person spells

it Buckrow. Buckroe is now the accepted way of spel-

ling it.

''As we search over the ancient records of the grants

and leases made in Elizabeth City, we chance upon
several entries made about the same time. They refer

to leases made to planters and 'vignerons.' Several of

the latter class were Frenchmen, and were probably

some of the vine dressers brought over in the time of

Governor Wyatt. All of these records are dated Decem-

ber, 1627. Five years later William Hampton, planter,

leased 'fifty acres of land at Buck Roe in Elizabeth City,

adjoining the land granted by lease unto John Haney,

planter, and also the creek dividing the said land granted

from Point Comfort Island.' This is a portion of the

present farm. In a field near this creek are undeniable

remains of the foundation of a house, but they are not

enough to justify the antiquarian in forming a conclusion

as to the nature or size of the house.

"There is a lease dated April 16, 1633, which grants

twelve acres of this property to Elias la Guard. Here

the record is very explicit. The land was that 'adjoining

the land of William Croney and of James Bonall, French-

man, which land was granted by Francis West, Esq., to
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John Arundel, gent., and assigned by him to said Ehas la

Guard, January 20, 1629.'

"There is a fact about this estate which strikes one as

being rather surprising. Although it has been occupied
for so many years, there seems to be no sign of a burial

ground. Possibly the place was so healthy that there

was no need of a graveyard; or they may have buried

their dead in the cemetery on the beach, a mile from this

place.

"At a much later date than that of the aforesaid grants,

we find the following entry : 'Samuel Selden of Elizabeth

City, the first of that family in Virginia, in his will dated

May 24, and proved July, 1720, gives the plantation

called Buckrow, to his wife Rebecca for her life, re-

mainder to his right heirs.' This is the first time that the

name is applied to one estate or plantation ;
but from this

time on it is used with this signification. After the Sel-

dens, the property seems to have changed hands often.

For two generations it was in the Armistead family. This

was one of the oldest and one of the most accomplished
families of early Virginia. They were influential in the

county, and held many of the more important offices in

those days when a county office was regarded as a high

honor, and not as a means of amassing wealth. In these

good old days Buckroe was the scene of much so-

cial gaiety. The Miss Armisteads were considered the

most charming belles of eastern Virginia. One of these

young ladies became the wife of John Tyler and the

mother of President Tyler. The remains, or rather the

site of this old Armistead homestead can still be seen, but

the house was destroyed more than forty years ago. It

was a frame building with a brick basement, and seems to

have been in the shape of a square. It was beautifully
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situated; it commanded an extensive view'' of the bay ai

the point where it is broadest, and was also in full view

of old Point.

"The estate next became the property of the Carys
another well-known family. How long it remained ii

their possession we do not know, but a deed is recorded
of the transfer of the Buckroe plantation to Thoma-
Twine by Richard Ramsey, December 21, 1839. Hi>
wife inherited it, and to-day about half of the original
estate is owned by her heirs.

"There is one more point of interest on the Buckroe I

estate, and that is the 'Old Battery.' This is an earthen
'

work of small size thrown up in a field near the bay.

Nothing positive is known about its history, but tradition

says that it was thrown up during the war of 1812,

probably by the British when they were raiding Hampton
and vicinity.

"For centuries Buckroe Beach has been a choice spot
for picnics. It was formerly a wide and beautiful beach,
shaded by noble Live Oaks and was fed by the blue

waters of the Chesapeake. To-day it is less beautiful

but even more attractive; and this old colonial place will

some day be known all over our country.'
In his will, dated May 29, 1720, and proved July 1720,

Samuel Selden says : "I leave Buckroe at the head of Mill

Creek, late in the tenure of Charles Morryson to my wife
for life and then to revert to my heir at law." This prop-

erty came to Cary, the eldest son of Joseph. This, with the

context of the will and a bond, in w^hich the name of Jo-

seph precedes the name of John, w^ould seem to make Jo-
seph the elder of the two brothers, from both of whom are

descended the Seldens of Virginia. In a bond dated July
19, 1720, Rebecca Selden, Joseph Selden, George Yeo,
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and John Selden give bond for two thousand pounds, for

the proper execution of the will of Samuel Selden de-

ceased. In the signatures of this bond the name of Joseph
ilso precedes that of his brother John. Samuel Selden's

will continues : '*! give unto my son Joseph My Plan-

tation on Potomac Creek and to his heirs forever "^^ * "^

if lie pay unto his two sisters the sum of money hereafter

given unto my two daughters; but if my said son Joseph
shall refuse to pay the same out of the said land, then I

give the same Plantation to my son John Selden and his

heirs forever under the same terms and limitations '''' * * I

give unto my son John Selden my two Plantations called

Back River Plantation, being the grant of land lately in

the occupation of Leonard Yeo, and Old Field, being

the grant of land I have on the Hampton River, late in

the tenure of one Thos. Batts. Item I give unto my son

Bartholomew all the * "' "^^ and money he oweth me and

five pounds to put him in a mourning suit, and thirty

pounds to buy him a negro in case he gain more of his

wife Achilly's negroes. I give to my daughter Elizabeth

Selden sixty pounds sterling. To my daughter Mary
Milner sixty pounds sterling, to be paid in two able work-

ing negroes, and to be paid out of my Plantation at Poto-

mac Creek, That is to say by my son Joseph within two

years of my decease and if he refuse or fail to pay or

satisfy them in that time
;
the said sum to be paid by my

son John & he to have the Plantation as above stated.

Then if the said John refuse to pay
* "^ '^' then I give the

said Plantation to my said daughters
—to their heirs, &c.

for want of said heirs to remain and revert to my said

son Joseph
* '•' '•'

negroes to my wife and at her death to

my son Joseph
• '^ '^ I give my daughter Elizabeth '^ "''' * I

give my daughter Mary Milner '•' '' '^ and upon her death
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to revert to my son Joseph upon condition my said

daughter die without heirs of her body lawfully begotten
-'fi ^: :i: 'fo daughtcr Mary Milner & son Bartholomew

|

:i< -\^ =1= 'po John
"^^ "^ ''' Cattle to make his number ten, my

fourth best bed with all its usual Cloaks and ornaments,

and my little gun and one of the long guns and the half

of my books and as many sheep
''' * * All the rest of my

j

estate of What Value I own being personal I give unto

my loving Wife and my dear son Joseph after my debts
j

and legacies are paid to be equally divided between them .

and make them my executors."

The will of Rebecca Yeo, wife of Samuel Selden, dated

April 23, 1736, mentions daughter Elizabeth; grandsons,

Samuel Milner, Cary Selden, Samuel Selden, Miles and

Joseph Selden
; granddaughter Eliza Selden

;
cousin

George Yeo and John Selden, executors. She died in

1737.

Children :

i Samuel, was given the plantation of 1,060 acres,

known as Strawberry Bank, by deed from his

father, September 10, 1714 [page 6, deeds and

wills, 1704-1730, Hampton, Virginia]. He deed-

ed the said Strawberry Bank to his brother, Bar-

tholomew, in 1715, deed recorded June 2, 1715.

Witnesses : George Yeo, Samuel White, Mary
Selden. He was party in a law suit, 1714, and

was not mentioned in his father's will of 1720.

ii Bartholomew, died in 1727. He married, first,

Achilly ,
who was born in 1700, and died

1720, without issue
; married, second, Sarah Hil-

liard. He died without issue in 1727, and left,

as his heir, Joseph, the son of his brother John.

Sarah Hilliard married, second, William Ed-

wards, and died in 1777 without issue.
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2 iii John, married, first,
"^^ *

'^% second, Sarah Ball,

third, Grace Boswell.

37 iv Joseph, died in 1727; married Mary Gary; three

sons.

V Elizabeth, sold her interest in Buckroe to her

father in 171G; mentioned in will of her father,

1720, and in will of her mother, 173G.

vi Mary, married Thomas Milner
;
one son, Samuel,

who is mentioned in will of his grandmother,

1736, [See Elizabeth Gity Gounty records, 1719-

1720].

/ 2 John- Selden (Samuel^) was the son of Samuel

and Rebecca (Yeo) Selden. He was born in England,
and came to America with his parents about 1699. He
inherited two plantations on the Back River, at Hampton,

Virginia. He was a lawyer, and held many public offices,

being Justice of Elizabeth Gity Gounty, Virginia, in 1725
;

Sheriff of Lancaster Gounty, in 1732; Deputy Kings

Attorney, in 17.52, of Elizabeth Gity Gounty, where he

died in 1754. His will names four sons : John, William,

Richard, and Joseph. He married three times. The

name of his first wife and the date of the marriage are

unknown. John Selden married, second, October 13,

1725, Sarah Ball, daughter of Gaptain Richard and Sarah

(Young) Ball. (See Ball Family, No. 7). At Burnt

Ghimney, in the woods, about a mile from Lancaster

Gourt House, is the tombstone of Sarah Selden, on which

is inscribed, "Here lies the body of Sarah, the wife of

John Selden, Gent, and eldest daughter of Gapt. Richard

Ball, Gent., who departed this life the 10th day of Oct.

17— Aet, —"
Nearby is the tomb of Gapt. Richard Ball,

her father (see inscription in the Virginia Magazine of
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History and Biography, Volume III, page 333), and of

her sister, Hannah Ball, who married William Montague,

Junior. In the Marriage Bonds of Lancaster County is

found the following: "William ^Montague and Mrs.

Hannah Ball October 16, 1727
; John Selden, Order from

Sarah Ball, her mother, for license to issue; consent of

William Montague, father of said William Montague."

John Selden married, third, about 1740, Grace, daughter
of Captain William Boswell and Eleanor Corprew.
Eleanor Corprew, at the time of her marriage to Cap-
tain William Boswell, was the widow of Coleman Brough.
After the death of Captain Boswell, she married, third,

George Yeo. Mary Boswell, another daughter of

Captain William Boswell, and his wife, Eleanor, appears
to have also married a Selden (See note of Lyon G. Tyl-

er). Doctor William Boswell Selden, in 1831, states that

his greatgrandmother, Eleanor Corprew, was first married

to Robert Brough, whose son, William Brough, had daugh-
ters : Elizabeth, who married McCaw, Mary, who married

Scott, and a third daughter, who married Harris. Lie

writes as follows : "Eleanor Corprew, the great-grand-
mother of William B. Selden, was first married to Robert

Brough, afterward to Boswell. The first Robert had two

sons, Robert and William. Robert, second, was father

of the Brough family, a very numerous one. They are

now all dead, except William and Courtney, the former

more than eighty-four years of age. William Brough,
the son of Robert, married Mary Smelt, who had three

daughters. Elizabeth married the father of the present

Doctor James McCaw. ]Mary married, first, Scott, and

then Harris, the father of Mrs. :McCaw ***" On March 2,

1702, license was granted William Boswell to marry Eli-

nor Brough, widow of Coleman Brough, and June 22,
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1727, George Yeo and Elinor, his wife, qualified as

administrators of Capt. William Boswell, deceased. In

a deed from Coleman Wroe to David Meredith, dated

1741, John Selden is mentioned as marrying "one of the

co-heirs of William Boswell." (See William and Mary
Quarterly)
The following record of the descendants of John Selden

was written in 1831 by Doctor William B. Selden :

''From what I could learn from some of the oldest

members of this family, it is originally from the west of

England and of the same family as the celebrated civilian,

John Selden, who died, aged seventy, in the year 1654.

The first of the name of Selden who migrated to Virginia

had married Rebecca Yoe (spelled Yeo in will), whose

father had given to his daughter, as her marriage portion,

large tracts of land in the Northern Neck, for which a

patent had been granted about the year 1G90. They

brought with them to Virginia four sons, John, Joseph,

Samuel, and Bartholomew. Samuel and Bartholomew

died without issue. John married Miss Ball, by whom
he had one son, Richard, who also married a Miss Ball, by
whom he had James, John, Richard, and Mary, all of

whom died without children, except Richard. Richard

married the Widow Nutt, by whom he had one son,

Richard, who is now living, 1831, about twenty-three

years of age, and insane. This branch married in Lan-

caster County. The first John was a lawyer. He mar-

ried his second wife, Grace Boswell, daughter of Eleanor

Corprew from Caroline, by whom he had Joseph, John,

William, Elizabeth, and Eleanor. The two daughters

died unmarried. His son, Joseph, whom I shall call

the second, to distinguish him from his uncle, Joseph,

married Miss Armistead, by whom he had John, Nancy,
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who married Allison, the grandmother of James Armi-

stead, Robert, Uphan, Joseph, Alary, and Samuel.

Uphan married Marshall, brother of the Chief-Justice,

whose daughter, Mrs. Collier, a widow, is now living

in Hampton. Samuel married Miss Baker and left

two sons who are now living, John, a carpenter,

and Samuel, the captain of the Hampton steam boat.

John, Robert, Joseph, and Mary died single. The

pending family history may be relied upon as correct, as

most of it has been obtained from old members of the

family, now living, and from the writing of those who
have died, and much of it is known to me personally.

There is a family of the same name in the State of New
York. As there was no branch of the Virginia family

which moved to New York, if the family are from the

same ancestors, the New York family must have migrated
direct from England. In placing the migration of this

family about the year 1690, there is nothing precise in

the date. The calculation is made from knowing my own

age, fifty-nine, and my father's forty-two, at his death,

when I was eight years old, and conjecturing that my
grandfather might have been about forty at the birth of

my father. This short account of the Selden family is,

I believe, the only one in existence. There is none of the

name in the State of Virginia except those belonging to

the same family. The name is by no means common in

this or any other country. When in London and Edin-

burgh, in the year 1798, I examined the directories of the

cities and could find none of the name." The name of

Boswell, in Doctor William B. Selden's name, was the

maiden name of his grandmother on his father's side. The

middle name of his sister, Mary Grace Selden, was from

her paternal grandmother. Grace Boswell. The middle
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name of Hancock, attached to his brother John's, and his

sister, Sarah's names, was taken from their mother's

maiden name, Hancock. The middle name Robinson, of

his sister, Ann, was the ancestral maiden name of her

maternal grandmother.
The possessions in land of John Selden, son of the first

settler, were at the head of Hampton Creek, extending

across to Back River and also into Nansemond County.

Children :

Richard, married Mary Ball.

Joseph, married Mary (Armistead) Curie.

John, married Elizabeth Wallace.

William, married Mary Ann Hancock.

Elizabeth, died unmarried.

Eleanor, died unmarried.

Col. Richard^ Selden (John-, SamueP) was

born April G, 1721. He married, November 21, 1711,

Mary, daughter of James Ball, of Bewdley, and his second

wife, Mary Ann, daughter of Rev. John Bertrand. (See

Ball Familey, No. 8). The record of their marriage is to

be found in Lancaster County Bonds (Hayden, 64).

Richard Selden died in 1789.

Children :

i John, named in the will of James; died without

issue,

ii James, member of County Committee for Lancaster

in 1775; died without issue,

iii Richard, born in 1758; bore title of Captain; forty

years member of Presbyterian church
;
married Eliza-

beth, daughter of John Chinn of Lancaster, and his

wife, Sarah, daughter of Bartholomew Yates ;
Eliza-

beth Chinn was born Sept. 27, 1774; her husband was

3
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Dr. Nutt, by whom she had four children
; Margaret

Elizabeth Yates, who married J. B. Branham
;
Addi-

son Lombard, who married Mary Jones ;
AdeHna

Somerville, who married W. L. Gunion Mitchell
;

Roselina Althea, who married Smart . Richard

and Elizabeth (Chinn) Selden had one son, Richard,

who died at his residence, Farmville, Lancaster Co.,

Dec. 16, 1823.

iv Mary, died without issue.

4 Capt. Joseph"^ Selden (John-, SamueP) wasborn

in 1704. He married Mary, daughter of Robert and Ann

(Wallace) Armistead (see Armistead Family No. 63),

and widow of David Wilson Curie, who died in 1769.

Joseph Selden was the Sheriff of Elizabeth City County,

Virginia. (See Hayden, 63, and William and Mary
Quarterly, also family record). He died in 1775. An
abstract of his will, which is dated 30 August, 1774, and

proved in Elizabeth City, Virginia, Alarch 28, 1776, fol-

lows :

"In the Name of God Amen. I Joseph Selden of

Elizabeth City County being of perfect sense and memory
do make "^ * *

"In primes I give the use of my Plantation to my
loving wife Mary Selden until my sons shall be bound

out or my daughter Euphan to come of age or married;

and then for her to have the third of my land * * *

negroes to my wife. Item I give to my son, John Selden

my Plantation on Hampton River * * * Item I give to

my dau. Ann Allison ^' * *
I give to my son Robert Selden

my lands in Hampton facing Col. Gary's and 1-7 of my
negroes

* * =!= j give to my son William Selden * * *

I give to my son Samuel Selden * * * Executors broth-

er John Selden and friend William Armistead."
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Children (from record of Doctor Samuel Selden, of

Norfolk, written in 1870) :

i John, died unmarried.

ii Ann, who married Mr. Allison, and became the

grandmother of James Armistead.

iii Robert, died unmarried,

iv William.

5 V Samuel married Miss Baker.

iv Euphan, married the brother of Chief Justice

Marshall, by whom she had a daughter, Nancy,
who married a Collier and lived in Hampton.
Her son, Miles Selden Collier, married Miss

Cole of Williamsburg, and had three sons, who
were all living in 1870.

vii Joseph, died unmarried.

viii Mary, died unmarried.

5 Samuel"* Selden (Joseph^, John-, Samuel^)
married Miss Baker of Elizabeth City County.

Children :

i John, a carpenter.

6 ii Samuel, married Sallie Bailey.

6 Samuel^ Selden (Samuel*, Joseph^, John^, Sam-

uel^) was born in or near Hampton, Virginia. He in-

herited lands from his father near Hampton Creek. He
was at one time, Captain of the Hampton Steamboat. He
removed to Norfolk, and married Miss Sallie Bailey, who
was a descendant, on her father's side, of Doctor Ramsey,
of Revolutionary fame, (the brother of Admiral Ramsey
of the British Navy), and his wife, who was a sister of

Colonel Newton, from whom descends the Norfolk family
of Newtons, and whose portrait, painted in 1770, one
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hundred years ago now hangs in the Hall of Tazewell

Taylor, one of his numerous descendants. [This account
was written in 1870]. Samuel Selden married a second

time, as his will, dated in 1806, mentions his wife, Su-

sannah, and children, John, Samuel, James, and Joseph,
and niece, Maria Selden. He died in Norfolk, in 1851.

Children :

i John.
7 ii Samuel, married Elizabeth M. Lamb.

iii James.
iv Joseph.

7 Dr. Samuel^ Selden (SamueP, Samuel*, Jo-

seph^ John-, Samuel^), son of Samuel and Sallie (Bai-

ley) Selden, was a physician of Norfolk, Virginia. He
married Elizabeth M. Lamb, of Camden County, North
Carolina.

Child :

i Caroline, married James F. Yates, of Greenboro,
North Carolina, in 1882; died about 1895, leaving one

child, Alary Selden Yates, who resides with her grand-
mother in Greenboro.

8 JoHN^ Selden (John^, Samuel^) son of John and
Grace (Boswell) Selden, married, about 1760, Elizabeth,

daughter of Rev. James Wallace, whose tomb, was
erected in the churchyard of St. John's Church at Hamp-
ton, Virginia, by the Hampton Chapter of the N. P. V.

A., and bears the following epitaph : (See Wallace Fam-

ily No. 1.)

"Here lyes the body of the Reverend Mr. James Wal-
lace, late Minister of this Parish. He was born at Errol

in Perthshire, in North Britain. He was serviceable to



Selden Family 41

this Colony in a double capacity, both as a Devine and a

Physician, for the space of one and twenty years. He

exchanged this Hfe for a better on the 3rd of November,
A. D. 1712, and in the 45 year of his age.

''Excuse deceased Friend if I Forbear t'attempt thy

praise,
''

'tis far above my sphere.

''Only in silence let me drop a tear,

"Say Virtue fled and left one temple here."

In 1758 John Selden sold to his cousin, Gary Selden,

his estate, "Strawberry Banks," in Elizabeth City County,

devised to him by the will of his father, John Selden.

John Selden died intestate in 1775. His wife in-

herited from him his family plate. The following named

children are recorded in the account given by Doctor

William Selden. According to another account, they had

three daughters, and one son. One daughter married Mr.

Douglas of Scotland, and, after his death. Col. Jones of

Chatham, near Fredericksburg. Another daughter mar-

ried Mr. Fitzgerald, and left an only son, who married

a Thornton of Fall Hill, near Fredericksburg (See Wil-

liam and Mary Quarterly).

Children :

i Martha, born about 1762; married Mr. Jones; a

widow, aged 69, in 1831, without children,

ii Ann, married Mr. Fitzgerald; her son, James Fitz-

gerald, was living in 1831.

iii Elizabeth, married Mr. McMurder ; one daughter,

who married Mr. Gibson, and was living in Richmond

in 1831.

iv John, living in 1831
;
had a large family.

V James,
vi Rebecca.
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!J Rev. William^ Selden (Johii^, SamueP) son of

John and Grace (Boswell) Selden, was born in 1741. He
received his education at WilHam and Mary College.

He qualified himself for the practice of the law and

practised for a few years, but, in 1770, abandoned this

profession, and went to London, where he was ordained

an Episcopal minister. He returned to this country, and

was, for the rest of his life, pastor in Elizabeth City

County, residing at the Glebe, opposite the town of Hamp-
ton, wdiere he was Rector of Hampton Church from 1771

to '83. He cultivated a farm and was also master of an

Academy. Previous to his going to London in 1767, he

married Mary Ann Hancock, of an old family of Princess

Ann County, by whom he had a large family. The old

Selden Bible gives the following record of their marriage :

"Wm. Selden intermarried with Mary Ann Hancock on

29th of May 1767 * ^ *." He w^as tall, thin, and of a

delicate constitution, credulous and amiable to a fault, but

much respected for his fine talents and worth of character.

He died in the year 1783, on June 25, aged forty-two

years, leaving his w^idow with small means, which she

used to the best advantage in the support and education

of her children. She died in 1800, leaving two children,

Sarah H., and William Boswell. the latter the only sur-

vivor of the family now (1831). The daughter, Sarah H.

Seldon, married Richard Bagnall, an Englishman. Wil-

liam Selden's will w^as probated October 25, 1799.

Children (Selden BibleJ^'^"--
-^

A.iJ^.l-

10 i Sarah H. Hancock, married Richard Bagnell.

ii John Hancock, born Jan. 15, 1771.

13 iii William Boswell, married Charlotte Colgate.

iv Anne Robinson, born Dec. 6, 1774.

V Mary Grace, born Dec. 1, 1777.
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vi "A Male child Still born on 23 day of March

1778."

vii Rebecca, born March 25, 1780.

viii Samuel Robinson, born March 19, 1782.

REV. WILLIAM SELDEN^S DIARY:

"Mem. of cash rec'd for marriages, funeral sermons

J. (&) Christenings in the year 1779.

Tmp. S. Jan. 3, 1779, from Sam'l Rouland for Chris-

tening child 11 dollars.

Jan., 1779, from Wm. Lattimor for Christening

child, gall'n of brandy.

Jan., 1779, from Frances Goode for Christening

his child, 20i.

Jan., 1779, from John Willoughby for his inter-

marriage half

Jan., 1779, from Richard Servant for his intermar-

riage 7 gallons rum.

January, 1779, from John Wilson for his intermarriage,

21 dollars.

From Mr. Webster, Feb.r.y., 1779, for funeral ser-

mon at the interm't of his dau., 58.

Feb.r.y., 1779, from Charles Jennings for Christen-

ing his child, 5 dollars.

Memo. That Robert Cary Michell, Sam'l and James
Barron entered with me as pupils on Wednesday the 11

of August, 1779, at $100 per. ann'm.

The following names with same wording:
Robert Wahace, Wednesday, 15th Sept., 1779, $100.

Wm. Lattimore, Monday, Nov. 1, 1779.

Rae and Abraham Covv^per, sons of Edward Cowper
Nov. 21, Feb., 1780.

On Thursday 29 of June, 1780 Wm. and Francis Bailey

sons of Charles Bailey entered with me as pupils at the
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rate of £8 per ann'm, in specie to be paid in imported
articles.

Wednesday, 5 of July 1780 James Servant son of Sam-
uel Servant, dec'd entered &c.

;
Mr. Wm. Ballard Junr.

assumed payment.
Thomas Barron, son of Capt. Richard Barron entered

&c. £S per ann'm in specie.

A few items taken from old Alemorandum book of Rev.

Wm. Seldon.

On Monday 2, of Aug., 1773, Robert Wallace entered

with me as a scolar at £6 per ann.

David Brodie entered with me as a pupil a second time

on Monday, 11 of July, 1774.

Mrs. Curie, widow of Sam. Curie Dr., 4 barrels of

corn at 12-16 p. barrel.

On Aug. 17 my dear child parted with me, to go to

Liverpool on Saturday 20 he went out at 6 a. m.

On Tuesday 10 of March, 1772, opened school with the

foMowing scolars : Robert Brough, Wilson Cary, Allies

Cary, Nicholas King, J. Wray, A. Wray, B. Wallace, Jas.

Tab, Jas. Boodie, D. Boodie and M. Cary. Phil Allen

son of H'ry Allen dec'd, entered as a scholar on ^Monday
17th of March. Booth Armistead son of Booth Armistead

dec'd entered as a boarder on Monday, 6th of April, at

the rate of £25 per ann'm. James Wallace, son of Rob-

ert Wallace, dec'd, entered as a scholar on IMonday 4th

of May, Captain Wallace to pay for his schooling as per

note. Wm. Frazier entered as a scholar on Monday, 13th

of July.

March 14th of December came to live with my broth-

ers.

August 29, 1796, my dear Nancy Selden departed this

life at two o'clock in the morning.
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The rest of this memorandum is the hiring of negroes

to Geo. Liiggs, Mrs. Browne, Jas. Jussts or Luffts, Dun-

bar. Sloan Jno. Dunane, Thomas Duglas, Grahms, Mr.

Miles King Corn, etc.

10 Sarah Hancock* Selden (William^ John-,

SamueP) was born March 21, 17G9. Her birth record

taken from the Selden Bible is as follows: "Sarah Han-

cock Selden, daughter of Wm. & Mary Ann Selden, born

on 21st March, 1769." She married Richard Bagnall, an

Englishman, and died July 26, 1810.

Children :

i Mary Grace BagnaU, born Nov. 25, 1800; mar-

ried, first, James B. Vaughan, second, Thomas

Gary, third, Matthew W. Kemp; no children;

died Sept. 5 1882.

11 ii William Douglas Bagnall, married Elizabeth

Daingerfield Stark.

12 iii Henry Boswell, married Susan Hoggard Vaug-
han.

11 William Douglas^ Bagnall (Sarah Hancock'^

Selden, William-^ John-, SamueP) was born October 26,

1803. He married, May 11, 1835, EHzabeth Daingerfield

Stark, who was born April 6, 1816, and died January 1,

1852. William Douglas Bagnall died January 25, 1867.

Children :

i Rev. William Cadogan, died unmarried, Sept. 16,

1855.

ii Richard Daingerfield, M. D.

iii Elizabeth Moseley.
iv John Selden.

V Henry Boswell.
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12 Henry Boswell^ Bagnall (Sarali Hancock*

Seidell, William^, Johii^, SamtieP) was born April 17,

1809. He married, December 30, 1835, Susan Hoggard

Vaughan, who was born May 23, 1810, and died May 23,

1881. Henry Bagnall died June 27, 1854.

Children :

i Susan Vaughan.
ii Sarah Seklen, unmarried

;
died Dec. 9, 1868.

iii ]\Iargaret Whitehead, died March 17, 1846.

13 Dr. William Boswell* Selden (William^

John-, SamueP) was born August 31, 1772. He was edu-

cated as a physician in the city of Philadelphia and in

Scotland. He settled in Norfolk, Virginia, about 1798,

and practised his profession there for many years. He
married, November 22, 1802, Charlotte Colgate, who was
born near Maidstone, Kent, England, January 4, 1781,

and died at Sherwood, Gloucester County, Virginia, No-
vember 16, 1870. She was the daughter of Robert Col-

gate, a yeoman farmer of Kent, a university graduate,
and a friend of William Pitt. Robert Colgate did not

approve of slave labor, and not being familiar with the

methods of farming used in the Colony, did not succeed,

and his daughter, Charlotte, became a governess in the

Carroll family of Alaryland. (See Colgate Family, Num-
ber 2.) Doctor Selden died July 18, 1849. His children

were third cousins of the Johnstones, whose great-grand-

father, William Brough, was the half-brother of their

great-grandmother, Grace Boswell.

Children (births and deaths taken from Selden Bible) :

i Mary Ann, born July 30, 1804; died June 23,

1849.

ii John, born Aug. 24, 1806
;
died at sea, Sept. 30,

1825.
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14 iii William, married Lucinda Pope Wilson.

iv Susan, born June 4, 1810; died in Sept., 1855.

17 V Robert Colgate, married Courtenay Warner
Brooke.

vi Henry, a physician; married Mary Elizabeth

Ludlow, whose mother was Elizabeth Selden

Brooke, related to Courtney Warner Brooke

and to the Seldens (she afterward married

Baron Henry von Zollicoper, and died in Rome,

Italy) ;
no children; he died in 1855, of yellow

fever which he had no strength to resist, be-

cause of his arduous attendance on his patients,

vii Charles, born July 25, 1823; unmarried; died

Feb. 27, 1833.

14 Dr. William^ Selden (WilHam Boswell*,

William", John-, SamueP) was born in Norfolk, Vir-

ginia, August 15, 1808. He married, April 27, 1836,

Lucinda Pope Wilson, of Louisville, Kentucky. She was

the daughter of Doctor Daniel Wilson, of Mecklinburg

County, who removed from Virginia to Milledgeville,

Georgia, and thence to Louisville. The wife of Doctor

Wilson was Henrietta Johnson, probably of Chesterfield

County. She was the daughter of an Englishman, and

his wife, Elizabeth Smith, who, after the death of her

first husband, Mr. Johnson, married, second, another

Englishman, Mr. Poval. She had one son by her first

marriage, who was the father of <Philip Johnson of Ches-

terfield County, and of Edward Johnson of the United

States Army, afterward a general in the Confederate

Army. The only sister of Elizabeth (Smith) Johnson
married Mr. Preston, the first of that family who settled

in Virginia, and from whom are descended all the Pres-
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tons of Virginia, South Carolina, and Kentucky. Gov-

ernor Floyd of Virginia was a near cousin of Mrs. John-

son, and the Breckinridge family also is connected. Mem-
bers of the Smith family owned the Salt Works near

Abingdon, and the granddaughter of one of them married

Wyndham Robertson, who, at that time, was Governor

of Virginia. Mrs. Wyndham Robertson was the grand-
mother of the wife of Bishop Arthur L. Lloyd. (Com-
municated by Caroline Selden.)

The brother of Doctor Daniel Wilson was Thomas

Wilson, who was Alayor of Richmond a short time pre-

vious to the burning of the Richmond theatre, when his

wife lost her life. Her name is inscribed on the monu-

ment at Monumental Church in Richmond. Her hus-

band's niece, Lucinda Pope Wilson, was named for her.

Doctor Daniel Wilson was related to the Upshurs of

the Eastern Shore, to the Nelsons of Virginia, and to

Captain Wyndham R. I\Iayo of Norfolk. Members of

the Wilson family, cousins of the children of Doctor Wil-

liam Selden, are numerous in Kentucky.

Lucinda (Wilson) Selden died December 2G, 190L

Doctor Selden died November 7, 1887.

Children :

i William Boswell, killed at Roanoke Island, Feb-

ruary 8, 1862, the first man from Norfolk to be

killed in the Civil War.
ii Henrietta Wilson,

iii Julia Smith,

iv Charlotte Colgate.

15 v Mary, married C. W. Grandy.
vi Louisa,

vii Thomas,

viii Wilson.
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ix Caroline.

X Lucy.

15 Mary^ Selden (William^ William Boswell*,

William^, John-, SamueP) married C. W. Grandy.
Children :

16

i
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other families of Fauquier County. Robert Colgate Sei-

dell (lied November 1, 1890.

Children :

i John, born July 5, 1837; died August 16, 1838.

18 ii Charles, born November 22, 1838
;
died in 1908.

20 iii Robert C., born September 23, 1840; died in

August, 1904.

26 iv Elizabeth Lewis, born August 30, 1842
;
married

Charles H. Dimmock.

V Warner Lewis, born March 18, 1844; died

August 1, 1862.*

vi Henry Courtenay, born March 3, 1846
;
died

September 23, 1864.*

31 vii Mary Byrd, born December 21, 1847; married

William Courtenay Dimmock.
viii Charlotte Colgate, born December 22, 1849

;

died November 8, 1884.

34 ix Susan, born April 22, 1852.

18 Charles'' Selden (Robert Colgate^, William

Boswell*, William^, John-, SamueP) first married Ella

St. Clair James, who died November 12, 1862, and, sec-

ond, Isabel Howard James, October 28, 1865.

Children :

i William Boswell, born September 19, 1866.

ii Courtney Brooke, born January 3, 1868.

iii Fleming James, born July 5, 1869.

19 iv Isabel Randolph, born June 20, 1872; married

Harvey Halsey, in 1899.

V Mary Byrd, born June 25, 1874; died May 27,

in the same year.

* These two sons died in the war between the states, each at the
age of eighteen, in the same house. One died of fever, and the other,
who was with Stonewall Jackson, was mortally wounded. They are
buried in the same grave at Norfolk.
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vi Ella Duval, born May IG, 1877
;
died in 1895.

vii Charles, born April 2, 1880; died in 1881.

viii Mary Lewis, born July 1, 188'3
;
married D. A.

Dutrow, in 1909.

ix Elizabeth Dimmock, born July 20, 1884.

X Charlotte Colgate, born February 25, 1889.

19 Isabel Randolph^ Selden (Charles'% Robert

Colgate^ William Boswell^, William^ John-, SamueF)
was born June 20, 1872. She married Harvey Halsey,

in 1899.

Children :

i Courtenay Halsey.

ii Elizabeth Halsey.

iii Randolph Halsey.

20 Robert Colgate*' Selden (Robert Colgate^,

William Boswell*, William^, John-, SamueF) was born

September 23, 1840. He married Georgiana May Sin-

clair, August 9, 1866. His death occurred in August,

1904.

Children :

i Helen Stuart, born in 1867
;
died in 1873.

ii Henry Courtenay, born in 1868
;
died in 1871.

iii jNIatthew Brooke, born in 1870; died in 1871.

iv Robert Colgate, born in 1872.

21 V G. Mary, born in 1873
;
married Edward Rich-

ardson.

22 vi Jefferson Sinclair, born in 1875
;
married Mary

Roane.

23 vii Mary Courtenay, born in 1877
;
married Ashton

Sinclair.

24 viii Elizabeth Lewis, born in 1878
;
married Walker

Jones.
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ix Stuart Wray, born in 1880; married Rosalie

Barnes.

25 X Charlotte, born in 1882; married Eugene
Rhodes.

21 G. Mary' Selden (Robert Colgate^ Robert

Colgate^ William Boswell*, William^ John-, SamueP)
was born in 1873. She married Edward Richardson.

Children :

i Virginia Richardson,

ii Edward Richardson.

iii May Richardson,

iv Robert Richardson.

22 Jefferson Sinclair" Selden (Robert Colgate®,

Robert Colgate^, William Boswell*, William^ John-, Sam-

ueP) was born in 1875. He married Mary Roane.

Children :

i Robert,

ii Mary.
iii Jefferson.

23 Mary Courtenay^ Selden (Robert Colgate^

Robert Colgate% William Boswell^ William-^ John-, Sam-

ueP) was born in 1877. She married Ashton Sinclair.

Children :

i George Sinclair,

ii Jefferson Sinclair,

iii ^lary Sinclair.

24 Elizabeth Lewis" Selden (Robert Colgate*',

Robert Colgate% William BoswelP, William^ John-, Sam-

uel') was born in 1878. She married Walker Jones.
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Children :

i Sallie Taliaferro Jones,

ii William Jones,

iii Brooke Jones.

25 Charlotte^ Selden (Robert Colgate^, Robert

Colgate^, William Boswell*, William^, John-, SamueP)
was born in 1882. She married Eugene Rhodes.

Child :

i Marion Lee Rhodes.

36 Elizabeth Lewis^ Selden (Robert Colgate^,

WilHam Boswell% William^, John-, Samuel^) was born

August 30, 1842. She married Captain Charles H. Dim-

mock, October 14, 1863.

Children :

27 i Mary Lewis Dimmock, born in 1864 married,

first, Lewis, and, second, James H. Harris.

28 ii Robert Selden Dimmock, born in 1866; married

Camille Edwards,

iii Elizabeth Maxwell Dimmock, born in 1868
;
mar-

ried Henry Ames Williams, in 1894.

29 iv Minna Dimmock, born in 1871
;
married Clinton

Graham.

30 V Blanche Dimmock, married B. P. Noland.

27 Mary Lewis^ Dimmock (Elizabeth Lewis^ Sel-

den, Robert Colgate^, William Boswell*, William^, John^,

SamueP) was born in 1864. She married, first,

Lewis, and, second, James H. Harris, in 1896.

Child :

i Courtenay Warner Harris.
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28 Robert Selden' Dim mock (Elizabeth Lewis"

Selden, Robert Colgate^, William Boswell^, William^,

John-, SamueP) was born in ISfiO. He married Camille

Edwards, in 1904.

Children :

i Charles Henry,
ii Goodlett.

29 MiNXA^ DiMMOCK (Elizabeth Lewis'^ Selden,

Robert Colgate^, William Boswell*, William^, John-, Sam-

ueP) was born in 1871. She married Clinton Graham,
in 1898.

Children :

i Katherine Acosta Graham,

ii Robert Selden Graham.

30 Blanche^ Dimmock (Elizabeth Lewis" Selden,

Robert Colgate^, W^illiam Bosv^-ell'*, William^, John-, Sam-

uel^) married B. P. Noland, in 1900.

Child :

i Elizabeth Lewis Noland.

31 Mary Byrd*^ Selden (Robert Colgate^ William

Boswell"', William", John-, SamueP) was born Decem-
ber 21, 1847. She married William Courtenay Dimmock,
December 3, 1874.

Qiildren :

32 i Mary Byrd Dimmock, born in 1876
;
married

Thomas Spottswood Well ford,

ii Courtenay Selden Dimmock, born in 1878
;
died

November 29, 1884.

iii Henrietta Johnson Dimmock, born in 1879 ;

died November 14, 1884.
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iv Charlotte Co^.gate Dimmock, born in 1881
;
died

November 22, 1884.

33 V Elizabeth Lewis Dimmock, born in 1883
;
mar-

ried Samuel Roland Buxton.

vi Cora Dimmock, born in 1886.

vii Susan Selden Dimmock, born in 1889.

32 Mary Byrd^ Dimmock (Mary Byrd*^ Selden,

Robert Colgate'^ William Boswell*, William^, John-, Sam-

ueP) was born in 1876. She married Thomas Spotts-

wood Wellford, January 6, 1904.

Child :

i Belle Street Wellford.

33 Elizabeth Lewis^ Dimmock (Mary Byrd*^ Sel-

den, Robert Colgate^, William Boswell*, William", John-,

Samuel^) was born in 1883. She married Samuel Ro-

land Buxton, April 26, 1906.

Children :

i Mary Byrd Buxton,

ii Nancye Peelle.

34 Susan'' Selden (Robert Colgate^, WilHam Bos-

welP, William^ John-, SamueP) was born April 22, 1852.

She married John Lloyd Tabb, March 6, 1877.

Children :

35 i Warner Lewis Tabb, born in 1877
;
married Min-

nie Weeden.

ii Robert Selden Tabb, born in 1879; died June

12, 1880.

iii Susan Selden Tabb, born in 1881
;
died Novem-

ber 8, 1884.

36 iv Maud Perrin Tabb, born in 1884; married R.

Barry Fisher,

v J. Lloyd Tabb, born in 1892.
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35 Warner Lewis^ Tabb (Susan^ Selden, Robert

Colgate^ William Boswell^ William^ John% Samuel^)
was born in 1877. He married Minnie Weeden, in 1903.

Child:

i Mildred Warner.

3G Maud Perrin^ Tabb (Susan« Selden, Robert

Colgate^ William BoswelP, William^ John-, Samuel)
was born in 1884. She married R. Barry Fisher, in

1902.

Child :

i J. Tabb Fisher.

37 Joseph- Selden (SamueP) the son of the im-

migrant ancestor, was born in England. He came to

America with his parents sometime between 1690 and

1700. In 1723 and other years he was Justice of Eliza-

beth City County, and in 1725 was commissioned Sheriff,

in those days an office of honor. He married Mary,
daughter of Miles and Mary (Wilson) Cary, of Ceeleys,
and granddaughter of Miles and Ann (Taylor) Cary,
who came to Virginia in 1640, from Bristol, England.

Mary Cary was born in 1704, and died in 1775. (See

Cary Family, No. 35.) Joseph Selden was to have in-

herited his father's estate, Buckroe, at the death of his

mother, but she outlived him. He died at Hampton,
Virginia, in 1727. His will was proved in Elizabeth City

County, June 21, in that year. An abstract is here given
of the original, which is to be found in the Clerk's office

at Hampton.

'Ttem, I give unto my Son Samuel * "^^ * "
[Here

follow land bonds on Potomac Creek in the County of

Stafford]
"* * "^^ but if said Son Samuel should die
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without issue of his body lawfully begotten, before he

shall attain the age of twenty-one, then I give the said

tract of land to my son Miles and his heirs forever. Item

I give unto my Son Miles after the death of my mother
H= ^<  To Rebecca Selden that tract of land lying on

the mouth of Hampton River called Fortfield. To my
brother John Selden My New Suit of cloth, cloak ready

made up. To my said son Miles and his heirs "^^ '•' ''' but

if my said son Miles should die without issue * "^ "*' then

I give the said tract to my son Gary Selden and' his heirs

forever. I give my silver hilted sword to my son Gary

Selden. I leave the guardianship of my three sons, Gary,

Miles and Samuel, until they shall attain the age of

twenty-one years, to I\Ir. Wilson Gary and to Mr. Miles

Gary, their uncles. After all my just debts are paid, I

give unto my dear and loving wife all the remainder * * ^^^

And lastly I constitute and appoint Mr. Wilson Gary and

Mr. Miles Gary, his brother, my lawful executors to this

my last will and testament."

''Signed, Joseph Selden."

Ghildren :

38 i Gary, married Elizabeth Jennings.

90 ii Samuel, born in 1725; married, first, Mary
Thomson Mason, second, Sarah Ann Mason

Mercer.

94 iii Allies, married Rebecca dau. of Miles Gary.

38 GoL. Gary^ Selden (Joseph-, SamueU) was

born in 1723. He inherited Buckroe, at Hampton. He

married, between 1750 and 1759, Elizabeth Jennings of the

West Indies. It is not known who were the parents of

Elizabeth Jennings. Her grandson, John Selden, stated

that she belonged to the Jennings family who engaged
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in a long law suit in England, and that she came from the

West Indies. She is thought to have been a descendant

of the family of the famous Sarah Jennings, the Duchess

of Marlborough. From this family was descended Doc-

tor Portens, Bishop of London. Doctor Wilson Gary, of

Baltimore, Maryland, gives the following concerning the

descent of Elizabeth (Jennings) Selden :

"I have little doubt that she was descended from

Charles Jennings, Clerk of Elizabeth City County from

1G80 to 1699, who was succeeded in that office by his

son, Charles Jennings, who retained it until 1720. He
died in 1748, leaving a son, Charles, mentioned in his

will, and other children. Wlien I was making researches

^c * * in 18G8, I took copies or copious extracts of all

the Selden Wills on record at Hampton and also of all

the old tombstones in St. Johns churchyard. Among
these latter were the following of a family of Jennings :"

''

'Charles Jennings Senr, died January 4, 1816, aged

67,' (placing his birth in 1749, which tends to identify

him as of the line of Charles, son of Charles, the testator

of 1745-8).
*'

']2Lr\t, wife of Charles Jennings, died Oct. 15, 1781,

aged 22' (born 1759).
"
'William Jennings died Oct. 10, 1791, aged 41' (born

1750), also
''

'Sarah Jennings, his wife' (nee Sweny).
"
'Anne Jennings, wife of William Jennings, Senr, born

Nov. 2, 1761, died November 30, 1808.'
"
'June 1, 1762, Administration on Estate of Charles

Jennings was granted to his widow Mary.' (This may
have been Charles, son of the testator of 1745-8).

"Charles Jennings, who died 1748, was doubtless the

husband of Elizabeth Naylor, married 1702, but in his
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will only two daughters, Mary and Anne are mentioned,
and four sons, Charles, John, Thomas, and David; but

this generation is clearly too old to furnish a wife for

Colonel Selden. She was possibly the daughter of

Charles Jennings (and his wife, Mafy), who died in 1762.

A Charles Jennings, born in 1G45
( ?) died in 17—

,
mar-

ried in 1675 ( ?), Alary ,
born in 1652, died 17—,

had a son, Charles, Junior, born in 1678 or '80, died 1748,

married in 1702, Elizabeth Naylor, who had a son,

Charles, third, born 1705, died 1762. He married, in

1735, Mary ,
and had a son, Charles, fourth, born

in 1749, died January 4, 1816, aged sixty-seven, who mar-

ried Jane , born 1759, died in 1781, aged twenty-

two; and Elizabeth, born in 1735 (?), died in 17—
,
who

married, in 1755 ( ?) ,
Colonel Cary Selden ."

''A marriage license was issued in Elizabeth City to

Charles Jennings, Junior, and Elizabeth Westwood, nee

Naylor."

After her husband's death Mrs. Cary Selden lived with

her daughter, Mrs. James Breckenridge, in Botetourt

County. At the time of her death, in 1807, she was with

her daughter, Sarah, Mrs. Andrew Hamilton, in Fin-

castle, Virginia.

Colonel Selden hekl the rank of Captain in 1751,

Lieutenant-Colonel in 1763, and was commissioned Col-

onel of Elizabeth City County in March, 1767. He was

Magistrate of the County Court before 1760, fourth in

commission in 1767. He was one of a committee from

Elizabeth City County, to represent the County in the

General Committee of the District, whose duty it was to

enlist men for a company of regulars in 1775. He was

also a member of the Committee of Safety for Elizabeth

City County, and Deputy Collector of Customs under his
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cousin, Colonel Wilson Miles Gary, of Ceelys. In 1782, he

was Clerk of Elizabeth City Court. He was a member of

the Episcopal Church, and vestryman of Elizabeth City

Parish, being present at the meetings of the Vestry from

1771 to 1784. He was the proprietor of the old estate

of Buckroe, inherited in his family for three generations,

and which was sold by his son, Wilson Cary Selden, the

last owner of the estate in the Selden family. The Gov-

ernment School for Indians now stands on the land.

Colonel Selden inherited other lands in Elizabeth City

County, and to him was left his father's silver-hilted

sword. His uncle. Miles Cary, gave him in his will,

"My chair and horses, and all of my kitchen and house-

hold furniture, and third of crops." Colonel Cary Sel-

den's silver, some of which was in possession of the late

Mrs. Sorrel, of Roanoke, was marked ''W. C. Selden."

His uncle. Colonel Wilson Cary, writes, in 1763, ''Colonel

Selden has two sons and two daughters, one of his sons

called Wilson Cary .'' Colonel Cary died about

1792. In the Hampton records the Index of Wills gives

that of Cary Selden, but the pages referred to are torn

out.

Children :

i Joseph, died when a young man
;
soldier in the

Revolution, 1778-81.

Mary, married Hugh Young.

Elizabeth, married James McClurg, M. D.

Wilson Cary, married, first, Mrs. Mary Ma-
son (Selden) Page, second, Eleanor Love, third,

Mrs. Mary Bowles (Armistead) Alexander.

Rebecca, married Richard Barron, and was ex-

ecutrix of his will, dated March 17, 1791, with

Aliles King (filed at Hampton Court House,

39
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Vol. 33, page 194) ;
an indenture is also re-

corded from Wilson Cary Selden of the first

part and William C. Lee of the second part
''' *

* this land was conveyed by William Jennings
and Sarah, his wife, to Rebecca Barron and

Richard, her husband ^^^ * "-^

proved in Court

1792. (William Jennings was born in 1750,

and died Oct. 10, 1791. His wife was Sarah

Sweny.) ''While on board ship "Edward" in

1809, Miles Selden Barron doth give to his

brother Richard Barron, a house lot formerly

belonging to my sister Elizabeth Jones. Proved

23 of March, 1810." Richard Barron married

Ann —^ in 1809.

57 vi Ann, married Gen. James Breckenridge.
vii Miles, killed at sea at the age of twelve ; as a

boy he was wild and headstrong and his father

thinking that the discipline on board ship

would be good for him, sent him to the ship

''Edward," commanded by his brother-in-law,

Richard Barron
; they were attacked by pirates

and Miles disobeyed the order to remain below

hatches
; just as he put his head above deck it

was taken off by a chain ball (two balls con-

nected by a chain).

89 viii Sarah, married Andrew Hamilton.

39 Mary* Selden (Cary^ Joseph-, Samuel^) mar-

ried Hugh Young in 1775, and resided in Baltimore,

Maryland. Hugh Young was born in Ireland, and emi-

grated to this country in the year 1771, in company with

his sister, Frances, from Clenarle, County Donegal. Fran-

ces Young had married Robert Purviance in Ireland, and,
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before coming to America to live, liad three children by
him. They were the parents of James, Robert, William,

and John Purviance, of I'altimore. llugli and Frances

(Young) Purviance were the children of James Young
of Clenarle, County Donegal, Ireland, "a gentleman of

large fortune in the north of Ireland."

"Chronicles of Baltimore," contains the following ref-

erences to the Young and the Purviance families :

"About this time (July) there arrived and settled here

Messrs. Hugh Young, Alexander Donaldson, Christoph-
er Johnston, James Stirling, John Weatherburn, George

Salmon, John McFadon, and others, who were foreign-

ers
;
and Messrs. William Young, Hezekiah Waters, Ben-

jamin May, George Warner and others from this or

neighboring provinces."

As the name of Hugh Young occurs for the first time

in the book in 1775, and as he is subsequently and fre-

quently mentioned in connection with Samuel and Robert

Purviance of Baltimore, who undoubtedly came from

County Donegal, Ireland, where their Huguenot ancestors

settled shortly after the Revocation of the Edict of Nan-

tes, in October, 1685, it is concluded that he was from the

Protestant part of Ireland also. (Contributed by Mr. N.

Purviance. a descendant of Colonel William Purviance

of North CaroHna.)
The following record of the family is also from Mr.

N. Purviance.

"Jacques de Purviance of Royan, Saintonge, France,
after the Revocation of the Edict of Nantes, in October,

1685, settled first in Lisburn, and afterward near the

village of Castle Finn, in Donegal County, Province of

Ulster, Ireland. His son, John Purivance, on April 2,

1725, married at Castle Finn, Lettice Dinsmore of the
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same place. Of their eleven children, three came to Am-
erica in 1754, viz: Samuel, born September 24, 1728;

William (myself), born September 4, 1730; Robert, born

June 2, 1734; and their youngest child, John, born No-

vember 30, 1742. He came to America and located in

Western Pennsylvania.

"Samuel settled first in Philadelphia, and afterward

(1768), joined his brother, Robert, who had settled in

Baltimore, Maryland.
"William selected North Carolina as his place of resi-

dence and setttled down as a planter 'on the Sound', about

fourteen miles from Wilmington. Like his brothers who
lived in Baltimore, he became quite prominent in the his-

tory of his adopted State, and was appointed by the

'Congress' of North Carolina, that is, the Colonial Gen-

eral Assembly, Colonel of the First Colonial Regiment
raised in the County of New Hanover, a county whose

inhabitants, long before the Revolution, showed an in-

domitable resistance to the tyranical acts of England, and

no section of the State was more exposed to the pressure
of the enemy, and none showed firmer opposition. Samu-
el Dinsmore Purviance, the son of William Purviance,

was elected to Congress in 1803, defeating Duncan Mac-
Farlane in the heated campaign of that year. He was

born January 7, 1774, and in 1778, '79, '80, '81, and '82,

was a member of the North Carolina 'House of Com-
mons' and State Senate.

"Robert Purviance, born June 2, 1734, married Frances

Young in Ireland, born 1739. Robert Purviance died

October 10, 1806
;
Frances (Young) Purviance died

March 3, 1821. James Purviance, their son, born Febru-

ary 19, 1772, died in June, 1836. He married Eliza

Young, born in 1780, the daughter of Hugh Young and
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Mary Seidell, his wife, of Elizabeth City, Virginia." His

brother, Robert Purviance, married her sister, Frances

Young.
Mr. Robert Purviance, of Baltimore, wrote the follow-

ing account of the family in 1857 :

"The ancestor was a Huguenot, banished at the Revoca-
tion of the Edict of Nantes, in the year 1688. He sought
an asylum in the north of Ireland. ^ * * Robert Pur-
viance came to this country in 1750." He states that his

wife did not come with him at that time, but that she

came in November, 1771. The account continues : 'They
had eleven children. The three first were born in Ireland,

viz, John, Jane, and Letitia. John died in Ireland, at

about the age of three years; Jane died in this country
after a year's residence; and Letitia died in October,
1794. There were two Johns and two Janes. The
brothers and sisters I knew were James, John, Samuel,

Hugh, William, Robert, Letty, Jane, and Fanny. Hugh
was a captain in the merchant service and died in the

West Indies in January, 1797, aged nineteen years. James
died in June, 1836, aged sixty-four; Samuel died in

March, 1817, aged seventy-eight ; John died in September,
1854, aged eighty; Letty died in October, 1794, aged

twenty-four years; Jane died in .May, 1801, aged twenty^

five; Fanny died in August, 1843, aged sixty-two; our

father died in October, 1806, aged seventy-two, our

mother died in March, 1821, aged eighty-one years."
Mr. Robert Purviance also describes Mary (Selden)

Young as follows:

*'The old lady, Mary SeMen, was nn arrogant and

haughty beauty in her day and entertained the celebri-

ties who came to Baltimore town, among them being the

Counts Lafayette and Rochambeau. She is said to have
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worn the watch we have, on the occasion of an entertain-

ment given to Count Rochambeau, when he passed

through Baltimore to visit Washington at Mount Vernon,

and to have danced with the distinguished guest on that

occasion, as well as others. She was always called 'The

Duchess of Marlboro,' in her day in Baltimore, because

of her imperious nature and descent from the Jennings

family, from which the famous 'Sarah Jennings' came."

Children :

iO i Eliza, married James Purviance.

ii Cary, was sent to Ireland to his grandfather

Young, when a child
; surgeon in the British

Army; died unmarried,

iii James, was sent to Ire^.and to his grandfather

Young, when a child
;
returned to this country

in 1829, and settled in New Orleans,

iv Frances, married Robert Purviance
;
no chil-

dren. The following letter was written by her

to Mrs. James Breckenridge, at Fincastle, Bote-

tourt Co., Va., who was her aunt, the sister of

her mother, and was found at "Grove Hill," the

home of Judge George William Breckenridge,

grandson of Mrs. James Breckenridge, who

kindly gave it to the author:

"Baltimore Jan. y, 1818

•Tt is with a great deal of pleasure. My Dear Aunt

I assure you, that I comply with your request of writing,

I am quite ashamed at not having done so before
;

it was

certainly my intention, but owing to a variety of circum-

stances the spirit of procrastination has pursued me from

day to day and I am really glad to be brought to any

point (such as Uncle B's letter) that enables me to break

the spell.
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"We are extremely sorry for the accident Uncle Breck-

enridge speaks of—a hurt on the leg is no trifle and we
shall not be perfectly easy until we learn he has quite

recovered. You will regret to hear that Mr. Hazlehurst's

illness has terminated in a settled derangement from

which there is no prospect at present of a recovery

"Feb. 23

"You will see from the date of the above, my Dear

Aunt, how long it has been written which will be some

proof to you that my inclination to write has been good,

but the truth is, it is utterly impossible for me to pre-

tend to be a correspondent in the winter season, the

morning and the afternoons are so short, with so many

interruptions from company the moment one takes a pen
in hand, that I have no satisfaction in writing and I feel

as if I could give none, from the necessary shortness of

my letters
;
but the receipt of your letter of the 7th to

Mama urges me again to make the attempt. I will candid-

ly confess that I might probably have made greater efforts

to conquer all these difiiculties, had there been no com-

munication between Uncle Breckenridge and Mr. Purvi-

ance, but as their correspondence enabled us to hear

mutually of health &c, I felt the less uneasiness at my
own silence. Your friend Mrs. Harrison whom you

enquire for so particularly, has been very ill. She had a

daughter about 7 weeks ago and is still confined to her

room
; they were very uneasy about her but she is now a

great deal better. I saw Miss Gait some days ago, she

seemed very infirm and helpless and complained very

much. As usual she asked a hundred questions about

you and yours. Ala went to see her the day before she

received your letter so that we have had no opportunity

yet of delivering your message; but I am sure she will be

delighted to hear from you.
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"I have answered your question respecting Mr. Hazle-

hurst, his situation is truly distressing. Sometimes it is

thought from his bodily indisposition, he can not live very

long; at others that he may linger for many years, the

present accounts say he is better. Baltimore has been

gayer this winter than I have known it for a long time

route after route almost every night in the week. The

whole month of January seemed to be one continued suc-

cession of dances—I thought constantly of the girls, wish-

ing they were here. Mary Swann and Mary Ann Page

spent some time with me early in the season, the winter

gaiety had not completely commenced but they were

out a great deal and liked Baltimore very much. Among
the parties given to them were a Town meeting at Mrs.

John Purviance's and at Mrs. McMechen's, who you

recollect, were both sick when you were here. Your

friend Mrs. William Gilmor is to have a wedding in her

family shortly, Jane her eldest daughter to a son of Col.

Howard's—this will increase the gaiety.

''We have had a great many marriages, among them

Mrs. George Dugan (Abby's sister-in-law) to Dr. Gala,

7 years younger than herself, her choice surprised every

one. As she was very independent in her circumstances,

quite handsome and possessed of very attractive manners,

it was thought she might have looked higher than a young
man perfectly unknown in the society in which she moved
and without any fortune but his profession, he is said

however to have talent and is of a respectable quaker

family from Hartford, perhaps when he is better known
her choice may be approved. Edmund Duval, Judge D's

son, has married the pretty little Miss McCansland whom
the girls went to see last winter, a dashing wedding. Old

Mrs. Duval was in town some days, talking as busily as

ever and looking remarkably well—she talked of you.
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"3klrs. Gen'l Smith is in danger of losing one of her

eyes, from what is called a tear. I am sure you will be

sorry, i hope it wiU not be the case, but they have great

apprehensions. The Gen'l and herself think very posi-

tively of going to Europe in the spring. Their daughter

Sydney Patterson has been dangerously ill with a dead

born child. Betsy Bonaparte, alias Mrs. Patterson, for

she goes by that name now, is again settled among us. She

is much fatter and looks prettier than before she went

away, and is so anxious to preserve her health and good
looks that she seldom ventures out at night. She has

been to but one party the whole winter which was

at Abby's the night Mary Swann w^as there. Mary had

never seen her before—'her expectations she said w^ere

more than answered, indeed it was the universal opinion

she had never looked more beautiful. In many respects

I think she is much improved, fluent as her conversation

always was, it is much more so now, she is full of anec-

dote and very easy in her manners, wdiicli makes her in

private society extremely amusing. Tell Uncle B— his

sweet Heart as Ma calls Miss Spear is quite well, she has

not been to Washington this winter. ]\Iatilda's little

Favorite Mrs. Meredith is quite out of the gay world this

winter which does not suit her at all. She is mourning
for a child a brother and a brother-in-law, and has or

will soon have an addition to her family.

"Eliza Johnston, the youngest daughter of Old Mrs.

Christopher (the one that came w4th her mother to see

you) it is said is to be married in a few days. I am glad
of it for they have had nothing but sickness and trouble

in their family for several years past and this will tend

to cheer them up a little. Maria continues as it respects

Matrimony in statu quo. Airs. Dall and Ma talk
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of you very often, she declares there is hardly

any body in the world she would like to see so much as

you. She was very ill when you were here and really

did not know of your being in town till the night of Mrs.

Meredith's party, when Mrs. Thomas went home she

exclaimed, 'Mama who do you think was at the party?

The lady I have heard you so frequently speak of, ]\Irs.

Breckenridge, Mrs. Young's sister. She was very much

surprised and told Mrs. Thomas not to neglect to call the

next day, which, if you recollect, she did, the Saturday
before you left town, you sent your cards in return, on

Sunday morning. Mrs. Magruder's family are still near-

er neighbors to us than they were, we see them very

often and talk frequently of you and the girls. William,

the lawyer, appears really to have been quite smitten with

Matilda. I think if he had a fortune you would see him

traveling your way. I wish he had an elegant one and

Matilda could fancy him, for he is a remarkably fine

young man in disposition, mind and morals
;
but then he

is connected with such a large family of sisters who may
look up to him as their chief support that I am afraid it

would not answer. We plague him a good deal about

her. Our Favorite Helen has been very delicate in her

health all this winter prone to cough and pain in her

breast which makes her mother uneasy ;
tho' she says her-

self she is very well. Tell Miss Nancy Allen I have not

had occasion to make any drops from her good receipt

since I came home
;

I have been troubled with my cough
from time to time but not to such a degree as to render

it necessary. I preserve it however very carefully. I am

extremely glad to hear her health is reestablished. Mama
and Mr. Parviance unite with me in rememberance to

her.
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"Have you heard that Anne Price was married? To
a Mr. Smith of Staunton. She has been here for some
months with her friend Fanny Carroll, while her hus-

band is in Richmond attending the Legislature. I have

never seen her; I believe she passes her time almost en-

tirely in the country. I think I told you last summer that

Mr. and Mrs. Kewbelle had been called to France in

consequence of the intercession of the Duke of Wellington
with the king. At first their prospects were very gloomy
but the last letters speak of a military appointment of

considerable consequence having been granted him. There

has been a gay wedding in her father's family since she

left them; her youngest brother, a wild chap, quite un-

able to manage himself.

''Betsy Bonaparte has also had a Brother married this

winter, Joseph Patterson to Charlotte Nicholls, each mar-

riage contributes to the general stock of gaiety. Your

Washington acquaintance, Mrs. Gales, was in town for

ten days on a visit to Mrs. Walker. I saw him for the first

time
;
he is a man of polite manners but how extremely

homely ! Caroline has a daughter. Emily Caton that was

Mrs. McTavesh is now on a visit to her mother and has a

son. Mr. and Mrs. Latrobe have come to reside in Balti-

more. He could not agree with Col. Lane, Commissioner

of the Public Buildings, and left Washington in disgust.

They stayed some time at Mr. Harpers and at the Manor,
but have now, I believe, gone to housekeeping. Mrs.

Campbell, Maria Ridgely's Mother, died last week after a

long illness from a cancer. Did you know old Mrs. Hun-

ter? You saw her last winter at Mrs. David Stewart's

party. She died a few weeks ago sitting up in a chair in

her parlor. Well my dear Aunt, have I not endeavored to

make up for my long silence by at least a long letter? As
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far as my recollection serves me, no changes have taken

place among any of your acquaintances more worth re-

lating than those I have mentioned. A good many other

daughters and sons have made their appearance but I

do not suppose you care anything about them.

"With respect to my own immediate family, they are

all well, from Gemima's Baby Louisa, up to Mama the

head of the house—It is an uncommonly fine child and

tho' only a year old this Feb.'y, has walked for several

months past, it is a wonderful pet as usual. The other

two Harriet and Mary are quite well and grow in useful-

ness every day. Henry brags continually of his services

and really imagines he is an excellent diningroom servant,

he seems to remember you and the girls perfectly. How
does your little pet Caroline come on. As for Seymour, he

is as bad as ever, goes when he pleases stays when he

pleases, and does what he pleases.

"Mama does not grunt and groan nor have the 'figits'

half so much as she had; she takes a great deal more

exercise, in conformity to her doctor's express injunction,

and I think feels very sensibly the benefit of it. She

sends her warmest love to Uncle Breckenridge and your-

self, looks forward to seeing you next summer on your

northern trips, and says tell Uncle B— not to forget her,

for all her dependance is upon his kind exertions. Fran-

ces is very well and still goes to Madame Baconia's

school, requests to send her love to you. Cousin

James is well—he is always pleased to hear from and

gratified at being remembered by you. Wilson Cary has

at length obtained his ardent wish of going into the Navy,
his father yielded, tho' reluctantly, to his desire while the

Franklin 74 lay at Annapolis. He has gone in her as a

midshipman. They had an unsually short passage to
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England whence we had letters from him, quite well and

in high spirits.

"Our pet James was at home, as usual at Christmas,

very well and much improved, the resemblance to your
little John was constantly striking Robert and myself.

Aunt Purviance has been complaining a great deal from

time to time this winter of a pain in her side but her

heaUh in general is very remarkable, for a person at her

advanced age, she seldom sees me without inquiring when
I have heard from you. Fanny Hazlehurst, you may
suppose, suffers a great deal. She has been sick several

times through the winter but is tolerably well at present,

her children are well and very lovely. Aunt is staying

with her. She does not live across the street, but in a

house rather smaller tho' very neat, not far from Gemi-

ma's, jMama misses her very much. As for Gemima and

Abby, they have made up this winter for any confinement

or indisposition they had last, for they have been as gay
as gay could be, giving parties, dinners, and suppers and

going to them continually. Gemima was not so unfortu-

nate in her party to Mary Swann as she was in the one

given to you, her rooms were extremely crowded. Wil-

liam thought his favorite ^Matilda much the prettiest.

"Abby has been nursing herself up two or three days

that she may be fresh for Jane Gilmors wedding and pre-

pared to encounter the fatigues and gaieties consequent

upon it. I was extremely glad to hear the girls went to

Richmond with Letitia, but it was what I expected when

I left them. The contrast between Fincastle and Wash-

ington would have been too great.

"How do you stand it, Aunt? I dare say better in

reality than in prospect, there are so many things to in-

terest your attention which the girls would not have. A
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letter received from Cousin Wickham a few days ago
informs me Betsy has a daughter and is well I am truly

glad to hear it for I love her very much.

"I can not cease to regret not seeing her last summer,
Robert laments it quite as much as I do. He was so

charmed with Letitia that his curiosity was the ''' *
'='."

The signature of this letter was lost.

Note to above letter.

'To Mrs. Kennedy from Mr. William R. Mercer. The
two young ladies who were visiting in Baltimore many
years ago were my mother, Miss Swann, and her cousin

Mary Ann Page, who afterwards married Gen. Roger

Jones, Adj. Gen. of U. S. Army. The little Wilson Gary
she asks about was my uncle, Dr. Wilson G. Swann, who
died a few years ago in Philadelphia, brother of Governor

Swann. He had a very handsome house on Walnut
street."

40 Eliza^ Young (Mary* Selden, Gary^, Joseph-,

SamueP) married James Purviance, son of Jacques de

Purviance, a Huguenot, of Royan, Sanitonge, France,

who, after the Revocation of the Edict of Nantes, had fled

to Ireland, where he first settled in Lisbiirn, and later in

the village of Gastle Finn, in Gounty Donegal, Province

of Ulster. Flere he married Lettice Dinsmore. James Pur-

^ viance, their son, came to America, and settled in Balti-

more, and there he and his wife, Eliza Young, resided.

He was the brother of Robert Purviance, who married

Frances Young, of Elizabeth Gity, \^irginia, the sister of

Eliza Young.
Children :

i Hugh Young Purviance, U. S. N.

ii Wilson Gary Purviance, U. S. N. ;
died when

about twenty-two years of age.
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/>'
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'

iii Frances.
^

^'i*^-',.

iv James Purviance, a clergyman, brought up by
his aunt Frances (Young) Purviance, the wife

of his uncle, Robert, after the death of his

mother, her sister, Eliza. He had son, Robert

Purviance.
-ijinj^^

40a V Eliza, married first, w*^ Atkinson, second,

W. S. Mersereau.

40a Eliza^ Purviance (Eliza^ Young, Mary* Sel-

den. Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP) married, first, ^j^Atkin-

son, and second, W. S. Mersereau. -^^

Children (by first husband) :

i James Purviance Atkinson,

ii William Mavo Atkinson.

<^o9'

41 Elizabeth* Selden (Cary^, Joseph^, Samuel^)
was born in 1761. She was twin of her brother, Wilson

Gary Selden. On May 22, 1779, she married Doctor

James IMcClurg. Doctor McClurg was born in Hampton
in 1747, and died in Richmond July 9, 1825. He was a

son of Doctor Walter IMcClurg of Hampton, who was a

surgeon in the British Navy, who had been sent to Hamp-
ton, where he lived for many years. He opened the first

Hospital in this country for the inoculation of smallpox.

Doctor James IMcClurg was a fellow-student at William

and IMary College of Thomas Jefferson. He was gradu-
ated in 1762, and received the degree of Doctor of Medi-

cine in Edinborough in 1770, subsequently pursuing his

studies in London and Paris. Upon returning to this

country, in 1773, he settled in Williamsburg, where he

soon took high rank as a physician. He served on the

medical stafif during the Revolutionary War, and was de-
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clared to be the most skilful and accomplished medical

officer in the division of the Army serving in this part of

the Union. Mr. Madison had great regard for him, and,

in 1782, suggested him for the office of Foreign Affairs.

In 1787, after Mr. Henry, General Nelson, and Mr. R. H.

Lee had successively resigned the place of member of the

Convention that framed the Constitution of the United

States, Doctor McClurg was appointed, and attended at

Philadelphia, with George Washington, Edmond Ran-

dolph, John Blair, James Madison, George Mason, and

George Wythe. He sat for many years in the Virginia

Council. The old McClurg house still stands on the cor-

ner of Grace and Sixth Streets, Hampton. His grand-

son, Doctor James B. McCaw, lives there. (See appendix

for correspondence between Doctor McClurg and Hon.

James Breckenridge) .

Doctor McClurg died on July 9, 1825. In St. John's

Church cemetery, Richmond, will be found the tomb

erected by his daughter, Elizabeth (McClurg) Wickham

and her husband to the memory of her venerable parents.

The inscription is here given:

''Here lies interred the body of James McClurg, M. D.
''

In life admired and honored for learning, taste and

genius and venerated for virtue
;
of studious and retired

habits yet of the most easy and polished manners
;
of the

readiest and happiest wit, tempered with modesty and

benignity ;
with a native dignity of character and deport-

ment, always sustained without effort, united with unaf-

fected simplicity, and softened with the utmost suavity of

temper ;
formed to delight, instruct and adorn society, his

conversation and acquaintance were courted by the most

distinguished persons of his country and of his age. Hav-

ing studied his profession in the most celebrated schools
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of Europe, and distinguished himself even in youth, by
the elegance and ability of his writings, he was early

placed, by common consent, abroad and at home, in the

highest rank among its professors which he occupied for

half a century.

''In old age cheerful and tranquil ;
his mental faculties

unimpaired, the serenity of his temper undisturbed, even

his social gaiety hardly clouded to the last by the decay
and infirmities of the body; honored, beloved, content to

live, content to die, with equal mind he sank to rest on

the 9th day of July, A. D., 1825, in the seventy-eighth year

of his age.

''Here also lies the body of his affectionate and beloved

wife, Elizabeth McClurg, daughter of Gary Selden, Esq.,

who died on June 28th, 1815 fifty-four years old.

"To the memory of the venerated parents, their only

surviving child, Elizabeth Selden Wickham, and her hus-

band, John Wickham, erect this monument."

Children :

i Walter McClurg. died at the age of seventeen years,

ii Elizabeth IMcClurg, married John Wickham, a dis-

tinguished lawyer of Richmond, Virginia. Samuel

Mordecai, in his "Richmond of 'Bygone Days," gives

the following, regarding John Wickham : "Mr. Wick-

ham was a gentleman of the most elegant and graceful

deportment, of the most polished and easy manners

full of wit and repartee, and, whether at the bar or at

the festive board, always distinguished, profound as

a lawyer, brilliant as a companion. One of his daugh-
ters married Benjamin Watkins Leigh."

42 Dr. Wilson Cary* Selden (Cary^, Joseph-,

SamueP) was born in 17G1. He married, first, Mary
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Mason"^ Selden (Samuel^ Joseph-, SamueP), his first

cousin (see Number 91), widow of Mann Page, by
whom she had three children, William Byrd Page, John

Byrd Page, and Jane Byrd Page. Doctor Selden was

their guardian. (See Page Family, No. 24). She was

born in 1754 and died in Winchester, September 17, 1787.

He had no children by his first wife. He married, second,

1794-5, Eleanor Love, by whom he had one child. Eleanor

Love was born in 1772, and was the daughter of Samuel

LjOve, of Salislpury, Fairfax County, Virginia, and his wife,

Ann' Jones, of "Cleandrinking," Montgomery County,

Maryland. She died April IG, 1816. Doctor Selden's third

wife was Mary Bowles Armistead, daughter of Bowles

and Mary (Fontaine) Armistead, and widow of Charles

Alexander (See Armistead Family, No. 41 and Alexander

Family, No. G). Doctor Selden was also the guardian
of the children of his third wife by her first husband, viz. :

William Fontaine Alexander, who married Maria Wash-

ington ;
Laura Alexander, who died at the age of fifteen;

Louisa Alexander, who married Wilson Cary Selden Jr. ;

Frances Mary Alexander, who married Rev. Edward
Russell Lippitt; and Alfred Alexander who died young.

Doctor Wilson Cary Selden was born at Buckroe, the

ancestral home of the family. Fie was educated by his

brother-in-law, Doctor James McClurg, and in 1779 was

appointed mate in the Marine Hospital at Hampton. In

June, 1780, he was appointed surgeon of a Virginia Artil-

lery Regiment, marching to South Carolina, where he was

present at the defeat of General Gates. After a

dangerous illness, Doctor Selden was advised by the

medical and other officers of the army to make a sea

voyage, and, three weeks after embarking on a letter of

marque owned by his brother, was captured off the Island
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of St. Eustatia, and carried to Antigua, where he was

confined in prison until 1782, when he was paroled, but

at the termination of the war, had not been exchanged.

(See Toners "Medical Men of the Revolutionary Army.")
The records in the War Department at Washington show
that one Wilson Gary Selden served as a surgeon's mate

in Edmond's Command of Virginia Artillery, Revolution-

ary War. His name appears on a general abstract of

pay due the Virginia Artillery, on the southern expedi-
tion. This abstract, for the months of April and May,
1780, and dated June 12, 1780, bears entries relating to

Selden as follows : ''Time of service, two months
; pay

per month, 50
;
Subs, per mo., 100

; pay and subsistence,

300; lawful money i90." "Pensions 7443, 7444 and

7445, issued to Dr. Wilson C. Selden for services per-

formed by Dr. Wilson C. Selden, as a surgeon in the

State line for three years in the Revolutionary War,"
are recorded at Richmond. Another record is of an

"Indenture made May 13, 1795, between Wilson

Cary Selden, of Loudoun, Gent, and Nellie, his wife, of

the first part, and Joseph Meredith, of the town of Hamp-
ton, of Elizabeth City County, of the second part

'' ^ *."

In 1790 he bought Buckroe from his father. In 1793

he was a member of the Assembly, and for many years,

was a vestryman of the Episcopal Church in Leesburg.
After leaving Hampton County he lived in Gloucester,

and afterward at "Exeter," in Loudoun County. Doctor

Edward Russell Lippitt, who was his step-grandson,

wrote the following: "Exeter was named, I think, from

the town or city of Exeter in England. Doctor Selden

built it between 1796 and 1800. Doctor W. C. Selden

(grandpa, as we called him), I remember well. He would

give me his finger and lead me to his closet, where he
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seemed always to have a supply of raisins or something

a little child would like. I remember when he died and

the funeral. He was buried at Belmont, Loudoun County.
* * -''

I remember hearing the significance of the Selden

crest spoken of *
'";

'' The Selden crest is a hand grasping

a swan's neck. "•" * "' This crest was lost by Wilson Gary

Selden, Junior, in the Potomac River, near Mount Ver-

non, the family tradition being that this had been the

seal worn by Mr. John Selden of England, the celebrated

John, who was born in 1584, and died in 1654."

Wilson Gary Selden had, by his second marriage to

Eleanor Love, one son, Wilson Gary Selden, Junior, of

Loudoun, and by his third wife, Mrs. Alexander, nee

Armistead, he had two sons and one daughter. His second

marriage took place some time between September, 1794,

and May, 1795. At this time. Doctor McGlurg, in a letter

to his Brother-in-law, James Breckenridge, says, "Wilson's

wife has been with us some time. We are all very much

pleased with her. She is his full match in point of size,

and we may expect from them a race of gigantic order."

She died at Goton, Loudoun Gounty, Virginia, April 16,

1816, in the forty-fourth year of her age, leaving one son,

Wilson Gary Selden, Junior. Her father, Samuel Love,

received his estate at Salisbury, in Fairfax Gounty, Vir-

ginia, from Queen Anne, in 1736. * He and his wife, Ann

(Jones) Love, had the following children: (1) Nellie

(Eleanor), born 1772, died April, 1816, married Doctor

Wilson Gary Selden; (2) Mary, married R. M. Scott;

(3) James, married Ann ( ?) Forest; (4) Elizabeth, mar-

ried John ( ?) Watson; (5) Harriet married Mr. Simmes,

died without issue; (6) Ann, born in 1780, died at

Keys Farm, Rose Gounty, Ohio, October 15, 1832, aged

fifty-two; married John Gaile Scott; (7) Gharles married
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Dixon, had children, and went to Nashville, Ten-

nessee; (8) Richard, of Fairfax County, married in 1811,

Kliza Matilda Lee, daughter of Ludwell and Flora Lee,

born September 13, 1791, died January 22, 1875; he had

six children, of whom Thomas Ludwell died young, Rich-

ard, U. S. N., born in 1815, died in 1855, married Martha

Ann Pearson, Cecelia Matilda, born in 1823, died in 1850,

married, in 1844, Major Lewis Addison Armistead, U. S.

X.; and (9) General John, U. S. A. Eleanor (Love)

Selden was buried at "Belmont," the home of Ludwell

Lee (see Lee Family, Number 5).

Mary Bowles (Armistead) Selden, third wife of Doctor

Selden, at the marriage of her step-son, Wilson Cary

Selden, Junior, to her daughter by her first husband, Lou-

isa Elizabeth Fontaine Alexander, removed from Exeter,

to Mount Ida, near Alexander, where she died March 2,

1846.

The following is copied from the old family Bible of

Mrs. James lireckenridge, of Grove Hill, Botetourt Coun-

ty, Virginia, in April, 1893, by Mrs. Sorrel, of Roanoke,

\^irginia.

"Departed this life Saturday, March 14, 1835, at his

home Exeter, near Leesburg, Loudoun County, \"irginia,

in the seventy-fourth year of his age. Dr. Wilson Cary
Selden.

**This sad event has left a painful blank in the feelings
of a devoted family, and a neighborhood of attached

friends and fellow citizens. He has left behind a devoted

wife and several children. As a husband, a father, a

friend, none surpassed him in affectionate tenderness, in

liberal kindness and in gentle manly deportment. His
house was noted for hospitality and his conduct for civil-

ity to all visitors. Heaven had blessed him with the ^ood
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things of this life, and he honestly and liberally used them
for the comfort of all around him. Just in all his dealings,

he fulfilled the precept of doing to others as he would

they should do for him. Added to all this, he was a true

and sincere Christian. In the church of which he was a

member, the Episcopal, no one was a more constant at-

tendant upon all its services, or a more liberal contributor

to the supply of all its wants. In his later life, especially,

the acquisition of knowledge in the ways and command-
ments of his God and Saviour engrossed a large portion
of his reading and reflection.

"In early life he entered the Army of the Revolution

as surgeon under the auspices of his brother-in-law, the

celebrated Doctor McClurg. In it he remained during
the war and was particularly useful in the campaign of

South Carolina, where the army was very deficient in

gentlemen of his profession. After the return of peace,

he devoted himself to farming, in which occupation he

was a pattern of industry, attention, neatness, and pro-

priety, and, of course, in profitable labor. In every state

of life he held up to society the example of faithful de-

votion to duty, and in death he bequeathed to his friends

the consoling assurance that, to him, the last change was

the beginning of a better life, and a blessed immortality."

The correspondence of Doctor Selden is of interest,

and will be found in the appendix.
Children (by second wife) :

43 i Wilson Cary, married, first, Louisa Alexander,

second, Elizabeth Armistead Lee.

(By third wife) :

ii Lucian Cary, b. May 29, 1818
;
d. Sept., 1850.

44 iii Eliza Armistead, married John J. Lloyd.
50 iv John, married, first, Annie Rebecca Kennedy,

second, Sarah P. Dandridge Kennedy.
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43 Wilson Cary^ Selden (Wilson Cary^ Cary^

Joscplr, Samuel') was born in 1796. He was a planter

in L(nKl(mn County, Virginia. He married, first, Decem-

ber 'io. 1822, Louisa Elizabeth Fontaine, daughter of

Charles and Mary Bowles (Armistead) Alexander (see

Alc.vander Family, Number 6). They were married by

Reverend John Dunn. Her mother, j\Irs. Alexander, had

married, when a widow, Doctor Wilson Cary Selden (see

Xumber 42). In 1835 "Exeter" became the home of

Wilson Cary Selden, Junior. Louisa Elizabeth Fontaine

(Alexander) Selden died October 28, 1826. On her

tomb at Belmont, the home of Mrs. Ludwell Lee, is in-

scribed the following:

'Tn affectionate remembrance of Mrs. Louisa E. F.

Selden, consort of W. C. Selden, Junior, who died Oc-

tober 28th, 1826, in the 21st year of her age.

*'Adieu, dear friend, to Heaven thou art removed;

"Thy loss regretted and thy memory loved."

Wilson Cary Selden married, second, Elizabeth Armi-

stead, daughter of Ludwell and Elizabeth (Armistead)
Lee (see Lee Family, Number 5). She was born in 1804,

and died in 1887. They had no children. At Belmont,
near the tomb of his first wife, she erected a tomb to the

memory of her husband, who died in 1845. It is inscribed

as follows :

"Sacred to the Memory of Wilson Cary Selden, Junior,
Who departed this life on the 24th of March, 1845, aged
forty-nine years.

"This tribute of affection is offered by his deeply af-

flicted Widow.
"In Thee, O God, have I put my trust."

Children, (by first wife) :

i Molly, born April 9, 1826; died 1831.
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ii Eleanor Love, married John Augustine Washington.

(See Washington Family, No. 8).

44 Eliza Armiste.vd^ Selden (Wilson Cary^,

Cary^, Joseph-, Samuel^) was probably born at Exeter,

March 24, 1820. She married, October 16, 1845, John

Lloyd, son of John and Rebecca (Janney) Lloyd. He
was a graduate of Harvard University, and studied law,

which he practised in Baltimore, Maryland, for twenty-

five years. He died at Mount Ida, near Alexandria, Vir-

ginia, May 22, 1871. Eliza (Selden) Lloyd died at Mount

Ida, June 7, 1870.

Children :

Mary Bowles Lloyd, died young.

Rebecca Lloyd, married Rev. Henry Melville

Jackson.

John Janney Lloyd, married Ella Hubard.

Nelly Selden Lloyd, married George Uhler.

Eliza Fontaine Lloyd, married Rowland D.

Bucks.

49 vi Arthur Selden Lloyd, married Elizabeth Robert-

son Blackford.

45 Rebecca*^ Lloyd (Eliza Armistead^ Selden, Wil-

son Cary^, Cary% Joseph-, SamueP) married July 24,

1873, Rev. Henry Melville Jackson. She was his first

wife.

Child :

Henry Melville Jackson, died in infancy.

46 Rev. John Janney'' Lloyd D. D. (Eliza Armi-

stead^ Selden, Wilson Cary*, Cary^ Joseph-. Samuel^
married September 25, 1873, Ella Hubard, daughter of

William James and Maria Mason Tabb.
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Children :

i Ella Hiibard, died young.

ii Maria Mason, died young,

iii John Janney.

iv James Hubard.

V Lillian Selden.

47 Nelly Selden*^ Lloyd, (Eliza Armistead^ Sel-

den, Wilson Gary*, Cary% Joseph", SamueP) married

August 8, 187G, George Uhler.

Children :

i Katie Griffith Uhler.

ii John Lloyd Uhler.

iii Eliza Armistead Selden Uhler; married Thomas An-

derson Sommers, of Baltimore.

iv Rebecca Lloyd Uhler, married December 13, 1908,

Charles Calvert Smoot, third, of Alexander.

V Nelly Selden Uhler.

48 Eliza Fontaine*^ Lloyd (Eliza Armistead-'^ Sel-

den, Wilson Gary*, Cary^, Joseph", Samuel^) married,

first, February 8, 1881, Rowland D. Bucks, and, second.

Clarence Wool folk.

Child (by first husband) :

i Eliza Fontaine Bucks.

Child (by second husband) :

ii Clarence Alex Woolfolk.

49 Right Reverend Arthur Selden^ Lloyd

(Eliza Armistead-^' Selden, Wilson Gary*, Cary^ Joseph",

SamueP) married June 30, 1880, Elizabeth Robertson

Blackford.
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Children :

i Mary Robertson, married September, 1909, Rev.

Edmund Pendleton Dandridge, son of Lemuel and

Isabelle (Lawrence) Dandridge of the ''Bower," Jef-
ferson County, West Virginia. (See Dandridge

Family, No. 16.)

ii Elizabeth Blackford.

iii Guy Blackford.

iv John.

V Rebecca.

50 JOHN^ Selden (Wilson Cary*, Cary^ Joseph",

SamueF) was born at Exeter, Loudoun County, Vir-

ginia, February 24, 1822. He married, June 19, 1845,

Anne Rebecca Kennedy, daughter of Andrew and Mary
Anne Riddle (Lane) Kennedy. (See Kennedy Family,
No. 22.) She was born in Charlestown, Jefferson Coun-

ty, Virginia, September 29, 1825. They
'

were mar-

ried at Cassilis, Jefferson County, Virginia, the home
which her father had built about 1825. The house was

large and there were thirty guests staying in it during
the wedding festivities which lasted ten days. The first

two or three years of their wedded life were passed at

Blount Ida, near Alexandria, where they lived with Mr.

Selden's mother, Mrs. Mary Bowles (Armistead) Selden,

until her death in 1846. In 1847-8 they moved to Jeffer-

son. They lived at the "Cave," so called because of a

large cave on the place. Mrs. Selden died at the "Cave,"
of fever, July 14, 1854, leaving an infant son to her

mother's care. She was buried in Mount Zion Church-

yard. The following lines, by her brother-in-law, Armis-

tead Alexander, show the esteem in which she was held:

"By kindness, gentleness, and truth, her life was con-
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secrated to the happiness of others, to whom, as wife,

(laughter, ])arcnt, and friend, she has left nothing more

precious than her memory, except the blessed assurance

that her death was but the entrance into life everlasting."

In January, 1858, her sister, Sarah Pendleton Dan-

dridge Kennedy, born September 23, 1834, became the

second wife of John Selden. She was also married at

Cassilis. Her father, at this time, was in poor health,

and the wedding, was, therefore, a very quiet one. A few

months later he died. He had three brothers, John Pen-

dleton, Philip Pendleton, and Anthony Kennedy. Their

parents were John and Nancy (Clayton) Kennedy. John

Kennedy was the son of Reverend John and Lilly Ken-

nedy, of County Donegal, Ireland. Of the four brothers,

only Andrew and Anthony left issue. Their descendants

will be treated of later in this volume. Anne Rebecca

and Sarah Pendleton Dandridge Kennedy were descended

on the maternal side from the Lane, Newton, Carr,

Eskridge, and Willoughby families, of Westmoreland

County, Virginia, and the Riddles and ^IcKees of Penn-

sylvania. On their father's side they were descended

from the Pendleton, Clayton, Taylor, Chapline, and Pat-

terson families of Berkley and Culpeper Counties, Vir-

ginia. Their great-grandfather Kennedy was born in

Ireland. Of these families, accounts, more or less com-

plete, will appear elsewhere in this volume.

John Selden joined the southern army in 18G1, in Gen-
eral Stonewall Jackson's division. The company was
commanded by Captain Lawson Botts. He was honor-

ably discharged in the following fall on account of illness.

He entered the army as a private, saying, ''AH the gentle-
men in the south cannot be officers." He owned valuable
land in Loudoun County, which was rented, his wife pre-
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ferring to live in Jefferson, where her father had built

for her a stone house on some land owned by his wife,

and inherited from her father, Willoughby Lane, she and

her sister, Mrs. Hunter, holding about seven hundred

acres in one tract, near Charlestown. Mr. Selden died

at the "Cave," Jefferson County, West Virginia, January

8, 1896, and was buried in Mount Zion Churchyard, by
the side of his first wife. His niece, Mrs. William Byrd

Page, wrote of him, several years after his death, ''What

a handsome man your father was—what a voice, and how

eloquent. I never met him but to marvel at his gracious

manners and his beauty. I loved him best of all his nieces

and nephews, and mourn him now." Reverend John J.

Lloyd, his nephew, once in speaking of him in the most

loving and admiring way, said it had been a deep regret

to him that his children had never known their "Uncle

Jack."

Children (by first wife) :

51 i Wilson Cary, married, first, Elizabeth Cather-

ine Deimer, second, Anne B. Days.
52 ii Mary, married Dr. Stephen Dandridge Ken-

nedy.
53 iii Elizabeth Gray, married Robert Thompson Jas-

per, U. S. N.

55 iv Andrew Kennedy, married Margaret Kearsley.

(By second wife) :

56 V John, married Sue Johns Worthington.
vi Anne Rebecca.

51 Wilson Cary^ Selden (John^, Wilson Cary,"*

Cary^, Joseph-, Samuel^) was born March 22, 1846, at

Cassilis, Jefferson County, Virginia, the home of his

maternal grandparents. "He entered the southern army
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as a private in Company B, Twelfth Virginia Cavalry,

Rosser's Brigade, the day he was sixteen years old. He

waited impatiently for the birthday to arrive, because his

father forbade his going before that date. With about

twenty of his company he came unexpectedly upon a

much larger force of the northern soldiers, and

was desperately wounded in the face, the ball entering

just below the eye. His comrades had to fly and they

very cleverly hid him in a house near by. From this

house he was brought home in the night on a stretcher

through the fields. Here he was hidden and nursed until

he had recovered. i\fter returning to the army he was

captured and held prisoner in Point Lookout, where he

was near dying from starvation. He was so emaciated

when he was released that his own aunt, whose house he

managed to reach, and where he fell fainting on the steps

of the porch, did not know him. After the war he became

a farmer, and the last few years of his life he had a civil

service appointment in Washington, D. C." Under date

of April 25, 1910, A. K. Selden, brother of Wilson Cary

Selden, received the following communication from the

Adjutant General, War Department, Washington, D. C,
in reply to a letter sent to the War Department request-

ing the war record of Wilson Cary Selden. "The
records show that W. C. Selden, private, Company B,

12th \^irginia Cavalry, Confederate States' Army, enlisted

]\Iay 25, 18G2
;
that he was captured December 24, 1864,

at Berryville, A^irginia, and that he took the oath of al-

legiance June 13, 18G5, at Point Lookout, ^^laryland."

He married, first, Elizabeth Catherine Deimer, daugh-
ter of Joseph and Susannah Deimer, of Weislock, near

Heidelburg, Baden, Germany, where ]\Irs. Selden was
born March 7, 1860. She died in Ashburn, Virginia,



Selden Family 89

January 3, 1897. Four of his children came to America.

Mr. Selden married, second, Anne B. Days, by whom
he had no children.

Mr. Selden died of pneumonia, January 5, 1910. James
H. Conklin, his comrade in the Civil War, writes as fol-

lows :

''In the death of Cary Selden another member of

Bayler's Company has passed away. The roll of the liv-

ing members is getting very small indeed. Cary joined

Company B in 1862 and was a good soldier. Always

ready to do his duty and willing to go anywhere he was

ordered, and always in front in the many charges the

Company was in. He was just sixteen when he joined

the Company. He filled the place of a soldier well and

never flinched or seemed to fear danger. In the summer
of 'G2 our Company was on special duty in the Valley.

We were twenty miles inside the enemy's lines. They
also had 10,000 troops in Harper's Ferry. On the 7th

of September our Company was feeling its way to

Charlestown. We came in contact with two full Com-

panies of Federal Cavalry, and we fell back to Cook's

gate, a short distance west of Charlestown, where Mr.

S. M. Clipp's house now stands. We had a severe fight in

I this engagement and Cary Selden was badly wounded

in the face. The wound was a long time getting well

and disfigured his face badly, but he was back with the

Company before his face was healed and he was more

ready for a fracas than he was before. He was a good
soldier and a warm friend."

Children (by first wife) :

i Wilson Cary.
ii Mary Blanche,

iii Bertha Sylvesta.
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iv Elizabeth Katharine.

V Susannah Deimer.

52 Mary'"' Selden (John^ Wilson Cary^ Gary',

Joseph% SamueP) was born at Cassilis, Jefferson County,

Virginia, October 3, 1847. She married her cousin,

Doctor Stephen Dandridge Kennedy, June 22, 1869 (see

Kennedy Family, Number 33).

Children (see Kennedy Family, Nos. 33, 35 and 36 for

their biographies) :

i Anthony K. Kennedy, married Ellen Mumford.

ii Mary Willoughby Kennedy,
iii Margaret Flughes Kennedy, married Arthur Merwin

Ross,

iv Agnes Gray Kennedy, married Dr. William Beverley

Mason.

53 EXizabeth Gray^ Selden (John^'"', Wilson Gary*,

Gary^, Joseph^, SamueP) was born at the "Cave," Jeffer-

son County, Virginia, September 10, 1851. She married,

October 18, 1876, Captain Robert Thompson Jasper. U.

S. N., born in 1846, the son of John and Catharine Jasper
of Londonderry, Ireland. His father came to this coun-

try about 1825. He had ten children, John, George W.,

Davis S., William A., Theodore, Joseph R., who died,

Maria, wdio died, Harriet A., and Emma A. His an-

cestors were Danes or Norwegians, the name being or-

iginally Gasper. The ancestor who came to Ireland was

a sea-captain, his wife was of Irish birth and they

settled in Londonderry. The property owned by him

there is still in the Jasper family, and has been held by
them for over two hundred years. John Jasper, who
came to America, was born on the old Jasper place in
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Londonderry, and his wife, Catharine, was born nearby.

They came to this country as children. Mr. John Jasper

died in 1880, aged seventy-two years, and his wife died

in 1899, aged eighty-eight. Sargent Jasper, who raised

the flag at Fort Moukrie, in 1776, was the son of John

Jasper's great-uncle. The above information regarding

the Jasper family was communicated by Captain Jasper,

the grandson of John and Catharine Jasper.

Child :

54 i Elizabeth Selden Jasper, married September,

1899, William G. Duboise, Naval Constructor, U.

S. N.

54 Elizabeth Selden" Jasper (Elizabeth Gray"

Selden, John^, Wilson Cary^, Cary^, Joseph", SamueP)
married September, 1899, William G. Dubose, Naval

Constructor, U. S. N.

Child :

i William Jasper Dubose, born in April, 1901.

55 Andrew Kennedy^ Selden (John^, W^ilson

Gary*, Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP) was born at the ''Cave,"

Jefferson County, Virginia, now West Virginia, July 5,

1854. He married Margaret B. Kearsley, daughter of

Major G. W. T. and his wife, Sarah Rebecca (Brown)

Kearsley, of Charlestown, Jefferson County (see Forrest

Family, Number 28).

The following is an account of the ancestry of Sarah

Rebecca (Brown) Kearsley.

"Edwin Browne, the first ancestor of whom there is

knowledge, came to Virginia in 1607, with the party of

young English gentlemen sent out by Sir Walter Raleigh.

Some of his descendants settled in Westmoreland County.
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His son. John Browne, was a soldier in the Revolution-

ary War. He married Miss Templeman of Westmore-

land County, lie owned over four thousand lacr^s

of land and grew tobacco on his plantation, which he

sliii)i)cd in large quantities to England. During the

Revolution the British captured several cargoes at sea

and destroyed others on land, which ruined him finan-

cially. His second son, William Browne, left that sec-

tion of the country after the war, and made his way to

the \'alley of Virginia. Richard Browne, a brother,

married Mrs. Parker. Frederick married Miss Taliaferro

of Pccatone. Charlotte married Mr. Claybrooke. Lucy
married General R. ]\I. T. Beale. Thomas married Miss

Simpson of England, and was Governor of Florida for

several terms. William Browne, mentioned above, mar-

ried, first, Miss Hammond, and, second, Mrs. Cooke, who
was a Forest. Their daughter, Sarah Rebecca Browne,
married Major G. W. T. Kearsley.

"John Kearsley came to this country from England
and settled in Pennsylvania. The following is an ac-

count of him from 'Lives of Eminent Philadelphians,'

and Watson's 'Annals of Philadelphia.'
''

7°^^^^ Kearsley, a physician of Philadelphia, native of

England, came to this country in 1711. As a member of

the Assembly, his speeches were so acceptable he was
sometimes carried home on the shoulders of the people.
He contributed largely to the building of Christ Church
and endowed with a valuable estate the hospital of the

Church for widows (which is still in existence). He
directed the style of architecture of the State Blouse and

steeple
—also gave architectural character to Christ

Church.'
"

It is stated that Jonathan Kearsley came to this coun-
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try from England and settled in Pennsylvania about 1761.

He had eleven children, some of whom married and went

to the West, while others remained in Pennsylvania. His

second son, John Kearsley, settled near Shepherdstown,

Virginia, where he was prominent in public life. He was

postmaster of the town of Martinsburg in 1800. In 1801

he was appointed Judge of Jefferson County, by Presi-

dent Monroe, when it was formed from part of Berk-

eley County. In the next year he was a candidate for

Congress. The first child of Judge Kearsley was named

Sarah Morton. She married Joseph Riddle, of Rich-

mond, Virginia. The second child, Elizabeth, married

Doctor Alexander Mitchell, of Ayrshire, Scotland. Their

only child was Doctor Kearsley Mitchell, Professor of

the Theory and Practice of Medicine, in Jefferson Medi-

cal College, Philadelphia. He was the father of the cele-

brated physician and author. Doctor Weir Mitchell.

Jonathan Kearsley, the seventh child of Judge John

Kearsley, married Ann Humphreys, daughter of David

Humphreys of Pennsylvania. Their children were, (1)

Ann Margaret, who married Isaac Newton Carter,

whose mother's name was Lane; (2) John, who married

his cousin, Eliza Brice,, of Hanover, Indiana; (3) George
W. T., who married Sarah Rebecca Brown, and had ten

children, the seventh being Margaret (Meta), who mar-

ried Andrew Kennedy Selden; and (4) Samuel Cramer,

who married Leslie Thompson, of Fredericksburg, Vir-

ginia. The children of Qeorge W. T. and Sarah Re-

becca (Brown) Kearsley were: William, who married

Mattie Hill, of St. Louis; Anna, who married G. W.

Lambright; George; Jennie, who married T. M. Caldwell,

and had a son who married a granddaughter of Wilson

Cary^ Selden, of "Exeter" (See Number 43) ;
EHzabeth
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Forrest, who niarricfl J. J. Wysong, of Jefferson County;

Mcta I'cnnctt. who married Andrew K. Selden
; Agnes,

wh(^ married Henry Harrison Cooke; Rebecca, who mar-

ried H. H. Reese; and Charles Brice, w^ho married

I'ranccs Thompson.
Children :

i Andrew Kenneth.

ii (ieorge Kearsley.

iii Anne Rebecca.

56 JoiiN'^ Selden (John^ Wilson Cary*, Cary^

Joseph-, SamueU) was born at the "Cave," Jefferson

County, \'irginia, October 3, 1859. He married March

18, 1897, Sue Johns Worthington, daughter of the late

lulward Worthington and his wife Caroline, both of

Worthington Valley, Baltimore County, Alaryland.

Children :

i Margaret M., born January 11, 1898
;
died June 27,

1904.

ii John Selden, born April 21, 1900.

iii Eleanor W., born September 3, 1901.

iv Edward W. Selden, born March 17, 1905.

V Armistead Fontaine Selden, born November 13, 1906.

vi Frederica \'irginie, born April 13, 1908,

57 Ann* Selden (Cary^ Joseph-, Samuel^) was
born about 1781, at Buckroe, Hampton, Virginia. She
was married, January 1, 1791, by Rev. Johns Buchanan,
in St. John's Church, Richmond, to Honorable James
Breckenridge, son of Robert and Letitia Breckenridge, of

Fincastle, Botetourt County, Virginia. Honorable James^
Breckenridge (Robert-, Alexander\—See Breckenridge
Family), was born in the County of Botetourt, March 7,
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1763. In 1795 he built the beautiful Colonial home
known as ''Grove Hill," which was burned while the

family were at church, October 24, 1909. The loss was

very great in money value, but far more than this was its

beauty, its family association of more than a hundred

years, and relics of family interest, including old letters

which had been written to the Honorable James Breck-

enridge by many famous men of the early half of the

past century, during his career in public life, a period

that was full of stirring events in our country's history.

There were also letters of family interest, written by
brothers and sisters living at a distance from each other.

The present owner of ''Grove Hill' most kindly allowed

the author of this genealogy to read these old letters, and

from them has been taken much of the material for this

family record (See appendix).

Mr. Breckenridge served in 1781 in Colonel Preston's

Rifle Regiment, under Green. He was a graduate of Wil-

liam and Mary College, and in 1785, studied law, com-

mencing its practice in 1787 at Fincastle. He was for

several years a member of the General Assembly of Vir-

ginia, and a leader of the old "Federal Party" in that

body. From May 22, 1809, until March, 1817, he repre-

sented the Botetourt District in Congress. He was a

candidate for Governor, opposing James Monroe. With

Thomas Jefferson, he co-operated in founding the Uni-

versity of Virginia, and was one of the most active pro-

moters of the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal. His planta-

tion covered a large tract of land, and he was very suc-

cessful in his management of it. His death occurred at

"Grove Hill," May 13, 1833. Ann (Selden) Brecken-

ridge died at "Grove Hill," March 17, 1843. Her grand-

daughter, Mrs. Francis Sorrel, wrote of her : "A woman
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of singularly reserved disposition, very handsome and

very dignified. Her sisters v^ere Mrs. McClurg of Rich-

mond, Mrs. Young of Baltimore, Mrs. Hamilton of

Botetourt, and Mrs. Barron of Hampton."
Children (dates of births and deaths taken from family

Bible) :

58 i Letitia Breckenridge, married Robert Gamble.

68 ii Elizabeth Breckenridge, married General Ed-

ward Watts.

73 iii Gary Breckenridge married Emma Walker Gil-

mer,

iv Mary Ann Breckenridge, born March 12, 1797;
died unmarried, August 13, 1830.

83 v Matilda Breckenridge, married H. M. Bowyer.
vi James Breckenridge, born January 20, 1801

;

died without issue, in July, 1824.

86 vii Robert Breckenridge, married Mary G. Mere-
dith,

viii John Breckenridge, born October 28, 1803;
died August 28, 1805.

ix Wilson Selden Breckenridge, born February
14, 1805; died June 1, in the same year.

X John Selden, born August 28, 1809; died May
5, 1844; no children.

58 Letitia^ Breckenridge (Ann* Selden, Gary^,
Joseph^, Samuel^) was born October 26, 1791, in Fin-
castle (Family Bible belonging to Mr. Gary Brecken-

ridge, of Fincastle). She married Robert* Gamble (Rob-
ert^ James^ Robert^), of Richmond, Virginia, and, later,
of Tallahassee, Florida (See Gamble Family).

Letitia (Breckenridge) Gamble died March 10, 1866
(From old family Bible, in possession of Mr. Gary
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Ureckenridge) . The following copied from Family

papers.

Children :

59 i Catharine Gamble, married John S. Shepherd,
G2 ii James Gamble, married, first, Miss Watts, sec-

ond, Rosetta Morris.

G4 iii Gary Gamble, married Edwarda Shaw.

65 iv Letitia Gamble, married, first, Lewis P. Holla-

day, second, Charles H. Latrobe.

06 V Edward W. Gamble, married Elizabeth Whit-

taker.

67 vi Robert Howard Gamble, married, first,

Chavis, second, Angelica Robinson,

vii John Gamble, died unmarried,

viii Nannie Gamble, died unmarried,

ix Cabell Gamble, died unmarried.

59 Catharine^ Gamble (Letitia^ Breckenridge,
Ann"* Selden, Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP) married John S.

Shepherd, of Florida.

Children :

60 i Robert Shepherd, married ]\Iartha Overton.

61 ii Letitia Shepherd, married William Beard.

60 Robert^ Shepherd (Catharine*^ Gamble, Letitia^

Breckenridge, Ann^ Selden, Cary^, Joseph^, SamueP)
married IMartha Overton.

Children :

i Overton Shepherd, died in infancy,

ii Letitia Shepherd.

61 Letitlv Shepherd (Catharine^ Gamble, Leti-

tia^ Breckenridge, Ann^ Selden, Cary^, Joseph-, Samuel^)
married William Beard, of Tallahassee.
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Children :

i Jolin I'card.

ii Kate Beard,

iii William Beard.

G? JAMES*'^ Gamble (Letitia^ Breckenridge, Ann*

Seidell. Cary^ Joseplr, Samuel') married Miss Watts.

She was his first wife. He married, second, Rosetta

Morris, of New York.

Children (by second wafe) :

G3 i Lewis Gamble, married ]\Iilton; lives

in Florida,

ii Cora Gamble, unmarried.

G3 Lew^is' Gamble (James°, Letitia^ Breckenridge,

Ann* Selden, Gary", Joseph-, SamueP) married

Milton. They reside in Florida.

One child.

G-i- Doctor Cary^ Gamble (Letitia^ Breckenridge,

Ann* Selden, Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP) was a surgeon in

the Confederate Army. He married Edwarda Shaw of

Florida. They reside in Cambridge, Alaryland.

Children :

i Nannie Gamble,

ii Gary Gamble.

G5 Letitia*' Gamble (Letitia^ Breckenridge, Ann*

Selden, Gary', Joseph^, SamueU) married, first, Lewis

P. Holladay, of Kentucky. Her second husband was
Charles H. Latrobe, of Baltimore.

Child (by first husband) :

i Louis Holladay, of Baltimore.
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Children (by second husband) :

ii EHse Latrobe.

iii Nora Latrobe.

iv Gamble Latrobe.

66 Edward W.® Gamble (Letitia^ Breckenridge,
Ann'^ Selden, Cary^, Joseph^, SamueP) was an officer in

the Confederate Army. He married Elizabeth Whittaker.

Children :

i Mary Gamble.

ii Letitia Gamble,

iii Richard Gamble,

iv Robert Gamble.

67 Robert Howard^ Gamble (Letitia^ Brecken-

ridge, Ann* Selden, Cary% Joseph^, SamueP) was a cap-

tain of artillery in the Confederate Army. He married,

first, j\Iiss Chavis of Florida, and, second, Angelica Rob-

inson. (^^

Children (by first wife) :

i Robert Gamble,

ii Howard Gamble,

iii Jennie Gamble,

iv Letitia Gamble.

68 Elizabeth^ Breckenridge (Ann'' Selden,

Cary^, Joseph", SamueF) was born March 31, 1794 (Fam-

ily Bible). She married General Edward Watts, a law-

yer, and Speaker of the Virginia Legislature. Elizabeth

(Breckenridge) Watts died July 8, 1862 (Ibid).

Children :

i James B. Watts, had no children,

ii Mary S. Watts, married her cousin, James B.

Gamble
;
no issue.
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(;:» iii William Watts, married Miss Allen, of Vir-

ginia.

,1) iv Ann S. Watts, married Hon. G. P. Holcombe.

V l^Jizabeth B. Watts, married Thomas L. Pres-

ton, of Charlottesville, Virginia; no children,

vi luiward Watts, died in infancy,

vii Lctitia G. Watts, married, first, Dr. Landon

Rives, of Cincinnati, Ohio, and, second, Dr.

I'rancis Sorrel, formerly of Savannah, Georgia,

Medical Inspector in Confederate States' Army,
now of Roanoke, Virginia; no children.

71 viii Alice M. Watts, married, first, Dr. George W.

Morris, second. Judge William J. Robinson.

72 ix Emma G. W^atts, married Col. George W. Carr.

X Henrietta C. W^atts,'died in infancy.

69 William^ Watts (Elizabeth^ Breckenridge,
Ann"* Selden, Cary^, Joseph-, Samuel^) was a colonel of

infantry in the Confederate Army, and a member of the

Constitutional Convention of Virginia. He married Miss

Allen, daughter of Judge J. J. Allen of Virginia.

Child:

i John A. Watts.

70 Ann S.^ Watts (Elizabeth^ Breckenridge, Ann*

Selden, Gary", Joseph-, SamueP) married Honorable G.

P. Holcombe, of Bedford County, Virginia, a distin-

guished lawyer and publicist, and one of the diplomatic

agents of the Confederacy.
Children :

\\'illiam Holcombe.

Elizabeth Holcombe.

Letitia Holcombe.

1

ii
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iv Edward Holcombe.

V Alice Holcombe.

vi Gary Holcombe.

71 Alice M.^ Watts (Elizabeth^ Breckenridge,

Ann* Selden, Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP) married, first,

Doctor George W. Morris, and, second. Judge William

J. Robinson, of the Appellate Gourt, Gharlottesville, Vir-

ginia.

Ghild (by first husband) :

i George W. JMorris.

Ghildren (by second husband) :

ii Emma G. Robinson.

iii Alice H. Robinson, married Judge Hanckle of Nor-

folk. .

iv Edward W. Robinson.

V J. Breckenridge Robinson,

vi Letty Sorrel Robinson.

72 Emma G.^ Watts (Elizabeth^ Breckenridge,

Ann* Selden, Gary^, Joseph-, SamueP) married Golonel

George W. Garr, formerly of the United States Army,
but later of the Gonfederate Army.

Ghildren :

i Maria Garr.

ii Elizabeth Garr.

iii Alice W. Garr.

iv William Garr.

73 Gapt. Gary^ Breckenridge (Ann* Selden,

Gary^, Joseph", Samuel^) was born February 13, 1796, in

Fincastle (Family Bible), at ''Grove Hill" the family

estate. He was educated at William and Mary Gollege,
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and at ^'alc. He became a planter and a captain of

militia. lie married Emma Walker, daughter of Peachy

Ividgcway and Mary (House) Gilmer. They were mar-

ried by the Reverend Nicholas H. Cobbs, in Liberty, No-

vember 25, 1830. Emma Walker Gilmer was born July

IS, 1807, in Henry County, Virginia, and died at "Grove

Hill," aged eighty-five years and eight months. An ac-

count of the ancestry of Emma Walker (Gilmer) Breck-

cnridge is here given :

George Gilmer, son of William Gilmer, married Mary

Peachy Walker, I\Iay 13, 1732. His son, George Gilmer,

born in Williamsburg, Virginia, January 19, 1742, mar-

ried Lucy, daughter of Thomas Walker, of Albermarle,

August 27, 1767. Their son, Thomas, born February 5,

1771, died April 24, 1791, had children: (1) Mildred,

born August 13, 1779, died September 17, 1799, married

Wirt; (2) Lucy, born June 7, 1774, died in Au-

gust of the same year; (3) George, born March 11, 1778,

died 1836
; (4) Peachy Ridgeway, born November 25,

1779, died April 8, 1836, married Mary House (as men-

tioned above) ; (5) John, born April 30, 1782, died 1834;

(6) James Blair, born April 16, 1784, died 1810; (7)

Lucy, born October 13, 1785, married Minor;

(8) Harmer, born October 20, 1787, died 1812; (9)
Frances Walker, born October 9, 1790, died February 25,

1826; (10) Susan, born May 25, 1793, died 1817; four

other children, died in infancy.

Peachy Ridgeway Gilmer, the father of Mrs. Brecken-

ridge, married Mary House at Pen Park, in 1803. She
died April 17, 1853 (Breckenridge Family Bible). Their

children were (1) Emma Walker, who became Mrs.

Gary Breckenridge; (2) George Henry, born in Henry
County, September 22, 1810; (3) Peachy Harmer, born
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July 19, 1813, died March 10, 1872 (See Walker Family,
No. 8) ; (4) Frances Walker, born in Henry County, died

in October, 1841, at Catawba; (5) Lucy Walker, born in

Liberty, September 21, 1821, died April 16, 1845; (6)

John, born in Liberty, January 26, 1826, died April 16,

1845; (7) Mary Peachy, born in Liberty, May 11, 1829.

Cary Breckenridge died in March, 1867. (Family

Bible).

Children :

74 i Mary Ann Breckenridge, born at Grove Hill,

December 4, 1831
;

married James Lewis

Woodville; died 1883.

75 ii Peachy Gilmer Breckenridge, born September

5, 1835; married Julia Anthony; killed in the

battle of Kennon's Landing, May 24, 1864.

iii James Breckenridge, born at Catawba, Septem-
' ber 1, 1837

;
married Fanny, daughter of Wil-

liam M. Burwell, who died at Arend, Bedford

County, Virginia, August 26, 1862
;
he was a

lawyer by profession, and a captain in the

Confederate army ;
killed in battle in the spring

of 1865, aged twenty-seven years ;
no children.

77 iv Cary Breckenridge, born October 5, 1839
;
mar-

ried Virginia Caldwell.

V Eliza Watts Breckenridge, born April 30, 1841
;

unmarried.

vi Lucy Gilmer Breckenridge, born February 1,

1843
;
married to Jefferson Bassett, at Grove

Hill, by Rev. William McGuire, January 28,

1865
;
no children.

vii John Harmer Breckenridge, born July 14,

1844; unmarried; soldier in Southern army;
died in Richmond, June 3, 1862, aged seventeen

years.
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viii llniina Jane Breckenridge, born at Grove Hill,

September 25, 1845; died June IG, 1865, aged

twenty-two years.

,S2 ix Georire William Breckenridge, born May 25,

1847; married, first, Annie Harmer; second,

Mrs. Lillian Maurin Saint Martin.

74 Mary Ann° Breckenridge (Cary^, Ann* Sel-

dcn, Cary% Joseph", SamueP) was born at Grove Hill,

December 4, 1831. She married, September 29, 1852,

James Lewis Woodville. She died at Grove Hill, in 1883,

aged fifty-one years.

Children: (All born at Grove Hill, and baptized by
the Rev. F. M. Baker, the Rev. F. M. Ambler, and the

Rev. William McGuire) :

i Emma Gilmer Woodville, born February 13, 1855,

died at Grove Hill, June 28, 1891.

ii James Littlefield Woodville, born February 28, 1856.

iii Gary Breckenridge Woodville, born August 31, 1858.

iv Mary Lewis Woodville, born August 5, 1861.

V Fanny Burwell Woodville, born December 3, 1863.

vi Oliver Burne Woodville, born April 9, 1866.

75 Peachy Gilmer^ Breckenridge (Gary^, Ann'^

Selden, Cary^, Joseph^ SamueP) was born at Catawba,

September 5, 1835. He was a lawyer by profession. He
married, January 4, 1856, Julia Anthony. He was a

captain in the Southern army and died on the battlefield

of Kennon's Landing, May 24, 1864, aged twenty-eight

years.

Children :

76 i Annie Anthony Breckenridge, born October 25,

1860
; married William Gordon Robertson.
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ii John Gilmer Breckenridge, born February 11,

1863.

76 Annie Anthony'' Breckenridge (Peachy^,

Cary^, Ann* Selden, Cary^, Joseph-, SamueU) was born

October 25, 1860. She married, at Grove Hill, Novem-

ber 2, 1882, William Gordon Robertson.

Child :

i Julia Breckenridge Robertson, born June 3, 1884.

77 Cary^ Breckenridge (Cary^, Ann* Selden,

Cary^, Joseph"-, SamueP) was born at Catawba, October

5, 1839. He was a lav/yer by profession. He served as

a colonel of cavalry in the Southern army. He was

married by the Reverend Mr. Lindsley, at *'Brierfield,"

West Virginia, June 2, 1866, to Virginia Caldwell.

Children :

78 i James, born August 4, 1867; married Mary

Gray Spencer.

79 ii Lucy Gilmer, born December 20, 1869; mar-

ried John C. Easley.

80 iii Henry Caldwell, born July 24, 1871; married

Alice Wray.
iv Gary, born November 23, 1872.

81 v John Peachy, born June 12, 1873
;
married

Gladys .

vi William Norwood, born May 1, 1875.

vii Emma Gary, born July 7, 1877.

78 James^ Breckenridge (Cary^, Cary^, Ann* Sel-

den, Cary^, Joseph^, SamueU) was born August 4, 1867.

He married Mary Gray Spencer.
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Children:

Xannic Virginia, born 1895.

Robert Gary, born 1897.

ni Jane Morton, born 1890.

iv Lucy Easley, born 1901.

79 Lucy Gilmer^ Breckenridge (Gary®, Gary^,

Ann* Selden, Gary^, Joseph^, SamueP) was born Decem-

ber 20, 1869. She married John G. Easley, the Vice

President and Secretary of R. B. Ghaffin and Gompany,

Richmond, Virginia, son of Doctor \\'illiam B. Easley

and his wife, Ann Elizabeth Ghaffin.

Children :

i Gary Breckenridge Easley, born June 13, 189-3.

ii Richard Booker Ghaffin Easley, born June 2, 1895.

80 Henry Galdwell^ Breckenridge (Gary®,

Gary^, Ann* Selden, Gary^, Joseph^, SamueP) was born

July 24, 1871. He married Alice Wray.
Children :

i Lucile Gary, born October, 1894.

ii Virginia Wray, born February, 1896.

81 John Peachy^ Breckenridge (Gary®, Gary^
Ann* Selden, Gary^, Joseph^, Samuel^) was born June
12, 1873. He married, in 1907, Gladys .

Child :

John Reade, born December, 1909.

82 Gapt. George William® Breckenridge (Cary^,
Ann* Selden, Cary^, Joseph^, Samuel^) was born at

Grove Hill, May 25, 1847. At the age of sixteen he was
appointed captain of infantry in the army of Northern
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Virginia under Lee. He became a lawyer, planter, and

Judge of Botetourt County. In 1872 he married, first,

Annie Hamner, and, second, October 18, 190*, Mrs.

Lillian Maurin Saint Martin. He died April 1911.

Children (by first wife) :

i Hunter George, born in Springfield, June 3,

1872.

ii Payton Cary.
iii Julia Gilmer, married George William Bowyer.
iv Maurice Anthony, a lawyer in New York.

82-a V Emma Walker, married IMeylert Melville Arm-

strong. ,
i

vi Rose Flemi^ing. W Ou'X^vjla.-^I W^vJUU^Mv^ "^ ^'''^

82-b vii Annie Fitzhugh, married Le Roy Armstrong,
son of Meylert Melville Armstrong.

-
.

'

'
  '-. .

.
,

-

82-a Emma Walker^ Breckenridge (George Wil-

liam^, Cary^, Ann* Selden, Cary^, Joseph^, Samuel^) mar-

ried, December 14, 1904, Meylert Melville Armstrong.
He died October 13, 1910, aged fifty-nine.

Children :

i Meylert Melville Armstrong, born October 17, 1905.

ii Peyton Breckenridge Armstrong, born Oct. 29, 1907.

iii Walker Breckenridge Armstrong, born Jan. 14, 1908.

82-b Annie Fitzhugh'^ Breckenridge (George

William^, Cary^, Ann* Selden, Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP)
married Le Roy Armstrong, May 18, 1909.

Child,

i Virginia Van Ornam Armstrong, born April 25, 1910.

83 Matilda^ Breckenridge (Ann* Selden, Cary^-;

Joseph^, Samuel^) was born April 15, 1799 (Family
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Bible). She married II. M. Bowyer, of Botetourt Coun-

ty, Virginia.

Children :

i Harry Bowyer, died without issue.

8-1 ii Nannie Bowyer, married Woodson.
iii Elizabeth Bowyer, died unmarried.

iv IMary Ann Bowyer, married William Penn
;
no

children.

V James Bowyer.
85 vi Woodville Bowyer, married Ann Woltez, died

in the war.

vii Edward Bowyer, died while a surgeon in the

Confederate Army,
viii Letitia Bowyer.

84 Nannie^ Bowyer (Alatilda^ Breckenridge.
Ann^ Selden, Cary% Joseph^ Samuel) married
Woodson.

Child :

i Mary Woodson, married Captain Knox, of Georgia.

85 Woodville'^ Bowyer (Matilda^ Breckenridge,
Ann^ Selden, Cary^ Joseph^, SamueP) married Ann
Woltez. He was an officer in the Confederate Army,
and died in battle.

Children :

i A child.

ii A child.

iii A child.

iv A child.

86 Robert^ Breckenridge (Ann* Selden, Cary^
Joseph^, SamueP) was born May 12, 1802 (Family
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Bible). He married his cousin, Mary C. Meridith

(Ibid), of Kentucky.
Children :

87 i Elizabeth Breckenridge, married Alexander

Burch.

88 ii James Breckenridge, married Miss Alvis.

87 Elizabeth*^ Breckenridge (Robert^, Ann'^ Sel-

den, Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP) married Alexander Burch.

Children :

i Ella Burch, married Mr. Broadney, of Richmond,

Virginia,

ii Alexander Burch, of Henderson, Kentucky.

88 James^ Breckenridge (Robert^, Ann* Selden,

Cary^, Joseph-, Samuel^) married Alvis.

Children :

i Lizzie,

ii A son.

89 Sarah* Selden (Cary^, Joseph-, SamueP) was

married from the home of her sister, Mrs. James Breck-

enridge, of Grove Hill, Botetourt County, Virgnia ,to An-

drew Hamilton. A letter from Doctor Wilson Cary Sel-

den, to Hon. James Breckenridge, gives the following:

^'Exeter, Dec. 29, 1800.

"Your welcome favor of the 1-lth instant came safe to

hand, bringing us the pleasing accounts of the health of

our friends and of Sally's marriage to an amiable man.

No circumstance whatever could have given me more

satisfaction and your account of Mr. Hamilton's char-

acter adds greatly to it."

In 180(), Mrs. Selden makes sale of property to "An-
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drew Hamilton who intermarried with my daughter Sally

Selden.'' This deed, found at Grove Hill, is not signed,

but Mrs. Selden is named ''E. Selden,"

Airs. Sorrel, of Roanoke, writes as follows:

"I knew Aunt Hamilton and two of her daughters—
the other children moved West."

Children:

i A daughter, m. Samuel Hedrick.

ii A daughter.

Other children, went to the West.

90 Colonel Samuel^ Selden (Joseph-, SamueP),
of Salvington, was born in 1725, and was the son of

Joseph and Mary (Cary) Selden, of Buckroe, Hampton,
Virginia. His estate was called '^Salvington," and was
in Stafford County. This house, not far from Fredericks-

burg, was of the old Colonial style, and was built by his

father. Samuel Selden was one of the patriots of the

Northern Neck, who, on the passage of the Stamp Act,
inscribed their famous addresses and resolution on the
27th of February, 17G6. It is said that he was the or-

iginator of the movement and wrote the address himself.
He subsequently fought in the Revolutionary Army, hold-

ing the rank of Captain and Lieutenant. The War De-
partment at Washington gives the record of his services
as follows :

'The records show that one Samuel Selden (also found
as Samuel Seldon), served as a Lieutenant in Captains
William Lynn's and Joseph Scott's Company, 1st Vir-
gmia Regiment, Cavalry, commanded successively by
Colonel Isaac Read, Lieutenant Colonel Green, Colonel
James Hendricks and Colonel Richard Parker, Revolu-
tionary War. He was commissioned 2d Lieutenant June
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11, 1777, and as 1st Lieutenant, November 18, 1777;

was transferred to Major Henderson's Company, in Octo-

ber or November, 1778
;
was commissioned Captain-

Lieutenant June 25, 1779, and his name last appears on a

return dated January 10, 178G, which shows that he was

paid the balance due him for his services to January,

1783.''

Colonel Selden married, as his first wife, Mary Thom-
son Mason, born in 1731, the daughter of Colonel George
and Ann (Thomson) Mason. (See Mason Family, Num-
ber 2.) They were married on April 11, 1751. Mrs.

Selden was the only sister of George Mason of Gunston,

born in 1725, died 1792, the author of the Bill of Rights,

whose wife was Anne Eilbeck, and of Thomson Mason,
born in 1733, and died in 1785, whose wife was Eliza-

'^

b€t4i Barnes, of Leonard Town, Maryland, Mr. W. R.

Mercer writes :

''Mary Mason Selden was my great-great-grandmother
on my mother's side. It is her portrait I have and value.

Her daughter by this marriage [to Samuel Selden], also

Mary, my great-grandmother, married Mann Page of

Mannsfield, and through the wife of his father, John

Page, of North End, comes in my relationship to Col.

William Byrd of Westover. Of Samuel Selden's other

children, by this marriage,
* * ^ I know nothing. But

I do know that Mrs. Mann Page, had two children, one

of whom was my grandmother, Jane Byrd Page, who
married my grandfather Swann, and her brother who
married the daughter of Richard Henry Lee, who was

the mother of Mrs. Roger Jones Washington, a first

cousin of my mother. Mrs. Mann Page concluded to

marry secondly a Selden, a cousin of hers, and, in this

way, a portion of her property in Loudoun County—no-
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talily the Exeter estate—was lost to the two children by

her first husband. A great lawsuit occurred between the

Seldcns and the Swanns. I know nothing as to the

merits of the case, but I think there was a coolness, at

least, between the Leesburg branch of the Seldens in

Loudoun and the Swanns, Morven being opposite to

Exeter."

Mary Thomson (]\Iason) Selden died in January, 1758.

Samuel Selden married, second. November 24, 1759,

Sarah Ann Alason Mercer, born June 25, 1738, daughter

of John and Catherine (Mason) Mercer. (See Mercer

Family, No. 1.) She was the cousin of his first wife.

Mr. Robert Mercer, of Aldie, Doylestown, Pa., writes

that this second marriage added to the friendly relations

between the Mercer and the Selden families, and that

the granddaughter of Samuel Selden, Gary Selden, as a

young girl, ''was sent to Aunt ^Margaret's at Belmont,

Loudoun County, Virginia, to be educated. Of course,

like aH the other girls there, she became devotedly at-

tached to Aunt Margaret,—^her relation, and when she

died, being the heiress, I imagine, of Salvington, she left

Aunt Margaret a portrait of John ]\Iercer of Marlboro

and of the first Mrs. Samuel Selden, Uncle George Mer-

cer, and the Mercer family Bible, written out the early

part of it by John Mercer of Marlboro and given to his

daughter, no doubt. This same Bible is now in the pos-
session of my nephew, Carroll Mercer, who, when I last

heard of him. was in Washington
'^ "^

'•'.

"My grandfather's brother, Robert ]\Iercer, who mar-
ried j\Iildred Ann Byrd Garter, daughter of Colonel Car-

ter of Cleves, near Fredericksburg, had a son, Wilson

Gary ]\Iercer. Cousin Gary, who in his early days made

many visits to Aunt Selden at Salvington, in my time
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lived with Aunt Margaret and made himself very useful

to her. The last I heard of him was some time in the

early fifties. News came that he had married someone

near Fredericksburg, Virginia, but I never heard to

whom, and that his father-in-law appeared at the wed-

ding, even at that late period, in cue and knee-breeches.
^t ^ ^'

]y/[y youngest brother was named Wilson Gary."
Children (by first wife) :

i Samuel, died in infancy.

91 ii Mary, married, first, Mann Page, second, her

cousin. Doctor Wilson Gary Selden.

Ghildren (by second wife) :

92 iii Ann Mason Mercer, married John Taliaferro

Brooke.

93 iv Wilson Gary, married Sarah Mason Gooke.

91 Mary Mason* Selden (SamueP, Joseph^, Sam-

uel^) was born at Salvington, Stafford Gounty, Virginia,

in 1754. She married, first, about 1767, Mann Page, born

at North End, 1747, son of Honorable John Page, who
was born at Rosewell Gounty, about 1720, and removed to

North End, Gloucester (now Alatthew) Gounty, Vir-

ginia, and married, in 1746, Jane Byrd of Westover on

the James River, Gharles Gity Gounty. The marriage of

Mary Selden and Mann Page took place about 1767.

They removed to Mannsfield, Glarke Gounty (See Page
family, No. 24). After his death, Mary (Selden) Page
married, second, her cousin. Doctor Wilson Gary Sel-

den, by whom she had no children. (See Number 42.)

He was the guardian of her children by her first husband.

Mary Selden died in Winchester, Virginia, September

17, 1787.



1 1 I Seldens of Virginia

Children (l)y first husband) :

i W'ilham Byrd Page, married Ann Lee, daughter of

Richard Henry Lee (See Page Family, No. 25).

ii John Byrd Page, married Elizabeth
;
no chil-

dren,

iii Jane Byrd Page, born about 1774; married Thomas

Swann; died in 1812 (See Page Family, No. 28).

The following account of the law suit, ''Mercer, Lessee

vs. Selden," contains all that the author knows of Mary
i\Iason Selden, first wife of Doctor Wilson Gary Selden.

''Howard W. S. Rep. p. 37.

"^lary Mason Selden, nee Mrs. Mann Page, was

seized and possessed in fee simple of 4,000 acres in

Loudoun. Mann Page died 1779, leaving three children

(infants) John, William Byrd, and Jane; Mrs. Page re-

mained a widow until 1782, when she married Wilson

Gary Selden who became guardian of the three children,

gave bond, and continued to act during the minority of

the two sons and until the marriage of the daughter.

On the 22 of December 1794, Selden and his wife con-

veyed in fee simple to Gary Selden, father of the hus-

band the who^e of the 4,000 acres of land, with the ex-

ception of two thousand acres deeded to William Byrd

Page. This deed was acknowledged and recorded by
Selden the 14 of April, 1818, long after the decease of

the grantee. On January 1, 1785, Gary Selden and wife

reconveyed the land, with the exception above stated,

to Wilson Gary Selden, which deed was also recorded,

April 14, 1818. Selden and wife, previously to the ex-

ecution of the above deed to Gary Selden, made a deed

to William Byrd Page, son of Mrs. Selden by her first

marriage, for two thousand acres, part of the above tract

which deed was never recorded and can not now be
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found. From the time of their marriage Selden and

wife had their permanent home in the County of Glou-

cester, until they removed to Elizabeth City, where they

established their residence. In September, 1787, Mrs.

Selden being in a low state of health, accompanied by
her husband, on a return from the Springs, was taken

ill and died, in Winchester, in Frederick County, Vir-

ginia, on the 17th of September 1787. Mrs. Selden,

with her husband, executed a second deed to William

Byrd Page for two thousand acres . . . And also

a deed to Robert Mackey for two thousand acres, being

the residue of four thousand acres in Loudoun on the

17th day, it being the day of her decease; the privy ex-

amination of Mrs. Selden was taken to the above deeds,

by the justice of the peace, of Frederick County, Vir-

ginia . . . Selden, on October 8th, acknowledged
the above deeds. On the 17th of September, after Mrs.

Selden's death, Mackey reconveyed the land, conveyed
to him as above stated, to Wilson Cary Selden

;
this deed

was recorded October 8th ensuing . . . Selden

continued to hold these lands up to 1818, when the legal

sufficiency was questioned. He then had the deed re-

corded and continued to exercise acts of ownership until

his death in 1835. Between the years 1796 and 1812,

Selden sold, conveyed and delivered possession to dif-

ferent persons, among others Thomas Swann who had

married Jane Byrd Page. In April 1794, Jane Byrd

Page, with the consent of her guardian, she being under

twenty-one years of age, married Thomas Sv/ann and

died October 1812, leaving seven infant children. One
of these, Mary Scott, in June, 1818, married John Mer-

cer. In 1796, having received from Selden i640, Thomas

Swann executed a receipt fully discharging him as guar-
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(Han. Jolin Page died in 1800, having devised all of his

estate, after the death of his widow, Elizabeth K. Page,

to the two children of his brother William Byrd Page,

to wit William F>. and Mary M. Page, and to three of

the children of his sister Jane Byrd Swann, to wit Ed-

ward, Mary and Thomas . . . Edward and

Thomas died intestate and without issue. Mary married

John Mercer. After John Page had attained full age,

December 21, 1792, he settled with Selden, his guardian,

and executed to him a release from all demands. Thomas

Swann survived his wife, conveyed by deed all of his

interest in the premises to his surviving children. After

William Page had attained full age he made claim

against Selden on account of inequality in the partition

of the 4,000 acres, which claim was finally adjusted by
the payment of one thousand pounds and the purchase
of five hundred acres of his land b}- Selden. and after-

wards on July 23, 1794 . . . Page, having re-

ceived full satisfaction from Selden as guardian,

dian, executed to him a release deed. From the death

of Wilson Cary Selden up to the present time, 1843, the

defendant his son has held actual possession of the

premises in dispute, claiming the same as his own under

the will of his father . . , Order: This cause

came on to be heard on the transcript of the record from

the Circuit Court of United States for the Eastern dis-

trict of Virginia ;
and was given in favor of Wilson Cary

Selden by the Supreme Court of United States."

The following correspondence of Mrs. Mary Mason

(Page) Selden is also of much interest.

''Alexandria, July 10.

"My Dear Grandmama, /

'T have been begging my papa to let me go to Lees-
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burg which he has agreed to. I wonder whether grand-

mama, you would not let Jim meet us at Wilies with

your horses this day fortnight. Mama told me to tell

you that she was well but could not write, and also begs
that you would let her hear from dear little Wilson Cary
as often as you could. Mamma Scott sends her love

to you and every body Aunt Watson has just arrived

from Georgetown she says they are all well. Give my
love to cousin Wilson and Grandpapa.

"I remain your affectionate Mary Swann."

This letter was sent to me by Mr. W. R. Mercer of

Aldie Doylestown, Pennsylvania. It was written by his

mother to her step grandmother, the second wife of Dr.

Wilson Cary Selden then living at Exeter Loudoun Coun-

ty, Virginia. "Dear Little Wilson Cary Swann," spoken of

in the letter was her brother, and "Cousin Wilson" was

Wilson Selden, son of Dr. Wilson Cary Selden, his

step grandfather. The next letter is from Mary's mother,
Mrs. Swann, to Mrs. Selden and the third letter is from

Mrs. Swann to her children, who are visiting at Exeter.

"Addressed to Mrs. Selden Exeter, near Leesburg, Vir-

ginia.

"I have been so much engaged in business of differ-

ent kinds my dear Friend for the last two weeks, as

not to have a moment to spare to write to you. Court

week I was surrounded by plasterers, whitewashers,

carpenters &c &c. and since then enveloped in old rags
and patches. I never worked harder in my life than I have

done since my children left me, it serves to amuse my
mind and keep me from thinking, which in my present
situation would be of no service to me, and in that way
I preserve a tolerable degree of cheerfulness—Never

did flocks pant more earnestly after a water brook, than
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I do for the calm serenity, cooling shades and solitude of

a country life, perhaps the improbability of ever enjoy-

ing it increases my inclination to possess it; human na-

ture is ever discontented and I am ungrateful in the ex-

treme—I have every thing to make me happy but health,

and in wanting that, I sometimes think I want every-

thing
— pardon the murmurs of thy frail creature O

Gracious God, thou knowest all her weakness and neces-

sities and will at thy appointed time strengthen her, or

take her to thyself
—I do not indulge this frame of mind

often. I feel unusually weak today and that has produced
it. Aly health is rather better and I expect to ride out

shortly and that will give me strength. I received a letter

from Harriot last night, she touches upon politicks and

says the declaration of war has struck a death blow to the

happiness of our country
—I fear so indeed but as I was

such an infidel about the war, I cannot still help thinking

something will turn up to prevent it—I can not think it

will be permitted that our peaceful happy country should
be sacrificed by a Party the iiiost zuorthless of the com-

munity. I at times fear ev'ry thing, and then my san-

guine temper makes me hope ev'rything— . May not the

murder of the Prime-Minister have some efifect?—if you
want any articles in the Drygood way I advise you to get
them as speedialy as possible as the wisest amongst us
is at a loss to determine what will be the issue, it is all

conjecture and doubt—the drum and fife which we have
from morning until night, reminds me of my dear Wil-
son—to say how much I miss my children would be im-

possible—! cannot dwell on this subject, lest I again be-

tray my weakness—I will conclude this letter and write

again when in better spirits, present me to the Dr. Wilson
& the children—

"Yours Aflfec'ly, J. B. S."



Selden Family 119

''Mary is at Church or you would receive a message

from her, did you get the Coco-nuts. Sunday."

"Post Marked, Alexandria, June 22. (1812?)"

''Master Edward & Miss Mary Swann
''Exeter

"For'd by Tho.

Swann Esq.
"Alexander—August

"I fear it would seem unkind my dear children if I

was to let your Father go to Leesburg without writing

to you—tho' from the manner I have spent my time,

secluded from society and very unwell—I can not flatter

myself my letter will have any other recommendation

than that of coming from your mother—to tell you how

much I have missed you would be a fruitless attempt

but if you have spent your time agreeably I shall not

regret my own uneasiness—it will always give me pleas-

ure to sacrifice my own feeling, to afford you the smallest

gratification, when you conduct yourselves as you ought

and I hope on the present occasion my dear children

you have done nothing that will cause me to regret my

indulgence. You are both old enough to know you have

a character to support in society, and it depends on your-

selves, whether you will be loved and admired, or hated

and dispised, it is the duty of children to be poUte and

obedient to everyone, and by your attention and accom-

modating disposition, render yourselves agreeable to ev'ry

one—I hope you have obeyed your Grand Papa implic-

itly and Grand-Mama and that they will have no reason

to rejoice w4ien the time arrives for you to come home.

O how it would grieve me if I thought you were an in-

cumbrance to any one. Mrs. Selden is very good to you

and will tell you if you do any thing much amiss, but
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she will hate to be always telling you, when you talk

too much, when you are too rude, and a thousand other

little improprieties which only the vigilance of a tender

mother will point out, who is never weary of doing any

thing for the good of her children—^}^ou are now to think

for yourselves and do not, let me intreat you, add to my
affliction instead of affording pleasure

—if any thing

should prevent your coming down at the end of the week

with your Father you must both write to me, indeed if

there should be a good opportunity before the end of the

week I wish you to write—your Father wishes to purchase

a pair of horses if he can, if not you must be indebted to

the goodness of i\Irs. Selden to send you home, and you
must accommodate yourselves to her convenience—I wish

it may be convenient for her, to let your cousin come

down with you, I want very much to see him and we
shall have a plenty of water melons and sweet potatoes

—
how does your dear little Brother Wilson Gary look ? and

when did Miss Nelly leave you? does your Aunt Harriot

and Dr. Simm talk of coming down? Write to me both

of you and answer all my inquiries
—

present me affec'ly

to all at Exeter—tell Mrs. Selden I will write to her by
the next Post.

"Your Most affec'ate Alother

"J. B. Swann."
"Ask Mrs. Selden if she has any spun cotton like the

piece inclosed if she will lend me two pounds for a short

time—and w^hen you come down I wish you to bring me
as large a bag of wool as you can conveniently from

Mitchells
"

[This lady died very shortly after writing this letter,

namely, Octber, 1812. She was the mother of Governor
Swann of Maryland.]
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92 Ann Mason Mercer'* Selden (SamueP, Jos-

eph-, SamueP) was born February 17, 1770. She mar-

ried, September 5, 1793, John TaHaferro Brooke (see

Brooke Family, Number G), and died in 1812.

Children (see Brooke Family, Nos. 7 to 21 inclusive) :

i Louisa Brooke, died unmarried in 1866, aged seventy,
ii Samuel Brooke, married Angelina Edrington,
iii Anne Mason Mercer Brooke,
iv Francis John Brooke,

V Henry Laurens Brooke.

93 Wilson Carv* Selden (SamueP, Joseph-,

SamueP) was born in 1772. He married Sarah Mason

Cooke, born in 1791. J'he following is taken from a

letter from Mrs. Daniel^Lucas :

"My uncle, Cary Selden, did not marry until he was

forty-nine years of age and died two years later. He
left an infant daughter, Anne Cary Selden, who lived

to be fifteen years of age. When, at her death, her real

estate, Salvington, resulted to us, her personality, in-

cluding a large amount of silver and jewelry, went to her

mother, who was then Mrs. Robert O. M. Grayson."^ Mrs.

Selden was aunt to the late Judge L. C. Green of Charles-

town. He and his brother spent much of their early life

at Salvington during the lifetime of their young cousins."

Wilson Cary Selden died in 1823. His widow, Mrs.

Sarah Mason Cooke Selden, married, second. Doctor

Robert O. Grayson, son of Benjamin and Ann (Bro-

naugh) Grayson. He was the great-grandson of Sympha
Rosa Enfield Mason Bronaugh. By him she had two

sons, Robert and J. Cooke Grayson.

* If this silver, with any marking on it, is still extant, the author
of this work would be glad to have a wax impression.
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Child:

Anne Gary Selden, died at the age of fifteen.

94 Rev. Miles^ Seldex (Joseph-, Samuel^) was

Ijoni in 1726. lie married his cousin, Rebecca Gary,

daughter of Miles and Hannah (Armistead) Gary. (See

Gary Family, Number 9.) He was ordained in London,

England, and elected Rector of Henrico Parish, in 1752.

(See History of Henrico Parish and Old St. John's

Ghurch, Richmond, Virginia, 1(311-1904, pages 20, 25, by

J. Staunton Moore.) He was the last Golonial Rector of

St. John's, and in his Parish were many of the notable

men of the period. In 1774-6 he was a member of the

Gommittee of Safety, and was Gl^rk of Warwick. When,
in 1775, the Virginia Gonventioi> assembled, Mr. Selden

was chosen as Ghaplain, and was known as the "Patriot

Parson." The Right Reverend Arthur Selden Lloyd is his

grand nephew, and Bishop Gibson is another descendant.

His father, Joseph Selden, died in 1727, leaving his three

sons, Gary, Samuel, and Miles, under the charge of their

mother's brothers, Wilson and Miles Gary, of Geeleys.

The following notes are in the handwriting of Mrs.

]\Iiles Gary Selden, daughter-in-law of Rev. Miles G.

Selden, and throw light upon the family.

''June, 1823, a letter from Mrs. Harriet Selden, Arkan-

sas, stating to me the birth of her daughter, Betty, on the

25th of June. After she came to Virginia, she had an-

other daughter, named Josephine; in 1825 both [were]

baptized: husband was Joseph Selden, killed in a duel in

Arkansas.

"This is now 1833. I live to have this year three G.

Grandchildren :

"Aly G'son, Dr. Wm. A. Selden, a daughter.
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"My G'son, Allies, a son. Mrs. Graham, a daughter.

"G'daughter, Sarah Graham, a second, a son.

"In 1831, My son Wm. was married, Nov. 28, to Miss

EHza Swann, of Va. [who died in 1835, leaving one son,

Wm Henry. His second wife was Emily Hunter, who
had seven children, Jennie, John, Hunter, Lily, Carey,

Florence & James Buchanan.]

"March, 1814, I left Tree Hill and moved to Richmond,
wdiere I took charge of the children of my beloved son. I

remained there until 1823, July 2nd, when I returned to

Tree Hill.

"June, 1824, was an afflicted, distressing time to me,

the death of my poor, unfortunate son, Joseph, never to

be forgotten by his afflicted mother.

"1825, living at Tree HiU
;
much trouble & affliction &

bad health much of the time in 182G & '27.

"In 1824, Harriet Selden came to Tree Hill after the

death of her beloved husband, with her two children,

Elizabeth and Josephine.

"July, 1825, she had them baptized by Bishop Moore.

At the same [time] my first G. G'child, Miles, was bap-

tized. My second G. G'child was baptized by Bishop

Moore, & called Thomas. 1827, the 3rd son.

"In July, 1827, Harriet was united to Mr. Lowry, an

English gentleman, & went to England July, 1828, with

the husband and daughters. He is said to be a good and

clever man. I leave them to God, who has promised never

to forsake the widow and orphan.

"Jan. 1st, 1829, I left Tree Hill (with my G'daughter,

Elizabeth), I expect for the last time of ever seeing that

dear beloved mansion, never to be forgotten. Oh ! not my
will, oh God. The events of my life (a mysterious one)

now in my 79th year.
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"Aug. 30, 1830, still alive. Oh my God, let me be

resigned. I have lived to see my 4th G. G'child. 1831,
Now 80 years old & two more added. Sarah Graham has
a daughter, & John Selden has another son called Joseph.
1832.

''My G'daughter Elizabeth (Mrs. Miller) has a son,

July 9, 1824.

"My son Gary paid me a visit at Tree Hill with all his

family, which was very gratifying. They left 25th Sept.
I expect it will be our last meeting.

"1829, June 13, I have long wished to visit once more
the old church on Rd. Hill (Church Hill Rd). My son
James, at this time a resident in Park Hill House. I

was gratified in having my desire. The father of my
husband, & my much-loved friend, was the pastor. I

cannot describe the pleasure I rec'd. Associations of
ideas recalled to mind so many scenes of past happiness
not to be forgotten.

"1825, Dec. 9, our sister, Mrs. B. Hunter, departed
this life in Richmond, the last remaining child of the
Woodstock family, the daughter of the Rev. Miles Selden,
pastor of Rich'd church.

"James M. Selden and Mary E. Ireland were married
the 19 Dec, 1825.

I^Betty,
their first child, born Sept. 19, 1827.

"1831, I heard of the death of my beloved G'son, Gary
Selden, much lamented.

"1832, May 16, My G'son, Wm. A. Selden, was married
to L. Riddle, sister to Mrs. Dr. Nelson."

Children of Rev. Miles and Rebecca (Gary) Selden:
1 Joseph, Lieut, of the State Line, 1776-83, Jus-

tice of Henry County in 1799, delegate in

1804-6; died without issue, January 1, 1807.
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ii Mary, married Rose.

95 iii Miles Gary, married Elizabeth Armistead.

131 iv Hannah, married Colonel William Hartwell,

Macon.

132 V Rebecca, married Thomas Watkins.^
133 vi Nathaniel, married Mary Woodson,

vii Elizabeth, married Hunter.

95 Col. Miles Cary* Selden (Miles^, Joseph',

SamueP) son of Reverend Miles and Rebecca Cary Sel-

den, of Pear Tree Hall, Henrico County, Virginia, mar-

ried Elizabeth Armistead, March 27, 1774 (Virginia Ga-

zette, and the Selden Bible). (See Armistead Family, No.

58.) ''Elizabeth Armistead married Major Miles Selden,

her cousin" (Keith, A. B. H.), born March 9, 1752, died

April, 1833 (Selden Bible). Miles Gary Selden was

member of the Council in 1783, Justice in 1789, delegate

in 1789-90, Sheriff in 1801, and for many years a presid-

ing magistrate, and defendant in the suit of Selden vs.

Coulter. Colonel Miles Cary Selden died in April, 1833.

His children were:

96 i Miles Cary, married Martha Bland Allen.

116 ii Gill Armistead, born November 16, 1781;

killed in a duel, April 10, 1801.

117 iii Cary, born February 16, 1783
;
married Fran-

ces Loyal; died 1842.

122 iv Joseph, born May 7, 1787; married Harriet

Gray; killed in a duel, 1824.

v Martha Bland, born January 15, 1786; mar-

ried William Roane; died May 6, 1809.

123 vi James McClurg, born April 16, 1793; married

Mary E. Ireland; died 1842.

vii Loyal, born February 16, 1783
;
died December

19, 1825.
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viii William, born January 31, 1791; married,

first. Eliza Swann, second, Emily Hunter; died

April 17, 1874.

!)r, Col. Miles Carv'^ Selden (Miles Gary*, Miles^

Joscjilr. SamucP) of "Flower-de-Hundred," on the

James River, was born January 5, 1777. He was the

eldest son of :\Iiles and Elizabeth (Armistead) Selden.

He married. February 23, 1801, Martha Bland Allen, who

was born June 30, 1780, and died April 21, 1814. Her

(](h\ mothers were Miss P. Clarke and ^Martha Bland,

and her God fathers, Nathaniel Harrison and Theodo-

rick Bland. She was christened at "Flower-de-Hundred."

Miles Gary Selden died May 10, 1814. (Family Bib^.e.)

Children :

1)7 i John Armistead, married Maria Pemberton.

ii Elizabeth Ann, born November 11, 1803
;
mar-

ried Boyer IMiller.

109 iii Miles Gary, married, first, Flarriet Heth, sec-

ond, Nancy, widow of Kennon.

113 iv Wilham Allen, born January 26, 1808; mar-

ried, first, Sarah Riddle, second, Jane Douthat.

V Joseph Allen, died without issue,

vi Carter H., died without issue.

Ho vii ^Martha Bland, married John Saunders.

97 John Armistead^ Selden (Miles Gary^, Miles

Cary-^, ]\Iiles% Joseph-, SamueP) w^as born January 3,

1802. He lived for thirty years at Westover, on the

James, and sold it near the close of the Civil War for

Confederate money. The following was communicated

by a member of the family :

''His wife was ^laria Pemberton. They had a large
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family and seven of his sons were in the Southern Army.
Mrs. Selden (so her son, Miles, told my father), was, up
to the time of the war, a fresh, young-looking woman,

but, in a few weeks, after her sons left home, she had

aged so much that she looked like a very old person.

''Maria Pemberton, my grandmother, was quite a beau-

ty. She was daughter of Captain Pemberton who served

under Washington at Valley Forge and elsewhere during

the Revolutionary War. She and her sister-in-law, Mrs.

Mary E. Selden, were behind the furnace in the cellar of

Westover while the house was being shelled by the

Northern gunboats, during the war of '61-5.

''I have been told that a son who was in the United

States service was on one of these gunboats, and was al-

lowed a flag of truce to go to Westover to persuade his

mother to retire from the building. He seems to have

failed in his mission. I have also heard that when Mrs.

Sekien was'asked if she would see this son, she answered

'Yes, is he not my son?' Those who never felt the emo-

tions caused by civil war can in no wise appreciate the

situation."

John Armistead and Maria (Pemberton) Selden had

twenty-one children, three being unnamed infants. Those

who lived were :

Miles, born July 4, 1824.

Thomas, born February 20, 1826.

John, married P. L. Penbury.

WilHam, born August 18, 1828.

Martha Bland, born March 10, 1830.

Joseph, married, first Elizabeth Minge, sec-

ond, Julia Bennett (nee Lucas).

Maria E., born November 25, 1832.

Carter, born October 4, 1834.

na
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ix Mary Anne, born January 8, 1836.

X Edward C, born March 8, 1837.

xi Beverly, born October 19, 1838.

xii Charles, born January 25, 1840.

107 xiii William M., married Elizabeth Croone.

xiv R. Channing M., born February 12, 1843.

XV James M., born May 13, 1844; married Alary

Cashier
;
no children.

108 xvi Maria Octavia, born September 2, 1845.

xvii Saunders, born April 12, 1847.

xviii Armistead Carter, born October 31, 1849.

98 Miles" Selden (John Armistead®, Miles Cary^,

Miles Cary*, Miles^ Joseph^ SamueP) was born

July 4, 1824. He married Elizabeth Roberta Earl Taylor.

The following is an account of his family from his

daughter, Mrs. Cone:

"Papa w^as the eldest child of John Armistead Selden

and Maria Pemberton. Papa's name was Miles and he

was born July the 4th, 1824, and was married May the

11th, 1853, to Elizabeth Roberta Earl Taylor of Norfolk,

\'irginia. They lived at Westover for two years after

their marriage and their eldest child was Mi^es, the second

Alaria Pemberton, the third Elizabeth Taylor, the fourth

Arthur Taylor, the fifth George Randolph, the sixth

Rosalie (not Rosa) Harrison, the seventh John, and the

eighth Martha Bland, the last, Martha Bland, being my-
self.

"My sister, Elizabeth Taylor Selden, married Wiley
McPherson Baxter, April 18, 1882, at Kempsville,

\^irginia, who was the son of Oscar Fitzallen Baxter, a

surgeon in the United States Navy and a Miss McPher-
son of North Carolina. My sister, Elizabeth Taylor
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Baxter, has four children Hving, but has had six. The

eldest, Frank McMullen Baxter, was born June 26, 1884.

Elizabeth Selden Baxter was born December 3, 1885.

Rosalie Upshur Baxter was born March 11, 1888. Rob-

ert Earl Baxter was born I think about 1890 and Wiley
McPherson Baxter was born 1894. I forget what month,
but I will write Lily (Elizabeth Taylor Baxter), to write

you the dates of their births. She lost one child at birth

and little Robert only lived for about two years.

"Mr. Cone's mother was Annette Ingham, daughter of

James Ingham, an Englishman of Manchester, England,
and Annette Searles Hutchinson, of New Hampshire, a

descendant of Eleazer Wheellock, the founder and first

President of Dartmouth College. We have a Cone

family tree which is very interesting. They landed in

Haddam, Connecticut, in 1639, and the first Cone in this

country was Daniel Cone. The name has gone on down
the family. My father-in-law is named Daniel Newman
Cone, the Newman after General Newman of the United

States Army, who was a great friend of his grandfather.

Mr. Cone's family went from Bullock County, Georgia,
to Florida. His grandfather went from Bullock County
to the Georgia Senate as long as he lived. They were

great Indian fighters. The history of Georgia is full of

the Cones. I wrote to Lily to send you the dates of all of

our births as she has the family Bible.

*T have only one child, Elizabeth Selden Cone, born

November 4, 1901, and the only marriage in our family

since 1905, was my sister Lily's daughter Rosalie Upshur
Baxter, who was married April 23, 1908, to Mr. Stephen
Stafford Mann of Baltimore."

As will be noted from the above letter, the children of

Miles and Elizabeth Roberta Earl (Taylor) Selden were

as follows :
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removed to the South, and the name is a prominent one

in Georgia. The grandfather of Mr. Cone was a member
of the Legislature from Bullock County, as long as he

lived. The mother of Mr. Cone, was Annette, daughter
of James Ingham, an Englishman, of Manchester, Eng-
land, and his wife, Annette Searles Hutchinson, of New
Hampshire, who was descended from Eleazer Wheellock,

the first President of Dartmouth College. Martha Bland

(Selden) Cone and her husband have only one child:

Elizabeth Selden Cone.

101 JoHN^ Selden (John Armistead^, Miles Cary^,

Miles Cary*, Miles^, Joseph-, SamueP) son of John Armi-

stead and Maria (Pemberton) Selden, was born April 18,

1827. He married P. L. Penbury.
Children (Communicated by Miss Maria Selden) :

i Elizabeth, married Joseph Herbert.

ii Randolph B. Selden died young,
iii Thomas died young,
iv Lavina, married Walter Watson.

V Maria, married Scott Watson.

102 Martha Bland^ Selden (John Armistead^,

Miles Cary^, Miles Cary*, Miles^, Joseph^, Samuel^) was

born March 10, 1830. She married John D. Hobson.

Children :

John Selden Hobson.

Mary M. Hobson, married Richard Wright.
Cannon Hobson, married Anna Camp.
Maben Hobson, married Hariet Tutwiler.

Saunders Hobson.

Plummer Hobson.

Maria O. Hobson.
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103 Mary M.^ Hobson (Martha Bland^ Selden,,

Jolin Armistead^, Miles Cary^, Miles Gary*, Miles^, Jos-

eph-, Samuel^) married Richard Wright.

Three children.

10-i Cannon^ Hobsox (Marthia Bland^ Selden,

John Armistead^, Miles Cary^, Miles Cary^, Miles^, Jos-

eph-, Samuel^) married Anna Camp.
Two children.

105 Maben*^ Hobson (Nartha Bland" Selden, John

Armistead^, Miles Cary'^, Miles Gary*, Miles^, Joseph-,

Samuel^) married Hariet Tutwiler.

One child.

106 Joseph^ Selden (John Armistead^ Miles

Gary^ Miles Gary*, Miles^, Joseph-, Samuel^) was born

June 4, 1831. He married, first, Elizabeth Minge. His

second wife was Julia Bennett, nee Lucas.

Children (by first wife) :

i Mary, married Wilkins.

ii -Maria, married Brown.
iii Mercer,

iv Minge.
V John,
vi Elizabeth, married M. Baily.
Child (by second wife) :

vii Julia.

107 William M.^ Selden (John Armistead'', Miles

Cary^ Miles Gary*, Miles^ Joseph^, SamueP) was born

February 20, 1841. He married Elizabeth Groom.
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Children :

i Elizabeth, married Peacock.

ii Laura, married,

iii Bland,

iv William.

108 Maria Octavia^ Selden (John Armistead",
Miles Cary^, Miles Gary*, Miles^, Joseph-, SamueU) was
born September 2, 1845. She married Hugh Nelson.

Child :

Mary Bland Nelson, married Doctor Tomlinson.

109 Miles Cary« Selden (Miles Cary^ Miles

Cary^, Miles^ Joseph-, SamueP) was born December 14,

1805. He married, first, Harriet Heth, second, Nancy,
widow of Kennon.

Children :

i Henry.
110 ii Harriet, married General Harry Heth.

iii Richard, probably married Miss Hobson.

iv Nannie, married Rev. Mr. Rodman.
V Beverly, married Mrs. Winston, nee Rosalie

Blankhead. ,. ^^^* l4aA^j*-^
112 vi Lizzie, married —L—-ZT^odman.

vii Miles, died unmarried,

viii Charles, married Richmond.

110 Harriet^ Selden (Miles Cary^ Miles Cary%
Miles Gary*, Miles^ Joseph-, Samuel^) married General

Harry Heth. She died December 31, 1908.

Children :

111 i Gary Heth, married .

ii Henry Heth, died unmarried.

iii Nannie Randolph Heth.
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111 Cary^ Hetii (Harriet^ Selden, Miles Cary^
Miles Cary^ Miles Cary^ Miles^ Joseph', SamueP) mar-

ried and had one daughter,

Lily.

112 Lizzie^ Selden (Miles Cary^, Miles Cary^,

Miles Gary*, Miles^, Joseph-, SamueP) married

Rodman, and had two sons and one daughter.

i A child. Cc..^. S^3^ R«»-^c^

ii A child. iAc^^ivn. \U N^
^

iii A child, ^is;^ ^'^V^v.v ^--;;t:;^^)

113 Dr. William Allen*' Selden (Miles Cary^,

Miles Gary*, Miles^ Joseph-, SamueP) of Gedar Hill

and Kittiewan, Gharles Gity Gounty, Virginia, was born

January 26, 1808. He married, first, Susan A. Riddle,

daughter of Joseph Riddle of Gettysburg, Pennsylvania

(See Riddle Family, Number 6). He married, second,

Jane Douthat.

Ghildren :

i Ann Josephine, married J. H. Lounds.

ii William Allen, died in infancy.

114 iii Sarah Elizabeth, married Richard H. Strother.

114 Sarah Elizabeth^ Selden (William Allen^
Miles Gary^ Miles Gary^, Miles^ Joseph^ SamueP) mar-

ried Richard H. Strother of Baltimore, a banker.

Ghildren :

i Thomas Nelson Strother, married Eule K. Viele,

daughter of General Viele of New York.
ii Elizabeth Strother, married John Wright, son of

William Wright of Ireland, a lawyer in San Fran-

cisco, Galifornia.
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115 Martha Bland^ Selden (Miles Cary^, Miles

Cary^ Miles^ Joseph^, SamueP) married John Saunders.

Children (See Family Bible) :

i Bettie Saunders, married Walter H. Taylor, of Nor-

folk.

ii John Selden Saunders, married Ellen Burne Turner,

born in March, 1846, daughter of William and Ellen

(Burne) Turner, of Jefferson County.

iii Mary Saunders, married George Mcintosh.

116 Gill Armistead^ Selden (Miles Gary*, Miles^

Joseph^, SamueP) was born November 16, 1781. He
married Elizabeth, daughter of Arthur Thomas Allen.

Mr. Selden was killed in a duel April 10, 1801. The

following is an account of this duel, taken from a family

letter :

"I answer, as far as practicable, your letter of the

10th, by saying, that Gill Armistead Selden, reputed a

youth of rare beauty, fell, on Chimborazo Heights, in a

meeting with Skelton Jones. According to the Selden

version, Armistead and Skelton being dear friends, and

the former desiring to put an end to an amour in which

the latter was engaged, it was agreed between them, that

Armistead should furnish, if he could, such evidence to

his friend, as would require the liason to end; and the

evidence actually furnished, though in its nature highly

conclusive, being resented by Skelton, resulted in a chal-

lenge. The Jones version I never heard.

"The late Mr. Andrew Johnson, of Richmond, in-

formed me that his father was foreman of the Coroner's

jury that sat upon Armistead, and that, when the body
was disrobed, for inspection by the jury, they all ex-

claimed upon the marvellous beauty of the form before

them."
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Children :

i Elizabeth, married Miles Selden.

ii Susanna, married John Gary.

117 Cary^ Selden (Allies Cary^, Miles^, Joseph-,

SamueP) was born February 16, 1783. He married

Frances Loyal. His death occurred in 1843.

Children (Communicated by Miss Maria Selden) :

i Sarah, married — Graham.

ii Frances, married Captain William H. Gard-

ner, U. S. N. The first wives of Captain
Gardner and of Admiral Farragut were two

sisters, the ]\Iisses Merchant of Norfolk. Their

second wives were first cousins, the one a

Selden, and the other a Loyal.
118 iii Sally Gardner, married Lucius McKnight.

iv Pink, a celebrated beauty; married Doctor

McPhetus.

11!) v James Gardner, married Margaret Walker.

121 vi Robert Rose, married Augusta Walker,

vii George, U. S. X.
;
no issue.

viii AA'illoughby, died from a fall from a wagon
which broke his neck; no issue,

ix Sally, died in infancy.
X Virginia, married William Gardner; his sec-

ond wife; no issue.

118 Sally Gardner^ Selden (Cary^ Miles Cary\
Miles^ Joseph-, Samuel^) married Lucius McKnight, of

Detroit, Michigan.
Child :

Gardner McKnight.
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119 James^ Selden (Cary^ Miles Gary*, Miles^

Joseph-, Samuel^) married Margaret Walker of Wash-

ington, D. C.

Children:

i Gary.

130 ii Blanche, married Theodore Lay.

iii Augustus.

120 Blanche^ Selden (James", Gary^, Miles

Gary*, Miles^ Joseph-, SamueU) married Theodore Lay.

Children :

i Blanche Lay.
ii JuHa Lay.
iii Selden Lay.
iv Albert A. Lay.

121 Robert Rose" Selden (Gary^, Miles Gary*,

Miles^, Joseph-, SamueF) was an officer of the Navy.
He married Augusta Walker, sister of his brother, James
Selden's wife.

Ghild :

Mary.

122 Maj. Joseph^ Selden (Miles Gary*, Miles^

Joseph-, SamueP) was born May 7, 1787. He was an of-

ficer in the Army, holding the rank of captain, lieutenant

colonel, in 1813, and major in 1814. He resigned from

the service in 1820. He removed to Arkansas, where he

became a Judge. He married Harriet Gray. In 1824

Joseph Selden was killed in a duel, as had also been his

brother, Gill Armistead Selden. An account of his

death is as follows :

''Joseph Selden and Andrew Scott were both United
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States Judges in the Territory of Arkansas, and met on

the east side of the Mississippi, opposite Helena. The

former was killed on the spot, without uttering a groan.

The ball entering just below the right nipple, passed

through the lungs and heart, and emerged just below the

left nipple. His wife who afterward intermarried with

Prof. Lowry, of the University of Virginia, stationed her-

self, with attendants, on the banks of the river, to re-

ceive, by signal, the result of the fire, and being made

acquainted with the result, precipitated herself into the

torrent, from which she was rescued with extreme diffi-

culty.

"The Selden version of this afifair is that Joseph, re-

buking from the bench a disturber of the court, in cham-

bers, and receiving a challenge, for his pains, declined

to accept it, on account, partly, of the nature of the of-

fense imputed to him, but mainly because of the in-

equality that existed in the positions of himself and the

aggressor. On the application of the latter to Judge Scott,

who was bound to him by some tie, we may suppose,
Scott took up the difficulty. The version of the Scott

side I have not learned."

His wife, after his death, married Mr. Lowry, an

Englishman, in 1827.

Children :

i Josephine, married, in Liverpool, England, in 18-15,

Graham Willmore, of the Middle Temple, barrister,

ii Elizabeth.

123 James McClurg^ Selden (Miles Gary*, Miles^
Joseph^, SamueP) was born April 16, 1793. He married

Mary Elizabeth Ireland, who was born in 1809, the

daughter of Thomas and (Allen) Ireland. They
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were married at "Greenway," the home of ex-President

Tyler, in Charles City. James McClurg Selden was the

owner of "Engleside," near Catonsville, where he had the

celebrated Central Race Course. He inherited the old

homestead, "Pear Tree Hall," on the James River. Mary
Elizabeth Ireland's mother was a Miss Allen. She was

an orphan and President Tyler was her guardian. James

McClurg Selden died in 1842.

Children :

Elizabeth, married Doctor Logan Brandt.

Mary Frances, married Simon Boliver Knox,

of Fredericksburg.

James Miles, married Louisa Sears.

William Cary, married Eliza Fry.

Armistead, married .

Franklin.

Eliza Edloe.

Maria, who has kindly contributed much

valuable information regarding this branch of

the family.

124 Elizabeth^ Selden (James McClurg^, Miles

Cary*, Miles^ Joseph-, Samuel^) married Doctor Logan
Brandt.

Children :

125 i Randolph Brandt,

ii Mary Brandt.

125 Randolph^ Brandt (Elizabeth^ Selden, James

McClurg^ Miles Cary*, Miles^ Joseph^, SamueP) mar-

ried Maud Oldham, and had five children.

126 Mary Frances^ Selden (James McClurg^

124
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Allies Cary^ Miles^, Joseph-, SamueP) married Simon
Boliver Knox, of Fredericksburg.

Child :

127 Sarah Carson Knox, married J. A. Wright.

127 Sarah Carson" Knox (Mary Frances^ Sel-

den, James McClurg^, Miles Cary*, Miles^, Joseph-, Sam-
uel) married J. A. Wright.

Children :

i Walter Wright,
ii Frances Wright.

iii Jessie Wright

128 James Miles^ Selden (James McClurg^ Allies

Cary^ Miles^ Joseph^ Samuel^) married Louisa Sears,
of Seattle, Washington.

Children :

i Louisa, married Doctor Thompson,
ii Charlotte, married Fox, an artist, from Seat-

tle.

129 William Cary« Selden (James McClurg^
Allies Cary^ Allies-^ Joseph^ SamueF) married Eliza'

Fry.

Children :

i Elizabeth.

ii William Cary.
iii Florence, died young,
iv Edward, died voune.

130 Armistead« Selden (James McClurg^ Miles
Cary*, Miles^ Joseph^ Samuel^) married

,
in

Brooklyn, and had a son and a daughter.
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Children:

i A child.

ii A child.

131 Hannah* Selden (Miles^ Joseph-, SamucP)
was born February 7, 17G2. The following facts con-

cerning her are from Hayden, page 310. She married

Colonel William Hartw^ell Alacon, of Mount Prospect,

New Kent County, who was born March 2, 1759, and

died August 24, 1843. (See Macon Family, No. 4.)

His first wife was Sarah, daughter of Edward Ambler,

of Jamestown, whom he married March 2, 1779. Han-

nah Selden was his second w'ife, and they were married

December 13, 1783. She died September 18, 1813, and

Colonel Macon married, third, on August 14, 1814, Sarah,

widow of Benjamin Dabney, and daughter of Rev.

Thomas Smith, of Cople Parish, Westmoreland County,

Virginia. Colonel Macon was a member of the House

of Burgesses, delegate in 1785-86, and '87. The children

of Colonel Macon and his wife, Hannah Selden, were as

follows :

Children :

i Lucy Scott Macon.

ii W' illiam Macon,

iii Miles Selden Macon,

iv Rebekah Macon.

V Miles Macon,

vi Cary Selden Macon,

vii Thomas Alacon.

viii Joseph Macon,

ix Ann Elizabeth Macon.

132 Rebecca* Selden (Miles^ Joseph-, SamueP)
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married Thomas Watkins, born in 17G2. The following
is an account of his family.

In the year 1745, a Mr. Thomas Watkins, of Henrico,
son of Edward Watkins, is presented for reflecting

upon the established church, and saying, ''Your churches

and chapels are no better than synagogues of Satan."

He was dismissed without fine or injury.

The family is supposed to be of Welsh descent. The
name of James Watkins appears among the early emi-

grants to A'irginia in 1G07 or 1G08. He was a companion
of Smith in his perilous voyages of discovery in Vir-

ginia, and, it is supposed that he was the ancestor of the

\^irginia family, but nothing is certainly known, except
of the descendants of Thomas Vv'atkins of Swift Creek,

Cumberland (now Powhatan) County, whose will bears

date 17G0. He had eight children. His eldest son,

Thomas, is thus spoken of by the late Benjamin W^at-

kins Leigh, his great-nephew, in Old Families and
Churches of Virginia, p. 451, by Bishop Meade:
"Of Thomas Watkins, of Chickahominy, I have heard

very full accounts from my mother, wife of the Rev. Wil-
liam Leigh, of Chesterfield, and from my uncle Thomas,
both of whom knew him well. He was a man of the

highest respectability in every point of view, and, in par-

ticular, a man of indefatigable industry. He reared a

large family of children, four sons and seven daughters,
from whom have proceeded numerous families in and
out of Virginia. Of one son, Joel, he speaks with un-
stinted praise. Benjamin Watkins, youngest son of the

first Thomas, of Powhatan, who married Miss Cary of

Warwick, was the first clerk of Chesterfield County,
which ofiice he held until his death. He was a man of

genius, a scholar and patriot, and took an active part in
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the Revolution. He was a member of the Convention of

1776. The Rev. Mr. Leigh, of Chesterfield, married his

daughter, and v^as the father of the late Benjamin Wat-
kins Leigh of Richmond, and the present Judge William

Leigh of Halifax, and also of I\Irs. Finnie, of Powhatan,
and Mrs. Harris of Petersburg. Thomas, one of the

sons of Benjamin Watkins, the clerk of Chesterfield

County, married Rebecca Selden, daughter of Miles Sel-

den of Henrico Parish. Their daughter, Mary, was the

first wife of Benjamin Watkins Leigh. Their daughter,

Rebecca, married Judge William Leigh, of Halifax, and

their daughter, Hannah, married Doctor John Barksdale,

of Halifax. The eldest daughter (Hannah), of Benja-
min Watkins, married a Mr. William Finnie, of Amelia,
from whom have descended numerous families of Pin-

nies, Royalls, Woreshams, Sydnors, and others in Vir-

ginia, South CaroHna, and the West. The Rev. Alex-

ander Finnie, minister in Prince George in the year 1774,

was connected with this family." The children of Re-

becca (Selden) Watkins are as follows:

Children (order of birth not known) :

i Mary Watkins. married Benjamin Watkins Leigh,
ii Rebecca Watkins, married Judge William Leigh, of

Halifax.

iii Hannah Watkins, married Doctor John Barksdale, of

Halifax.

133 Nathaniel* Selden (Miles^, Joseph-, Sam-

ueF) married Mary, daughter of Charles Woodson. He
was delegate in 1810 and '11. His death occurred be-

fore 1833.

Children :

i Charles,

ii Joseph,

iii Mary, married, in 1824, Richard Adams.
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The following account of this family has been obtained

from an article which appeared in the Baltimore Sim.

Arms : Argent, a lion passant sable on a chief of the

second three mullets of the first.

Crest: Out of the clouds proper a demi-lion rampant

sable, powdered with estoiles, argent, holding a globe or.

Motto : Caelum qui tueri.

"Ball's Park," in Herfordshire, England, took its

name from John de Ball, who represented the County
in the reign of Edward I (1372-1307). From the Balls

it passed to the family of Henmarsh, and was later sold

to the Harrisons. It passed from them to the third

Viscount Townshend, and is now leased by him to Sir

George Fandel Philips. Charles Townshend, "the fa-

mous wit and statesman," was born there. He was son

of the third Viscount, and had a brother, George, born

in 1724, who became the first Marquis. There are

various branches of the Ball family in America, through-
out the New England States and the West, all descended

from a few immigrants in Colonial times. The arms

blazoned above were borne by Colonel William Ball, the

immigrant to Virginia, who was a descendant of

William Ball, lord of the Manor of Barkham,

Berks, England, who died in 1480. His son,

Robert Ball, died in 1543, leaving two sons, Ed-

ward, who left no issue, and

William Ball, of W^orkingham, who died in 1530,

leaving a son,

149
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John Ball, wlio died in 1599, leaving two sons,

John, who had no issue, and

William Ball, of Lincoln's Inn, London, whose

son.

Colonel William Ball, came to Virginia.

Colonel William^ Ball, was born about 1615, and

emigrated to Virginia in 1657. He is described as "of ye

county of Lancaster in Rappahannock." His wife was

Hannah Atherall, probably a daughter of Thomas Atlier-

all, of Burgh, Suffolk, England. They were married in

London, July 2, 1638. Hannah (Atherold) Ball survived

her husband. Colonel W^illiam Ball settled on the planta-

tion of "Millenbeck," in Lancaster County, Virginia. The

following account of the family and ancestry of Colonel

William Ball is taken from the Baltimore Sun.

"The Ball family have always largely figured in Vir-

ginia history, in connection with the Washington family,

and for the sake of their many descendants scattered over

our land, we present their arms and a reliable sketch of

them, as furnished by a near relative in Baltimore, Md.,
who is a granddaughter of Mary. Ball, of Kentucky.
"The crest and arms were borne by Col. William Ball,

immigrant to the Colony of Virginia in 1657, who was
a descendant of W'illiam Ball, Lord of the Manor of

Barkham, Berks, England.
"William Ball was of Lincoln's Lm, London, and had

a son, Col. William Ball, the immigrant to Virginia (Cro-
zier says in 1672). He settled at 'Millenbeck' plantation,
on the Rappahannock river. He married Hannah Ather-

old, of London, July, 1638, and died in 1680, leaving three

children, one of whom was Capt. William Ball, born

1641, and died 1694.''

"The connection of the Balls with Washington is, of
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course, well known, as in Irving's 'Life of Washington,'
he states that 'the father of Washington on March 6,

1730, married Mary, the daughter of Colonel Ball, a

young and beautiful girl, said to be the belle of the

Northern Neck of Virginia.' This Mary was the niece

of Capt. William Ball, of Millenbeck, and daughter of

Joseph Ball, who was one of the three children of Col.

William Ball, the immigrant
'^' h^ * "

Colonel William Ball, the emigrant, left the following

children, all born in England :

i Richard, died in infancy,

1 ii William, born in 1641 ;
died in 1694.

9 iii Joseph, born in 1649; died in 1711.

10 iv Hannah, born in 1650. (See Hayden.)

1 Capt. William^ Ball (William^) was born

June 2, 1641, in England. His first wife was, probably,

Williamson, of Rappahannock County, Virginia.

He married, second, Harris, of "Bay View,"

Northumberland County, Virginia. His third wife, whom
he married about 1675, was Margaret, daughter of Raw-

leigh Dowman (see Hayden, page 53). Captain William

Ball resided at the plantation of "Millenbeck," Lancaster

County, Virginia, which had belonged to his father. He
died September 30, 1694. His will is dated September

28, in that year, and was probabted the following Novem-

ber (Ibid).

Children :

2 i William, born about 1676, married Martha

Blumfield, and is also stated to have married

Hannah Beale; died in March, 1744-5.

7 ii Richard, born about 1677; married Sarah

Young; died in 1726.
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8 iii James, born in 1678; married, June 15, 1699,

iirst, Eliza Howson, second, April 16, 1707,

Mary Dangerfield, nee Conway, third, April 25,

1742, Mary Ann (Bertrand) Ballendine; died

October 13, 1754.

iv Joseph, born about 1680
;
married Mary Spen

cer; died in September 1721.

V George, born about 1683; married, first,

Haynie, second, Grace Waddy; died in 1746.

vi Samuel, born September 26, 1686
; married,

November 25, 1717, Ann Tayloe-; died in 1751.

vii David, born September 26, 1686
; married, first,

Mary ,
second Ellen Heale

;
no children

;

died December 14, 1732.

viii Stretchley, died young,
ix Margaret, married Rawleigh Downman

;
died

in 1758.

2 William^ Ball (William^, William^) was born

about 1676. He was of Berks County, Pennsylvania.

He married Martha Blumfield, and is also stated to have

married Hannah Blake. He died in March 1744-45. He
had seven children, among whom were,

3 i Thomas''' born in 1752.

6 ii John*

3 Thomas'^ Ball (William^ William-, William^
was born in 1752. He married Mary Reed. They had

eight children, one of whom was,
4 Mursford.

* Aftfr the biographies of Win. 3 Ball, and of his son.«!, Thomas and
John were written, data was found which showed that these
biographies were incorrect. See Appendix.
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4 MuRSFORD^ Ball (Thomas*, William^, William-,

William^) married Miss Force, of Kentucky. They had

a daughter,

5 Mary.

5 Mary^ Ball (Mursford^, Thomas*, William^,

William-, William^) married Judge Henry F. Garey.

They had a daughter,

Elizabeth Garey, who married Tiernan Walton, of

Virginia.

6 John* Ball (William^ William-, William^)
married Sarah Richards. The following is an account of

their son, Joseph, taken from the article previously

quoted :

''On the northwest corner of Charles and Lewis streets,

in Fredericksburg, Va., is the house where the mother of

Washington resided during the latter years of her life.

A cousin of General Washington was Joseph Ball, a

financier of the Revolution, son of John Ball (one of the

seven children of Capt. William Ball). He died in

Berks County, Pennsylvania, in 1827, leaving no issue

and intestate. His property is said to have amounted to

about $200,000,000. This great Ball estate, which readers

of romance have no doubt read about, consisted of fabu-

lous landed estates in half a dozen different States, with

titles to large tracts even in the hearts of the cities of

Washington and Philadelphia, with international disputes

over Louisiana Purchase from France. Colonial legends

concerning the love affairs of George Washington and

his genealogical history are all inseparably woven into

this greatest unsettled estate in American history.

"'The heirs are the descendants of the six paternal
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Ball uncle and aunts and of the six maternal uncles and

aunts, who were Richards, of Philadelphia. Joseph Ball's

niotlier was Sarah Richards, also a member of one

of the influential families of that time and a close relative

to Samuel Richards, noted as the founder of Atlantic

City, in that he built the railroad to the sea, being the

original line from Philadelphia to the Atlantic Ocean, a

road which has made both cities rich and prosperous,

and in it alignment and grades, the exemplar of other

modern railroads in our country."

Child : /

Joseph, died in Berks Co., Pa., in 1827, leaving no

issue.

7 Capt. Richard^ Ball (William-, WilHam^) was

born about 1677, in Lancaster County, Virginia. He is

called "Captain," in the Lancaster County records. He

married, about 1700, Sarah Young (see Hayden's Geneal-

ogies, pages 53-55). Sarah Ball's w^ill, dated August 6,

1742, w^as probated in Lancaster County, September 10,

1742. It names William Glasscock her executor, and

gives her daughter, Margaret Ball, two fifths, and

Esther Glasscock one fifth of her estate. To fulfil a

bond, she gives to John Selden, in consideration of a

marriage contract between his son, Richard Selden, and

the daughter of Major James Ball, one fifth part to be

paid him. The other fifth she gives to her grandson,
William Montague, when of age (Order Book, Lancaster

County, 1720-1743, page 301). The estate is appraised

by Jesse Ball, Richard Chichester and Rawleigh Chinn

at i465. It thus appears that John Selden was twice

married. Richard Ball died in 1726. His will is dated

August 6, 1742, and was probated in Lancaster County,

September 10, 1742. An abstract is here given:
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"In the Name of God Amen I Richard Ball of the

Parish of St. Mary's White Chappel in the County of

Lancaster, being sick & Weak in body but in perfect

mind and Memory thanks be to God for the same, and

calling to mind the uncertainty of this life, I do therefore

Make & ordain this my last Will and testament in

Manner & form following Imprimis I give & bequeath

My soul to God that gave it to me in full hope of pardon
& remission for all my sins in & through the Merits of

My Blessed Saviour Jesus Christ & My body to be

decently buried at the disposition of My Exec'rs here-

after named. Item I give to my daughter Sarah Selden

My plantation whereon I now live & my water mill &
all the land that lays below that road from Colo, William

Ball's Mill to Cundiffs to her & her heirs Male lawfully

begotten of her body for ever & for want of such heirs

then to my daughter Margaret Ball & the second heirs

male of her & my son-in-law Wm. Ball jun'rs body law-

fully begotten for ever & for want of such heirs then to

the heirs male of their two bodies lawfully begotten &
to the second son of that heir male & his heirs male

forever lawfully begotten
—Item I give to my daughter

Margaret Ball My plantation & land at the Mouth of

Corotoman River & to the heirs Male of My son-in-law

Wm. Ball jun'r & of My said daughter Margaret
* * * I

give to my daughter Hannah Ball * * * Item I give to

my daughter Esther Ball * * * "

At a Court held in Lancaster County 3rd day of ffb'ry

1726 Mrs. Sarah Ball, widow of Richard Ball, gent.
* * *

was admitted to record & is recorded * * * Sarah Ball

appears as adm'x August 5, 1727, was admitted Exec'x

of Capt. Richard Ball Northumberland Co., 1731. Cap-
tain Ball's will was- not signed but was recognized by
Court on the oath of his wife.
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Children :

i Sarah, married October 13, 1725, John Selden of

EHzabeth City (see Selden family, No. 2).

ii Margaret, married February 17, 1723-4, Captain

William Ball, Junior,

iii Hannah, married October IG, lv:<{7, William Mon-

tague,

iv Esther, married May 10, 1728, Captain William

Glasscock.

8 Major James^ Ball (William^, William^) of

"Bewdley," Lancaster County, Virginia, was born in

1678. He married, first, June 15, 1699, EHza or Eliza-

beth Howson, who died January 22, 1704-05. She was

probably the daughter of Leonard Howson. He married,

second, April 16, 1707, Mary (Conway) Dangerfield,

born February 16, 1686, died September 15, 1730, daugh-
ter of Colonel Edwin and Sarah (Fleete) Conway,
and widow of John Dangerfield, whom she married No-

vember 11, 1703, and who died without issue. Major

James Ball married, third, April 25, 1742, Mary Ann

(Bertrand) Ballendine, who was born in 1670. His

death occurred October 13, 1754, when he was seventy-

six years of age. His will is dated July 15, in that year,

and probated in Lancaster County, on November 15,

following.

Children (by first marriage) :

i Ann, born May 15, 1700; married Downman.
ii Elizabeth, born March 16, 1701

;
married November

2, 1721, Wm. Keene.

iii Eliza,

(by second marriage) :

iv Mary, born March 23, 1707-8; died young.
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V Frances, born October 13, 1709
;
married, probably

in 1730, Ball.

vi Sarah, born January 13, 1711-12; married Sep-

tember 22, 1736, Charles Ewell.

vii Eve, born December 24, 1713
; married, first Decem-

ber 13, 1741, Thomas Taylor, second, January 10,

1746, Solomon Ewell,

viii Jesse, born June 27, 1716 (see Hayden, page 65).

ix James, born December 31, 1718
;
died November 24,

1789.

X Mary, born April 6, 1721
;
married November 21,

1741, Colonel Richard Selden (see Selden family,

No. 3).

xi Jeduthan, born July 4, 1725; married Elizabeth

Burgess (see No. 12) ;
she married, second, Robert

Armistead (see Armistead Family, No. 43) ; Je-

duthan Ball died March 5, 1749-50.

9 Col. Joseph^ Ball (William^) was born in

England, May 24, or 25, 1649. He came with his parents

to Virginia in infancy. His estate was in Lancaster

County, and was called ''Epping Forest." He married,

first, it is stated in England, about 1675, Elizabeth Rogers,

or Romney, daughter of William Romney of London.

She may have been a widow. She died prior to 1703.

His second wife was Mary Johnson, a widow, of Lan-

caster County, Virginia, whom he married 1707-08. She

was born in England and died in Lancaster County,

Virginia. Her daughter, Mary Ball, was the mother of

General Washington. Colonel Joseph Ball was a man
of prominence in Lancaster County, a lieutenant, colonel,

and vestryman of the church. He died at his estate,

*'Epping Forest," in June, 1711. His will is dated the
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25th of that month, and was probated July 11 of the

same year.

Children (by first wife) :

i Hannah, married Raleigh Travers.

ii Elizabeth, married Rev. John Carnagie.
iii Esther, married, before 1703, Raleigh Chinn; died

1751.

iv Anne, married Col. Edwin Conway.
V Joseph, born in Virginia, March 11, 1G89; married

December 3, 1709, Frances Ravenscroft; died Janu-

ary 10, 1760.

(by second wife) :

vi Mary, born 1707-08: married March 6, 1730, Augus-
tine Washington (see Washington Family, No. 3) ;

died August 25, 1789, aged eighty-two.

10 Hannah- Ball (William') was born in Eng-
land, March 12, 1650. She married, July 22, 1670, Cap-
tain David Fox, of Lancaster County, Virginia, who was
born March 12, 1647, and died in 1669. He was son

of David and Mary Fox, of Lancaster County. David
and Hannah (Ball) Fox had four children, one of whom
was

11 Samuel Fox.

11 Samuel^ Fox (Hannah- Ball, William') was
born February 28, 1647. He married and had three chil-

dren, one of whom was
12 Frances.

12 Frances"* Fox (Samuel-', Hannah- Ball, Wil-

liam') married, first, October 5, 1721, Charles Burgess,
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of England, who died in 1734. She married, second,

Jesse Ball.

Child (by first husband) :

Elizabeth Burgess married, first, Jeduthan Ball (see No.

8), and, second, Robert Armistead.
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ARMISTEAD FAMILY

The following references to the Armistead Family have

been taken from \\'illiam and Mary Quarterly :

Arms—Argent, a chevron gules between the points of

spears, azure, tasseled in the middle or. Crest—A dexter

arm in armor, embowed, holding the butt end of a

broken spear, or.

Motto: Suivey raison.

"The only evidence that the immigrant, William Armi-

stead, was an Englishman is that there is no record of

his naturalization; that the name of Armistead was not

at all uncommon in England, and that the Armisteads

of Cranage Hall, Cheshire, descended from the Armi-

steads of Armistead, Yorkshire, bear almost precisely

the same arms as those on a pre-Revolutionary bookplate

used by William Armistead of Virginia."

The following extract from C. P. Keith's account in

"Descendants of Benjamin Harrison," gives all that can

be relied upon regarding the early history of this inter-

esting Virginia family:

"There is a tradition that the Armisteads derive their

name and origin from Darmstadt, and the seat of the

elder line in Virginia was called Hesse. Without de-

ciding when or whether in modern times they crossed the

German Ocean, it is sufficient to say that they were

Englishmen for several generations before William Armi-

stead came to America, the name, with varied spellings,

frequently appearing in Yorkshire records of the time

of Queen Elizabeth. The emigrant to America, seems,
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from the names of his children. Anthony and Frances,

to liave been the son of Anthony Armistead of Kirk

Deii^^liton, Yorkshire, and Frances Thompson of the same

place, who obtained a marriage Hcense in the year 1608.

"On August :], 1010, 'WilHam, ye son of Anthony
Armistead of Kirk Deighton,' was baptized in All Saints'

Church, the only church in the Parish. Search for a few

years later discloses the fact that this child, whom I

suppose the emigrant, passed safely through the period

of tender infancy, at least no burial can be found. His

father continued to reside there, having other children,

and a contemporary named Thomas Armistead, who

also had a family."

Anthony^ ArmistevVd, of Kirk Deighton, York-

shire, England, married Frances Thompson.
Their son,

1 William, emigrated to Virginia; the following

account of him and his descendants is taken

from the above named source.

1 William^ Armistead (Anthony^) baptized 3

August, 1610, "emigrated to Virginia, about 1635. In

1636 he received a patent from Captain John West,

Governor of Virginia, for four hundred and fifty acres

in Elizabeth City County, lying southeast upon the land

of Mr. Southall, northeast upon the land of John Brancz

(Branch?) Easterly upon the Creek, Westerly to the

woods: among the persons he had transported to .the

Colony being his wife, Anne. The name is spelt Arm-
stead in a patent of 1651. He died before 1660, as in

that year, in the York County, A^irginia, records, his

second son, John, was heir of his elder brother, William,

who died childless. He had issue, as far as is known:
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Robert Ikverley, but it is impossible to say whether he

married Beverley's sister, or his wife's sister. Major

Robert Beverley married Catherine Hone, of Gloucester,

daughter of Theophilus Hone (see Beverley Family).

She was his second wife. Her surname may have been

Bowles. His first wife was Mary.

Children :

3 i Judith, married Robert Carter.

ii Elizabeth, married, first, Feb. 16, 1G87, Ralph

Wormeley, Esq., Secretary of the Colony,

whose will is dated Feb. 2, 1700, and proved

April 7, 1701, and recorded in Middlesex (see

Wormeley Lineage) ;
she married, second, Oct.

5, 1703, William Churchill (see Keith, Hay-

den, and Middlesex Register), whose will was

proved March 6, 1710, and names, as overseers,

"My brothers, Mr. William 'Armistead and

Mr. Henry Armistead" and friends, Mr. Na-

thaniel Burwell, Mr. John Holloway, and Mr.

John Clayton. Elizabeth Armistead died Nov.

16, 1716
;
her will was proved Jan. 1, 1716, and

names ''My brother Mr. Henry Armistead."

(For her children, see Keith.) The following

refers to her marriages : "Honorable Lady,
Madame Katherine Wormeley, wife of Hon.

Ralph Wormeley, Esqr., Departed this life 17th

of May, 1685." "Mr. Wm. Churchill and

Mrs. Elizabeth Wormeley were married Octo-

ber ye 5, 1703." She had several sons and

daughters by her first husband.

4 iii William, married Anna Lee.

6 v Henry, married Martha Burwell.
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3 Judith* Armistead (John^, William-, Anthony^)
born 16G5, married Robert Carter, son of John Carter,

by his third wife, Sarah Ludlowe (see Carter Lineage).

John Carter was born in England, and emigrated to

Corotoman, Lancaster County, Virginia, in 1649. He
died in 1669. Robert, "King" Carter was born in 1663.

Judith Armistead was his first wife. They were married

in 1688. His second wife was Betty Landon, whom he

married in 1701. He had five children by each wife.

Judith (Armistead) Carter died February 23, 1699.

Her tombstone calls her ''eldest daughter" of Honorable

John Armistead, Esquire, and Judith, his wife. She

departed this life the 23rd day of February, Anno Domini

1699, in the year of her age, and in the 11th of her

marriage, having born to her husband five children, four

daughters and a son, whereof Sarah and Judith Carter

died before, and are buried near her" (see Keith).

Children (order of birth not known) :

i John Carter, died 1748; married 1723, Elizabeth Hill

of Sherley.

ii Elizabeth Carter, married, first, 1680, Nathaniel Bur-

well; died 1721; married, second, Dr. Geo. Nicholas.

iii Judith Carter, was second wife of Mann Page, of

Rosewell.

iv Anne Carter, married 1722, Benjamin Harrison, of

Berkelev.

v A son. •

4 William* Armistead (John^, William-, An-

thony^) was born in 1671. Fie married Anna Lee, eldest

daughter of Hancock Lee and Mary Kendall, daughter

of William Kendall of Northampton County. (See Lee

Family.) In Hening, III, page 59, and VI, pages 443-5,
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it is Stated that William Kendall, Dec'd, of North Hamp-

ton, had deeded TOO acres on Cherry Stone Creek, August

1, ICST). to Hancock Lee and Mary, his wife; at their

decease to Anna, daughter of said Hancock and Mary.

Said Anna, after the death of Hancock and Mary, entered

on said 700 acres and married William Armistead,

now deceased, and had issue: John Armistead, also

deceased, who left a son, John Armistead of Glou-

cester County, who, after the death of his grand-

mother, Anna, will be entitled to said 700 acres. The

father in his will of 9 April, 1734, gave to his daughter,

Susanna, £600 to be paid at 21 or marriage; also to his

son William Armistead, i()00 to be paid by his son John
Armistead. Said Susan had married Moore Fauntleroy

of Richmond County, Virginia.

In Hayden, page 97, is to be found the following data:

]\Iary Kendall, first wife of Hancock^ Lee (Richard^),

and mother of Anna Lee, who married William* Armi-

stead, was the daughter of Colonel William Kendall of

Xew Port House, Burgess for Northhampton County,

1657; Collector, 1660; Commissioner, 1667; Burgess,

1662-3, and '86, being Speaker of the House the last year.

Hancock Lee married, second, Sarah Elizabeth, daughter

of Colonel Isaac Allerton, merchant taylor of London,

who came to Massachusetts in the "Mayflower," 1620,

and married, in 1626, Fear Brewster, daughter of Elder

William Brewster of Massachusetts (New England His-

torical Register, Volume 44, 290). Hancock Lee was

Justice of Northumberland County, in 1677. He re-

moved to that County in 1688, and built the old Lee

home of "Ditchley," now owned by James Flexmer Ball.

He died in 1729, and is buried at Ditchley. His will is

dated 1706, and was probated in Northumberland Coun-
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ty. It names children, Richard, Anne, Isaac, John, and

a child not born. His son, William, died without issue
;

Richard, was born in 1681, as his father says he ''will

be eighteen years of age" in 1709
;
Hancock married

Mary Willis, of Wills Hall, near Fredericksburg; Anne,

the eldest daughter, married William Armistead
; Isaac,

mentioned in his father's will
; John is mentioned in his

father's will, and the "Child my wife now with."

William Armistead died at Eastmost River, in Mathews

County, June 13, 1711, where his tomb still stands.

Children :

5 i John, married, first, Elizabeth , second,

Susanna Meriwether,

ii Mary, married, first, James Burwell (see Bur-

well Family, No. 15), who died in 1718, and,

second, Philip Lightfoot, of the Council,

iii Judith, married George Dudley,

iv Anna, married, April 4, 1725, Anthony Walke,

and died February 14, 1732 (see Walke Chart,

Virginia Magazine, July, 1897).

V Joyce.

vi Frances (see will of James Burwell, and will

of Mrs. Mary Lightfoot, Quarterly, Volume

III, page 107).

5 JOHN^ Armistead (William*, John^, William^,

Anthony^) married, first Elizabeth , and, second,

Susanna Meriwether. He left a son,

John Armistead, of Gloucester County, inherited the

seven hundred acres of land on Cherry Stone Creek,

from his grandmother, Anna (Lee) Armistead, and

which was originally owned by William Kendall, her

grandfather.
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(i I liiNRY* Armistead (Johiv^ William^ Anthony^)

married Martha Burwell. l)a])tized November IG, 1G85,

(laughter of Major Lewis Burwell, and Abigail Smith,

his first wife (see Burwell Family, Number 2). He
lived on the Pianketank, at a place called "Hesse." As

\\'illiam Armistead, son and heir of Colonel John Armi-

stead, and brother of Henry Armistead, Hved on East-

most River, the name ''Hesse," probably originated with

Henry. His wife was the young lady with whom Gover-

ncr Francis Nicholson became so infatuated. (See account

of this in the Burwell Family.) In 1732 he was Justice

of Gloucester County, and was sworn County Lieutenant

in 173:]. He died between July 7, 1739, and February

1, 1739-40, at which date his son, William, succeeds him

in the Parish Register as owner of slaves in Christ

Church Parish, Middlesex County.

The Virginia Magazine of History and Biography, for

July, 1903, page 68, gives, under the title, "Virginia

Gleanings in England," the following :

"Henry Armistead of Carolina County, in Virginia

Colony beyond seas, Esq., deceased, a widower. Adminis-

tration 10 December, 1748, to Edward Hunt, Attorney
of William Armistead, Esq., Son of the defunct now

residing in Virginia."

Children :

7 i \\'illiam, married Mary Bowles.

ii Lucy, married Thomas Nelson, Secretary of

the Colony.
iii Martha, married Dudley Diggs, of the Commit-

tee of Safety.

43 iv Robert, married ]Mrs. Elizabeth Ball, daughter
of Charles Burgess (see William and Mary
Quarterly, Volume L VI, VH, VH).
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7 William^ Armistead (Henry*, John^, William-,

Anthony^) succeeded his father at ''Hesse," on the Pian-

ketank River, in Gloucester County, Virginia. He mar-

ried Mary, daughter of James Bowles. The Virginia

Gazette of 1739 gives the notice of the marriage:

"In Maryland, William Armistead, son of Colonel

Henry Armistead, of Gloucester County, Virginia, was

married to Miss Mary Bowles, second daughter of James

Bowles, Esqr., deceased, one of the council of that prov-

ince, and granddaughter of Tobias Bowles, Esqr., former-

ly an eminent merchant of London, in the Virginia trade.

A very agreeable young lady, with a fortune upwards of

iGOOO sterling, February 2, 1738." She married, second,

September 15, 1765, Reverend Thomas Price, and had a

son, Thomas. The will of James Bowles, styling himself

as of St. Mary's County, in the Province of Maryland,

Merchant, was dated June 13, 1727, and was probated

the January following. It mentions daughters : Eleanor,

Mary, and Jean Bowles, wife, Rebecca, and uncle, George

Bowles. Eleanor Bowles married, first, William, son

of Governor Sir William Gooch, of Virginia, and, second,

Warner Lewis, of Warner Hall, Gloucester County, Vir-

ginia. Mary Bowles married, as stated above, William

Armistead. Rebecca, wife of James Bowles, appears

in notes of official record of Robert Dinwiddle, and in

Keith's "Ancestry of Benjamin Harrison," as having

married, first, Bowles, brother of General Bowles, of

the British Army, and, as being a daughter of Thomas,

son of John Addison, an Admiral in the British Navy.

His first wife was Elizabeth, daughter of Honorable

John Tasker, treasurer of Maryland (born 1695), and

Eleanor, daughter of Honorable Thomas Brooke, of

Brooke's Manor, in Maryland, who was the grandson of
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Robert Brooke, and Mary, his wife, daughter of Roger

Alainwariiig, D. D., Bishop of St. David's (see Addison

and Tasker FamiHes). Rebecca Addison Bowles, mar-

ried, second, Sir Robert Henley, of the Grange, Lord

Chancellor of England, afterward Earl of Worthington.

According to an article in the William and Mary Quarter-

ly, James Bowles was a brother of General Bowles of

the British Army, and son of John Bowles, formerly a

London merchant.

William Armistead made his will December 30, 1752,

and died soon after. The will was probated in 1755.

The testator died seized of lands in Gloucester

County, 2,740 acres
;
in Christ Church Parish, Middlesex

County, 6,000 acres
;
in Hamilton Parish, Prince William

County, 5,000 acres; and also in St. Mark's Parish, Cul-

peper County.

November, 17G9, 10th year of reign of George 3rd,

Hening's Statutes, Volume 8, page 487.

An act to vest certain intailed lands whereof William

& John Armistead, gentlemen, are seized in trustees, to

be sold for payment of the debts due from the estate of

their father,

1st Whereas William Armistead, formerly of the

county of Gloucester, esquire, was, in his lifetime, & at

the time of his death, seized in fee simple of a very
valuable estate in lands, lying in the County of Glou-

cester, & of 2740 acres, lying in the parish of Christ

Church, in the county of Aliddlesex & was also seized

of a tract of land containing about GOOO acres, lying in

the parish of Hamilton, in the county of Prince Wil-

liam, & being so seized, he the said William Armistead,
in & by his last will and testament, in writing bearing
date December 30th 1755, did, among other things,
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give & divide as follows : Item, I give and bequeath

unto my well beloved son William Armistead all my
lands in Gloucester & Middlesex counties, with 70 choice

slaves, including my house servants, & likewise the stocks

of all sorts, with all the household furniture, in & upon
the said estate, to him & the heirs of his body lawfully

begotten forever. Item, I give & bequeath unto my
beloved son John Armistead all that tract of land pur-

chased from the trustees of Mr. George Carter, in the

county of Prince William with all the stock & slaves

thereupon, & likewise all the slaves and stocks in and

upon my lands in the counties of Culpeper & Caroline, to

him & the heirs of his body lawfully begotten forever,

«& after other devises to his sons Bowles & Henry Armi-

stead, did divide as follows : My will & desire is that

my said sons shall not come to the possession of their

estates until they severally arrive to the age of 21 years,

that is to say when my son William arrives to the age

of 21 years, he shall be entitled to his estate, and in

like manner shall all my other sons be entitled to their

estates respectively, as by the said will, recorded in the

general court may more fully appear; and soon after-

wards the said testator died so seized, considerably in-

debted to sundry persons in Great Britain & this colony,

so that when the said William & John Armistead, the sons

severally arrived at the age of 21 years, they could not

obtain possession of their estates so divided to them until

they engaged to pay their respective proportion of said

debts, then & yet remaining due, which they severally

undertook to pay, amounting to about the sum of 1700

pounds sterling each, which the said John & William

have no means of discharging but by selling some part of

the estates to them respectively devised, as aforesaid,
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wliicli they cannot do, by reason of their limited Interest

therein ; & should their intailed slaves be taken in exemp-

tion & sold for that purpose, their lands would be rend-

ered useless & they wholly unable to support their

families, & make provision for their younger children;

it Is therefore represented to this general assembly that

it will be to the advantage of the said William and

John Armlstead, & their respective families, If they were

allowed to sell some part of their intailed lands, for pay-

ment of the said debts, whereby their slaves might be

saved to work the residue, & forasmuch as notice has

been published 3 Sundays successively, in the several

churches of the said parish of Christ church; in the

county of Middlesex & in the several churches of the

said parish of Hamilton, in the county of Prince William,

that application would be made to this present session

of the assembly for an act to be passed to sell the

lands. In the county of Middlesex, & 2000 acres, part of

the said lands, In the county of Prince William, for the

purposes aforesaid, pursuant to your Majesty's Instruc-

tions.

2nd May It therefore please your most excellent

Majesty, at the humble suit of the said William & John

Armlstead, that it may be enacted, and be It enacted by
the Governor, Council & Burgesses of the present Gen-

eral Assembly, & by the authority of the same, that the

said 2740 acres of land, be the same more or less, whereof

the said William Armlstead, the elder, died seized, in

the county of ^Middlesex, be, & the same is hereby
vested in Ralph Wormeley, the elder, William Church-

Ill, & Philip Ludwell Grymes, esquires; In Trust, that

they, or any two of them, shall sell & dispose of the same,
for the best price that can be had, to any person or
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persons willing to purchase, & convey the said lands to

the purchaser or purchasers in fee simple, who shall

forever thereafter hold the same, discharged of the

limitations in the will of the said William Armistead, the

elder
;
& out of the money arising from such sales, the

said trustees shall in the first place, pay to the said

Wni. Armistead, the said sum of 1700 pounds sterling, &
the surplus, if any, after defraying the expenses of the

sale shall be, by the said trustees or two of them, fairly

laid out in the purchase of other lands, which they
shall cause to be conveyed, by good & sufficient deed or

deeds to the said William Armistead, who shall, from

henceforth, hold the same, to him & the heirs of his body
forever : & in default of such issue, the said lands shall

go to such person or persons, to whom the said lands

in the county of Middlesex, would have descended &
come, if this act had never been made.

3rd And be it enacted by the authority aforesaid, That

the said tract of land in the county of Prince William,

be, & the same is hereby vested in John Baylor, Walker

Taliaffero, Henry Lee, Foushee Tebbs, & Thomas Mar-

shall, esquires, or the survivors of them, in trust that

they or any three of them, shall sell & dispose of so

much thereof, not exceeding 2000 acres, as shall be suf-

ficient to raise the sum of 1700 pounds sterHng, besides

the expenses of the sale (to be laid ofif in such manner
as to them shall seem most convenient & proper) for

the best price that can be had & convey the lands, so

sold, to the purchaser or purchasers in fee simple, who
shall forever thereafter hold and enjoy the same, free

and discharged of the limitations in the will of the said

William Armistead, the elder; & the said trustees shall

pay the said 1700 pounds sterling to the said John
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Annistcad his executors or administrators, & what shall

be left of the said tract of 6000 acres of land, shall re-

main to the said John Armistead, & the heirs of his

body, according to the will of his said father.

4th Saving to the king's most excellent Majesty, his

heirs & successors, & to all & every other person &

persons, bodies politic & corporate, other than the per-

sons claiming under the will of the said William Armi-

stead, the elder, all such right, title, interest & estate,

claim & demand, as they, every, or any of them, could or

might have if this act had never been made.

5th Provided always that the execution of this act

shall be, & the same is hereby suspended, until his

^Majesty's approbation thereof be obtained.

Copied at Annapolis, Aid., Feb. 14th, 1898, by Dr.

S. D. Kennedy.
Armistead Bowles

Alar., 1773, 13th year of reign George 3rd Hening's

Statutes, A^ol. 8, page 667.

An act to vest certain intailed lands whereof Bowles

Armistead, gentleman, is seized in trustees, to be sold

for payment of debts due from the estate of his late
»

father William Armistead, esquire.
* =^ =^ 1st Whereas

William Armistead, formerly of the county of Gloucester,

esquire, was, in his lifetime, & at the time of his death,

seized in fee simple of & in a very valuable estate in lands,

lying in the county of Gloucester, & of 2740 acres, lying in

the parish of Christ Church, in the county of Middlesex,

& was also seized of a tract of land containing about

6000 acres, lying in the parish of Hamilton, in the county
of Prince William, & of a tract of land containing about

5000 acres, lying in the parish of St. Mark in the county
of Culpeper, by him purchased of John Spotswood, es-
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quire, & being so seized, he, the said WiUiam Armistead,

in & by his last will and testament in writing, bearing

date, Sept. 30, 1755, did give & devise among other things

as follows : Item, I give and bequeath
''' ^ "^

[here

follows his gifts to his sons William, & John Armistead,

for which see paper on William & J. copied by me from

Hening's Statutes, Vol. 8, page 487]
'^ * *

Item, I give &

bequeath unto my well beloved son Bowles Armistead

all that tract or parcel of land in Culpeper County, pur-

chased of Mr. John Spotswood, with all the slaves that

remain upon my Gloucester & Middlesex lands after

my son William's part is taken out, which is 70, to him

and the heirs of his body, lawfully begotten forever, and

after other devises to his son Henry Armistead since

deceased, did direct as follows : My will and desire is

* * *
[Here follows his directions for which see the

paper on William and John, copied by me from Hening's

Statutes, Vol. 8, p. 487.] And whereas by an act of

assembly, passed in the 10th year of the reign of his

present Majesty [See Hening as above] : And it being

equally reasonable and necessary that the said Bowles

Armistead, the son, who hath arrived to the age of 21

years, since the passing of the said act, should be al-

lowed to sell part of his said intailed lands for raising

his proportion of the debts aforesaid, and thereby save

his shares to work the residue of his lands ; and notice

having been three Sundays successively published in the

several churches of the said parish of St. Mark's in the

county of Culpeper. that application would be made to

this assembly for an act to be passed to sell 2000 acres,

part of the said lands, for the purpose aforesaid, pur-

suant to your Majesty's instructions : May it therefore

please your most excellent Majesty, at the humble suit
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of Bowles Armistead, that it may be enacted, and be it

enacted, by the Governor, Council, Burgesses, of this

present General Assembly, and by the authority of the

same, that the said tract of land in the county of Cul-

peper, so purchased by the said William Armistead, the

elder, of John Spotswood, esquire, be and the same is

hereby vested in Joseph Jones, Walter Taliaferro, Henry
Pendleton, Henry Field, and Mann Page, junior, gentle-

men, or the survivors of them, in trust that they, or any

three of them, shall sell and dispose of so much thereof,

not exceeding 2000 acres, to be laid off in such man-

ner as to them shall seem most convenient and proper, as

will be sufficient to raise the sum of 1700 pounds sterling,

besides the expenses of sale, for the best price that can

be had, and convey the land so sold to the purchaser or

purchasers in fee simple, who shall forever thereafter,

hold and enjoy the same, freed and discharged of the

limitations in the will of the said William Armistead,

the elder, and the trustees shall pay the money so to be

raised, after deducting the expenses of sale and of this

act, in discharge of the said Bowles Armistead's propor-

tion of the debts due from his said father, and what shall

remain of the said tract of land after such sales, shall

be to the use of the said Bowles Armistead and the heirs

of his body, and in default of such issue to the right

heirs of the said William Armistead, the father, forever,

saving to the king's most excellent ^Majesty, his heirs and

successors, and to all and every other person and persons,

bodies politic and corporate, other than the persons claim-

ing under the said William Armistead, the elder, all

such right, title, interest, and estate, claim and demand
as they, every or any of them, could or might have if

this act had never been made.
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2nd, Provided always, that the execution of this act

shall be, and the same is hereby suspended, until his

Majesty's approbation thereof is obtained.

Copied at Annapolis, Md., Feb. 15, 1898, by Dr. S. D.

Kennedy.
William Armistead names in his will the following

children :

8 i WilHam, married IMaria Carter.

14 ii John, married Lucy Baylor.

41 iii Bowles, married Mary Fontaine.

iv Henry, died before 1773 (see Hening's Stat-

utes, Volume III, and Volume VIII, page 667).

8 William^ Armistead (William^, Henry*, John^,

William-, Anthony^) of *'Hesse," was a student at Wil-

liam and Mary College, in 1755, when Secretary Nelson

and Dudley Diggs are names in the Bursar's book as his

guardians. "He married, in 1765, Maria, daughter of

Charles Carter, of Cleve, and Anna Byrd, of Westover,

his wife. Under his father's will, he received all his

lands in Gloucester and Middlesex. I have seen some

of the old family letters, written in 1774, to Mrs. Armi-

stead. In one of them Mrs. Fields sends her best wishes

for ''Miss Jenny, Master Billy, and your young family."

Among the descendants of William Armistead and his

wife are John Pleasants, William A. Moale, and others of

Baltimore.

Children :

i Mary A., born 1766, married Thomas Taylor

Byrd, of Westover, born January 17, 1752.

ii Lucy B., born 1768
;
married Harvey.

9 iii Jane, born 1770, married William Cocke.

iv William B., born October 26, 1769
;
died before

1797, Charles Carter, became son and heir.
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V Charles Carter.

11 vi Anne Cleves, married John P. Pleasants.

12 vii Judith Carter, married, first, Richard H.

Moale, second, Robert Riddle, third, Richard

Carroll,

viii Charles Carter, died without issue, after 1797.

ix Sarah, born February 22, 1776, married Fair-

fax Washington.
13 X Eleanor Bowles, married William McMechen.

9 Jane' Armistead (William*^, William^, Henry*,

John-;, William-, Anthony^) was born in 1770. She mar-

ried William Cocke. They had a son.

10 William Armistead Cocke, married Elizabeth

Randolph Preston.

10 William Armistead*^ Cocke (Jane' Armistead,

W'illiam", William'^, Henry^, John"' William-, Anthony^)
married Elizabeth Randolph Preston, daughter of ]\[ajor

Thomas Preston and his wife, Edmonia Randolph, who
was the daughter of Governor Edmund Randolph (See
Preston Family, Number 20).

Children :

i William Fauntleroy, killed at Gettysburg.
ii Thomas P. L.

iii Capt. Edmund R., a prominent politician,

iv Preston, attorney-at-law, of Richmond.

11 Anne Cleves^ Armistead (William^ Wil-

liam^ Henry^ John", William^, Anthony') was born No-
vember 7, 1773. She married, March 14, 1793, John P.

Pleasants, of Baltimore.
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Children :

i J. Hall Pleasants,

ii Richard H. Pleasants.

12 Judith Carter' Armistead (William^, Wil-

liam^, Henry"*, John^, William-, Anthony^) was born

December 29, 1774. She married, first, April 16, 1797,

Richard H. Moale, of Baltimore, who was born January

28, 1765, and died July 22, 1802. By him she had a son.

She married, second, Robert Riddell, and, third, Richard

Carroll, of "Mount Dillon," who was son of Richard

Carroll, of "Mount Dillon," and his wife, Rachel Croxall

(her mother was Joanna Carroll, who was related to

the Carrolls of Carrollton). The son of Judith Armi-

stead, by her first husband, was

William A. Moale.

13 Eleanor Bowles" Armistead (William^, Wil-

liam^, Plenry*, John^, William-, Anthony^) married Wil-

liam McMechen, of Baltimore. Their daughter,

Eleanor McMechen, married Robert S. Buchanan.

14 JOHN^ Armistead (William^, Henry*, John^,

William-, Anthony^) was, like his brother, William, at

William and Mary College, in 1755, and the Bursar's book

gives Thomas Nelson and Dudley Diggs as his guardians.

He received, by his father's will, all the lands in Prince

William and much stock in Culpeper and Caroline Coun-

ties. He was executor of the will of his brother, Bowles

Armistead, in 1785. He married Lucy Baylor of New
Market, Caroline County, March 17, 1764. She was the

daughter of John Baylor, who died at his home in Caro-

line County, Virginia, April 16, 1772.
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kansas from 1877 to 1881, and Secretary of

State from 1894 to 1898.

17 ii John Carter Baylor, married Annie Carroll.

18 iii Fanny Taliaferro, married Col. John Faul-

coner.

17 John Carter Baylor^ Armistead (John Car-

ter"", John Baylor^, John", William^, Henry*, John^, Wil-

liam-, Anthony^) married Annie Carroll, of CarroUton.

They had two sons.

i John Beauford.

ii Carroll Faulconer, captain in the Twenty-first Regi-

ment, United States Army, serving in the Philippines.

18 Fanny Taliaferro^ Armistead (John Carter^,

John Baylor^ John*^, William^, Henry*, John^ William-,

Anthony^) married Colonel John Faulconer.

Children :

i Armistead Faulconer.

ii Roberta Lee Faulconer.

iii ^Margaret Harrison Faulconer.

19 William^ Armistead ( John^ William^ Henry*,

John"\ William-, Anthony') of Prince William County,

married Ann Cary Norton.

Children :

i Hebe.

ii Wilson Cary.

iii E. Randolph.  

iv Mary.
V Wilhe Ann.

vi George (Richmond Standard).
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20 Capt. Addison Bowles^ Armistead (John^,

William'', Henr}^, John^ William-, Anthony^) of Prince

William County, entered the United States Army, and

was made Captain, September :]0, 1806. He married

]^Iary Howe Peyton, daughter of John Peyton of Win-

chester, Virginia. Mr. Armistead (hed February 10,

1813.
^

Children :

i Alary.

ii Susan P., married James Innis Randolph, and was a

wMdow with twelve children residing in Richmond in

1866 (see Hayden, page 530).

21 Gen. George^ Armistead (John^ William^

Henry*, John^ William-, Anthony^) known as "the hero

of Fort McHenry," was born at New Market, Caroline

County, Virginia, April 10, 1780. He was appointed

second Lieutenant, United States Army, January 8, 1799
;

Captain, November 1, 1806; Major, Third Artillery,

March 3, 1813. He was distinguished at the capture of

Fort George, Upper Canada, May 18, 1813, and was

brevetted Lieutenant-Colonel for the defence of Fort Mc-

Henry, November 12, 1814. He married. October 26,

1810, Louise, sister of Christopher Hughes, of Baltimore,

United States Charge d'affaires in Denmark, the Nether-

lands, and Norway and Sweden. She w^as the daughter

of Christopher Hughes, born in County Weyford, Ire-

land, in 1745, died in Baltimore, Maryland, September

7, 1824, wdio married Margaret Sanderson, born in 1760,

died in Baltimore, August 5, 1825. She was the daugh-
ter of Francis and Margaret (McGee) Sanderson of

Lancaster, Pennsylvania. The children of Christopher

Hughes were: (1) George, who married twice, two of his
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children were Sidney, who married Doctor Boteler, and

Laura, who married WilHam McKaig of Cumberland,

Maryland; (2) Louisa, who married George Armistead;

(3) Hon. Christopher, who married Laura Smith, and

had a daughter, Margaret, who w^as second wife of Hon.

Anthony Kennedy of Maryland, by whom she had no is-

sue (see Kennedy Family, Number 32) ; (4) Julia, born

in 1798, married, September 5, 1820, Charles Mynn
Thruston of Cumberland, Maryland, son of Judge Buck-

ner Thruston, born February 22, 1798, in Lexington,

Kentucky.
General George Armistead died at Baltimore, Mary-

land, April 25, 1818.

Children :

i Mary, born December 27, 1812
;
married June

10, 1845, John Bradford.

22 ii Margaret, born September 15, 1814; married

October 20, 1840, Lewis Howell, of New Jer-

sey.

23 iii Christopher Hughes, married Agnes Gordon.

25 iv Georgiana Louisa Frances Gillis, married Wil-

liam Stuart Appleton.

22 Margaret^ Armistead (George^, John®, Wil-

liam^, Henry'^, John", William-, Anthony^) was born

September 15, 1814. She married, October 20, 1840,

Lewis Howell, of New Jersey, a graduate of West Point.

His father, Benjamin Betterton Howell, son of Major

Joseph Howell, Junior, and Rebecca Betterton, married,

in 1810, his cousin, Frances, daughter of Colonel Joshua
and Anna (Blackwood) Howell, by whom he had ten

children: (1) Lewis, married Margaret Armistead (see

above) ; (2) Henry Washington, married Emily W.
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Babcock; (3) Alfred; (4) Rebecca, married Francis W.

Babcock; (5) Anna, married Rev. John Murray Forbes,

of Xew York; (G) Frances, married Howard Kennedy,
M. 1).; (7) Ellen, married Rev. Whiting Grisv^old

; (8)

Mary Elizabeth, married A. Hamilton Campbell, M. D.
;

(9) Alfred, married Elizabeth Dawson; (10) Margaretta,

married Richard Ragan, of Washington County, Mary-
land. Benjamin Howell was lost on the steamer, "Presi-

dent," which was never heard from after she sailed from

New York for England. Margaret (Armistead) Howell

died in Baltimore, February 23, 18G1. She had two

children :

i Lewis Howell, died young.
ii Frances, married, as his first wife, Stephen Dan-

dridge Kennedy (see Kennedy family, No. 33).

23 Christopher Hughes^ Armistead (George'',

John", William^, Henry*, John^, William-, Anthony^)
was born in 181G. He married Agnes Gordon of Fred-

ericksburg.

Children :

24 i James Ryan, married Mrs. Byrd.
ii George, unmarried,

iii Susan, married Powell Grady,
iv Agnes, married Alexander Gordon.

V Minna, married Clarence Whiting,
vi Fanny,
vii Gordon.

24 James Ryan^ Armistead (Christopher Hughes^,

George^ John", William^ Henry*, John', William-, An-

thony^) married Mrs. Byrd. He inherited the silver

bowl, presented to his grandfather, George Armistead.

He had a daughter,
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Louisa Frances Gillis'^ Armistead, George^ John'', Wil-

Vninr', Henry*, John"', Wilham^, Anthony^) married, April

22, 1897, WilHam Morton. They have four children:

Lucy Armistead Morton, born September 2, 1900.

Edwin Appleton Morton, born October 13, 1903.

ni Catherine Sargeant Morton, born March 23, 1906.

iv Armistead Hughes Morton, born July 15, 1907.

29 Edith^ Appleton (Georgiana Louisa Frances

Gillis^ Armistead, George^, John'% WiHiam^, Henry*,

John^, \\'illiam-, Anthony^) married her cousin, William

Stuart Appleton, of Boston. They had children :

i \Villiam Sumner Appleton.
ii Eleanor Appleton, married, April 12, 1904, Major

Robert Hargrave Eraser Standen, of the Army Serv-

ice Corps.

30 Margaret^ Appleton (Georgiana Louisa Fran-

ces Gillis^ Armistead, George^, John*', William^, Henry*,

John^, William-, Anthony^) married George Livingston
Baker. They had several children. One child was,

Edith Appleton Baker, married, December 7, 1904,

Dirk H. A. Rollf, of Java.

31 Gen. Walker Keith^ Armistead (John*', Wil-

liam-^, Henry*, John\ William-', Anthony^) was born in

1785. He graduated at West Point, March 5, 1803. He
was Chief Engineer in the United States Army in Canada,
in 1812, and was made Lieutenant Colonel, July 31, of

that year. In June, 1821, he was Colonel of the Third

Artillery, and, on November 12, 1828, w^as brevetted

Brigadier-General for ten years' faithful service in one

grade. He married Elizabeth Stanley, of North Caro-

lina. General Armistead died October 13, 1845.
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"When Gen. L. A. Armistead, who commanded the

advance brigade of Pickett's Division, crossed the stone

wall of Cemetery Ridge, at the 'Bloody Angle' of Gettys-

burg, he drew his sword, and, placing his hat on its point,

waved it aloft as a conspicuous guidon for the heroic

followers of his command to rally around.

"General Armistead and about 100 of his men—prac-

tically all that remained of his brigade upon reaching

Cemetery Ridge—penetrated about 100 feet inside the

Union lines, held by the Philadelphia Brigade. At that

point General Armistead. surrounded by men of the

Philadelphia Brigade, fell mortally wounded, and the

sword which dropped from his hand was picked up by

Sergeant ?^Iichael Specat, and remained in his possession

until last September, when it was returned to Capt. Thom-
as D. Jeffress, president of Pickett's Division, with im-

pressive ceremonies, at the Gettysburg reunion of the

Philadelphia Brigade and Pickett's Division.

"A few days ago. as adjutant of the Philadelphia

Brigade Association. I received a letter from George
Armistead, stating that he had been informed that the

Philadelphia Brigade had turned General Armistead's

sword over to Armistead Camp of Confederate Veterans,

and requesting full particulars, which were promptly sent

to Mr. Armistead. I then received the following :

*' 'Maryland Club.
''

'Baltimore. May 9, 1907.

'''Dear Couivadc Fvai^icr:
" 'Thank you very much for your kind and prompt re-

ply to my letter. Your "Blue and Gray" also to hand and

read with great appreciation and interest.
" 'We tried again and again to recover the sword of

General Armistead after the battle of Gettysburg, but
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could find no trace of it and are indeed glad to know of

it after all these years. I shall see that it is placed in the

Confederate Museum in Richmond.
"
'General Armistead's remains repose in Old St.

Paul's Churchyard, of this city, and it may interest the

Philadelphia Brigade to hear that their one-time enemy,

but now dearest foe, sleeps by the side of Col. George

Armistead, and that it was the latter's gallant defense of

Fort McHenry against the British in 1814 that made pos-

sible and inspired the poet, Francis Scott Key, to write

our national anthem, "The Star-Spangled Banner."
" That same old flag that Key strained his eyes "in

the morn's early light" to see "streaming so gallantly

o'er the ramparts" remains to this day in the custody and

possession of our family. Thus you will observe that

the survivors of the Philadelphia Brigade and of Pickett's

Division are linked together by legend and tradition with

hooks of steel. ^ ^ =5= George Armistead.'
"

General Lewis Addison and Cecilia Lee Love (Lord)
Armistead had a son :

Walker Keith, one of his father's stafT
;
married Julia

Appleton of Boston, granddaughter of Daniel Web-

ster.

33 Capt. Bowles E.^ Armistead (Walker Keith^

John^ William^, Henry^ John^ William-, Anthony^) of

Company A, Sixth Virginia Regiment, Cavalry, C. S. A.,

married, first, Susan Lewis Marshall, of Fauquier County,

by whom he had no living issue. He married, second,

Elizabeth Lewis Marshall, daughter of Henry M. Mar-

shall, of Fauquier County, by whom he had five sons

and five daughters,
i Henry Marshall.
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ii Lewis Addison.

iii Stanley.

iv John Baylor.

V Robert Morris.

vi Mary Morris.

vii Eleanor Bowles.

viii Elizabeth Marshall.

ix Virginia Baylor.
X Courtcnay Warner Selden.

34 Cornelia^ Armistead (Walker Keith", John^
William^, Henry^, John-^ William^ Anthony^) married

Washington Irving Newton, of Norfolk, Virginia, Major
in the L^nited States Army. Their children were:

35 i Elizabeth Stanley Newton, married Dr. Pedro

M. Lusson.

ii Cornelia Armistead Newton.

iii Armistead Newton.

35 Elizabeth Stanley^ Newton (Cornelia^

Armistead, Walker Keith^ John^ William^ Henry*,

John-^, William-, Anthony^) married Doctor Pedro M.

Lusson, of Havana, Cuba. They had children :

i Cornelia Armistead Lusson, married, April 16 1890,

Arthur Crux, of Kent, England.
ii Adele M. Lusson.

iii George Newton Lusson.

3(3 Mary^ Armistead (John^ William^ Henry*,

John% William^, Anthony^) married Landon Carter, of

Sabine Hall, Richmond County. Their children were:

37 i Armistead Carter, married De Butte.

ii Frances Carter, married Rosier Dulaney.
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iii Landon Carter.

38 iv Alary Carter, married Capt. Eleason.

37 Armistead^ Carter (Mary" Armistead, John'^,

William^, Henry*, John^, William^, Anthony^) married

De Butte. They had issue :

i Landon.

38 Mary« Carter (Alary^ Armistead, John^ Wil-

liam^, Henry*, John^, WilHanr, Anthony^) married Cap-
tain Eleason. They had issue :

i Talcott Eleason.

ii Mary Eleason, married Mason, of Falmouth.

39 Frances'' Armistead (John^^ William^, Henry*,

John^, William-, Anthony^) married Doctor Gillies, of

Alexandria, Virginia. They had a son:

Dr. Thomas Gillies, of Philadelphia.

40 Eleanor Bowles^ Armistead
( John*^, William^,

Henry*, John^, William-, Anthony^) was born after her

father's death. She married Colonel John Dangerfield,

of Essex County. Their children were :

i Henry W. Dangerfield, married Courtney Tucker

Upshaw.
ii Emily Dangerfield.

iii Armistead Dangerfield.

iv William Dangerfield.

V George Dangerfield.

vi Lucy Dangerfield.

vii Anne Dangerfield (see Brock in Richmond Standard,

May 22, 1880
;
Armistead et al, vs. Dangerfield and

wife, Munford's Reports, IV, page 20
;
and Chapman

vs. Munford, Hening and Munford, IV, page 382).
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1 1 P>owLEs" Armistead (WilliaiiT^ Henry*, John^,

William-, Anthony^) was born in 1752. He was a student

at William and Mary College from 1763 to 1766. He in-

herited his father's lands in Culpeper County, and married

Mary Ann, daughter of Peter and Elizabeth (Winston)
Fontaine (see Fontaine Family, Number 34). His will

was proved in Culpeper County, July 21, 1785. His

widow married John Lewis, nephew of General Washing-
ton. She was his fourth wife.

Children :

i William Bowles, died unmarried.

42 ii Peter Fontaine, married Martha Fontaine

Winston.

iii Mary Bowles, born in 1783
; married, first,

Charles Alexander (see Alexander Family, No.

6), and, second, Dr. Wilson Cary Selden (see

Selden Family, No. 42); died March 2, 1846.

iv Eliza, married Ludwell Lee (see Lee Family,
No. 5).

42 Peter Fontaine" Armistead (Bowles", Wil-

liam^, Henry*, John^ William-, Anthony^) married Mar-
tha Fontaine Winston. Their home was in Alabama.

They had twelve children, among whom was
A daughter, who married Lanier, and had a

daughter. Jane Lanier, who married James Washing-
ton, son of Lewis and Serena Barrol Washington, of

Jefferson Co., W. Va.

43 Robert^ Armistead (Henry*, John^ William^,

Anthony^) was Clerk of King George County Court in

1752-57, and married, first about 1750, Mrs. Elizabeth

Ball, widow of Jeduthan Ball (see Ball Family, No. 8),
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and daughter of Charles Burgess, of England, and his

wife, Frances Fox, daughter of Samuel Fox, who was

son of Captain David and Hannah Fox. There is a deed

in King George County, dated 1767, which shows that

Burgess Ball and Burgess Smith were co-heirs of Charles

Burgess, and the King George records, in 1771, name

Charles Burgess as grandfather of Burgess Ball. We
have seen that Charles Burgess had a daughter, Frances,

who married Baldwin Mathews Smith, and Burgess
Smith was his son (see Quarterly, Volume IV, page

185). Robert Armistead married, second, Ann, sister

of Reverend Thomas and Colonel Gregory Smith, and

aunt of John Augustine Smith, President of WiUiam and

Mary College.

Children (by first wife) :

44 i Henry, married Winifred Peachy.
ii Burgess Ball, Colonel in the Revolutionary

Army ;
mentioned in will of his brother, Henry,

(by second wife) :

iii Thomas, mentioned in will of (liis brother,

Henry.
Martha Burwell, married Benjamin Dabney.

Robert, married, and is said to have had six

children (Richmond Standard, Quarterly, IV,

102).

Thomas, married Marchant.

Anne Smith, married Barton.

Catharine, married, first, William Pierce, and,

second, Everard Hall.

44 Henry^ Armistead (Robert^ Henry*, John^,

William-, Anthony^) of Fredericksburg, married Wini-

fred, daughter of Colonel William Peachy. The will of

45
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Henry Armistead was proved in Fredericksburg, in 1787,

and names daughters, Elizabeth Burgess Armistead, and

Ahce Armistead; brother, Burgess Ball (Colonel in the

Revolutionary Army) ;
his wife's father, William Peachy;

his wife, Winifred; brother, Thomas Armistead, and

friends, Lc Roy Peachy, and Benjamin Dabney.

Children :

i Elizabeth Burgess, mentioned in her father's will,

ii Alice, mentioned in her father's will.

45 Martha Burwell^ Armistead (Robert^,

Plenry^, John^, William-, Anthony^) married Benjamin

Dabney, of Gloucester County. They had three daugh-

ters, of whom one was,

Ann, married her cousin, Thomas Smith.

40 Capt. Thomas^ Armistead (Robert-'^, Henry*,

]oh\r, William-, Anthony^) of First Virginia State Regi-

ment from April G, 1778, to January, 1780, in the Revolu-

tionary W^ar. He married ]\Iarchant, of North

Carolina. Their children were:

i Martha Burwell, married Fowler, and

lived in Baltimore.

47 ii Abiah, married A\'illiam Mitchell.

47 Abiah^ Armistead (Thomas''^, Robert^, Henry*,

John", W'illiam-, Anthony^) married W^illiam Mitchell,

and had issue :

i Alfred Mitcliell,of Richmond.

ii Judge William Mitchell, of Texas.

48 Anne Smith'^ Armistead (Robert^, Henry*,

John^ William^, Anthony^) married Barton.

They had issue:
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i Armistead Barton, died in New Orleans.

49 ii A daughter, married Hutching of Wil-

liamsburg, Virginia.

49 "^ Armistead (Anne Smithy Robert^,

Henry*, John^, William-, Anthony^) married Hutch-

ing, of Williamsburg, Virginia. They had issue :

i A daughter, married a West India planter,

ii A daughter, married Moody, of Wil-

liamsburg.

50 Catharine*^ Armistead (Robert^, Henry*,

John^, William-, Anthony^) was born March 25,

1787. She married, first, William Pierce, of James City

County, and, second, Everard Hall, a distinguished lawyer
of Norfolk, Virginia (Richmond Standard, May 23,

1880). She died in Richmond, June 2, 1864.

Children (by first husband) :

i .

51 ii Emily Pierce, married Robinson Arnold.

51 Emily^ Pierce (Catharine^ Armistead, Robert^,

Henry"^, John^, William-, Anthony^) married Robinson

Arnold. Their daughter was :

i Catharine Armistead Arnold.

52 Capt. Anthony^ Armistead (William^, An-

thony^) resided in Elizabeth City County. By a deed

executed in 1095, Captain Anthony Armistead was con-

firmed in the possession of the land in Elizabeth City

County patented by his father, William. He was a

member of Sir William Berkeley's Court Martial, in

1676, which tried the Bacon insurgents, and Justice of

the Peace and Captain of Horse in 1680
;
in 1693, '96, and
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'99, he was Burgess, and, in 1700, one of the Committee

to report on a revision of the laws, which was approved

by the General Assembly in 1705. Captain Armistead

married Hannah, daughter of Doctor Robert Ellyson, of

James City County. She survived him, leaving a will

which was probated in Elizabeth City Court, in 1728.

Robert Ellyson, the father of Hannah, appears in the

Maryland records as early as 1643, as "barber, chirur-

geon," and, after holding the office of Sheriff of St.

Alary's, emigrated to Virginia,, w^here he was High
Sheriff of James City County ; Sergeant-at-Arms of the

House of Burgesses, 1657-8, Burgess, 1656, '59-60, '61

and '63, with the rank of Captain. He married Eliza

. Their son and heir was General Robert Ellyson

(see William and Mary Quarterly, Volume IV, page

127; VI, page 227). Captain Anthony and Hannah

(Ellyson) Armistead had the following children:

53 i William, married, first, Hannah Hinde, second,

Rebecca Moss.

ii Anthony, married, first, Anne , and,

second, Elizabeth Westwood.
73 iii Robert, married, first, Booth, and, sec-

ond, Katherine Xutting.
78 iv Judith, married, first, John West, and, second,

Butts.

V Hannah, married William Sheldon, of York

County; license for their marriage dated De-

cember 10, 1698
;
no issue,

vi Dunn, whose inventory w^as recorded in Eliza-

beth City County, in 1716.

53 Maj. William^ Armistead (Anthony^ Wil-

liam-, Anthony^) was High Sheriff of Elizabeth City
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County, in 1695; Burgess, 1693-1702, and Major in the

Militia. He married, before November 20, 1696, Hannah,

daughter of Thomas and Hannah
( ) Hinde. She

was born July 1, 1673 (New Pocoson Register). Her

mother, Mrs. Thomas Hinde, married, second, John

Powers, and, third, in 1694-5, Pasco Dunn. Anthony
Armistead and Margaret, his wife, of Warwick County,
in 1737, sold lands to Edward Armistead, ''descended to

him as heir to his mother, the daughter of Mr. Thomas

Hine," (York County records). In 1696, Hannah, "Wyff
of William Armistead," gave power of attorney to her

father-in-law, Anthony Armistead. Major William

Armistead married, second, Rebecca, daughter of Ed-

ward Moss of York County, whose will was proved in

that county in 1716. Rebecca (Moss) Armistead mar-

ried, second, John King, 1719-20. Her will is dated

February 13, 1755, and was probated August 1, 1758.

The father of Major Armistead's second wife, Edward

Moss, "boatwright," an early resident of York County,

in 1657, made a gift to his son, Edward, to the record

of which the clerk affixes a drawing appearing to indi-

cate armorial bearings. His wife was Eleanor, who, in

1665, gave a calf to her son, Edward Moss, "sonne to

Edward Moss deceased." This son was a Justice in

1687, and made his will in 1716. The children of Edward

Moss, Senior, were Benjamin, William, John, Elizabeth

Tabb, Ann Philips, and Rebecca, wife of William Armi-

stead. Of these, Benjamin had Benjamin, Francis, John,

and Edward, named in the will of Henry Howard, 1720.

William married Elizabeth Goodwin, and his will, proved

February 16, 1718, names sons, Edward, Charles, and

William. John married Elizabeth, and his will, proved

1716, leaves his son, Edward, his lands in New Kent,
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and, should he die, the said lands to go to his son, Ben-

jamin.

The will of Major William Armistead is dated January

5, 1714-15, and was probated January 15, 1715-16. It

mentions his children:

54 i Anthony, married, first, Jane , and,

second, Margaret Benit.

56 ii William, married Judith Bray Ingles.

57 iii John, married, first, Elizabeth Gill, and, second,

Susanna Meriwether.

iv Hinde, married Hannah, widow of Mathew

Watts; died without issue.

63 V Robert, married Ann Wallace.

vi Moss, died without issue; his will, dated and

proved in 1736, leaves to his brother, Robert,

''the land whereon I now live," legacies to

nephew, William Armistead, son of Robert

Armistead, nephew James Armistead, and niece,

Mary Armistead, daughter of Robert Armi-

stead; also legacies to Mrs. Martha Sweeny,

and to Ann Sweeny, daughter of Mr. Samuel

Sweeny ;
his brother, Robert, is the executor.

vii Edward.

viii "Infant my wife now bears," Hannah, as shown

by other records, married, as his first wife

Miles Gary, of Pear Tree Hall (see Gary Fam-

ily, No. 9).

54 Anthony^ Armistead (William*, Anthony"\

William^, Anthony^) married, first, Jane ,
and.

second, Margaret Benit, who was mentioned in his will.

He resided in Warwick Gounty, and, in 1737, received

a deed from his step-mother, Rebecca King, for one half
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of the plantation and orchard in Elizabeth City County,
"where she now lives, as the same is given him by his

late father. Major William Armistead." His will, dated

December 29, 1737, and proved February 13, 1737-8,

names sons.

Children :

55 i John, married .

ii Anthony,
iii Benit.

iv Another child.

55 JoHN*^ Armistead (Anthony^, William*, An-

thony", William-, Anthony^) married twice. His will,

proved in 1791, mentions three sons.

Children :

i John,
ii Starkey. married Mary Tabb

;
no children

;
died

before 1737-8.

iii Robert,

iv Elizabeth, married Thomas Smith.

56 William^ Armistead (WiUiam^, Anthony^,

William-, Anthony^) married Judith Bray Ingles, grand-

daughter of Reverend Mongo Ingles of Scotland, who
was born in 1657, and died in 1719. Mongo Ingles was

selected by Dr. Blair, when he came with the charter in

1693, as the first Master of the Grammar School. He
served from 1691: to 1705, when, taking sides with Gover-

nor Nicholson, he resigned from the post. In 1716, he

was re-elected Master, and so continued until his death.

He was one of the first feoffees of Williamsburg, and

Justice of James City County. He married, in Virginia,

Anne, daughter of Colonel James Bray, of the Council,
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and Angelica, his wife. She was the widow of Captain

Peter Temple (who died in 1695), son of Reverend Peter

Temple, and, in 1092, she was the widow of Robert

Booth (son of Robert Booth, Clerk of York County),

by whom she had a daughter who married Robert Armi-

stead. The issue of Mongo and Anne (Bray) Ingles

were five children, of whom four were Mary, who died

Alarch 22, 1709-10; Anne, who died November 12, 1710;

David, who died in 1714; and James, who married Anne
Alarot and had a daughter, Judith Bray, who became the

wife of William Armistead, the subject of this sketch.

(Authorities for the above data are York County Records,

Bruton Register, Perry's Historical Collections, Original

^Manuscripts, and the Quarterly, Volume IV, page 117.)

The father of Anne, mother of Judith Bray (Ingles)

Armistead, was Jean Marot, who came to Virginia in

1700. He was the Secretary, in 1704, of William Byrd
of Westover, and was then twenty-seven years of age.

His will was proved in 1717. His daughter, Anne, mar-

ried, first, James Ingles, as above stated, and, sec-

ond, James Shields, son of James Shields of

York County, innkeeper. Their children were James,
born October 27, 1739; Christiana; and Anne, who
married, first, Robert Booth Armistead of York County,

by whom she had a child, IMary Marot, who married

Governor John Tyler. Anne (Shields) Armistead mar-

ried, second, Frederick Bryan, by whom she had a child,

Anne Shields Bryan.

Copied from Hening's Statutes, Volume 6, page 412.

November 1758, 27th year of reign of George 2.

"An act for establishing an agreement between Philip

Johnson, and William Armistead, gentlemen."
Whereas David Bray the elder, late of the parish of
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Wilmington, in the county of James City, gentleman,

deceased, in his life time, & at the time of his death, was

seized in fee simple, of & in four lots of land in the City

of Williamsburg & several tracts or parcels of land, in

the said county of James City, containing, by estimation,

950 acres or thereabouts, & of & in another tract or parcel

lying in the county of Charles City, containing, by estima-

tion, 1850 acres or thereabouts, known by the name of

Francis Peck, & being so seized, by his last will & testa

ment in writing, bearing date October 21, 1717, devised

all of his lands to his son David Bray
^ "^^ '^but if he died

without issue he gave all his lands to his brother James

Bray & his heirs male * * '•'

&, in default of such issue,

declared his will to be, that his lands should be equally di-

vided between the heirs of said brother James Bray & the

lawful heir of his late deceased sister, Ann Ingles, late

wife of Mongo Ingles, as, by the said will, recorded in the

court of said County of James City,
^'' * "^ And after the

death of the said David Bray, the father, the said David

Bray, the son, entered into the said lands, & died seized

thereof without issue * ^ *
;
& the said testator's brother

James Bray in the said will named, died, leaving issue

Thomas Bray his eldest son,*
'=' * who, after the death

of David Bray, the son, entered into the said land &
died seized thereof without heir male * "^ "^

leaving a

daughter named Elizabeth, there & now the wiie of

Philip Johnson, of the county of King & Queen, gentle-

man, having first made his last will & testament in writing-

bearing date May 7, 1751, & thereby devised the remain-

der in fee simple, of one moiety of the said lands to

Benjamin Wuller, & William Prentis, gentlemen, in trust

to "•' '•' "^^ of record, in the court of said county of James

City,
''•' * ''" and where as one Judith Bray Ingles, was
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heir at law of the said Ann Ingles, the sister of the said

David Bray, the father, & named in his will, & is en-

titled to the other moiety of the said lands & hath lately

married one William Armistead, gent., and ''' ''' ''"' which

agreement the said Judith Bray, the wife of the said

William Armistead, & the said Elizabeth the wife of the

said Philip Johnson, are willing to have confirmed '^ * ^'

William Armistead made a will in 1724, probated in

1727, in which he mentions his wife and children :

i Dunn.

ii William,

iii Anne,

iv Frances.

V Simon.

vi Henry, born January 8, 1753; member of Charles

City Committee of Safety in 1774; married, first,

Ann
, and, probably, second, Southall ;

died in Charles City, in 1813, and his estate fell to

Henry Armistead, who removed to Louisiana before

1836 (Charles City County Assessement Book).

57 JoHN^ Armistead (William^ Anthony^ Wil-

liam-, Anthony^) resided in Xew Kent, and was vestry-
man of Blissland Parish in 1722. He married, first,

Elizabeth Gill, an heiress, and, second, Susanna, daugh-
ter of Thomas Meriwether of Essex, wdio made his will

in 1708, when Susanna w^as not yet baptized ( Hening,
A'olume Yl, page 405). The will of Thomas Meri-

wether, dated January 7, 1708, proved February 10,

1708-9, son of Nicholas Meriwether, of Surrey, the

immigrant, names brothers, Francis, of Essex; Nicholas,

of New Kent; sister, Jane Brown, wife of William
Brown of Surrey; wife, Susanna; nephew, William Meri-
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wether, son of brother Nicholas, to have his land in

Surrey; nephews, William, David, and Francis, sons of

brother, Nicholas
; Ralph Shelton

;
land to child unbap-

tized
;

Nicholas and Francis IMeriwether, executors.

Thomas Meriwether was one of the feoffees of Tap-

pahannock. He married twice. The first wife was Eliza-

beth, daughter of Henry Williamson, Gent., (see IVil-

liam and Mary Quarterly, Essex record).

Children :

58 i Gill, married Bettie Allen,

ii John.
61 iii William, married IMrs. Mary Baker.

62 iv A daughter, married William Russell.

58 Col. Gill^ Armistead (John^, William^, An-

thony^, William-, Anthony^) was made Colonel in 1758.

He married, May 23, 1751, Betty Allen of James City who

married, second, John Lewis, of Williamsburg. Colonel

Armistead died in 1762. In the journal of the House of

Burgesses, 1762, is an order for a new member to supply

the place of Mr. iVrmistead, deceased.

Children :

i Elizabeth (Betty), born March 9, 1752; mar-

ried, March 27, 1774, at Mr. John Lewis's, in

Williamsburg, Miles Selden, Junior, of Tree

Hill (see Selden family Bible) ;
died in April,

1833; (see Selden Family, No. 95),

ii Susanna, born 1753
;
married her cousin. Col.

John Cary, son of Miles and Hannah (Armi-

stead) Gary, of Back River, Elizabeth City

County (see Cary Family, No. 15), and had

eleven children
;
died October 10, 1834.

'

iii Mary, married Thacker Burwell (see Burwell

Family, No. 18),
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iv Frances, married Col. John Ambler, of James-
town.

59 V Marllia, married Col Green, of Amelia.

GO vi William, married Elizabeth, daughter of Booth

Armistead.

59 Martha' Armistead (Gill'', John^, William"',

Anthony"^, William"-, Anthony^) married Colonel Green,

of Amelia. They had two children :

i Abraham Green,

ii Elizabeth Green.

(id William' Armistead (GilP, John^, William^,

Anthony^, WiPiam-, Anthony^) ran away at the age of

sixteen and served eight years in the Revolution. He
married EHzabeth, daughter of Booth Armistead, of

Elizabeth City, Maryland. Their children w^ere :

i Booth,

ii Gill.

iii Fanny.
iv Cortolas, named for a French officer in the Revolu-

tionary Army.
V Eliza.

vi Virginia, came of age in 1S20
;
married T. B. Allen,

of Elizabeth City County (see Chancery suit in

Williamsburg, Bartle vs. Allen, 1832, regarding a

mill which her great-grandfather, Robert Armistead

of York County, father of Booth Armistead, built in

1739, four miles from Hampton and one mile from

James River),
vii Catharine.

61 William^ Armistead (John^ William^ Anth-
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ony^, William-, Anthony^) mayor 1772, 1775, and vestry-

man of Blissland Parish, married Mrs. Mary Baker, niece

of James Nicholas. They had one daughter :

Susanna, married, first, William Dandridge, son of

Bartholomew Dandridge, the brother of Mrs. Washing-
ton (see Dandridge family), and, second, about 1805,

David Dorrington.

62 '^ Armistead (John^, William^, Anthony^,

William-, Anthony^) married William Russell. Their

son,

Armistead Russell, married Elvira, born December 27,

1759, daughter of William Clayton of New Kent and

Elvira
,
his wife (see will of William Clayton,

dated June 10, 1797).

63 Robert^ Armistead (William^, Anthony^ Wil-

liam-, Anthony^) married Ann, daughter of Reverend

James Wallace, who came from Erroll, in Perthshire,

Scotland. (See Wallace Family.) In 1737 the trustee

of Eaton's Free School land rented to him a portion of

the land for the natural lives of his sons, Robert, William,

and James, conditioned on his building two tobacco

houses, each thirty feet by twenty, and two dwelling hous-

es, each twenty-six feet by sixteen, to be well framed of

good white oak or poplar, on his planting an orchard of

two hundred winter apple trees and keeping them well

fenced and trimmed, and on his paying to the trustees

the annual rent of six pounds current money. Robert

Armistead was a prominent man in Elizabeth City, being

for many years Church warden of the parish and Colonel

of Militia. His will is dated July 28, 1771, and proved

in Elizabeth City County, November 24, 1774. It names

the following children :
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G4 i William, married, as his second wife, Mary
Latham Cnrle.

ii James, received his father's interest in the Free

School lands.

Robert, married Margaret .

Thomas, married Mar2:aret .

70
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Children :

i Anthony Moss,

ii Polly Moss,

iii Fanny Moss,

iv Ella Moss.

V Robert Moss.

66 William^ Armistead (William^ Robert^ Wil-

liam*, Anthony", William", Anthony^) married, first,

Martha Booker, and, second, Elizabeth Armistead, of

North Carolina.

Child (by first wife) :

i Mary Booker.

Children (by second wife) :

67 ii William Moss, married Rebecca Philips,

iii Catharine, married Walker Watts.

iv Robert, married
,
in New Orleans.

67 William^ Armistead (Wllliam^ William^

Robert^ William*, Anthony', William", Anthony^) mar-

ried Rebecca Philips. They had thirteen children, of

whom the following had issue :

i Elizabeth, married Frank Robert Benson,

ii Robert Jefferson, married Mary Hodges,
iii Moss William, married Ann Kirn.

68 iv Samuel Wilson, married Janie Lindsay.

68 Samuel Wilson^ Armistead (William^, Wil-

liam^ William^ Robert^, William*, Anthonys William-,

Anthony^) married Janie Lindsay, daughter of Ambrose

H. Lindsay, who died in Norfolk, January 39, 1906. The

newspaper of the following day published an account of

him:



212 Seldens of Virginia

Mr. Ambrose H. Lindsay, of this city, is dead at the

ripe age of 74 years. The end came last night at 9

o'clock at St. Christopher's Hospital, Norfolk, where he

had recently undergone a surgical operation. His de-

mise was a great shock, as he had apparently rallied

from the operation and his condition was encouraging,

yesterday.

His was a long and active life, and his career was,

withal, one of the most successful in this section in the

past half-century. He was an indefatigable worker, con-

servative, but unerring judgment in business affairs. Not

only was he a good merchant, but he was a progressive

and successful farmer.

Most of his life has been devoted to his private affairs,

but he has always found time to bestow upon the business

of the community when his judgment and knowledge
of the local conditions could be turned to the public good.

In this capacity he was a member of important boards

of condemnation and held other positions of similar im-

portance at the sacrifice of his personal interests. He
was formerly a member of the State Board of Agricul-

ture and he was postmaster of Portsmouth for two terms,

during the eighties, and as such built up the office and

the postal service here.

He was a native of North Carolina, having been born

in Currituck county, that State, in 1831. He was engaged
in farming there for some time, when he removed to

this section in 1858. He resided in the county until 1870,

when he removed to the city, making this his home for

the remainder of his life.

At the outbreak of the war he entered the Confederate

service. He served with Captain Hopkins' command,

afterward designated as Company B, Sixty-first regiment

of Virginia infantry.
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At the end of the war he acquired farming lands and

swamp tracts near this city and created a gigantic agri-

cultural industry, which is today one of the most remark-

able farms in the country. This was accomplished in the

face of almost insurmountable difficulties, the war having
left him greatly embarrassed.

Besides his large landed holdings, the value of which

is estimated at several hundred thousand dollars, Mr.

Lindsay was long engaged in the hay, grain and feed

business here and he had other mercantile interests in

Portsmouth and other parts of Norfolk county.

He was pleasant and kindly in his social relations, as

he was successful and well-balanced in his business affairs.

His death marks the passing of a landmark.

Mr. Lindsay is survived by two daughters an(;l five

sons. These are Mrs. Armistead, Mrs. Ainsworth, Wil-

liam C, John B., Ambrose H., Jr., Frank and E. Parks.

The funeral will take place Thursday morning at 11

o'clock from the Lindsay residence, No. 306 Crawford

street.

"The Washington Post, Feb. 3, 1895, gives the follow-

ing 'Reminiscences of the late Naval Constructor Samuel

Wilson Armistead.'

"The tragic death several days ago of that accomplished

young officer, Samuel Wilson Armistead, Naval Con-

structor U. S. N. while on duty at San Francisco, has cast

a gloom over the younger men of the service, as well as

the older ones, who recognized in him one of the most

accomplished officers in the service. He entered the

Naval Academy from Virginia in October 1879, and

graduated in 1883, second in his class. After a two years'

cruise on the United States steamer Trenton, of the

Asiatic Station, he returned to the United States, and,
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after his exainination, was promoted to the grade of

ensign.

"In September 1885, Ensign Armistead was selected by
the Navy Department for a special course of study

abroad, and was ordered to the Royal Naval College at

Greenwich, England, whence he graduated with honor in

1S88, having been previously appointed an assistant

naval constructor and transferred to the Naval construc-

tion corps of the Navy in July, 1887.

"After his return to the United States, Naval Construc-

tor Armistead w^as engaged in important work at the

New York and Norfolk navy yard, and was transferred

to the Mare Island yard in May 1894, where he was on

duty in charge of the department of Construction and

Repair at the time of his tragic death.

"Before his assignment to duty at the Norfolk navy

yard, Naval Constructor Armistead had been doing some

very important w^ork in superintending the completion of

the cruiser Marblehead, on behalf of the assignees of

the contractors, having been granted a year's leave of

absence for that purpose. In all his personal and ofificial

relations. Mr. Armistead w^as distinguished by strength,

purity and dignity of character, an extreme consideration

for the interests of others. During his sixteen years'
unblemished service and record, he was considered one of

the ablest men of his profession and was admired and
loved by those fortunate to be brought into official or

personal relations with him. He was born in Portsmouth,

Virginia, in 1861, and came of a fine old fighting Vir-

ginia family, whose history is a part of the history of

the country. He married in 1885 a daughter of Ambrose

Lindsay, Esq., in Portsmouth, Virginia.

"Mr. Armistead was probably the first of his name who
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had served in the Navy, but in the army hst, from the

colonial period down to the civil war, there appears a

long and honorable list of names. Among them, Col.

John Armistead, who was prominent just after the Revo-

lution, followed by his three sons, Gen. Walker Keith

Armistead, the first graduate of West Point, a distin-

guished engineer officer
;

Lieut. Col. George Armistead,

who defended Fort McHenry ;
Louis Armistead who was

killed at the battle of the River Basin in the war of 1812
;

and later on by his grandson. Gen. Louis A. Armistead,

who had previously distinguished himself in the Mexican

War, and was killed in the famous charge of Pickett's

division of the Confederate Army at the battle of Gettys-

burg during the civil war."

Children :

i Samuel W.
ii Lindsay,

iii Moss WilHam.

69 Moss^ Armistead (William^ Robert^ Wil-

liam*, Anthony^, William-, Anthony^) married Mildred
—

. He died in 1813, leaving widow and a daughter,
Martha.

70 Robert® Armistead (Robert^ William^ Anth-

ony^, William^, Anthony^) was clerk of Blandford

Church, 1771-87. He died in Petersburg, where he made
his will, proved in 1802, and which names wife, Margaret,
and sons, Harry and Patrick, and daughters, Euphan and

Polly (Quarterly, Volume VII, 183).
Children (named in father's will) :

i Harry,
ii Patrick.
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iii Euplian. ^

iv rullv.

71 Thomas^' Armistead (Robert^, WilliamS Anth-

ony^, William-, Anthony^) removed to Blandford. His

wife, Margaret, who was a widow Fawn, and had a son,

John Fawn, made a will in 1777, proved 1792, in which

she mentions daughter, Anna, Carrie Armistead, and

other children as I may have by my present husband,

"Thomas Armistead." Witness, John Thweatt. Theo-

doric Armistead of Norfolk was probably a son born later

(Quarterly, Volume VII, 183). Thomas Armistead

died in Petersburg in 1791.

Children :

i Anna.

ii Carrie,

iii Theodoric.

72 Moss Wallace^ Armistead (Robert^ William*,

Anthony^, William-, Anthony^) married Catharine .

His will, proved in Elizabeth City County, in 1786, named

this wife, son. Moss, and daughters Ann, Mary, and

Priscilla (Quarterly VII, 182).

Children :

i Moss.

ii Ann.

iii Mary,
iv Priscilla.

73 Robert* Armistead (Anthony^ William-, Anth-

ony^) was named in the wills of his brother, Anthony,
and of his mother, Hannah (Ellyson) Armistead. On

February 20, 1715, he was commissioned by the Gover-



Armistead Family 217

nor to succeed his brother, WilHam, deceased, as agent
for the Rows storehouses on Pocosin River, York Coun-

ty. Thomas Booth and Samuel Ponds were his securi-

ties. He was Justice and Sheriff of York County. He
married, first, Mary Booth, daughter of Robert Booth

and Anne Bray (daughter of James Bray, Councillor,

and Angelica, his wife). He married, second, Katherine,

daughter of Captain Thomas Nutting, Justice of the

Peace, and Elizabeth Booth, daughter of William Booth

(perhaps brother of Robert Booth, first named). Kather-

ine (Nutting) iVrmistead's will was proved in Elizabeth

City County, May 3, 1748. Robert Armistead died in

1742.

Children (by first wife) :

74 i Ellyson, married, in 1740, Jane, daughter of

Rev. Charles and Frances ( ) Anderson

of Westover Parish
;
Rev. Charles Anderson

was Rector from 1694-1718; his tombstone is

still standing at Westover; he had four daugh-

ters, who married Stith, Taylor, Ellyson, and

Armistead,

ii Booth, died in 1727
;
married Mary, sister of

Stephens Thompson, Attorney-General of Vir-

ginia; she married, second. Graves Packe, Jus-

tice of the Peace, York County,

(by second wife) :

iii Robert,

iv Booth.

V Angelica.

74 Capt. Ellyson^ Armistead (Robert*, Anthony^,

William-, Anthony^) was Captain, Justice, and Pligh

Sheriff of York County. He married at least twice. His
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second wife was Jane Anderson, daughter of Reverend

Charles and Frances ( ) Anderson, of Westover.

He married her in 1740. His will was proved December

19, 1757.

Children (by first wife) :

75 i Robert Booth, married Ann Shields.

ii James Bray, died in 1790; left property to

Diana Wallace Bailey,

(by second wife) :

iii Ellyson.

iv Charles.

77 v Frances Anderson, married Nelson.

vi Jane.

vii Elizabeth.

75 Robert Booth*^ Armistead (Ellyson^, Robert*,

Anthony^ William-, Anthony^) was, at least, twenty-one

years of age in 1758, when he became guardian of the

Moss children. He was a student at WilHam and Mary

College in 1753. He married Ann Shields, born July 31,

1742, daughter of James Shields, and Ann Marot, who

was daughter of Jean ]^Iarot, a French Huguenot, and

widow of James Ingles (son of Mongo Ingles, the first

Master of the Grammar School of William and Mary

College), and also the widow of James Shields (see Num-
ber 56 of this genealogy). The children of Robert Booth

and Ann (Shields) Armistead were.

76 i Mary Marot, married John Tyler.

76 Mary Marot^ Armistead (Robert Booth^, Elly-

son^ Robert*, Anthony^ William", Anthony^) was born in

1761. She married John Tyler, Governor of Virginia,

1808-1811, and died in 1797. She was the mother of

John Tyler, President of the United States, 1841-45.
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77 Frances Anderson^ Armistead (EUyson^,

Robert*, Anthony^ William^ Anthony^) married

Nelson. They had an only child.

Frances Anderson Nelson.

78 Judith* Armistead (Anthony^, William", An-

thony^) married, first, John West, of West Point, son of

Major John West, who was son of Captain John West,
brother of Lord Delaware (see West Family). The
license for their marriage was obtained in Elizabeth City

County, October 15, 1698, and there is a deed, dated July

18, 1698, of Captain Anthony Armistead and Hannah,
his wife, to their '*son-in-law, John West" for 200 acres

in New Kent (King William), "given to said Hannah,

by her father, Mr. Robert Ellyson, of James City County,
deceased." She had a son by this marriage. Her second

husband was Butts (Hening's Statutes, Volume

V).
Son (by first husband) :

Charles West, who inherited four thousand acres on

Panumkey Neck, adjoining Delaware, commonly called

West Point.

79 Frances^ Armistead (William-, Anthony^)

daughter of William, the emigrant, married, first, Rev-

erend Justinian Aylmer, of Jamestown, and, second,

Colonel Anthony Elliott, of Elizabeth City County and

Middlesex County. Her third husband was Colonel

Christopher Wormeley. In January, 1666, the will of

Colonel Elliott was admitted to record in Middlesex

County. He names sons, William, Thomas, and Robert,

and makes his son, William, and brother, John Armi-

stead, executors. In November 1666, probate was



220 Seldens of Virginia

granted Mr. Christopher Wormeley, in place of William

Elliott, and John Armistead, as having married the relict.

In 1(171 Captain Wormeley sued as having married the

re'ict of Reverend Justinian Aylnier of Jamestown (see

General Court records). Aylmer, by his deposition made
in York County, was twenty-six in infil (see Hayden's

Mrginia Genealogies, Wormeley family). Frances

(Armistead) Wormeley died May 25, 1885 (Aliddlessex

Parish Register).

Children (by second husband) :

i William Elliott,

ii Thomas Elliott,

iii Robert Elliott.
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Rev. James^ Wallace fled from Scotland in the

rebellion of 1745. He was born in Erroll, Scotland, and

his birth was attested by three lairds. He emigrated to

Virginia and settled on Back River, Elizabeth City

County. He brought with him an immense table service

of plate, on which was engraved the Wallace Coat of

Arms, he being a collateral descendant of Sir James Wal-

lace. Reverend James Wallace married, in 1695, Ann,

daughter of John Shepard and widow of Thomas Wythe.
She was a widow for the second time, having married

first Quintillian Gutherick, Justice of Elizabeth City

County. Her will was probated in 1740, and names

grandchildren, Mary, James Westwood, Matthew Bal-

lard, and George Wythe. Reverend James Wallace died

November 3, 1712. His tomb is at Erroll, his home in

Elizabeth City County, and bears his arms : Gules a lion

rampant argent within a bordure company of the second

and azure; crest, out of a ducal coronet or an ostriche's

head and neck proper holding a horseshoe in the beak.

His epitaph states that he was from Erroll, in Perthshire,

Scotland, and was minister in Elizabeth City for twenty-
one years, and died November 3, 1712, forty-five years
of age (see Dandridge Family).

Children (see Hayden; Va. Historical Magazine, viii,

63
;
and William and Mary College Quarterly) :

i Euphan, born in 1695
; married, first, William

Roscow, second, Col. William Dandridge, as

his first wife (see Dandridge Family) ;
died

April 22, 1717.

ii Ann, married Robert Armistead, son of Wil-

225
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Ham and Hannah (Hind) Armistead, (see

Armistead Family, No. 63).

iii ,
married Ballard.

iv Mary, married William Westwood.

V John, died about 1724.

1 vi James, married Martha .

1 James- Wallace (James^) married Martha

-, wliose will, proved in 1768, names their children.

Children (mentioned in will of their mother)

2 i Robert, married .

ii Martha, married Thomas Tabb.

iii Elizabeth, married John Selden of Buckroe

(see Selden Family, No. 8.)

iv Mary, married, in 1752, Richard Ball of Lan-

caster County (see Hayden, 84).

V Euphan, married William Roscoe Wilson Curie

(see Dandridge Family and Cary Family, No.

35).

vi Ann, married George Wray.
3 vii James, married Elizabeth Westwood.

2 Robert^ Wallace (James-, James^) was a stu-

dent at William and Mary College, in 1753-4. He mar-

ried, but the name of his wife is not known.

Children :

i James,
ii Wilson.

3 James^ Wallace (James-, James^) married

Elizabeth Westwood of Hampton and had eleven chil-

dren, six of whom attained majority. Elizabeth West-

wood had two brothers, Worlick and William. The lat-
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ter married Stith (see William and Mary Quar-

terly, xiii). Elizabeth Westwood's mother or grand-
mother was a Miss Howard, of the house of Norfolk,
and was a first cousin of Anne Bolyn (see Quarterly, II,

167-8). One of Elizabeth Westwood's sisters married

Colonel Robert Armistead of Louisa County, Virginia.

Their daughter, Polly Armistead, was a celebrated beauty
and belle. She married, as a second husband, Stephen
Thomson Mason of Raspberry Plains, Loudoun County,

Virginia, a brother of George Mason of Gunston. Her
eldest son, Armistead Mason, was killed in a duel by

John McCarthy. Her son. Jack Mason, went to Mich-

igan, where he was several times elected Governor of

that State. The eldest daughter, Katherine Mason, mar-

ried William Taylor Barry, Postmaster General under

President Jackson (see further William and Mary Quar-

terly, xiii). Another of Elizabeth Westwood's sisters

married King of Norfolk. After his death she

married Doctor McClurg of Hampton. Doctor Mc-

Clurg's son married Elizabeth, daughter of Gary Selden,

of Buckroe, near Hampton (see Selden Family, Number

41), and their only daughter married John Wickham, a

distinguished lawyer of Richmond.

The following account of Elizabeth Westwood is

quoted from the William and Mary College Quarterly.
"When Elizabeth Westwood was about sixteen years

of age she made a visit to her cousins, the daughters of

Governor Digges, one of the Colonial Governors, who was

living at Denby, near Williamsburg, Va. Whilst there,

there was a great deal of talk of an assembly ball which

was to come off at Williamsburg, and as Elizabeth West-

wood did not leave home with the expectation of attend-

ing the Assembly, she was not prepared, having left her
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party costume in Hampton, where she Hved. Her cou-

sins, the Digges family, insisted on her remaining to at-

tend the Assembly, saying they would lend her a dress.

Yielding to their importunities, she decided to remain

and wear her own simple white dress. Soon after the

guests assembled at the ball, Mr. Thomson Mason was

introduced. He had just returned from England, where

he had completed his education. The managers carried

him around, offering to introduce him. His eyes rested

on the beautiful Elizabeth Westwood, and he had neither

eyes nor ears for any other being in the room. She was

equally pleased with him. Miss Digges was a cousin of

Mr. Mason, and it appears that she was bent on captivat-

ing him herself. Consequently she told Mr. Mason that

Elizabeth Westwood was engaged to be married, and she

told the latter that he was trifling with her
; and, con-

sequently, when he called to see her the day after the

ball, she declined making her appearance. Thus were

two young beings separated, to meet in maturer years.

''In about six months after this date Elizabeth West-

wood married James Wallace, of 'Erroll,' situated on

Back river, and several years afterward Thomson Mason
married. He lived at Chappawamsic, near Dumfries.

He frequently attended court in Williamsburg, and was

often asked by James Wallace to visit him, which he as

often promised to do. On one occasion Mr. Wallace

said to Mr. Mason, 'My oft-repeated invitations have

been so frequently slighted, with a promise of fulfillment

that I will not extend them again.' Mr. Mason then told

Mr. Wallace that as he had entertained peculiar senti-

ments of regard to his wife when she was young, he

would prefer not seeing her again.

"Years swept on, when Airs. Wallace became a widow
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and ^Ir. Mason a widower. IMrs. Wallace was remark-

able for her benevolence. Two Revolutionary soldiers

from Stafford county who were wounded were attended

to by Mrs. Wallace, she dressing their wounds. When

they recovered sufficiently to leave Hampton and return

to their native home, which was near Mr. Mason, they

mentioned the circumstance to him, and remarked that

he had better make the acquaintance of the beautiful

young widow who had befriended them, and induce her

to accept his hand in marriage. Mrs. Wallace had been

a widow for several years, but there was, at that period,

very little communication between the upper and lower

counties of the State, and that was the first intimation

Mr. Mason had of Mrs. Wallace's being a widow. The

next day he ordered his coach and four horses, and went

from Chappawansic to Erroll, a distance of several

hundred miles. He was received graciously by the

beautiful widow, but had to make several visits before she

would consent to being betrothed. It was the second

marriage of Elizabeth Westwood to Mr. Thomson Mason

which caused her to remove from Hampton to Prince

William county, Va.

"Mr. Mason had one daughter and nine sons, and after

his marriage with Elizabeth Westwood he had several

sons, two of whom attained the age of maturity
—West-

wood and William Temple. The former married Miss

Noland and died childless. The latter married Miss Anne

Carroll, of Baltimore, an heiress. They had sixteen

children. They lived at Temple Hall, near Leesburg.

Their oldest daughter married Dr. McGill, of Winchester.

When Mr. Thomson Mason was in England he sojourned

with Sir William Temple, who was his first cousin. He
called his son after him. Dean Swift was a great deal
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in Sir William Temple's family at the time Mr. Mason
was there, and he had many humorous anecdotes and

incidents to narrate in connection with the Dean. Miss

Digges on her death-bed sent to her cousins, Thomson

Mason and Elizabeth Westwood, to beg forgiveness for

the false, though unsuccessful, part she had acted.

"The first James Wallace's daughter, who had married

'Mv. Selden, of Buck Roe, fell heir to most of his ele-

gant plate. Mrs. Selden had three daughters and one

son. One daughter married Mr. Douglas, of Scotland,

and after his death she married Colonel Jones, of Chat-

ham, near Fredericksburg. Mr. Douglas left her a weal-

thy widow. One daughter married Mr. Fitzgerald, who
left an only son, who married Miss Thornton, of Fall

Hill, near Fredericksburg."

James Wallace was at William and Mary College in

1753. His will, a copy of which is among the Dowman

papers, gives land and slaves in Elizabeth City County
to minor sons, Robert, James, and Westwood W^allace;

slaves to his sister, Ann W^ray ; nephews James and Wil-

son Wallace, sons of his brother Robert
;
his sister, Mary

Ball, nephew James ;
his daughters, Mary, Martha, Eu-

phan, Elizabeth, and a younger child, unnamed. It names

wife, Elizabeth, and mother, ]^Iartha Wallace. Captain

Henry King and John Tabb, executors.

Children :

i Robert.

ii James, a physician,

iii Westwood.

iv Mary, of Dumfries
;
died in 1809

;
w'ill dated April

2, 1809, probated in Prince William Co., August 7,

1809 (1, 443), names sister, Mrs. Euphan Wash-

ington ;
Mrs. Elizabeth McCrea of Prince William

;
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niece, Mary Wallace McCrea; Executor, John Mc-
Crea.

V Martha, married James.
vi Euphan, married, first, Bailey Washington, of Staf-

ford, brother of Col. William Washington, and,

second, Daniel Carroll Brent, of Richmond, Va.

vii Elizabeth, married John McCrea.
viii A child.
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The Seidell family of V^irginia, descends, in one of its

branches, from the Colgate family of New York, Doctor

William Boswell Selden, of Norfolk, Virginia, having
married Charlotte^ Colgate (Robert^ John^, Stephen^),
in 1802.

Rev. Stephen^ Colgate was born about 1700. He
was a Baptist minister. He resided at Horsham, Sussex,

England, about thirty-four miles southwest of London.

His death occurred January 31, 1768, at the home of his

son, John Colgate. He was buried in Bessels Green

churchyard.

Children:

Stephen.

John.

Daniel, born in 1732.

Mary.
Ellen, married Benjamin Hosmer.

1 JoHX^ Colgate (Stephen^) was born in 1727.

He resided near Cheapstead, Kent, England, where he

died in 1801. He was buried at Bessels Green church-

yard.

Children :

Robert, married Sarah Bowles.

Mary, married John Boorman.

Elizabeth, married, first, John Austen, second,

also a John Austen, probably related to her

first husband.

235
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7 iv Charlotte, married James Pine.

8 V jMartha, married John Austen (relationship to

above members of that family not known).
10 vi David, married, first, Mary Agate, second,

Maria Vernon,

vii John, died young.

2 Robert^ Colgate (John-, Stephen^) was born

September 16, 1753, probably at Cheapstead,, Kent, Eng-
land. He is said to have been a yeoman farmer, a Uni-

versity graduate, and a friend of William Pitt. He mar-

ried, March 26, 1780, Sarah Bowles. They were mar-

ried at Staplehurst, Kent, by the Reverend Doctor Tay-
lor. Robert Colgate resided at Hollingbourne, Kent,

1780-88; at Shoreham Mills, Kent, 1788-90; and at Fil-

ston Farm, between Maidstone and Seven Oaks, Kent,

1790-95. He is said to have become involved in some

political difficulty, probably concerning the Lord George

Gordon riots. Early one morning a mounted messenger

arrived from London, bringing a message from Mr. Pitt,

informing Mr. Colgate of his impeachment by Parlia-

ment, and that a writ had been issued against him. He
realized as much as possible on his property, and on

March 10, 1795, left Filston Farm, sailing from London

for America, on March 16th of that year. He reached

Baltimore May 28, 1795, and settled at Westwood, Deer

Creek, Harford County, Maryland, where he purchased

a plantation. He lost this property because of a defective

title, and removed, in 1800, to Sing Sing, New York,

where his relatives, the Boormans, of Kent, England,

were. Soon afterward he removed to a farm at Andes,

near Delhi, Delaware County, New York, where he was

one of the pioneer settlers. Here he died, July 26, 1826.
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His widow, Sarah (Bowles) Colgate, long survived him,

dying, in 1845, among her children and grandchildren,

in the new family homestead, in Dutch Street, New York

City.

Children :

i Charlotte, married William Boswell Selden

(see Selden Family, No. 13).

3 ii William, married Mary Gilbert.

iii Maria, born December 28, 1784, at Holiing-

bourne, Kent, England ;
unmarried

;
died in Am-

erica, at number 46 East Nineteenth Street,

New York City, February 9, 1866.

iv Hannah, born in February, 1787, at Holling-

bourne, Kent, England.
4 V Bowles, married Lourina Townsend.

vi Esther, born January 6, 1791, at Shoreham

Mills, Kent, England; married Klein, of

Baltimore, Maryland,
vii Lydia, born March 10, 1793, at Filston Farm,

Maidstone, Kent, England; unmarried; died in

America, at number 46 East Nineteenth Street,

New York City, May 12, 1862.

viii John, born August 23, 1795, at Westwood, Deer

Creek, Harford County, JMaryland.

ix George, November 2, 1797, at Westwood, Har-

ford County, Maryland.
X Harriet, born July 23, 1800, at Hamstead Hill,

Baltimore, Maryland; died young.
xi Charles, born February 6, 1805, on the Col-

gate farm, at Andes, near Delhi, N. Y.

3 William* Colgate (Robert^, John-, Stephen^)

was born January 25, 1783, at Hollingbourne, Kent, Eng-
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land. He settled in New York City, where he was a

prominent Baptist deacon, and the founder of the manu-

facturing firm of Colgate and Company, which is still in

existence. He married April 23, 1810, in New York

City, ]\Iary, daughter of Edward Gilbert. She was born in

London, England, December 25, 1788. After the year

1796 she was living with her father on a farm in Dela-

ware County, New York, which adjoined that owned by

Robert Colgate, the father of William Colgate. William

Colgate died at number 22 East Twenty-third Street. New
York City, ^larch 25, 1857.

Children :

i Robert.

ii Gilbert.

iii Sarah.

iv James Doorman.

V William.

vi Samuel.

vii Mary.
viii Joseph.

ix Martha.

X A child, \N'ho died young.

xi A child, who died young.

4 Bowles* Colgate (
Robert ^, John-, Stephen-)

was born January 14, 1789, at Shoreham Mills, Kent, Eng-

land. He came with his father to America. He married

Lourina Townsend, at Lodi. New York, October 8, 1812.

She was born December 29, 1791. They resided in New

York City, at number 59 East Sixteenth Street, where he

died, probably in July, 1845. His widow also died there

August 15, 1868.
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Children :
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iii Samuel Austen,

iv Charlotte Austen.

V William Austen,

vi Edward Austen.

vii Martha Austen,

viii John Austen,

ix Caroline Austen.

7 Charlotte-^ Colgate (John-, Stephen^) was

born April 3, 1764., probably at Cheapstead, Kent, Eng-
land. She married March 2G, 1792, James Pine. They
went to America about 1800. She survived her husband

for many years, dying, in 1833, in Baltimore, probably.

Children :

i Charlotte Pine, born June 22, 1797; died in New
York City in 1850 or '51,

ii Elizabeth Pine, born July 17, 1799,

iii James Pine, born January 21, 1801,

iv Harriet Pine, born November 17, 1804,

V Robert Pine, born November 13, 1807.

8 Martha^ Colgate (John-, Stephen^) was born

March 28, 1766, near Maidstone, Kent, England. She

married August 20, 1792, at Christ Church, Rlackfriars,

London, John Austen. His relationship to the husbands

of her sister, Elizabeth, is not known. Martha (Colgate)

Austen and her husband embarked with her brother,

Robert Colgate, for America from Gravesend, London,

March 16, 1795, and settled near him at Westwood

Farms, Deer Creek, Harford County, Maryland. Sub-

sequently, after living at Baltimore, Maryland, for some

time, he purchased an estate, Tilston Farm, at Glencoe,

Maryland, which was developed by his grandson, Ed-
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ward Austen, son of George Austen, into a famous

dairy farm.

Children :

i John Austen, born August 12, 1796, at West-

wood.

9 ii George Austen, born May 22, 1798, at West-

wood; married CaroHne Milliman.

iii Edward Austen, born February 2, 1800.

iv Colgate Austen, born March 23, 1802.

V Esther Catherine Austen, born January 17,

1807
;
married George M. Morling of Baltimore.

9 George^ Austen (Martha^ Colgate, John-,

Stephen^) was born May 22, 1798, at Westwood, Har-

ford County, Maryland. He married Caroline Milli-

man, of Baltimore. His death occurred at Tilston Farm,

Glencoe, Maryland, the estate his father had owned. He
had a son,

Edward, who inherited Tilston Farm, which became

famous as a dairy.

10 David^ Colgate (John-, Stephen^) was born

April 3, 1768, in Kent, England. He married, first,

Mary Agate, and, second, Maria Vernon. He died Febru-

ary 6, 1837. He and his family are buried in Bessels

Green churchyard.

Children :

i Harriet.

ii George,
iii William,

iv Henry.
V Charles.
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11 Daniel- Colgate (Stephen^) was born in 1732.

He lived and died near Cheapstead, Kent, England, and

was buried in Bessels Green churchyard.

Children :

i John.
ii Margaret.

12 Ellen- Colgate (Stephen^) married Benja-
min Hosmer.

Children :

i David.

ii Ellen.

iii Joseph,

iv Elizabeth.

V Mary, married Edward Austen of Kent, England.
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GARY FAMILY

The following data from Richmond Critic and William

and Mary Quarterly.

''Arms—Argent, on a bend sable, three roses of the

field.

''Crest—A swan proper.

"]\Iotto—Virttite excerptae.

"Seat—Torre Abbey, Torquay.
"The ancient and knightly family of Cary derives its

surname from the manor of Cary, or Kari,as it is called

in Domesday Book, in the parish of St. Giles, on the

heath, near Launceston.

"It is recorded of Sir Robert Cary, as a proof of his

great prowess in arms, that in the beginning of the reign
of Henry V a certain knight errant of Arragon, having

passed through divers countries and performed many
feats of arms, to his high commendation, arrived in

England, where he challenged any man of his rank and

quality to 'make tryal of his valor and skill in arms.'

This challenge Sir Robert Gary accepted. Between them

a cruel encounter and a long and doubtful combat was

waged in Smithfield. London. 'But at length this noble

champion vanquished the presumptuous Arragonois, for

which King Henry V restored unto him a good part of

his father's lands, of which for loyalty to King Richard

II he had been deprived by King Henry IV, and author-

ized him to bear the arms of the Knight of Arragon,
which the noble posterity of the valorous knight con-

tinue to wear unto this day.'

247



248 Seldens of Virginia

"At Torre Abbey is preserved the valuable pedigree,

drawn up by the Heralds' College at the express order

of Queen Anne Boleyn.

'Thus the three lovely roses of France, which had

their birth in Arragon, and were carried to England by
the Knight of Arragon, have for the last 300 years

lent their bloom and sweetness to old Virginia."

William^ Cary, Sheriff and Mayor of Bristol, Eng-

land, b. 1546; d. 1572, leaving a son,

Richard- Gary (William^), b. 1525f d. 1570; mer-

chant of Bristol, England, in 1546. His son was

William^ Gary (Richard-, William^), Sheriff and

Mayor of Bristol, England, born October, 1550. He mar-

ried AHce Goodall, January 14, 1572
;
d. 1632. Their son,

John* Gary (William^, Richard-, William^), was

baptized in 1583. He married Alice, daughter of Henry
Hobson and his wife, Alice, the daughter of William

Dans. John Gary was living in 1636. His son was

GoL. MiLES^ Gary (John*, William^ Richard-, Wil-

liam^) was born in Bristol, England, in 1620. He emi-

grated to Virginia about 1645. He was Collector of

Customs on the James River
; Royal Naval Officer, hav-

ing the superintendence of the building of Fort Monroe ;

Member of the Council (in 1665) ;
and Exchequer Gen-

eral of Virginia.

"Col. Miles Cary, the immigrant, and founder of the

Cary family in Virginia, has on his tombstone an in-

scription which gives the name of his father, mother, and

maternal grandfather. The ancestry of this branch of

the ancient family of Cary has been derived from a

pedigree registered in 1699 in the Heralds' College, Lon-

don, by John Gary, of Bristol, England, gentleman, and

his brother, Richard Gary, Alderman of London, John and
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Richard Gary were grandsons of an elder brother of

John Gary, father of Miles Gary.
**With the pedigree are filed copies of wills, etc.,

proving it. A confirmation of arms was duly granted
in 1699, setting forth that the branch of the family
seated at Bristol had, 'time out of mind,' borne the

arms of the Gary family of Devonshire, viz., argent, on

a bend, sable; three roses argent, with a silver swan for

their crest. This coat of arms is carved on the tomb-

stone of Gol. Miles Gary, the immigrant.
"Gol. Miles Gary, born 1620, son of John Gary and

his wife, Alice, daughter of Henry Hobson, Alderman
of Bristol, came to Virginia in 1640 and settled at Mag-
pie Swamp, Warwick county. He was justice of War-
wick in 1652, member of the House of Burgesses in

1659, Escheator-General of Virginia in 1665, Gollector

of Lower James River, and member of the Gouncil.

*'Gol. Miles Gary married Anne, daughter of Thomas

Taylor, of Bristol, England. Gol. Miles Gary died June

10, 1667, from wounds received in the attack upon
the Dutch fleet upon Old Point Gomfort, where he had

been ordered to build a fort in 1665. His tombstone is

at Gary's Quarter, at the intersection of the James and

Warwick rivers. Gol. Miles Gary left a will, in which

he directs two houses in Baldwin and St. Nicholas

streets, in Bristol, England, to be sold for the benefit of

three daughters
—Anne, Bridgett and Elizabeth, when

married."

The arms engraved on the tombstone over the grave
of the first Miles Gary, at Gary's Quarters, are the same

as those claimed by the family since the days of Sir

Robert Gary. They have in addition a Baron's helmet

surmounted by a swan. Motto : Cari Deo Nihil Carema.

The inscription is as follows :
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"Here lyeth ye body of Miles Gary Esqr., only son

of John Gary and Alice, his wife, daughter of Henry
Hobson of ye City of Bristol, Alderman, He was born

in ye Gity & departed this life ye 10th day of June
1667 about the forty seventh year of his age, leaving

four sons and three daughters, namely, Thomas, Ann,

Henry, Bridgett, Elizabeth, Miles, & William."

Ghildren :

1 i Thomas, married Ann ^^lilner.

ii Ann.

5 iii Henry, married .

iv Bridgett, married, in IGIO, Gapt. William Bas-

sett, the immigrant,
v Elizabeth, married Emanuel Wills.

35 vi Miles, married, first. INIary Milner, second

Mary (Wilson) Roscoe.

50 vii William, married Alartha Scarsbrook.

1 Major Thomas^ Gary (Miles% John*, William^,

Richard", William^) of Alagpie Swamp, married Ann,
dau. of Francis Milner. He died in 1708. Flis son.

2 Thomas, married .

2 Thomas^ Gary (Thomas^, Miles% John^ Wil-

liam', Richard-, William^) of Warwick Gounty, was born

in 1678. He was sheriff of Warwick Gounty from 1712

to 1713. The name of his wife is unknown. He died in

1764. His son.

3 Thomas, married .

3 Thomas^ Gary (Thomas^ Thomas^, Miles^,

John*, William^, Richard-, AVilliam^) married, but the

name of his wife is not known. He died in 1790. His

son.

4
. William, married .
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4 William^ Gary (Thomas^, Thomas^, Thomas®,

Miles^, John*, William^, Richard^, WilHam^) married, but

the name of his wife is not known. He died in 1808.

Ghildren :

i WilHam Miles.

ii A daughter, married Edward Gurtis.

iii A daughter, married R. Whitaker.

iv A daughter, married G. Whitaker.

5 Henry« Gary (Miles^^ John*, William^ Rich-

ard-, WilHam^) of The Forest, Warwick Gounty, was

born about 1650. He was appointed to superintend the

building of the Gapitol at Williamsburg, after the govern-
ment was removed from Jamestown. He later also

superintended the re-building of William and Mary Gol-

lege, at Williamsburg, after it had been burned. He

married, but the name of his wife is not known.

Ghildren :

Henry, married Elizabeth .

Miles, married Elizabeth Gocke.

Anne, married Starkey.

Elizabeth, married Scarsbrook.

Judith, married —— Barber.

6 Henry^ Gary (Henry®, Miles^ John*, William^

Richard-, William^) married Elizabeth . He was

appointed Justice of Warwick Gounty in 1727. He first

lived at Williamsburg and was a vestryman of Bruton

Parish. He removed to Henrico Gounty, in 1729, and

settled at Ampthill, on the south side of the James River.

He was the Sheriff of that Gounty in 1733. In 1738

he was a vestryman of Dale Parish. Henry Gary died

in 1750.

6
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Children:

7 i Archibald, married Marv Randolph,
ii Judith, married David B^ll.

iii Sarah, married Elexander Spier.

7 Col. Archibald^ Cary (Henry^, Henry^, Miles^,

John*, William", Richard-, William^) was born in 1720.

"Prior to his father's death, Col. Archibald Cary lived

in Goochland (now Cumberland) county, and was Bur-

gess for Goochland in 1748. At the death of his father,

Henry Cary, he inherited Ampthill, in Chesterfield coun-

ty, where he took up his residence in 1750. He was

justice for Chesterfield in 1750, and burgess from 1758

to 1774; member of the Committee of Safety, 1774-76;

of the Colonial committee of correspondence of all the

Revolutionary conventions, and Speaker of the State

Senate from 1776 until his death.

"Bishop ]\Ieade says of Archibald Cary: 'He was

among the very foremost patriots of Virginia. It was

from his lips, as chairman of the committee of the whole,

that the words of the resolution of independence of the

Declaration of Rights and a plan of government first

fell upon the public ear.'

"Col. Archibald Cary married Mary, daughter of

Richard Randolph, of Curees, and his wife, Miss Boi-

ling, a descendant of Pocahontas."
<< * :ic ^ this branch of the Cary family has been de-

nominated the 'Iron Carys,' from the fact that Archi-

bald Cary was called 'Old Iron,' either because of his

capacity of physical endurance or his indomitable cour-

age, or because he had had an iron furnace and mill at

Falling Creek, on the site of one established by Colonel

Berkeley, who, with a number of his men, was murdered



Gary Family 253

there by the Indians in 1622. Mr. Gary's mill was burned

by Golonel Tarleton, of the British Army, in the Ameri-
can Revolution of 1776." Archibald Gary died in

1787.

Ghildren :

i Ann, married Garter Page, of Gumberland.

ii Sarah, married Archibald Boiling, of Goochland;
died April 22, 1773.

iii Mary, married Thomas Mann Randolph, of Tucka-

hoe; she probably married, second, Maj. Garter

Page (see Page Family, No. 32).
iv Jane, married Thomas Isham Randolph, of Dunge-

ness.

V Elizabeth, married, in 1787, Joseph Kincaid, of Man-
chester.

8 MiLES^ Gary (Henry^ Miles^ John*, William-,

Richard^, William^) of Warwick Gounty, was a member
of the House of Burgesses in 1702-04-06. In 1695 he

married Elizabeth, daughter of Richard Gocke, of Bremo,
Henrico Gounty. Richard Gocke was Surveyor of the

Gounty and member of the Gounty Gourt. He was born

in 1637 and died in 1706. His will was probated in that

year (Va. Hist. Mag., Vol. 3, page 406, 410; Vol. 4, page

93; Vol. 6, page 282). Miles Gary died in 1724.

Ghildren :

9 i Miles, married, first, Hannah Armistead, sec-

ond, Mrs. Anne Howard.

24 ii Thomas, married Dorothy Phillipson.

iii Nathaniel,

iv Bridget.

V Dorothy,
vi Martha.
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Children :

i Elizabeth, b. Dec. 18, 1753, married, in 177-1,

William Hay, of Surrey.

,11 ii Miles, married Elizabeth (Booth) Yates,

iii Nathaniel, born October 19, 1763; died No-

vember 15, 1767,

11 Col. Miles^o Cary (Miles^ Miles^ Miles^

Henry«, Miles^ John^ Willianr, Richard", William^) was

born in September, 1757. He married Elizabeth, daugh-

ter of George Booth, and widow of Colonel William

Yates. Colonel Miles Cary died in 1809.

Son :

George Booth, of Southampton; member of Congress,

1811-43; died without issue.

12 Judge Richard^ Gary (Miles^ ^Iiles^ EIenry^

Miles^ John^ William% Richard", WilHam^ of War-

wick County, was born in 1739. He was Clerk of War-

wick in 1764; member of the Committee of Safety

for that County, 1774-76; member of the Convention of

1776, and of the House of Delegates of that year from

Warwick. He was appointed Judge of the Court of

Admiralty, December 7, 1776, and of the General Court,

December 24, 1788. His wife was Mary Cole. Judge

Cary died November 3, 1787.

Children :

13 i Richard, married Catherine Dudley.

ii Miles, born in 1763
;
married Anne Robinson ;

died in 1798. (See Appendix.)

13 Riciiard^« Gary (Richard^ Miles^ Miles^

Henry«, Miles^ John^, William% Richard^, William^) of
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Warwick County, was a member of the House of Dele-

gates, 1787-98-99-1800, and member of the Convention of

1788. He married Catherine Dudley.
Children :

i Richard, died without issue,

14 ii Miles, married Arianna Hill.

11 AIiLES^i Cary (Richard^o, Richard^ Miles«,

Miles', Henry«, Miles^ John^ William^ Richard", Wil-

liam^) of Warwick, married Arianna, daughter of Wil-

liam and Mary (Digges) Hill.

Children :

i Arianna, married A. F. Kuper, of Richmond,
ii Catherine, married James Powers, of Richmond.

15 Col. Johx^ Cary (Mi!es^, Miles^, Henry^
Miles^, John^ William^, Richard-, William^) of Eliza-

beth City, was born in 1745. He was a member of the

County Committee of 1774. He fought in the Revolu-

tion with the rank of captain. Colonel Cary married,

first, Sally Slaughter. His second wife was Susan,

daughter of Gill Armistead, of New Kent County. (See
Armistead Family, No. 58.) He died in 1795.

Child (by first wife) :

i Miles, born in 1767.

Children (by second wife) :

16 ii Miles, married Mrs. Page (nee ]\Iallory).

18 iii John, married Anne Wythe Sweeney,
iv Nathaniel.

19 V Gill Armistead, married Sally Baytop.
vi Nathaniel, born in 1792; died in 1832.

vii Robert.

viii Hannah A., married Horace Whiting,
ix Judith R., married Henry Howard.
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16 MiLESio Gary (John^ Miles^ Miles^ Henry^

Miles^, John*, William^, Richard", William^) was born

in 1767. He was a member of the House of Delegates

from Warwick Gounty. He later removed to Gampbell

Gounty. He married a widow, Mrs. Page, whose maiden

name was Mallory. Miles Gary died in 1850.

Ghildren :

17 i John, married Susan Lambeth,
ii A daughter, married Hunt.

iii A daughter, married — — Nelson.

17 JoHNii Gary (Milesl^ John^ Miles^ Miles%

Henry«, Miles^ JohnS William^ Richard", William^) of

Richmond, was born in 1802. He married Susan Lam-

beth. His death occurred in 1868.

Ghildren :

i Miles, of Richmond, married Schooler.

ii George.
iii John, of New York,

iv Francis Mallory, of Richmond.

V Eliza, married Hoppe.
vi Virginia.

18 JOHN^o Gary (John^ Miles^ Mi!es^ Henry«,

Miles^ Johns WilliamS Richard-, William^) of Hamp-
ton, was born in 1777. He married Anne Wythe Sweeney.
He died in 1832.

Ghildren :

i John, married Anna Gooper ;
removed to the South-

west,

ii Miles had one son and three daughters ;
died in

Mississippi.
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19 Gill Armistead^o Q^^y (John^ Miles^ Miles^

Henry", Miles% John\ William', Richard", William^) of

Hampton, was born in 1783. He married Sally Baytop,

and died in 1843.

Children :

20 i John B., married Columbia Hiulgms.

21 ii Nathaniel R., married Susan Fisher.

22 iii Richard Allies, married Hannah Cary.

23 iv Gill Armistead, married Virginia Smith.

20 Col. John B.'^ Cary (Gill Armistead^«, John^

Miles^ Miles^ Henry«, AIiles^ John^ William^ Rich-

ard-, William^) "formerly of Hampton, now of Rich-

mond" was a Colonel of the Confederate Army. After

the war he was superintendent of the schools of Rich-

mond. His wife was Columbia Hude^ins of Alathews

County, Virginia.
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22 Richard Miles^^ Cary (Gill Arm^steadl^

John^ AIiles^, Miles^ Henry^ Miles^ John*, William^

Richard", William^) of Hampton and Petersburg, was a

member of the Petersburg Militia. He was wounded in

the defense of Petersburg, June 9, 18G4. His wife was

Hannah, daughter of John Cary, of Whitney.
Children :

i Richard.

ii Sally.

iii Martha.

iv Lelia.

V Clara.

23 Gill Armistead^^ Cary (Gill Armistead^^,

John^ Miles«, Miles^ Henry«, Miles^ John*, William^

Richard-, William^) was born in 1831. He was a lieuten-

ant in the Confederate Cavalry. He married Mrginia

Smith, of South Carolina. He died in 1880.

Children :

i Belle,

ii Matthew.

24 Thomas^ Gary (Allies^ Henry^, Miles^, John*,

William^, Richard-, William^) of the Lodge, York Coun-

ty, and also of Chesterfield County, married Dorothy,

daughter of Doctor Robert Phillipson, of York County.
He died in 1755.

Children :

25 i Robert, married Mary Jennings.
28 ii Thomas, married Sally Cary.

25 Robert^ Gary (Thomas^, Miles^, Henry^,

Miles^ John*, William-^, Richard-, William^) of Chester-
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field, married Alary, daughter of William Jennings of

Amelia County.

Children :

i Anne,

ii Dorothy.
iii Judith.

iv Elizabeth.

V Robert, born in 17G8; married a daughter of

Edward Branch,

vi Wilson, born in 17T0; married Judith Baker;
removed to Kentucky,

vii Henry, born in 1771
;
married Elizabeth Mor-

risette
;
removed to Kentucky.

26 viii IMiles, married Obedience Brummell.

ix Nathaniel.

26 MiLES^o Q^^^y (Robert^ Thomas^ Miles%

Henry^ J\Iiles^ John^ William^ Richard-, William^)
was born in 1776. He married Obedience Brummell, of

Chesterfield, and died in 1814.

Children :

27 i Nelson, married Anne Blount,

ii John Pettus ( ?).

iii Alilton, born in 1796
;
married Phoebe Han-

cock; settled in Greenbrier Co., Va.

27 Nelson^i Cary (Aliles^^^ Robert^ Thomas^,

Miles^ Henry«, ]\Iiles^ John^ William^, Richard-, Wil-

liam^) was born in 1794. He married Anne Blount.

Children :

i Robert Henry,
ii John Pettus (?).
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28 Thomas^ Gary (Thomas^ Miles^ Henry^
Miles^ John*, William^, Richard^ William^) of Chester-

field, married Sally Cary.

Child :

29 i Peter Minor, married Rhoda Cox.

29 Rev. Peter Minor^^ Cary (Thomas^, Thomas^,

MiIes^ Henry^ Miles^ JohnS William^ Richard-, Wil-

liam^) of Chesterfield, removed to Kentucky in 1831. He
married Rhoda Cox.

Children :

]Miles, married Elizabeth Langford.

Albert, married Susan Hill.

George H., married Mary Berryman.

Christopher, married Hattie IMason.

Edward, married Mary Seaton.

30 MiLES^i Gary (Peter Minor^^ Thomas^
Thomas^, Miles^, Henry^, Miles^, John"*, William^, Rich-

ard-, William^) of Nelson County, Virginia, was born in

1802. He married Elizabeth Langford.
Child :

i Peter Minor.

31 Albert^i Gary (Peter :Minorl^ Thomas^

Thomas^ Miles^ Henry^, Miles^, John*, William^ Rich-

ard^, William^) of Jefferson County, Kentucky, was born

in 1805. He married Susan Hill.

Children :

i Charles,

ii Richard,

iii William.

30
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32 Geukgi- 11." Gary (Peter Minor^^ Thomas^
Thomas^ Miles^ Henry«, Miles^ John^ William^ Rich-

ard^ William^) of Louisville, was born in 1811. He
married Mary Berryman.

Children :

i John Berryman.
ii George H.

iii Edward.

33 Christopher" Gary (Peter Minor^°, Thomas^,

Thomas^, Miles^, Henry^, Miles^, John^, William^, Rich-

ard", William^) of Jefferson County, Kentucky, was born

in 1814. He married Hattie Mason.

Child :

i Edward L.

34 Edward" Gary (Peter Minor^^, Thomas^,

Thomas^, Miles'', Henry^ Miles^, John*, William^, Rich-

ard-, William^) of Jefferson County, Kentucky, was born

in 1817. He married Mary Seaton.

Children :

i William,

ii James.
The foregoing genealogy of the descendants of Tho-

mas (No. 1), and Henry (No. 5), of the sixth generation,
sons of Miles^ Gary, has been taken from the Baltimore

Sun.

35 Col. Miles« Gary (Miles^ John^ William^

Richard-, William^) of Ceely's and Richneck, was born

in Virginia, October 27, 1G55. He was the third son of

Colonel Miles and Ann (Taylor) Gary, and grandson of

John and Alice (Hobson) Gary, of Bristol, England, who
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came to Virginia in 1640. Miles Gary was educated in

England under the direction of his uncle. He was Glerk

of the General Gourt, 1692-3, member of the House of

Burgesses, and chairman of all important committees

from 1693 to 1699. He was a prominent member of the

Gommittee to revise the laws of the original trustees of

William and Mary Gollege in 1693, and, at one time, was

its Rector. He was register of the Gourt of Admiralty, a

Naval officer on the York River, and Surveyor-General
of Virginia, from 1692, to 1708. He was one of the

gentlemen summoned to repel a fleet of pirates which ap-

peared on the Ghesapeake Bay, April 28, 1700. ''Gol.

Miles Gary married, first, Mary, daughter of Thomas

Milner, of Nansemond county, and had no issue;
* * *"

He married, second, April 13, 1702, Mary, widow of

Golonel William Roscow, of Blunt Point, Warwick, and

daughter and co-heiress of Golonel William Wilson, of

Elizabeth Gity Gounty.
Golonel Thomas Milner, of Nansemond Gounty, was

Glerk of the House of Burgesses, 1681-85, but was turned

out of office by the Governor in the latter year, because

he would not take an oath that was required. He was,

however, elected a member of the House, and was Speak-

er, 1691-93. His daughter, Mary, married Golonel Miles

Gary, of "Richneck," Warwick Gounty, and died October

27, 1700. Her tomb bears the Milner arms:

Per pale, or and sable, a chevron between three horse-

bits countercharged.
Grest : A horse's head couped, az., bridled and maned

or.

The epitaph states she was the daughter of Thomas
and Mary Milner, late of Nansemond Gounty, deceased,

so the first Golonel Milner died before 1700.
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"The Milner Arms I copied July 10, 18(38, from the

only tombstone then to be found on the site of the old

Gary burial place at Richneck, in Warwick County.

When my great-great-grandfather. Col. Wilson Miles

Cary (1733-1817), sold the Richneck estate, about the

beginning of this century (then containing 4,000 odd

acres)
—

(see Va. Gazette), he reserved and left this spot

enclosed in a massive brick wall and heavy stone cop-

ings. The stone and brick had been moved by subse-

quent occupants and" built into dairy houses, &c.—the

graves around the cemetery filled, and every vestige of

grave memorials, save the one massive iron stone slab,

gone. This was cracked in two, and all the brick which

had supported it had likewise disappeared. The in-

scription and arms, however, were clearly chiselled and

perfectly preserved. The stone was erected to the mem-

ory of the 1st wife of Col. Miles Cary, and hence bore

the Milner arms, which are the same as those borne by
the Milners of Lancashire and Yorkshire, viz. : sa. a

chevron between 3 snaffle-bits or. Crest—A horse's

head erased sa. bridled or.

''Here lyeth ye body of Mary the wife

of Miles Gary & Daughter of Thomas
Milner and Mary his wife late of

Nansemond County deceased. She was

Born the 6th of August 1667 and Died

the 27 of October 1700 in the 34th

Year of her Age. Issueless.

Also the Body of Col. Miles Cary
Husband of the said Marv who

died February 17th, 1708 & left 2 sons

Wilson & Miles, & 2 Daughters,

Mary & Ann by Mary ye daughter
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of Col. Wm. Wilson of Hampton."

(See William and Mary Quarterly.)

Colonel William W^ilson was born in 164G, and died

June 17, 1713. He was a wealthy and influential land

owner of Elizabeth City County, of which he was High
Sheriff in 1693; Mayor of Elizabeth City County, l(]d2

',

Colonel, 1698
; Presiding Justice of the County, Member

of the House of Burgesses, 1685-92, 1702; and Naval

Officer for the Lower James. His father was probably

Reverend John Wilson, the first Rector of Elizabeth

River Parish, Norfolk County, Virginia, in 1637, and as

evidence of this surmise I give the following : There is a

patent of land recorded in the State land office at Rich-

mond of seventy-five acres to Ann Wilson, relict of John

Wilson of Elizabeth City County, in 1669, and one of

1,083 acres on lower Carrituck, Norfolk County, to

James Wilson, brother of Colonel William Wilson, in

1688, and one for 1,000 acres on Curie Creek on Eliza-

beth River to Colonel William Wilson in 1691. Colonel

William Wilson had two daughters, Mary and Jane

Wilson, and one son, Miles. (William and Mary Quar-

terly).

The tomb of Colonel William Wilson and his son,

Captain Miles Wilson, was formerly in St. John's Church-

yard, Hampton, Virginia, but was destroyed by Federal

soldiers. It bore the following inscription ;
surmounted

by his arms :

Arms : Sa, on a cross engrailed between four Cheru-

bims or, a human heart of the first, wounded on the left

side proper, and crowned with a crown of thistles vert.

"Under this stone lies the body of Captain Miles Wil-

son, who departed this life the 19th day of Nov. in

the year of 1701, it being the 28th year of his age.
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The Memory of the just is Blessed. Prov. 10.

May his Memory be recorded in everlasting remembrance.

Under this also lies the body of Col. Wm. Wilson &

Jane his Wife parents of the before mentioned Captain

Wilson. The said Col : Wilson died June 17, 1713 aged

()7 years & his said wife May 5, 1713 aged 53 years

& left an only daughter surviving."

Mary Wilson, the survivor spoken of in the Wilson

epitaph, is said to have been very beautiful. She was

born in 1675 and died in 1741. She was three times

married : first, to William Roscow, in 1695, second to

Colonel Miles Cary, in 1702, and, third, to Archibald

Blair, about 1720. She was buried at Blunt Point, in

the same tomb with her first husband.

William Roscow, of Blunt Point, Warwick County,

died in 1700. On his tomb at Blunt Point are his arms.

These arms are not described in any heraldic work ac-

cessible, but contain a lion rampant and a ragged staff.

The crest is a hand holding a dagger. The epitaph is

here given :

"Under this stone lyeth the body of

William Roscow gentlemen. Who
was Born at Chorley, in the County

of Lancashier, the 30th day of November
Anno Dom; 1664

and Departed this life at Blunt Point

in ye County of Warwick, the 2nd day of

November Anno Dom: 1700

And in the 36th year of his Age ;

Also here lyes the Body of Mary Wife of the

above William Roscow
And Daughter of Col. Wm. Wilson

of Elizabeth City County, who was
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Born October 26, 1675

And Dyed Jan. 11th 1741, in the 67th

Year of her age
'^ "^^ '*'"

William and Mary (Wilson) Roscow had issue: 1,

James, of Hampton ; appointed Receiver-General of Vir-

ginia, January 22, 1716
; apparently died without issue.

2, William. 3, Willis, born about 1701, died under age

and without issue. The second child William Roscow of

Blunt Point, Sheriff of Warwick, 1729, and Member of

the House of Burgesses, 1726-36, married Lucy, daughter

of Golonel William Bassett, of "Eltham," New Kent

Gounty, and, besides several sons who died without is-

sue, before 1768, had a son, James Roscow, of Blunt

Point, Justice of the Peace for Warwick, 1769, at whose

petition, in 1768, the General Assembly docked the entail

on a tract called Derby's, 700 acres in Warwick. In

1770 he again petitioned the Assembly to dock the entail

on all his remaining lands, consisting of two estates,

Blunt Point, and Stanley Hundred, in Warwick Gounty,

stating he then had no issue. But there were others who
had an interest under the entail and the petition was

rejected. It was offered again in 1774, but no action

was taken.

Mary Wilson, after the death of her first husband, Wil-

liam Roscow, was married. April 13, 1702, to Golonel

Miles Gary, of Richneck, and Warwick Gounty, Virginia.

Mary Wilson married a third time, in 1720, Doctor Archi-

bald Blair, of Williamsburg, a brother of Gommissary

James Blair of William and Mary Gollege, and the father

of Honorable John Blair, President of the King's Goun-

cil. Archibald Blair died in 1736. The following is

from the William and Mary Quarterly:
"Dr. Blair was married at least three times. By his
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first wife, unknown, he had John Blair, President of the

Council (died in his 85th year, Nov. 5, 1771.—Fa. Ga-

zette). In 1703, Archihald Blair and Sarah, his wife, ex-

ecutrix of Bartholomew Fowler's will, sued Thomas

Chisman. {York County Records.) I think this second

wife of Blair was Sarah Archer*. He married, thirdly,

Mary Wilson, only daughter of Col. Wm. Wilson, about

1720. (Elizabeth City County Records, and tombstones

at Blunt Point and Richneck. Warwick county.) She

had married, first, Wm. Roscow
; second, Col. Miles

Cary, of Richneck, and Dr. Blair was her third husband.

Dr. Blair had issue: 1, President John Blair (he is fre-

quently spoken of as nephew of Commissary James

Blair) ; 3, James Blair, of James City county (the tomb-

stone of Dr. Blair, Va. Hist. Coll., Vol. XL, speaks of

his nephezvs (nepotibus), sec also letter of Gov. Gooch

in Perry's Historical Coll., see College Catalogue) ; 3,

Elizabeth, who married John Boiling, Jun. (Boiling

Memoirs) ; 4, Harrison, married Dr. George Gilmer.

(Gilmer's Georgians.) President John Blair married

Mary Monro, daughter of Rev. John Monro. (Quarter-

ly, n, p. 82.) Issue: 1, Judge John Blair; 2, Dr. James

Blair, married Kitty Eustace, of Xew^ York, who mar-

ried, secondly, J. J. Cuthbert, of Georgia (Va. Gazette

and marriage bond) ; he died Dec, 1772 (Va. Gazette) ;

3, Sarah, married Col. Wilson Miles Cary, of Ceely's

(Cary Bible) ; 4, Anne, married Col. John Banister, of

Battersea, Dinw-iddie county (Va. Gazette) ; 5, Chris-

tian, married Col. Armistead Burwell, of Stoneland,

]\Iecklenburg county (Burwell's tombstone, John Blair's

will, York county, Bruton Register) ; 6, Elizabeth, mar-

ried Captain Samuel Thompson, of the Royal Navy
"^''Fowler was Attorney-General of the Colony and
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lived in Henrico county, where the Archer family was

prominent. A child of John Blair was Sarah Archer.—
Quarterly, Vol. II, p. 82."

(Va. Gazette, 1768) ; 7, Mary, married Col. George
Braxton. (See John Blair's will.) Judge John
Blair married Jean . {Va. Hist. Coll., Vol.

XL) Judge Blair had three daughters; Nelly, died at

fourteen {Va. Gazette), Mary, second wife of Robert

Andrews, and Jane, first wife of Rev. James Henderson,

married Jan. 8, 1795. None of these daughters left

surviving issue. Jane had issue, James Blair, John Blair,

Thomas Hamilton, and Blair Monro Henderson. The

Prayer Book in possession of Airs. F. H. Robertson, of

Saltville, Va., a granddaughter of Mrs. Henderson by

another marriasfe, shows their births and deaths without

issue.

"James Blair, second son of Dr. Archibald Blair, died

about 1773, when Archibald Blair, 'his infant orphan,'

made choice of John Blair, Esq., as his guardian. {York

County Records.) Archibald Blair died Oct. 7, 1824,

aged 71. Fie married ]\Iolly Whiting, of Glocester, in

1787. He was Glerk of the Council, and Clerk of ,C©m-

mittee of Safety during the whole Revolution. Mary,
his daughter, married in 1822 John Minor Botts. The

will of Archibald Blair, dated in 1809, and recorded in

Richmond, May 17, 1825, names children, John, Beverly,

Archibald, and Mary."

Jane Wilson, the sister of Alary Wilson, the second

wife of Colonel Miles Gary, also married three times,

first, Nicholas Curie (as his second wife), the eldest son

of Pasco Curie, who died August 15, 1714. His son,

Wilson Curie, was born December 18, 1099, and was liv-

ing in 1738. He married Priscilla, daughter of Andrew
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and sister of David Meade (the grandfather of Bishop

WilHam Meade), lie died in June, 1748, leaving six

sons and two daughters. Jane Wilson married, second,

James Ricketts, and, third, Merritt Sweeney. Another

account states that she was the wife of Whiting.

William Roscow Curie, grandson of Jane Wilson, mar-

ried, first, Euphan Wallace, daughter of James Wallace

(son of Reverend James Wallace). She died in 1773.

William Roscow Curie married, second, Mary Kello.

His children were, Wilson and Elizabeth, the latter an

infant in 1792. Elizabeth married Miles Cary of Oak
Hill. Joseph Selden married Mrs. Curie, nee Armistead

(see Selden Family).
The tombstone of Thomas Curie, gent., one of the

Justices of Elizabeth City, lies in the yard of the old

church at Pembroke farm, near Hampton, and shows that

he was born November 24, 1640, in the Parish of St.

Michael, in Lewis, in the County of Sussex, England,
and died May 30, 1700. It bears a coat of arms which

is described in Burke, as Curie or Kyrle, London. He
died without issue leaving his property to his nephews,
Pasco and Joshua, sons of his brother Pasco Curie, who
was Justice of the Peace in 1G88, and one of the three

first feofifees of Hampton Town in 1691. Pasco Curie

married Sarah
,
whose will was proved March 19,

1713. They had issue: 1, Sarah, who married, in 1702,

her first cousin, Joshua Curie, son of Samuel Curie
; 2,

Mary, wife, in 1713, of Captain Henry Jenkins, and, in

1728, first wife of Anthony Tucker, had issue, John

Jenkins, Elizabeth Jenkins, and Curie Tucker; 3, Judith,

who married John Bailey, and had Nicholas Bailey; 4,

Nicholas, son and heir; 5, Pasco, died in 1701, under

age; 6, Joshua, who, about 1714, married Rosea ,
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who became second wife of Anthony Tucker, and had

two daughters, Mary, who married WilUam King, and

Judith, who married, after 1739, John Herbert; 7, John,

died before 1728. Nicholas Curie, son of Pasco, married,

first, in 1700, Ehzabeth Gutherick, daughter of Quintilian

Gutherick (Quarterly, V. page 57), and, second, Jane

Wilson, who survived him, and married, as her second

husband, James Ricketts, and, as a third husband, Mer-

ritt Sweeney. Nicholas Curie died about 1714, and left

issue: 1, David; 2, Nicholas; 3, Andrew; 4, William

Roscow Wilson
; 5, Hamilton

; 6, Wilson
; 7, Jane ; 8,

Mary, who married William Armistead (see Armistead

Family, No. 64). Of these, William Roscow Whson
Curie was a distinguished patriot of the Revolution,

Judge of the Admiralty Court, etc. He married, first,

Euphan Wallace, a daughter of Captain James Wallace

(son of Reverend James Wallace). She died in 1773, and

Judge Curie married Mary Kello. His children were, 1,

Colonel Wilson Roscow Curie, who was of age before

1792, and married Lockey Langhorne, and died leaving

an only child; 2, Elizabeth Kello, an infant in 1792,

married, in 1810, Colonel Miles Gary of Oak Hill,

Fluvanna County (see Chancery Papers in Williams-

burg, Langhorne vs. Curie). There is a deed recorded

at Hampton from Lockey Curie, Miles Cary of Flu-

vanna County, and Elizabeth S. W. Cary, for land left

by Wilson Curie. In Curie vs. Allen it is stated that

Wilson Curie was grandson and devisee of Colonel Wil-

liam Wilson, and a deed from Thomas Mingham and

Ann, his wife, to John Selden, in 1740, states that the

land conveyed was originally bequeathed by W^illiam

Wilson to his grandson Wilson Curie.

Colonel Miles Cary was a descendant in the fifth
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generation of Colonel William Wilson. His line is now

represented by two grandsons, Himsdon Gary, of Mem-

phis, Tenn., his cousin, Wilson Miles Gary, of Rich-

mond, Virginia, and the sister of the latter, Hattie, the

wife of William Christian, son and heir of William Al-

bert Christian, M. D. (a successful and beloved prac-

titioner of Craighton, Henrico County). [From letters

of Governor Spotswood.]
From her father, Colonel William Wilson, ]\Iary (Wil-

son) Roscow, who became the second wife of Miles

Gary, inherited Geely's. The following description of

this estate is given by Wilson Allies Gary, of Baltimore,

Maryland. [It appeared in the Virginia Historical

Magazine, Volume p, page 104 et seq.]

In 18G8 I made a horseback trip to the Peninsula of

Virginia, and travelled over all that section of country,

with the purpose, if possible, of reconstructing the

genealogy of my family, which, as embodied in a fine

old vellum record, has been destroyed, together with the

family Bible, &c., at the burning of our Fluvanna resi-

dence, Garysbrooke, November 26, 1826. In the Clerk's

office at Hampton, I found not only the original will of

Colonel Wilson Gary, of which I had already ob-

tained a copy in 1866, but that of his brother. Miles

Gary, of "Geely's," as he styles himself, and which I

then transcribed. [They were the sons of Colonel Miles

and Mary (Wilson) Gary.]

I rode to Geely's on the banks of the James, three or

four miles from Hampton, to visit the mansion so long

the residence of my ancestors. The whole estate, con-

taining some 2,000 acres in Colonel Gary's time, lay

along the river and adjoined the present Newport News.

It was then occupied by a settlement of negro squatters,
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a section of "Butler's contrabands." There was scarce

a vestige of the old mansion remaining,
—the very foun-

dations were obliterated—not a tree left standing, and

the garden, which once ran in terraces to the river's edge,

now a wilderness of weeds. I found the dispossessed

proprietor, a young Mr. Smith, quartered in a most prim-
itive shanty on the edge of the estate, almost despairing
of ever enforcing his rights and ejecting the darkies, but

still awaiting, with what patience he might, the out-

rageous dilatory proceedings of the reconstruction period.

Mr. Smith informed me that the negroes, after burning
the fine old brick mansion to the ground, had entirely

dismantled its walls, using them for the chimneys of their

hovels. The original building was of large dimensions,

two stories, with wings. Its age had been discovered by
his father, who, on removing the portico to make some

repairs, had found the figures 1706 on the lintel. The
records of Elizabeth City inform us that the nucleus of

the estate called *'Cee1y's" consisted of two tracts of 250

acres each at the mouth of Saltford creek, on the banks

of the James river, which were acquired by Colonel Wil-

liam Wilson in 1691 and, 1695, from one Thomas Ceely—
doubtless a son of that Thomas Ceely who represented

Warwick County in the House of Burgesses from 1629

to 1639. Colonel Wilson was for many years the pre-

siding justice and most prominent personage of Eliza-

beth City County, being long the Royal Naval ofiicer of

the lower James, and a very wealthy planter. He it

was who built Ceely's in 1706. He died in 1713, but

his will was doubtless recorded in the General Court,

whose archives were destroyed in the conflagration of

1865, so that a detailed disposition of his large estate can-

not now be had. His only son. Captain Willis Wilson,
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had died without issue in 1701. His daughter, Mary

(1675-1741), had first married WilHam Roscow, with

whom she lies buried under a handsome monument at

Blunt Point, in Warwick. After his death, which oc-

curred November 27, 1700, she did not long remain in

weeds, but, in April, 1702, commiserating the equally

sad lot of a near neighbor, she bestowed her hand upon
Colonel Miles Gary, of ''Richneck," who had been be-

reaved at the same period, his wife, Mary Milner, hav-

ing left him ''issueless," as her tombstone states, October

27, 1700. And just here there is a romantic episode,

which I intend writing up, growing out of the frantic

proceedings of one Captain James Moody, of H. M.

Man-of-War, Southampton, who madly, though a mar-

ried man, disputed the hand of the fair widow with Col-

onel Cary. The latter, having the inside track, treated the

would-be bigamist with contempt, and so overwhelmed

him with ridicule, that in a bloody rage he sailed round

to Yorktown, where the Governor and Court were in

session, and, in despite the Governor's threat of irons,

undertook to post Colonel Cary. The Governor and

Council took down the proceedings and promptly com-

plained of his outrageous conduct to the home govern-

ment, and the reckless villian was forthwith removed to

appease the indignation of the entire Colony."

Colonel Miles Cary died intestate, but from his tomb

we learn the names of his children. To the younger of

his two sons, Miles, his grandfather Wilson's estate of

"Ceely's" descended, which he, dying a bachelor in 1756.

willed to his only brother, Colonel Wilson Cary of "Rich-

neck."

Colonel Miles Cary died July 17, 1708. As above

stated, he was buried with his first wife, Mary Milner, at

Richneck, Warwick County.
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Children (by second wife) :

36 i Wilson, married Sarah .

ii ]\Iiles, inherited Ceely's from his grandfather
Wilson

;
died unmarried, in 1756, and be-

queathed Ceely's to his only brother, Wilson

Cary; will of Miles Cary, of Ceely's, Elizabeth

City County : Body to be buried at Richneck
;

legacies to sister, Mary Selden
; nephew, Cary

Selden
; brother, Wilson Cary ; nephew, Sam-

uel Selden ; nephew, Miles Selden ; niece, Sarah

Fairfax
;
niece, Mary Cary ; niece, Anne Nicho-

las
; niece, Elizabeth Cary ; nephew, Wilson

Miles Cary ; brother, Wilson Cary, among other

things, land "bought of my brother, William

Roscow, deceased"
; gives money to buy land

for James Roscow, son of said William
;

to

nephew, William Roscow. Dated October 11,

1752
;
no date of probate.

iii Mary, married Joseph Selden (see Selden

Family, No. 37).

iv Anne, born about 1706, married about 1724,

a Whiting, probably Col. Henry Whiting, of

Gloucester
; probably died without issue, before

the date of Col. John BolHng's will, of 1749,

which mentions legacies to his daughters, Mary
and Sarah, "left by their Aunt Whiting's Will."

36 Col, Wilson' Gary (Miles^ Miles^ JohnS Wil-

liam^, Richard-, William^) was born in 1703. The exact

date cannot now be ascertained, owing to the destruc-

tion of the family archives by fire at Carysbrooke. He
was educated at William and Mary College, and at Trin-

ity College, Cambridge University, England, as is shown
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by autograph inscriptions on the title pages of books of

his extensive library, two hundred and fifty volumes of

which are still in possession of his descendants. On his

return to the Colony he received the appointment of Col-

lector and Naval Officer on the lower James River, 1719-

23. He was presiding magistrate and County lieutenant

of Elizabeth City County, in 1726. He married, before

January 20, 1728-9, as shown by a York County deed

made at that date between ''Wilson Cary, of the County
of Elizabeth City, Gent., and William Nelson, of York

Co., Merchant," Cary conveyed lots twelve and eighteen

in the town of York, "form.erly sold and conveyed by
trustees of the town land unto Miles Carv of the Co.

of Warwick, Gent., father of the said Wilson Cary, &c.

5!c ^r ;!:

2,r].d free from all right of dower of Mary, late

relict of the aforesaid Miles Cary, Gent., dec'd, and of

Sarah, now the wife of said AA'ilson Cary, if she should

happen to survive." Now this lady did happen to sur-

vive until 1783, when she died between the first and sixth

day of September, as we learn from a letter of Edmund

Randolph (who married her granddaughter), to Bryan
Fairfax (her son-in-law). She may have been the daugh-
ter of John Pate (see Virginia Magazine of History and

Biography, Volume 0, page 107). Colonel Wilson Cary
died in December, 1772. His will, 1772, is given in full

in the A^irginia Historical ^Magazine. A'olume X, page 189,

et seq. Among other items, he bequeaths the following:

"I give to my dear Nephew. Colonel Cary Selden, fifty

Pounds current Money, in full of all demands he may
have upon me & it is my farther will that if he should

not otherwise be able to reimburse himself for the loss

he hath sustained in some Carolina money he had to dis-

pose of for me (tho' I think Colo. Lem'l Riddick is liable
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for the same) that he may be indemnified and paid out

of My estate.

"My Nephew Colo. Gary Selden 50 pounds, one ring

that must not be excepted, which at all events I desire to

be a handsome one, and presented to my dear Sister Sel-

den [Mrs. Joseph Selden] as a small token of the affec-

tionate regard I bear to her. * '•' '^

grandson Miles Gary
* * * Sister Anne Whiting

* "^ "^^ son-in-law Richard

Nicholas '^ "^ '•'' My kinsman Richard Gary of Warwick
executors."

Golonel Gary names, as one of his executors, *'My

kinsman, Richard Gary, of Warwick," afterward Judge
of Admiralty and of the General Gourt, who was born

about 1730, and died November 13, 1789. He more

than once represented Warwick in the House of Bur-

gesses. He had been bred to his profession in the school

of the Gounty Glerk's Office, he, himself, and his father

and grandfather before him having succeeded one an-

other almost as hereditary clerks of Warwick ever since

the latter end of the Seventeenth Gentury. He was a

cousin of the testator, but many degrees removed, being
the second son of Major Miles Gary of Peartree Hall,

by Hannah Armistead, and grandson of Mr. Miles Gary,

Junior, as he is styled in the records, by Elizabeth,

daughter of Richard Gocke. This latter Miles is men-

tioned by the Quaker, Story, who visited Warwick in

1699 and 1706, as ''Secretary of the Gounty, who, with

his brother, Thomas, became converts." (See Numbers

8, 9, and 12.)

Ghildren :

i Sarah, born in 1730; in a letter of December

12, 1802, to her nephew, Thomas, ninth Lord

Fairfax, she states her age as then seventy-two ;
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married, Dec. 12, 1748, George William Fair-

fax, heir apparent to the Barony of Fairfax,

of Cameron, and eldest son of Col. William

Fairfax, President of the Council. In a letter

to his cousin, Robert, afterward seventh Lord

Fairfax, George William Fairfax refers to his

approaching marriage: "Attending here [Wil-

liamsburg], on the General Assembly, I have

had several opportunities of visiting Miss Gary,
a daughter of Colonel Wilson Gary, and find-

ing her amiable person to answer all the favor-

able reports made, I addressed myself, and hav-

ing obtained the young lady's and her parents'

consent, we are to be married on the 17th in-

stant. Colo. Gary wears the same Coat of

Arms as the Lord Flunsdon." This couple
died at Bath, England, with issue, he in 1787,

she in 1811.

37 ii ]\Iary, married, Edward Ambler of James-
town.

Wilson Allies, married Sarah Blair.

Anne, married Col. Robert Garter Nicholas.

Elizabeth, married Bryan, eighth Lord Fairfax.

37 Mary« Gary (Wilson^ Miles«, Miles^. John*,

William", Richard-, William^) w^as born about 1732-33.

She married, in 1751, Edward Ambler, of Jamestown,
who was born in 1732, and died October 30, 1768.

''* * * we are told a very interesting story which had

its setting in Old Virginia about 150 years ago. The
heroine of this pretty romance was Aliss Mary Gary,

daughter of Wilson Gary, Esq., of Geely's, Elizabeth

City county, Va. Miss Gary, who afterward became

38
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the wife of Edward Ambler, son of Richard and EHza-

beth JaqueHne Ambler, was at that time staying at the

house of her sister, Mrs. George William Fairfax, when
she captivated the affections of a young officer, who paid

her his addresses and made an offer of his hand and

heart, which were promptly rejected by Miss Cary. This

young man afterward became known to the world as

Gen. George Washington, the first President of the

United States.

^'Bishop Aleade tells us that when young Washington
asked permission of Mr. Cary to address his daughter.

'The reply of the old gentleman was, *Tf that is your
business here, sir, I wish you to leave the house, for my
daughter has been accustomed to ride in her own
coach."

'

"The ^'' * "^

Bishop goes on to say that 'it has been

said that this answer of Mr. Cary to the stripling Wash-

ington produced the independence of the United States

and laid the foundation of the future fame of the first

hero and the best of men—our immortal Washington—
as it is more than probable that had he obtained posses-

sion of the large fortune which it was known Miss Cary
would carry to the altar with her he would have passed

the remainder of his life in inglorious ease.'
"

Mary (Cary) Ambler died in 1781.

Children :

i Edward Ambler, born in 1758
;
died in 1775, without

issue.

ii Sarah Ambler, born in 1760; married, in 1779, Wil-

Ham Hartwell Macon
;
died in 1782.

iii Col. John Ambler, of Jamestown, born in 1762
;
an-

cester of all of the name in Virginia ;
died in 1836.
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38 Col. Wilson Miles^ Gary (Wilson^ Miles«,

Miles^ John^ Willianr% Richard-, William^) of Ceely's,

Richneck, and Carysbrooke, was born in 1733 or 1734.

He graduated from William and Alary College. From
1762 to 1774 he was a member of the House of Bur-

gesses. He was Justice of Elizabeth City in 1770. He
was a member of the Convention of 177G and of the

House of Delegates. He married, Alay 25, 1759, Sarah,

daughter of Honorable John Blair, of Williamsburg,
President of the Council. She was born in 1739, and

died March 28, 1799. Colonel Wilson Miles Cary died

November 30, 1817.

Children :

39 i Wilson, married Jean Carr.

ii Sally, born in 17G2; married, in 1778, Captain
Thomas Nelson, an officer of Gen. Washing-
ton's staff, son of Secretary Nelson; died in

1779.

iii Mary Monro, born in 17G4; married, Dec. 11,

1787, William S. Peachy; died in 1836.

iv Miles, born in 1766 ? (see Va. Gazette, of

April 21, 1774).
V Elizabeth Blair, born in 1770 ?; married, Feb.

8, 1796, her first cousin, Ferdinando Fairfax.

(See Number 49.)

39 W^ILSON^ Gary (Wilson Miles^, W^ilson", Miles«,

Miles^ John^, Willianr', Richard-, William^) of Rich-

neck and Carysbrooke, was born in 1760. He was a

graduate of William and Mary College. In 1786 he was
a member of the House of Delegates. He married Jean,

daughter of Dabney Carr, and a niece of President Jef-
ferson. Wil3on Cary died in 1793.
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Children :

40 i Wilson Jefferson, married Virginia Randolph.
45 ii Col. Miles, of Oakhill, Fluvanna Co., born in

1789
; married, in 1810, EHzabeth Scarsbrook,

daughter of Col. William Roscow Curie, of

Pasteurs, Elizabeth City (see Number 35) ;

died in Alabama, Nov. 8, 1827.

40 Wilson Jefferson^^ Cary (Wilson^, Wilson

Miles«, Wilson^ Miles«, Miles^ John^ William^ Rich-

ard-, William^) of Carysbrooke, was a graduate of Wil-

liam and Mary College. He was appointed Justice of

James City in 1806, and of Fluvanna in 1810. He was

made a member of the House of Delegates in 1822. He

married, August 28, 1805, Virginia, daughter of Thomas

M. Randolph, of Tuckahoe.

Children :

Wilson Miles, married Jane Margaret Carr.

Archibald, married Monimier Fairfax.

Jane Blair, married Rev. E. D. Smith, of New
York,

iv Mary Randolph, married Dr. Orlando Fairfax,

of Alexandria, later of Richmond, Va.

v Martha Jefferson, married Gouverneur Morris,

of Morrisania, New York.

41 Col. Wilson Miles^^ Cary (Wilson Jefferson^^,

Wilson^ Wilson Miles«, Wilson^ Miles«, Miles^ John^

William^ Richard-, WilHam^) was born in 1806. He
removed to Baltimore County, Maryland, and for six

years was a member of the Senate of that State. In 1832

he married Jane Margaret, daughter of Peter Carr.

41
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Children :

42 i Sarah Nicholas, married J. Howard McHenry.
ii Virginia, died in infancy.

iii Hetty, married, first, Major General John Peg-

ram, of the Confederate States' Army, second.

Prof. Henry N. Martin, of Johns Hopkins Uni-

versity.

iv Virginia Randolph, died young.

V Wilson Miles, of Baltimore.

43 vi John Brune, married Fannie E. Daniel,

vii Jennie.

viii Sidney Carr.

42 Sarah Nicholas^- Cary (Wilson Miles'\ Wil-

son Jefferson^^ Wilson^, Wilson Miles^ Wilson^ Miles«,

Miles^ John*, William", Richard-, William^) married J.

Howard McHenry, of Sudbrook, Baltimore County,

Maryland.
Children :

i Juliet McHenry, died without issue.

ii Wilson Cary McHenry, married Dove.

iii Eleanor McHenry, married J. Brent Keyser, of Bal-

timore.

iv John McHenry, married Eleanor, daughter of the

late C. Morton Stewart.

V Sophia McHenry, married John Stewart, son of C.

Morton Stewart.

43 John Brune^^ ^ary (Wilson Miles^\ Wilson

Jefferson^o, Wilson^ Wilson Miles«, Wilson% Miles«,

Miles^ John^ William^ Richard-, William^) married

Fannie E., daughter of William I. Daniel, of Jefiferson

County, West Virginia.
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Children :

i Hetty, married Fairfax Harrison, of New York,

ii Frances, married J. C. Ulman. of Baltimore, Md.
iii Wilson ^liles, married Lanahan.

44 Archibald^^ Cary (Wilson Jefferson^*^, Wil-

son^, Wilson Miles^ Wilson", Miles«, Miles% John^ Wil-

liam^, Richard", William^) removed to Cumberland Coun-

ty, Virginia. He married Monimier, daughter of Thomas,
ninth Lord Fairfax.

Children :

i Falkland, born Feb. 17, 1840; died in 1856.

ii Constance, married Col. Burton Harrison, of Missis-

sippi, and, later, of New York City; he was private

secretary to Jefferson Davis
;
Mrs. Harrison is the

Vv'e!lknown author of novels, plays, and essays.

iii Clarence, enlisted in the Confederate army at the age
of sixteen, and was afterward a midshipman in the

Confederate navy; married Elizabeth, daughter of

Howard Potter of New York.

45 Col. Miles^^ Cary (Wilson^ Wilson Miles«,

Wilson^ Miles«, Miles^, John^ William^ Richard^ Wil-

liam^) of Oakhill, Fluvanna County, was born in 1789,

He married, in 1810, Elizabeth Scarsbrook, daughter of

Colonel William Roscow Curie, of Pasteurs, Elizabeth

City (see Number 35). He died in Alabama, November

8, 1827.

Children :

46 i Miles, married .

47 ii Lucius, married .

iii Virginia Randolph, married, in 1836, Guy Skip-

with, of Memphis, Lieut. U. S. Navy.
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46 Col. Miles^^ Gary (Miles^^, Wilson^ Wilson

Miles«, Wilson', Miles«, Miles^ John^ William^ Richard-,

William^) was born in 1814. lie married .

and died in 1843.

Child :

Hudson, of Memphis, Tenn.

47 Luciusii Cary (Miles^«, Wilson^ Wilson

Miles«, Wilson^ Miles°, Miles^ John^ William^ Richard-,

William^) was born in 1815. He married  —
,

and died in 1845.

Child :

Col. Wilson Miles, of Richmond, Va.

48 Anne^ Cary (Wilson^ Miles^ Miles^ John*,

William^, Richard-, W^illiam^) was born in 1735. She

married, in 1751, Colonel Robert Carter Nicholas, who

was born January 28, 1728, and died September 8, 1780.

Anne (Cary) Nicholas died December 5, 178G.

Children:

i Sarah Nicholas, born in 1752; married John Hatley
Norton,

ii Elizabeth Nicholas, born August 11, 1753
; married,

in 1776, Edmund Randolph, Governor of Virginia,

Attorney General of the United States; died in

1810.

iii Col. George Nicholas, of Kentucky; born in 1754;

died in 1799.

iv John Nicholas, of Genesee, New York, born in

1756 ( ?) ;
died Dec. 31, 1819.

V Col. Wilson Cary Nicholas, M. C, Governor of

Virginia; born Jan. 31, 1761; died Oct. 10, 1820.

vi Judith Nicholas, born May 17, 1765; died young.
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vii Lewis Nicholas, of Albemarle
;
born in 1766 : died

in 1840.

viii Robert Nicholas, born June 2, 1765 ( ?) ;
died young.

ix Mary Nicholas, born in 1772
;
died unmarried.

X Judge Philip Norborne Nicholas, born in 1775; died

August 19, 1849.

49 Elizabeth^ Gary (Wilson^ Miles^, Miles^,

John*, William^ Richard-, William^) was born in 1738.

She married, in 1759, Bryan, eighth Lord Fairfax of

Gameron, who was born August 11, 1736, and died Au-

gust 7, 1802. Lady Fairfax died in 1778.

Ghildren :

i Sally Fairfax, born in 1760; died before 1779.

ii Thomas Fairfax, ninth Lord Fairfax, born in 1762
;

died April 21, 1846.

iii William Fairfax, born in 1765
;
died about 1782.

iv Ferdinando Fairfax, born about 1766
; married, in

1776, his cousin, Elizabeth Blair Gary (see Number

38) ;
died Sept. 24, 1820.

V Robert Fairfax, living in 1787; died young,
vi Henry Fairfax, died in infancy,

vii Elizabeth Fairfax, born about 1770
;
married Rev.

David Griffith.

50 Gapt. William^ Gary (Miles^, John*, William^,

Richard", William^) of Mulberry Island Parish, War-
wick Gounty, was born about 1657. He married Martha,

daughter of Golonel Henry Scarsbrook. He was Justice

of Warwick Gounty in 1727, and Sheriff in 1732. Gaptain

William Gary died in 1713.

Ghildren :

i William of Warwick Gountv.
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ii Major Miles, of York County.
51 iii William, married JikHiIi Jones.

iv Alartha. married Edward Jacqueline.

52

51 William^ Gary (William^ I\Iiles^ John*, Wil-

liam^ Richard-, William') married Judith Jones. He
died April 3, 1742.

Children :

i Matthew Jones,
ii Miles,

iii Jacqueline.

iv William, married, first, Moody, second,

Sarah Dudley.
V Patty, married William Gooseley, of Yorktown.
vi Mary.
vii Judith, married William Eggleston.
viii Elizabeth, married John Eggleston.
ix Nancy Gary.

52 William^ Gary (William^ William^ Miles^

John*, William^, Richard-, William^) was appointed Jus-
tice of York County in 1782, and was jMayor of York-
town in 1789. His first wife was Moody. He mar-

ried, second, Sarah Dudley.
Children :

i Sally.

ii Miles.

53 Martha^ Gary (W'illiam", Miles^ John*, Wil-

liam^ Richard-, William^) married Edward Jacqueline, of

Jamestown, in 1706.

Children :

i Matthew, born in 1707.
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ii Elizabeth, born in October, 1709.

iii Martha, born in 1711.

iv Mary, born in 1714.

V Edward Jacquehne, born in 1716; died in 1733.
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ALEXANDER FAAIILY

''The family of Alexander, according to antiquaries,

was a branch of that of MacDonald, for Alexander Mac-

Donald, a younger son of the Lord of the Isles, obtained

a grant of certain lands in the county of Clackmanan,

where he made his residence, and his descendants took

the surname of Alexander.

"In the reign of James V, Andrew Alexander married

Catherine Graham. His son Alexander married Eliza-

beth, the daughter of Sir Robert Douglas. After two

generations we find William Alexander tutor to the Earl

of Argyle, who appeared at the Court of James I of

England, and by him was knighted in 1614. He it was

who personally conducted the colonization of Nova Sco-

tia in America, for which the King, by royal charter,"

dated September 21, 1621, made him a grant of the

province.

"He was made Governor-in-chief of Nova Scotia by
Charles I in 1625, who also created an order of baronets

in the colony to encourage colonization, and made Sir

William Viscount and Earl in 1630. He was also Sec-

retary of State for fifteen years before his death.

"The second earl was William, grandson of the first,

who died without issue, and the title and estates passed

to Henry, the younger son of the first earl.

"Henry Alexander, third earl, married a daughter of

Sir Peter Vanlore, an Alderman of London. His son,

Henry, who became fourth earl, married and had as

issue four sons and three daughters. The eldest son,

293
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Henry, succeeded to the earldom in 1G90, and in turn

was succeeded by his eldest son, Henry. He died without

issue, and was succeeded by his sisters, the Ladies Mary
and Judith, but the title devolved upon William Alexan-

der, sixth Earl of Stirling, who was one of His Majesty's

Council and Surveyor General of New Jersey. He mar-

ried Sarah, daughter of Philip Livingston, Esq., by

whom he had as issue two daughters.

"This was the General William Alexander known in

Revolutionary history as Lord Stirling. [He was noted

for his patriotic services in the war, especially at the

Battle of Long Island, August 27, 1776.] He was the

son of James, second son of David, son of Alexander,

son of John, second son of Andrew, fourth Baron of

Menstrie, uncle of Alexander, first Earl of Stirling.

"William, with Robert and Gerard, his brothers, emi-

grated from Scotland to America about the year 1730.

The latter took up large tracts of land on the Potomac,

where the city of Alexander now stands and from whom
it takes its name. William died without issue, but left

two daughters, Mary, who married John Robertson, and

Catharine, who married John Duer. Robert had five

sons and two daughters, who married and settled in

different parts of Virginia. William, the third son, set-

tled in Stafford county, and had three sons and five

daughters. Llis eldest son, Thomas, married Elizabeth

Innes, daughter of Judge Harry Innes, of Frankfort,

Ky. Thomas was the grandfather of Mr. Patten, whose

books of clerical biography are well known.

"The coat of arms shows a ship with the sails furled,

the badge of a baronet of Scotland, the royal

arms of Scotland ensigned on the top with an

imperial crown
;

on a wreath a bear, on the dex-
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ter side a male Indian, with long hair and a dart in

his right hand, having a circle of gold on his head,

adorned by a plume of seven feathers, and around his

waist a like circle and feathers
;
on the sinister side a

mermaid with her comb and mirror; the motto is 'Per

Mare, Per Terras,' or 'By Sea and By Land.

''For several years before the Revolution General

Alexander v/as a petitioner before the British House of

Lords for his rights to the Earldom of Stirling, but his

rebellion lost him his cause. Very lately Charles Alex-

ander, of Canada, a direct descendant of General Alex-

ander, was declared the rightful Lord StirHng, and

vested with the estates of the earldom in Scotland."

The "Memorial of the Earl of Stirling and the. House

of Alexander," by Reverend Charles Rogers, LL. D.,

gives a full account of the family and the grant of

lands in America given to the first Earl, how these lands

were lost and how the claimant for the earldom was dis-

allowed and imprisoned.

In 1839 Armistead Alexander, to whom it was then

given, declined the empty title, and it is now held by
a descendant of the claimant who was disallowed in

1839, Charles Alexander of Canada. The titles were

the Right Honorable Viscount and Earl of Stirling, Lord

Alexander and Baronet, Baronet of Nova Scotia, May
21, 1625; Baron Alexander and Viscount Stirling, 1626;
Earl of Stirling, June 14, 1633. All the titles were con-

ferred by Charles I. The following account is from the

Richmond Standard:

Sir William^ Alexander, first Earl of Stirling,

of Menstrie, Scotland, from whom the Virginia family
of the name deduces, appears prominently in the early

annals of American colonization. He was born in 1580,
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and died in London, February, 1G40. He was knighted in

1613. King Charles I founded the order of Nova Scotia

baronets in Scotland to further Canadian settlements.

Sir William was subsequently made Secretary of State

for Scotland and created Viscount Stirling. Through
the friendship of Sir Ferdinando Georges, Sir William

received, September 10, 1621, a patent embracing the

whole territory of Acadia, which was confirmed to him

and his heirs by King James and erected into a Palat-

inate, "to be holden as a fief of the Crown of Scotland."

Sir William Alexander was created Earl of Stirling

in 1633. He was a poet of some merit, and developed his

colonization scheme in a pamphlet, ''An Encouragement
to Colonies," in 1625, ''The Map and DeHneation of

New England," in 1630, etc.

Children :

i William, married
;
died in the life-

time of his father, leaving an infant (second

Earl of Stirling), who inherited the title, but,

dying in 161:0, it passed to his uncle,

ii Sir Anthony, third Earl of Stirling, who dying,

the title passed to his brother,

iii Sir Henry, fourth Earl of Stirling, in whose

family the title remained until the year 1839,

when it passed to the descendant of his brother.

1 iv John, married Tabitha Smart.

1 John- Alexander (Sir William^) emigrated to

Virginia about 1659, and settled in Stafford County in

1660, purchasing Howison's patent of land extending
from Georgetown to Hunting Creek. He married Ta-

bitha Smart. From the Virginia Land Registry Office

it appears that John Alexander and Tabitha Smart re-
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ceived 1,500 acres in Northampton County, March 24,

1659
; John A., 1,450 acres in Stafford County, being one

half of 2,900 acres granted formerly to John Bagnall
and John Walker, and assigned by them September 26,

1664, to Edmund Scarburg (Book 4, pages 392, 580) ;

Robert
; John, Jr. ;

and Christopher Alexander, and

George Weeding, 1,460 acres, in Westmoreland County,

March 23, 1664 (V, 41) ; Captain John Alexander, Cap-
tain Peter Ashton and Robert Street, 2,000 acres in

Stafford County, May 6, 1668 (VI, 157). John Alexan-

der died in 1677.

Children :

2 i Robert, married
,

ii Philip, married Sarah Ashton
; daughters, Eliza,

Jane, and Sarah, mentioned as legatees in will

of his brother, Robert.

2 Robert^ Alexander (John-, Sir WiUiam^) mar-

ried . His will, probated in Stafford County,
in 1704, gave land to his sons, Robert and John, and

legacies to the daughters of his brother, Philip.

Children :

3 i Robert, married Ann Fowke or Foushee.

ii John.

3 Robert* Alexander (Robert^, John-, Sir Wil-

liam^) was born in 1688. He married Ann Fowke or

Foushee. His death occurred in 1735.

Child :

4 John, married Susanna Pearson.

4 John Alexander (Robert*, Robert^, John-, Sir

William^) was born in 1711. He married, December
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11, 1731, Susanna, daughter of Thomas Pearson, Gentle-

man. One record gives her father as Simon Pearson.

She was born December 29, 1717, and died October G,

1788. John Alexander died in 1763.

Children :

i
,
died in infancy.

5 ii Charles, married Frances Brown.

iii John, born 1739; married Barnes; set-

tled in Kentucky,

iv Ann, born 1741
;
married Charles Binns (an-

other record gives George West).

V Susannah, married, February 12, 1744, Pear-

son Chapman, her first cousin,

vi Gerard,

vii Simon Pearson.

viii Elizabeth, married, first, John Lake, second,

Alexander B. Washington,
ix Robert.

X Pearson,

xi Caty.

xii William, born in 1785; married Sarah Bruce;

died in 1803.

5 Charles'' Alexander (John^ Robert*, Robert^

John^, Sir William^) was born July 20, 1737, and resided

at Preston, near Alexandria. He married Frances,

daughter of Richard Brown (see Brown Family, No.

4) . She died in 1823, and her will was probated Decem-

ber 20, of that year. Charles Alexander's will was dated

February 22, 1802, and probated June 14, 1806.

Children :

6 i Charles, married Mary Bowles Armistead,

ii William B., mentioned in will of his brother,

Charles.
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iii Frances, married William T. Swanii (who is

named in above mentioned will as brother-in-

law).

6 Charles^ Alexander (Charles^, John^, Robert*,

Robert^, John-, Sir William^) married, in 1800, at Shoot-

ers' Hall, Mary Bowles Armistead, daughter of Bowles

and Mary (Fontaine) Armistead (see Armistead Family,
Number 41), granddaughter of William and Mary
(Bowles) Armistead, great-granddaughter of Henry and

Martha (Burwell) Armistead, of "Hesse,'' in Gloucester

County, Virginia. Henry Armistead, of "Hesse," was

the son of John and Judith (Bowles) Armistead and

grandson of William and Ann (Wallace) Armistead, of

Elizabeth City County. William Armistead was the first

of the name in Virginia (1636) (see Armistead Family,

Number 4). Charles Alexander died in 1812. His will

was dated September 28, and proved in October, of that

year (Book L, 297, Alexandria, Virginia). After dis-

posing of his estate, he adds these wise words :

"It is further my will and desire that no pains or

expense which my estate can defray be spared in giving
to my children Pious and suitable education under a full

persuasion that in this life knowledge and piety are of

infinite more value than houses, lands or estates."

The names of his children are taken from his will. He
names wife, Mary Bowles Alexander; son, Charles;

brother, William B., and brother-in-law, William F.

Swann, executors. In his codicil he leaves each child "A
neat folio edition of the Holy Scriptures." Mr. Alexan-

der was the first gentleman in Virginia to take a stand

against the after-dinner tippling then so common. He
made a rule, after the second glass of wine was passed.
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to rise with the ladies and to marshall the other gentle-

men into the drawing room.

Doctor Wilson Gary Selden, the second husband

of Mary (Armistead) Alexander, gave bond, October

28, 1817, as guardian of the children of Charles Alexan-

der (see Selden Family, Number 42). The data given

below is taken from Hayden, pages 180, etc., with addi-

tional information from members of the family.

Children :

i Charles Armistead, married late in life; no

children
;
the Earldom of Stirling was conferred

on him in 1839, with right to a seat in the House

of Lords
;

his fortune being small and the

revenue of the Stirling estate having reverted

to the Crown, he did not give up his citizen-

ship in the United States, and the title was

conferred on a Canadian claimant (see Earl of

Stirling and Lord of the Isles, King Edward IV

titles, among others).

7 ii Mary Ann Frances, married Rev. Edward
Russell Lippitt.

15 iii William Fontaine, married Anna Maria Wash-

ington,

iv Louisa Elizabeth, married Wilson Cary Selden,

Jr. (see Selden Family, No. 43).

V Laura, died aged fifteen years,

vi Alfred, died young.

7 Mary Ann Frances^ Alexande^r (Charles^,

Charles^, John^ Robert^ Robert^ John^, Sir William^)

married, October 16, 1827, Reverend Edward Russell*

Lippitt (Moses^, Jeremiah-, John^). [Hayden, with cor-

rections by Doctor Charles Edward Lippitt, grandson
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of Reverend Edward Russell Lippitt.] Jobn^ Lippitt, of

Providence (1636), had a son, Jeremiah, who married

Wiltheon Green, descended from John Green, surgeon,
in 1636, who settled in Rhode Island with Roger Williams.

Their son, Moses, was a captain in the Revolutionary
War. His son, Edward Russell Lippitt, was born in

Providence, Rhode Island, April 23, 1798, and died in

1869. He received the degree of A. B. from

Brown University in 1817; A. M. in 1820. He
was Master of the Latin School, University of

Virginia, in 1818. On September 2, 1819, he was

ordained Deacon of the Episcopal Church by Bishop

Griswold, and Priest, in 1822, by Bishop Moore, of Vir-

ginia. He was Rector at Quincy, Massachusetts
;

at

Norborne Parish, Berkeley County, Virginia, in 1821-3
;

at Germantown, Pennsylvania, in 1823-5. He was Pro-

fessor of Hebrew, Greek, and Latin, in the Theological

Seminary at Alexandria, Virginia, from 1825 to 1842,

when he resigned. In that year he became editor of the

Southern Churchman, continuing that work until 1848.

He established the "Young Ladies' Institute," at Wash-

ington, D. C, in 1849. "He was a refined gentleman, an

accurate scholar, an exemplary Christian."

Children :

8 i Charles Edward Lippitt, married Nannie Mc-
Cormick.

10 ii William Fontaine Lippitt, married Mary Lou-

isa Perry.

13 iii Laura Alexander Lippitt, married William

Byrd Page.
14 iv Armistead Selden Lippitt, married Ada Isbell.

V Mary Bowles Lippitt, died young.
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8 Dr. Charles Edward^ Lippitt (Mary Ann Fran-

ces^ Alexander, Charles^, Charles^, John'', Robert*, Rob-

ert^, John^, Sir William^) was born January 3, 1829.

He was Senior Surgeon in Armistead's Brigade, Pickett's

Division, C. S. A. He married Nannie McCormick,

January 18, 18G9. A letter from Doctor Lippitt is as

follows :

"My wiie was Nannie ]\IcCormick, second child and

daughter of Thomas and Eliza McCormick, who had

four children, Hannah Taylor, married Governor Fred

W. M. Holliday; Nannie, married Dr. C. E. Lippitt;

Eliza, died young; Thomas, married Nannie Frost Mc-

Cormick, his cousin. Thomas McCormick was the second

son and child of Samuel McCormick and Margaret

Hampton. Eliza ^IcCormick was the youngest of ten

children born to Thomas and Anne (Frost) McCormick.
This Thomas McCormick was the son, or, perhaps, grand-

son, of Francis McCormick, who was born April 17,

1731:. We have here an old English Prayer Book (10

by 15 inches), printed in London, England, in 1754, and

bought August 2, 17— (date obliterated), by Francis

McCormick. 'God give him grace,' follows his name.

This book contains many names of the McCormick, Frost,

and Hampton families, but entered without system. Also

the names of many family servants."

The two following letters from Doctor Lippitt, dated

in 1902, give further information concerning his family.

''Elmington, near Berryville,

''Clarke County, Virginia.

September 22, 1902.

"Dear Mary:
"Your letter received and I hasten to answer you.

* * 'Mt will require some little time to tabulate the in-
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formation you desire, but I will try and not keep you

waiting very long. While you are not in the line of

descent of the Alexanders, your grandmother Alexander's

children bear the same relation to you that the Selden

children do to me and I never felt or knew any differ-

ence in my relationship to either branch. As one by one

the older members of the family are called away, I

begin to feel alone in the world, and it gratified me to

find you still remembered and cared for me. I wish

we could meet and our children become acquainted. I

am clannish to an extreme. You did not mention your

family but I will tell you something of mine. Mary, you

know, is married to Mr. C. W. Wattles and is living in

Alexandria. They have one little boy who is a picture

of health and beauty. Tom has just been retired from

the Navy as Assistant Surgeon, on account of his wounds

received in Pekin, China. He is now here at home, but

subject to orders and likely to receive them in a few

weeks. Eliza (Lila, as we call her), and Nannie Fon-

taine (called Nan), are at home. Bowles Fontaine, the

youngest (but he is nineteen), is also at home. He will

probably take the farm, as I have had rheumatism for

the last six months and I cannot stand the exposure I

once did. * * ^

"C. E. LIPPITT."

"Berryville, Clarke County, Virginia.

''November 20, 1902.

''Dear Mary:—
"* * * You ask about Tom. He was in Philippine

and Japan waters when the Boxer rising took place, and

a body of Marines was ordered to Pekin to protect the

American Minister and suite. As there was no marine

medical officer, the Admiral asked for a volunteer sur-
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geon and Tom volunteered to go. It was a hard inarch

to Pekin, but the party reached there in safety, but soon

found they were prisoners. They had time to fortify

and make some preparation for defence when the attack

commenced and was kept up day and night for seven-

teen days without intermission. When not engaged in

l)rofessional duties, Tom assisted in the defence, being
several times placed in command of squads of men made

up of such troops as were in the compound. On the 29th

of June he was desperately wounded, and until December

1st, at times was at death's door. He was highly com-

mended and promoted by the President of the United

States for gallantry in assisting in the defence and at-

tention to the sick and wounded. If you ever go to

Alexandria you might go and see my Mary. She married

Mr. C. M. Wattles, agent of the Washington and Norfolk

Steamboat Company."
Doctor Lippitt died in 1907.

Children :

9 i Mary Alexander, married Charles William

Wattles,

ii Thomas McCormick, Assistant Surgeon, U. S.

N., medical officer in United States Marines

at the Siege of Pekin, China, in 1900, during
the Boxer Rebellion

; desperately wounded in

Siege and highly commended and promoted

by the President of the United States for gal-

lantry in assisting in the defence and attending
the sick and wounded,

iii Eliza, married, June 18, 1908, to Bertram

Douglas Fox, of England,
iv Edward Russell, twin brother of the above,

v Nannie Fontaine.
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vi Bowles Armistead, nineteen years of age in

1902.

9 Mary Alexander^'' Lippitt (Charles Edward^
Mary Ann Frances^ Alexander, Charles^ Charles'^,

John% Robert^ Robert^ John-, Sir William^) married,

October 18, 1899, Charles William Wattles. Mr. Wattles

was, in 1902, as stated by his wife's father. Doctor Lippitt,

in the above quoted letters, agent of the Washington and

Norfolk Steamship Company, in Alexandria, Virginia,

where he and his family resided.

Children :
'

i Thomas Lippitt Wattles, born July 25, 1900.

ii Caroline Clagett W^attles, born August 7, 1903.

iii Nannie McCormick Wattles, born July 6, 1905.

10 Dr. WillL'\m Fontaine^ Lippitt (Mary Ann
Frances^ Alexander, Charles^, Charles'', John^, Roberf*,

Robert^, John-, Sir William^) was born September 27,

1831. He married, September 9, 1859, Mary Louisa,

daughter of Honorable Thomas Perry, of Cumberland,

Maryland. William Fontaine Lippitt was educated at the

University of Virginia 1851-3, where he graduated. He
received the degree of M. D. from Jefferson College,

Philadelphia, in 1853, and practised at Charlestown, West

Virginia, where he died, March 1, 1902.

Children (see Hayden, and data furnished by Miss

Louisa C. Lippitt in 1910) :

i Edward, died in infancy.

ii Thomas Perry, graduated with degree of A. B.,

at the University of Virginia, in 1883
;
his ad-

dress is in care of A. A. C. Company, 2 Rector

New York.
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iii JMary Frances, whose address is Box 117, Rio

Piedras, Porto Rico.

11 iv William Fontaine, married ]\Iary Morsell

Craighill.

V Louisa Christiana, whose address is 2803 P.

Street, Washington, D. C.

vi Laura Alexander, married Heriot
;

ad-

dress. Box 117, Rio Piedras, Porto Rico.

vii Sargeant Van Lear, whose address is Mayag-
nez, Porto Rico.

12 viii Ida Perry, married James Edward Yates
;
ad-

dress, Sandy, Rappahannock County, X'irginia.

ix Julia Armistead, whose address is 2803 P.

Street, Washington, D. C.

X Minnie Henderson, of Washington, D. C.

11 Dr. William Fontaine^^ Lippitt (W^illiam

Fontaine^, Mary Ann Frances^ Alexander, Charles^,

Charles^, John% Robert^ Robert^ John^, Sir William^)

graduated from the University of Virginia, in 1883, with

y the degree of A. B.; M. D. in 1884. He married,

August 3, 1887, Mary Morsell, daughter of Colonel W. P.

Craighill, U. S. A., of Virginia.

Children :

i William Fontaine.

ii William Craighill, twin brother of the above,

iii Mary Morsell,

12 Ida Perry^^ Lippitt (William Fontaine^, Mary
Ann Frances^ Alexander, Charles', Charles^, John^, Rob-

ert*, Robert^, John-, Sir William^) married James Edward

Yates, of Sandy, Rappahannock County, Virginia.
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Children :

i James Edward Yates.

ii Louisa Yates,

iii William Fontaine Yates.

13 Laura Alexander-^ Lippitt (Mary Ann

Frances^, Alexander, Charles', Charles^, John-"', Robert^,

Robert''^, John-, Sir William^) married William Byrd

Page, of Clarke County, Virginia, a descendant of j\Iann

Page and Mary Selden, daughter of Samuel Selden of

Salvington (see Page Family, Number 24).

Children :

i Margaret Byrd Page, died young.
ii Mary Alexander Page, married, December 13, 1902,

Malcolm Hufty.
iii Agnes Lee Page,

iv Laura Alexander Page, died young.

14 Armistead Selden^ Lippitt (Mary Ann
Frances^ Alexander, Charles^, Charles*^, John^, Robert*,

Robert^, John-, Sir William^) was educated at William

and Mary College, where he graduated in 18G1. He
married Ada Isbell.

Children :

i Fannie, died young,
ii Laura, died young,
iii Montague Isbell.

iv Mary Armistead.

15 Dr. William Fontaine^ Alexander (Charles'^,

Charles^, John^ Robert*, Robert^ John^, Sir William^)
was born at Mount Ida, near Alexandria, Virginia,

October 31, 1811. He married, at Alount Vernon, May
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15, 1834, Anna Maria Thomasine Blackburn Washington,
sister of John Augustine Washington of Mount Vernon,

and of Richard Washington of Blakeley, and great-

granddaughter of John Augustine, brother of General

George Washington, and of Richard Henry Lee, Signers
of the Declaration of Independence (see Washington

Family, X'o. 7). They were married by Reverend Ed-

ward R. Lippitt. Anna ^^laria (Washington) Alexander

died at Blakeley, March 29 (Good Friday), 1850, "a

devout Christian, a faithful wife, and devoted mother.

She died in the assured hope of a blessed immortality,

aged thirty-two years, four months, and twenty-four

days."

Doctor Alexander married, second, Mary C., daughter
of Joseph Bradley of Washington, and widow of Charles

Sherman. By her he had no children.

Doctor William Fontaine Alexander died at his home,
Walnut Farm, in Jefferson County, Virginia, January 7,

1862.

Children (by first wife) :

i Jean Charlotte, married, in 1864, Dr. John A.

Straith, Surgeon, C. S. A.
;
two children, died

in infancy; she died April 8, 1885, in the home
of her brother-in-law, Captain Thomas Davis

Ranson, of Staunton, Virginia, in whose family
she had lived since her husband's death, in 1872.

ii Wilson Gary, died young,
iii Louisa Fontaine, died young,
iv John Augustine, died young.
V Charles Armistead, died of fever while a prison-

er of war at Fort Delaware, in INIarch, 1864.

16 vi M2Lry Fontaine, married Capt. Thomas Davis

Ranson.

vii Annie liurnette, died young.
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16 Mary Fontaine^ /Alexander (William Fon-

taine*, Charles^ Charles*^, John^, Robert*, Robert^, John-,

Sir William^) was born at Walnut Farm, the family

residence, in Jefferson Comity, Virginia, March 12, 1845.

She was married at Charlestown, April 12, 1871, by
Reverend William H. Meade, at Lion Episcopal Church,

to Captain Thomas Davis Ranson, son of James M. and

Mary Eleanor (Baldwin) Ranson, of Jefferson County.

The mother of Thomas David Ranson was the daughter
of Judge Briscoe Gerard Baldwin, of the Virginia Court

of Appeals. Mr. Ranson was educated at Washington

College, at the University of Virginia, where he gradu-

ated, B. L., in 18G8. He enlisted, in April, 1861, as pri-

ate, Company , Second Virginia Volunteers, Stone-

wall's Brigade. He afterward was made Sergeant-

Major of the Fifty-second Virginia Infantry, and Lieu-

tenant, Company I, of the same. He was wounded at

Cross Keys and resigned, re-enlisting in Baylor's Light
Horse ''Laurel Brigade"; detailed to secret service as

Captain of Scouts
;
taken prisoner to Fort McHenry

and elsewhere from 1864 to June, 1865.

Thomas David Ranson is a lawyer of Staunton, Mr-

ginia, in which place Mary Fontaine (Alexander) Ran-

son died at "Oakenwold," March 6. 1885. Her sister,

Jean Charlotte (Alexander) Straith, the only survivor

of the family, died at the same place, April 8, 1885.

Thomas David Ranson married, as his second wife,

Janetta Ravenscroft Harrison, of Augusta County, Vir-

ginia. They were married January 5, 1887, at West Hill.

She died July 28, 1893. His children by her were Jean
Harrison Ranson, died in infancy, July 6, 1888

;
Thomas

Davis Ranson, Junior, born at Staunton, June 17, 1890;

Margaret Randolph Ranson, born at Staunton, October
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IG, 1891; I Iciiry Harrison Ranson, born at Staunton,

August 2, 1803. Thomas Davis Ranson married, third,

February 15, 1899, at Richmond, Virginia, Margaret
Fisher Warren, of that city. By her he had a son, Ed-

ward Warren Ranson, born at Staunton, September 16,

1903. By his first wife, Mary Fontaine (Alexander)

Ranson, he had the following:

Children :

17 i Charlotte Alexander Ranson, married Herbert

J. Taylor.

ii John Baldwin Ranson, born at Staunton, Jan-

uary 4, 1874; a lawyer and partner of his

father.

18 iii Maria Washington Ranson, married Joseph An-

derson Glasgow.
iv Marv Fontaine Ranson, born at Staunton,

February 15, 1877 ;
married at Oakenwold,

May 11, 1898, Alfred Jappe; resides at Staun-

ton.

V Eleanor Straith Ranson, born at Staunton,

June 29, 1879
;
married at Staunton, June 17,

1903, Dr. William Holmes Yeakley, of Win-

chester, Virginia ; they reside at Davis, Tucker

County, West Virginia.

vi I\Iary Eleanor Ranson, born at Staunton, June

6, 1882
;
resides at Oakenwold.

17 Charlotte Alexander^*^ Ranson (Mary Fon-

taine^ Alexander, William Fontaine^, Charles^, Charles'^,

John^, Robert*, Robert', John^, Sir William^) was born

at Staunton, Virginia, April 12, 1872. She married, May
22, 1902, Herbert J. Taylor, a lawyer, and they reside at

Staunton.
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Child :

i Frances Taylor, born April 6, 1903
;
died at Staunton,

February 28, 1904.

18 Maria Washington^^ Ranson (Mary Fon-

taine^ Alexander, William Fontaine^, Charles'^, Charles^,

Jolin^, Robert*, Robert^, John-, Sir William^) was born

at Staunton, September 29, 1875. She married, Decem-

ber 16, 1896, Joseph Anderson Glasgow, a lawyer, re-

siding at Staunton.

Children :

i Elizabeth Ranson Glasgow, born at Staunton, April

28, 1900.

ii Eleanor Baldwin Glasgow, born at Staunton, January

11, 1903.
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LEE FAMILY

Richard^ Lee, of Shropshire, the progenitor of the

Lee family of Virginia, came to America in 16^1, under

the protection of his friend Sir Wihiam Berkeley, the

Governor, and favorite under Charles L He had ceded

to him by the Crown broad acres in York County, on

which he built his manor, near Green Spring, the Berke-

ley home. He became a noted man in tile Colony, having

many grants of new lands, and many offices of honor

and profit under Berkeley and succeeding Governors.

He was Burgess, Justice, Secretary of State, and Member
of the King's Council at different times. In physique he

was imposing and handsome
;
in character, dignified, gen-

erous, and loyal to his friends. He and his sons owned

many plantations in the Northern Neck, including the

estates of "Stafford," Ditchley," "Lee Hall," "Langley,"
and "Coton," all named from old English seats of the

family. He married Ann . At his death, in 1663,

he was succeeded by his son, Richard, and from him the

family divided into three branches, the Stratford line of

Richard^; the Ditchley line, of Hancock Lee (who built

"Ditchley" in 1688), and the Cobb's Hall line, founded

by Charles Lee, the youngest son of Richard-. The
children of Richard and Ann Lee were:

i John, died unmarried.

2 ii Richard, married Letitia Corbin.

iii Francis.

iv William,

v Hancock, married Mary Kendall, daughter of

317
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Col. William Kendall, their daughter, Anna,

married William Armistead (see Armistead

Family, No. 4).

vi Elizabeth.

vii Ann.

viii Charles.

2 Richard^ Lee (Richard^) was born in 1G47. He
was educated at Oxford, England. In 1G74 he married

Letitia, daughter. of Henry and Ahce (Eltonhead) Gor-

bin, who was born in 1G57, and died October G, 170G (see

Corbin Family, Number 1).

Letitia (Corbin) Lee left in her will, ''to my son

Henry, my grandfather Corbin's wedding ring.'' Richard

Lee died at his home. Mount Pleasant, in Westmoreland

County, Virginia, in March, 1714. Llis children were:

i John, died unmarried.

ii Richard, founder of the Stratford line of the

family.

iii Philip, removed to Alaryland.

iv Francis, died without male issue.

3 V Thomas, married, first, Lady Berkeley, and.

second, Hannah Ludwell.

8 vi Henry, married Mary Bland.

vii Ann, married, first, Col. William Fitzhugh ;

she was the ancestress of Gen. R. E. Lee; she

married, second, Daniel McCarty, of the Parish

of Cople, Westmoreland County, Virginia ;
he

was born in 1G79, and died March 4, 1724.

3 Thomas^ Lee (Richard-, Richard^) was promi-

nent in the affairs of the Colony, and particularly so in

the settlement of Indian difficulties. His first wife was
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the celebrated Lady Berkeley, and his second wife was

Hannah, daughter of Colonel Philip and Hannah (Har-

rison) Ludwell. The following data relating to the Lud-

weli family is from the Virginia Historical Magazine,
Volume iv, page 162.

Philip Ludwell, the father of Hannah Ludwell, who
married Thomas Lee, was son of Philip Ludwell of

''Green Spring," James City County, Virginia, who was

Governor of Carolina and long a member of the Virginia
Council. He married Lucy, daughter of Robert Higgin-
son and widow of Lewis Burwell and William Bernard.

Their son, Philip (the father of Hannah, wife of Thomas

Lee), was born at Carter's Creek, Gloucester County, and

died January 11, 1726-7. He was a member of the

Council and Auditor-General of Virginia. He married,

November 11, 1697, Hannah, daughter of Benjamin Har-

rison of Wakefield, and sister of the wife of Doctor

Blair. They had three children : Lucy, who married

Colonel John Grimes of Brandon, Middlesex County,
Receiver-General and member of Council

; Hannah, who
married Thomas Lee

;
and Philip, born at "Green

Spring," December 28, 1716, married Frances, daughter
of Charles Grimes of Richmond, member of Council, who
died in England, March 25, 1767, the male line of this

Ludwell family ending with him.

Thomas Lee built the manor of Stratford, in West-

moreland County, where he entertained in princely style.

Westmoreland is one of a group of Counties lying be-

tween the Rappahannock and Potomac Rivers. It was

originally a portion of Northumberland County, and,

although small in area, is great in the annals of history.

Within a space of thirty miles in length, and an average
width of fifteen miles, were born statesmen, soldiers and
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patriots, whose lives and characters adorn the pages '^^

American history. When Stratford was burned Queen
CaroHne sent Thomas Lee a large sum from her privy

purse, accompanied by an autograph letter. Stratford

was rebuilt on an imposing scale and became the prop-

erty of "Light Horse Harry Lee," on his marriage with

]\Iatilda, daughter of Philip Ludwell Lee, and grand-

daughter of Thomas Lee. It was the birthplace of Gen-

eral Robert Edward Lee, and of two of the Signers of

the Declaration of Independence. The house was built

in the shape of the letter "H." On the roof were sum-

mer houses, where the band played in the evening, and

the ladies and gentlemen promenaded. The following

article is copied from a newspaper of recent date :

''The Virginia State Camp, Patriotic Order, Sons of

America, has secured an option on Stratford, Westmore-

land county, Va., the birthplace of Gen. Robert E. Lee

and other Lees, and has placed it in hands of a com-

mittee appointed by that body to be known as the ''Lee

birthplace memorial committee,'' composed of the State

president, vice president, State master of forms. State

secretary, State treasurer, with an advisory committee,

composed of Claude A. Swanson, governor of Virginia,

chairman; Robert E. Lee, Jr., of Fairfax county, and

Senator John W^ Daniel, of Virginia.

"The purpose of this committee is to raise money by

popular subscription in an amount up to $100, small sub-

scriptions preferred, in order that more may have the

opportunity to contribute.

"When the property is paid for and restored to its

former magnificence, it will be presented to the State of

\'irginia in trust for the people as a memorial to the Lee

family, and a room in the building will be dedicated to
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each of the following Lees who were born or lived

there. This Lee family has produced more men who be-

came famous in our country's history than any other

that we have a record of, and more famous men were

born at Stratford than any other of our colonial homes.

The family was founded in this country by Col. Richard

Lee, who emigrated here in 1641, as secretary to Sir

William Berkeley ; was in the privy council of Charles

I; presided at the council of state; represented York

countv as buro-ess in 1G47
;
Northumberland countv in

1657; was secretary of state in 1659; tradition credits

him with being the first white man to settle in the North-

ern Neck; represented Westmoreland county on the to-

bacco commission in 1663; died early in 1664, and was

buried in Northumberland county.

"It was on one of his land grants from the crown of

England that Stratford was afterward built.

Col. Thomas Lee. builder of Stratford Hall, was born

in Westmoreland county; president of king's council

and commander-in-chief of Virginia; made the treaty

with the Indians which gave us the lands west of the

mountains as far as the Ohio River; was acting colonial

governor of \^irginia in 1749 and appointed by the crown

governor in 1750, but died before the commission reached

him. He was the only Virginia-born citizen who ever

received that appointment; was vestryman in the church

where George Washington was christened
;
died and was

buried at Mount Pleasant in Westmoreland county. Col.

Thomas Lee built Stratford Hall in 16*^7 with bricks

brousiht from England, and Oueen Caroline contributed

its cost from her own private purse. He had six sons

born at Stratford, all of whom became famous. They
were :
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Philip Ludwell Lee, Thomas Ludwell Lee, Richard

Henr)^ Lee, Francis Lightfoot Lee, WilHam Lee, and

Arthur Lee.

Gen. Henry Lee (Lighthorse Harry), who was born

at Leesylvania, January 29, 1756, became master of Strat-

ford through his marriage to Matilda, who was born

there, daughter of Philip Ludwell Lee.

Maj. Henry Lee, son of Gen. Henry Lee, was born at

Stratford in 1787
; major Twelfth United States infantry

in the war of 1812. In 1829 appointed by President

Jackson LTnited States consul to Palermo, but the Senate

rejected it on political grounds, and he returned in 1830;

served as Jackson's private secretary, and secretary of

legation to Paris under United States Minister Lewis

Cass, 1836-37. Died in Paris January 30, 1837.

Charles Carter Lee, son of Gen. Henry Lee, was born

at Stratford November 8, 1798. Graduated from Har-

vard 1819. He possessed a mind of superior order, was

a brilliant conversationalist, and noted for his keen wit.

Was a lawyer by profession: died March 21, 187L and

buried at his home, \Mndsor Forest, Powhatan county.

Va.

Sydney Smith Lee, son of Gen. Henry Lee, was born

at Stratford September 2, 1802
;
entered United States

navy December 30, 1820 ; went with Commander Perry to

Japan in command of his flagship ;
commandant L'^nited

States navy yard at Philadelphia, Pa., 1861
; accepted

service in navy of Confederate States, and assumed com-

mand of Norfolk navy yard May 27, 1862
; Drury's

Bluff, 1862-63
;
chief of bureau of orders and details,

1864-65; died at Richland, Staft'ord county, Va., July

22, 1869.

Gen. Robert Edward Lee, son of Gen. Henry Lee, was
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born at Stratford, Westmoreland county, Va., January

19, 1807.

Thomas Lee was buried at Pope's Creek Church, five

miles from Stratford. He left six sons, celebrated for

their brilliant characters and pre-eminence in the stirring

times before the Revolution. When the Westmoreland

Declaration against the Stamp Act was signed, in 1765,

four of their names were found upon it. Two of the

brothers signed the Declaration of Independence, Rich-

ard Henry Lee, and Francis Lightfoot Lee. Both the

Virginia Signers were born in the same room at Strat-

ford, wherein the great Confederate General first saw

the light seventy-five years later. The children of Thom-
as Lee were:

i Philip Ludwell, born 1727; died 1775.

4 ii Richard Henry, married Ann Aylett ; Signer of

the Declaration of Independence,
iii Francis Lightfoot, Signer of the Declaration

of Independence ;
married Rebecca Plater

Tayloe, daughter of Hon. John Tayloe and

Rebecca Plater, whose mother was Rebecca

Addison (see Addison Family, No. 5).

iv Thomas Ludwell, born 1730; died 1778.

V William,

vi Arthur.

4 Richard Henry* Lee (Thomas^ Richard-, Rich-

ard^) was born January 20, 1732, at Stratford. He was

a Signer of the Declaration of Independence. The fol-

lowing account of him is from ''Virginia, a History of the

People" :

"Richard Henry Lee belonged to a distinguished fam-

ily of the 'Northern Neck,' between the Rappahannock
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and the Potomac. He was born at 'Stratford/ in West-

moreland, in January, 173.2, and was thus nearly of the

exact age of Washington. All the traditions of his fam-

ily were Cavalier. He was a descendant of the Richard

i Lee who had plotted wnth Berkeley to set up the flag of

Charles H in Virginia, and his ancestors had been noted,

in all generations, for their royalist sentiments. To look-

to such a family for a leader against the Crown seemed

hopeless, and yet Richard Henry Lee was to prove as

much an extremest as Patrick Henry. He was educated

in England, and, from his early manhood, took part in

public affairs. As early as 1768, he conceived the

\
scheme of the 'Committees of Correspondence,' and. in

\ 1773, procured its adoption in the House of Burgesses.

\His fame as the mover of the Delcaration of Independ-
^ence was yet to come.

"Lee was at this time forty-two years old, graceful in

person, extremely cordial in his manners, and so elegant

a speaker that he was said to have practised his gestures

before a mirror. He was called 'The Gentleman of the

Silver Hand,' and wore a black bandage on one hand to

hide a wound he received while shooting sw^ans on the

Potomac. He lived at 'Chantilly,' in Westmoreland, and

enjoyed the regard and respect of the entire community ;

a quiet gentleman, full of suave courtesy, who seemed

anything but a Revolutionist, and yet, of all the great

leaders of Virginia at that time, none was readier to go
all lengths in resisting the Crown."

Richard Henry Lee married Ann Aylett.

At Nominy Church, on the creek of the same name,

there was at the time of the destruction of the building

by the British in 1814, a tomb commemorative of the

first wife of Hon. Richard Henry Lee, the inscription on
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which, as found among Mr. Lee's papers, and pubhshed

by Dr. E. Jennings Lee, is as follows :

Sacred to the Memory
of Mrs. Ann Lee, wife of R. H. Lee

This monument was erected by her

Afflicted husband in the year 17G8.

Reflect, dear reader, on the great

L^ncertainty of human life, since neither

esteem, temperament nor the most amiable

goodness could save this excellent lady from death.

In the bloom of life. She left behind her four children,

two sons and two daughters.

Obiit 12th December 1768, xt 30.

Was there so precious a flower

But given us to behold it waste,

The short-lived blossom of an hour

Too nice, too fair, too sweet to last.

Mrs. Lee was the younger of the two daughters of

Capt. William Aylett's second marriage with Elizabeth

Eskridge, daughter of Major George Eskridge, of Sandy
Point. Her sister Mary married Mr. Lee's brother.

Thomas Ludwell. Her half-sisters by her father's prev-

ious marriage with Anne Ashton, were Elizabeth and

Ann, who respectively married William Booth and W'.

Augustine Washington. Mrs. Lee's mother, after Captain

Aylett's death, about 1744, married again, Col. James

Steptoe, a widower with two daughters, Elizabeth and

Ann, who married Philip Ludwell Lee, and Willoughb}-

Allerton, and after their deaths P. R. Fendall and Samuel

W^ashington. The four children referred to as surviving

Mrs. Lee were Thomas, who afterwards settled in Prince

William county, Ludwell, who went to Loudoun
;
Han-

nah, who married Corbin Washington, and Mary, who
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married William Augustine Washington. Mrs. Lee was

buried in the old burial ground under the hills at Mount

Pleasant.

His second wife was Mrs. Ann Gaskins Packard.

Children (by first wife) :

i Thomas, married Mildred Washington (see

Washington Family, No. 5).

5 ii Ludwell, married, first. Flora Ludwell, second,

Elizabeth Armistead.

iii Hannah, married Corbin Washington (see

Washington Family, No. 6).

iv Mary, married William Augustine Washington

(see Washington Family, No. 5).

(by second wife) :

V Sarah, married Edmund Jennings Lee (see

Number 16).

5 Ludwell^ Lee (Richard Henry*, Thomas^,

Richard", Richard^) was twice married, first, about Janu-

ary 23, 1788, to his first cousin. Flora Ludwell, daughter
o'f Philip Ludwell and Elizabeth Steptoe, of Stratford,

by whom he had three children, and, second to Elizabeth,

daughter of Bowles and ]\lary (Fontaine) Armistead, and

sister of ]\Irs. Wilson Gary Selden (see Armistead Fam-

ily, No. 41), whom he married in 1797, and by whom he

had six children. Elizabeth (Armistead) Lee is said to

have borne a striking resemblance to her cousin, Dolly

Madison. He resided, first, at Shooter's Hill, near

Alexandria, and later at Belmont, near Leesburg, Vir-

ginia. His first wife died and was buried at Shooter's

Hill. Her tomb was to be seen there before the late war

between the States. Ludwell Lee was buried at Belmont.
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Children (by first wife),
i Richard Henry.
ii Cecilia, born in 1790; married James L. Mc-

Kenna; no children.

"*6 iii Eliza Matilda, born September 13, 1791; mar-

ried Richard H. Love.

Children (by second wife) :

iv Mary Ann, born April 8, 1798; married Gen.

Robert B. Campbell of South Carolina.

7 V Ellen McMacken, married, first, Thomas Bed-

ford, and, second. Rev. Nathaniel Phippen

Knapp.
vi Elizabeth Armistead, born March 23, 180-1;

married Wilson Cary Selden; died May 23,

1887
;
the following is her obituary : ''Entered

into rest at the residence of Rev. J. R. Joyner,

Berlin, Worcester County, Maryland, 23 of

May, 1887, Mrs. Elizabeth A. Selden, in the

84th year of her age, daughter of Hon. Ludwell

Lee, of Belmont, Loudoun County, Virginia,

and widow of the late Wilson Cary Selden, of

Exeter, near Leesburg, Virginia." (See Selden

Family, No. 43.)

vii Emily, died in 1875, unmarried,

viii Francis Lightfoot, married Miss Rogers, of

South Carolina; no issue.

ix Bowles Armistead, no record of him ; a cadet

from Virginia, of his name, entered West Point

in 1828.

6 Eliza Matilda^ Lee (LudwelF, Richard Henry'*,

Thomas^, Richard^, Richard^) was born September 13,

1791. She married Richard H. Love of Fairfax County,
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in 1811. He was the brother of Eleanor (Love) Selden,

second wife of Doctor Wilson Gary Selden (see Selden

Family, Number 42). She died January 22, 1875. They
had six children,

i Thomas Love, died young,
ii Ludwell Love, died young,
iii Richard Love, U. S. N.

;
born in 1815

;
married

Martha Ann Pearson
;
died in 1855.

iv Cecilia Matilda Love, born in 1823
; married, in

1844, Lewis Addison Armistead, U. S. N.
;
died in

1850.

V John Love, of Indiana, born in 1820
;
a graduate of

West Point
;
General in U. S. Army ;

married Mary
F. Smith; no children: died in 1881.

vi Flora Lee Love, married Rev. William Johnston, of

the Episcopal Ghurch, at whose home Mrs. Love died.

7 Ellen McMacken" Lee (LudwelP, Richard

Henry*, Thomas', Richard-', Richard^) was born April

5, 1802. She married, first, Thomas Bedford of Ken-

tucky, by whom she had one child. She married, second,

in 1841, the Reverend Nathaniel Phippen Knapp, of

Mobile, Alabama, by whom she had two children.

Ghildren :

i Bedford (child by first husband).

(by second husband) :

ii Ludwell Lee Knapp, born in 1845
;
died in 1883.

iii Garoline Frances Knapp, born in July, 1847
;
married,

January 9, 1873, Rev. John Richard Joyner.

8 Henry^ Lee (Richard-, Richard^) of Leesyl-

vania, Prince William Gounty, was born in 1729. He
was a member of the House of Burgesses and took part
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in all the stirring events of the times. Governor Spotts-

wood appointed him to succeed his father as a naval

officer of the Potomac. He married Mary, daughter of

Theodoric Bland of Westover. They had three sons, all

of whom were members of the Colonial House of Bur-

gesses. Henry Lee died in 1787. The on'y child whose

descendants have been traced in this genealogy is his

son, Henry.
Children :

9 ^ i Henry, who married, first, ]\Iatilda Ludwell

Lee, second, Ann Hill Carter,

ii Anne, married William Byrd Page (see Page

Family, No. 25).

9 Gov. Henry* Lee (Henry^ Richard-, Richard^),

born in 1756, was graduated from Princeton College in

1773. He was for three vears Governor of Viro^inia, and

her representative in Congress. He was the celebrated

cavalry officer of the Revolution under the sobriquet,

''Light Horse Harry Lee." He married, first, his cousin,

Matilda, daughter of Philip Ludwell Lee, thereby be-

coming the owner of the Stratford estate shortly after the

surrender of Lord Cornwallis. He married, second. June

18, 1794, Ann Hill Carter, daughter of Charles Carter,

of Shirley (see Carter Lineage). She was born at Shir-

ley, in 1773. On the death of Washington, Governor

Lee spoke that eulogy of him which has become immortal,

little dreaming that his youngest son would have it fitted

to him so closely thereafter. Governor Lee died in 1818.

Children :

i Henry (son of first wife),
ii Charles.

10 iii Sidney Smith, married Ann Maria Mason.
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13 iv Robert Edward, married Mary Randolph
Custis.

16 V Edmund Jennings, married^ first, Lucy Grymes,

second, Sarah Lee.

vi Ann.

vii Mildred.

10 Sidney Smith^ Lee (Henry*, Henry^, Richard^,

Richard^) married Ann Maria, daughter of General John
and Nancy (Murray) Mason (see Mason Family, No.

13), and granddaughter of George Mason, of Gunston.

His sons were,

11 i Fitzhugh, married Ellen Barnard Fowle.

ii Sidney Smith, died in 1887 without issue.

12 iii Major John Mason, now resides at Stratford;

married Nora, daughter of Dr. Bankhead.

11 Gen. Fitzhugh^ Lee (Sidney Smithy Henry*,

Henrys Richard", Richard^), Governor of Virginia, mar-

ried Ellen Barnard, daughter of William Fowle of Alex-

andria. He died at Washington, April 28, 1905. The fol-

lowing is from the Literary Digest:

'There is no man in the South, and no man in the

United States," says the New York Times, "who con-

tributed more than Fitzhugh Lee to form, after the

division of the Civil War, 'a more perfect union.' And
this not by any overt proceedings of his own in that di-

rection, but by the mere force of his generous nature."

The Times continues :

"It is twenty years since the attention of the hundreds

of thousands of New Yorkers who turned out to witness

the funeral procession of General Grant was attracted

by the only mounted man in that impressive array who
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was in civilian's dress. Inquiring, they learned that the

horseman thus made conspicuous was Fitzhugh Lee, the

Governor of Virginia. His participation would have been

more in evidence as a sign of reunion if he had worn a

Confederate uniform. But for this the time was not yet

ripe. The same generosity and good feeling that this

incident denoted were the qualities which have endeared

Fitzhugh Lee to his countrymen, including those who,
a Httle more than forty years ago, he would have denied

to be his countrymen."
From the same paper we cull the following account

of General Fitzhugh Lee's career:

Fitzhugh Lee was born in Clermont, Fairfax County,

Va., on November 19, 1835, and was sixty-nine years old.

A nephew of Robert E. Lee, the famous Confederate

general, and a grandson of Gen. Henry E. Lee, the noted

'Light Horse Harry' of the Revolutionary War, he came

from a family of famous soldiers. He graduated at

West Point in 1856, and entered upon his first miHtary
service on the Western frontier, where he engaged in

some spirited combats with the Indians in Texas.

After liis Indian fighting Fitzhugh Lee was ordered

back to West Point as an instructor in cavalry tactics.

The outbreak of the Civil War found him serving in

that capacity. He promptly resigned and offered his

services to the Confederacy. It was as a cavalry leader

that Lee displayed the greatest courage and skill during

the Civil War. The very last stroke of the Army of

Northern Virginia was the cavalry charge led by Fitz-

hugh Lee at Farmville, near Appomattox, on April 8,

1865. He succeeded in driving back General Crook's

cavalry division, and held the situation he thus gained

against fearful odds, until vSheridan and Ord arrived,
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and, throwing an overwhelming force aganist Lee's hand-

ful of men, put an end to the struggle of the Confederacy.

The next day Gen. Robert E. Lee and General Grant

settled the terms of the surrender. Fitzhugh Lee was

present at the memorable meeting.

After the war P'itzhugh Lee returned to his home in

Stafford County, Va. For the next few years he applied

himself to farming. Like the majority of the other great

Confederate fighters, he accepted the result of the war

philosophically and was one of the first recognized leaders

of the Confederacy to preach the gospel of peace. He
was elected Governor of Virginia in 1885. Fitzhugh

Lee rendered his greatest service to his country during

the Spanish war and the period that immediately pre-

ceded and followed that epoch in American history. For

many years he held the responsible position of consul-

general at Havana. After the war he became military

governor of Havana during the American occupation.

General Lee was appointed to the regular army with

rank of brigadier-general in February, 1901. For a

time he was in command of the Department of Missouri.

He retired for age from the army the following March.

A widow and five children survive him.

Children :

i Ellen, married Capt. Rhea, of the 7th U. S. Cavalry.

ii Anne, married Lieut. Lewis Brown, of the 7th U. S.

Cavalry,

iii Virginia, married Lieut. John Carter Montgomery, of

the 7th U. S. Cavalry,

iv Fitzhugh, of the 7th U. S. Cavalry.

V George ]\lason.

12 Major John Mason® Lee (Sidney Smithy
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iienry^, Henry", Richard-, RicharcP) married Nora,

daughter of Doctor Bankhead, and now resides at

Stratford.

Children :

i Henry Carter,

ii John Mason, married Sally B. Johnston, and resides

at Richmond,

iii Daniel ^lanry.

13 Gen. Robert Edward^ Lee (Henry"^, Henry",

Richard", Richard^) was born at Stratford, Westmore-

land County, Virginia, January 19, 1807. He married

Mary Ann Randolph Custis, daughter of George Wash-

ington Parke Custis, of Arlington, and Mary Lee Fitz-

hugh, his wife. She was born at Arlington, October 1,

1808, and died at Lexington, A^'irginia, November 5, 18T3.

General Lee died October 12, 1870. The following article

commemorates his birthday:

Gen. Robert E. Lee, the great Confederate commander,
was born in Westmoreland county, Mrginia, January 19,

1807. This is his birthday, and it will be celebrated gener-

ally throughout the South and by Confederate societies

in this and other States. Of all the great figures of the

Civil War, General Lee was perhaps the most im-

posing, and lie is today one of the noblest patterns of the

soldier. No one ever impugned his motives. Nunj ever

denied his unselfishness and his purity of purpose. He
was a martyr to his patriotic devotion to his native State.

He did not approve of the policy of secession, and, with

his military knowledge, it is likely that he did not expect

the success of the cause he adopted. He had had a long

and honorable career in the United States Army and

was devoted to the service. Every inducement was of-
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fered to him to remain in it. The place of commander-in-

chief of the army of the United States was urged upon
him. If he had accepted that offer we can only speculate

as to the result. But no inducements were sufficient to

cause him to take arms against his mother State and his

own people. In his conduct of the war General Lee

gained an imperishable fame. Lord Wolseley, afterward

commander-in-chief of the British Army, who accom-

panied Lee in one of his campaigns, declared that he was

the greatest English-speaking general since the Duke of

Marlborough, not even excepting the Duke of Wellington.

In his manner of life after the close of the war, in the

dignity of his retirement to the position of president of

Washington College at L-exington, which had, of course,

been wrecked by the war
;
in the calmness and sincerity

with which he accepted the result of the great conflict

and in the advice which he gave to his surviving com-

rades the grandeur of Lee's character was sublime. It

is no mean tribute to him that those who were most bitter

against the Confederate cause and considered it a wicked

rebellion have selected General Lee as one of the national

heroes to go into the so-called ''Hall of Fame." But this

distinction can add nothing to his glory.

In some of his personal characteristics, in his unselfish

patriotism and self-sacrificing devotion to his cause, in

his qualities as a military commander, Lee perhaps ap-

proaches more nearly to the august character of Wash-

ington than any other American. As a military com-

mander he was Washington's superior. Whether he

would have measured up to him as a statesman can

never be known, because in this he was never tested.

But these two great and good men seem always associat-

ed together.
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As we have said, Lee was a pattern for the American

soldier in his fearless devotion to duty, his gallantry,

his humanity, his chivalry, his purity of life. If the

young soldiers at West Point would study this pattern

and emulate his virtues it would do a vast deal in re-

forming those evils at the academy which so badly need

reforming, and which in some way almost seem the

manifestation of the less elevated spirit of these times.

In his speech at a memorial meeting in Richmond

Jefferson Davis said: "When the monument we build

shall have crumbled into dust his virtues will still live—
a high model for the imitation of generations yet unborn."

The tribute of Benjamin Hill, of Georgia, to General Lee

has been quoted until it is trite. Nevertheless, on Lee's

birthday it may be quoted here again : ''He was," said

Mr. Hill, ''a foe without hate, a friend without treachery,

a soldier without cruelty and a victim without murmur-

ing. He was a public officer without vices, a private

citizen without wrong, a neighbor without reproach, a

Christian without hypocrisy and a man without guilt.

He was Caesar without his ambition. Frederick without

his tyranny. Napoleon without his selfishness and Wash-

ington without his reward. He was as obedient to author-

ity as a servant and royal in authority as a king. He was

as gentle as a woman in life, pure and modest as a virgin

in thought, watchful as a Roman vestal, submissive to

law as Socrates and grand in battle as Achilles."

Children :

i General George Washington Custis, of Ravens-

worth,

ii Mary Custis.

14 iii William Henry Fitzhugh, married, first, Char-

lotte Wickham, and, second, Mary Tabb

Boiling.
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iv Ann Carter, died in 1862.

V Eleanor Agnes, died eight years after the sur-

render (in the Civil War).
15 vi Robert Edward, married, first, Charlotte Hayall,

second, Annie Carter,

vii Mildred, died in JMarch, 11J05.

14 William Henry Fitzhugh^ Lee (Robert Ed-

^vard^ Henry^ Henry^ Richard-, Richard^) married, first,

Charlotte Wickham, and, second, Mary Tabb Boiling.
Their children were,

i Col. R. E. Lee.

ii Dr. Boiling Lee.

15 Captain Robert Edward*^ Lee (Robert Ed-
wards Henry^, Henry', Richard", Richard^) married

first, Charlotte Hayall, by whom he had no children. His
second wife was Annie Carter. They had two children,
who reside at Romancoke, near West Point.
i Mary Custis.

ii y\nn Carter.

16 Edmund Jexxings^ Lee (Henry*, Henrys.
Richard-, Richard') was born at Leesylvania. Prince
William County, \'irginia. May 20, 1772. He married,
first, Lucy Grymes. His second wife, whom he married
about P799, was Sarah, youngest daughter of Richard

Henry Lee of Chantilly, by his second, wife, Mrs. Ann
Gaskins Packard. (See Number 4.) She was born at

Chantilly, November 27, 1775, and died at Alexandria,
May 8, 1837. Edmund Jennings Lee died at his home in

Alexandria, May 30, 1843. Their children were,
i Edmund [enninirs.

17 ii Anne Harriottc, married John Llovd.
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17 Anne Harriotte*^ Lee (Edmund Jennings^,

Henry"', Henry^, Richard", Richard^) was born March 6,

1799. She married, November 2, 1820, John Lloyd of

Alexandria, who was born November 16, 1775, and died

July 22, 185-1. Anne Harriotte (Lee) Lloyd died Sep-
tember 10, 1863. The}^ had six children,

i Edmund Jennings Lloyd.
ii Rebecca Lloyd, born June 7, 1S2 1

;
married May 2,

1844, Doctor John Prosser Tabb, of Gloucester Coun-

ty (see "Lee Family of Virginia," page 382, for

Tabb family) ;
five children; died July 17, 1873.

iii Anna Harriotte Lloyd, married Rev. John Stearns,

iv George Francis Lloyd, married Mary Pindle Ham-
mond.

V Jean Charlotte Lloyd, married Philip F. Teatman.

vi Mary Lloyd, died unmarried.
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Arms : Argent two bars gules, in chief three mullets

of the second.

Crests: (1) Out of a ducal coronet or a raven, wings
endorsed proper. (2) Out of a ducal coronet or an

eagle, wings endorsed sable.

Motto : Exitus acta probat.

Sir Robert^ Dymoke, of Scrivelsby Court, Lincoln-

shire, England, married Lady Anne Sparrow. Their son,

Sir Edward- Dymoke, married Lady Anne Talbois.

Their daughter,

Lady Frances^ Dymoke, married Sir Thomas

Wyndebanks. Their daughter,
Mildred* Wyndebanks, married Robert Reade.

Their son.

Colonel George^ Reade, married Elizabeth, daugh-
ter of Captain Nicholas Martian. Their daughter,

Mildred® Reade, married Colonel Augustine Warn-
er. Their daughter.

Mildred^ Warner, married Lawrence Washington,
son of John Washington and Ann Broadhurst.

Lawrence^ Washington, of Northampton, England, and

Gray's Inn, Mayor of Northampton, a town under the

same civil law as London, and whose Mayors were all

freemen of the various Craft-Guilds, was the ancestor of

George Washington. He was the son of John Washing-
ton, of Warton, and his wife, Margaret, sister of Sir

Thomas Kitson, Knight and Alderman of London, in

the reign of Henry VIII. John and Lawrence, the

343
f
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emigrants to A irginia, in 1659, were descended in the

eighth generation from John Washington, of W'hitefield,

County of Lancaster, England.

CoL JoHx^ Washington emigrated to Virginia in

1659. He was twice married. His second wife was Ann,

daughter of Nathaniel Pope, whom he married about

1659. His will, probated January 10, 1677, mentions his

children, Lawrence, John, and Ann.

Children :

1 i Lawrence, married Mildred Warner,

ii John.
iii Ann.

1 Lawrence- Washington (John^) married Mil-

dred, daughter of Colonel Augustine Warner, of Glou-

cester County.
Children :

2 i John, married Catherine Whiting.
3 ii Augustine, married, first, Jane Butler, second

Mary Ball.

iii A daucrhter.'&'

2 JOHN-^ Washington (Lawrence-, John^) mar-

ried Catherine Whiting, of Gloucester.

Children :

i Warner,

ii Henry.
iii Mildred, married Lewis Willis (see Willis Family),
iv A daughter.

V A daughter.

3 Augustine^ Washington (Lawrence^ John')
was born at Bridge Creek, Westmoreland Countv, Vir-
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ginia, in 1694. He married, first, Jane Butler, April 20,

1715, the daughter of Caleb Butler, of Westmoreland

County. She died November 24, 1728. His second wife

was Mary, daughter of Colonel Joseph Ball (see Ball

Family, Number 9). They were married March 6,

1730-1. She was born at Epping Forest, Lancaster Coun-

ty, Virginia, 1707-8, and died at MountJVernqn, August
2r), 1789, aged eighty-two years. She left a will dated

May 20, 1787, and probated at Fredericksburg, Virginia,

October 23, 1789. Augustine Washington died at his

estate in Stafford County, on the Rappahannock, April

12, 17-13.

Children {'l\v first wife) :

i Butler.

ii Lawrence, married Anne, daughter of Hon.

William Fairfax, of BeVoir, Fairfax County;
died without surviving issue, leaving his estate,

Alount Vernon, to his half brother, George

Washington ;
his widow married Col. George

Lee, of Mount Pleasant.

4 iii Augustine, married Ann Aylett.

iv A daughter.

Children (by second wife) :

V George, first President of the United States;

married Martha Dandridge, widow of Daniel

Parke Custis (see Dandridge Family of New
Kent County),

vi Elizabeth, married Col. Fielding Lewis, as his

second wife; son, Maj. George Lewis, whose

daughter, Mary Willis Lewis, married Maj.

Byrd Charles Willis (see Willis Family, No

14).

vii Samuel, married, first, Jane Champe, second,

Mildred Thornton, third, Lucy Chapman.
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16 viii John Augustine, married Hannah Bushrod.

ix Charles, married Mildred Thornton.

X Mildred.-

4 Augustine* Washington (Augustine^, Law-

rence-, John^) lived at Wakefield, Westmoreland County.

He married Ann, daughter and co-heiress of William

Aylett, of Westmoreland.

Children :

i Elizabeth, married General Alexander Spots-

wood (see Spottiswoode Family, No. 15).

ii Jane,

iii Ann.

5 iv William Augustine, married, first, his cousin,

Jane Washington, second, Mary Lee, third,

Sally Tayloe (see Addison Family, No. 5).

5 William Augustine-^ Washington (Augus-

tine^ Augustine^, Lawrence-, John^) was born November

25, 1757. He married three times, first, his cousin, Jane,

daughter of John Augustine and Hannah (Bushrod)

Washington (see Number 16), second, Mary, eldest

daughter of Richard Henry Lee (see Lee Family, Num-
ber 4), by whom he had no children, and, third, Sally,

daughter of Colonel John Tayloe, of IMount Airy, Rich-

mond County, by whom he had children. He died at

Georgetown, in October, 1810.

Children :

i Mildred, married Thomas Lee (see Lee Fam-

ily, No. 4).

ii Bushrod,
6 iii Corbin, married Hannah Lee.

iv William Augustine.
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6 CoRBiN^ Washington (William Augustine^

Augustine*, Augustine", Lawrence-, John^) of Walnut

Farm, Westmoreland County, married Hannah, daughter

of Richard Henry Lee (see Lee Family, Numher 4).

Children :

i Richard Henry Lee.

7 ii John Augustine, married Jean Charlotte Black-

burn.

15 iii Bushrod Corbin, married Anna Maria Thom-

asine Blackburn,

iv Mary Lee, married Noblett Herbert, and had

two sons.

V Jane Mildred,

vi Corbin.

7 John Augustine'' Washington (Corbin®, Wil-

liam Augustine^, Augustine*, Augustine^, Lawrence^,

John^) was born May 26, 1789. He married, November

14, 1811, Jean Charlotte, eldest daughter of Captain

Richard Scott Blackburn, U. S. A., and Judith Ball, his

first wife. Jean Charlotte (Blackburn) Washington died

in 1856.

Children :

i Anna Maria Thomasine Blackburn, born No-

vember 5, 1817; married. May 15, 1834, Dr.

William Fontaine Alexander (see Alexander

Family, No. 15) ;
she died March 29, 1850.

8 ii John Augustine, married Eleanor Love Selden.

iii Richard Blackburn.

8 John Augustine^ Washington (John Augus-

tine^, Corbin®, William Augustine^, Augustine*, Augus-

tine^ Lewrence-, John^) was born May 3, 1820. He mar-
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ried February 10, 1843, Eleanor, daughter of Wilson Gary
Selden, of Exeter, Loudoun County, Virginia. (See Sel-

den Family, Number 43.) She was born April 1,^, 1824.

The Baltimore Sun gives the following: ''A very large
and interesting portrait represents the widow of John
Augustine Washington, who died at Mount Vernon in

1832, nee Jane Charlotte, daughter of Major Richard
Scott Blackburn, of the United States Army. To the

right of their mother stood her two sons, about 16 and

18, on the left the only daughter, Anna Maria Washing-
ton, and in front young Noblett Herbert, whose mother
was Mary Lee, daughter of Corbin Washington and a

granddaughter of Richard Henry Lee. This is one of

those delightful old groups, life size, and hard to repro-
duce in the costumes of the present day."

Their home was Blakeley, Jefferson County, Virginia.
His sister, Anna Maria, married Doctor William Fontaine

Alexander, one of the sons of Doctor Wilson Cary Sel-

den's third wife, for whom Doctor Selden was guardian.
His brother, Richard Blackburn Washington, born No-
vember 12, 1822, married, November 20, 1844, Christine

Maria Washington, daughter of Samuel Walter Wash-
ington of "Harewood," Virginia, and his wife, Louisa

Clemson, of Philadelphia, Pa. Mr. Richard Washington
became guardian and trustee for his nieces and nephews,
upon the death of Mr. John A. Washington. Richard

Washington had nine children, Ehzabeth Clemson
; John

Augustine; Ann M. F. Blackburn; Louisa Clemson;
Samuel Walter, born November 1, 1853, and married
Elizabeth Ryland Willis, granddaughter of John A.

Washington ; Richard Blackburn
; Christine Maria

;

George Steptoe ;
and William de Hertburn.

The foHowing records are from Hayden, page 634, the

Baltimore Su7i, and from the old familv Bible.
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"Col. John Augustine Washington, C. S. A., 3d, was

the last of his family and name to own and occupy Mount

Vernon. Mount Vernon was willed by General Washing-
ton to his nephew, Judge Bushrod Washington. He,

dying without children, in 1829, bequeathed it to his

nephew, John Augustine, second son of Corbin Wash-

ington. Here he lived until 1860, wdien tourists made

life almost impossible for the family longer to remain

there, so he sold the estate to the "Mount Vernon Ladies'

Association" and removed to "Waveland," an estate he

had bought in Fauquier County, Virginia. When the

war between the States commenced, he at once offered

his services to the Governor of Virginia. General R. E.

Lee offered him the position of aid de camp on his staff

with the rank of Lieutenant Colonel, which he accepted.

He was killed in the war, and General W. H. F. Lee,

who was by his side when he w^as killed, thus related

the particulars of his fall. (University of Virginia Mem-
orial 57.)

"
'Col. Washington w^as with my command as a scout

near the enemy in West Virginia, during the advance of

Loring's army from its position on Cheat Mountain. He
had long been anxious to accompany in some of our

expeditions. On one occasion he brought me orders from

headquarters, and his face beamed with delight as he

told me that he was to accompany us '•' '^ *
! It was with

difficulty that I could restrain him. In one skirmish with

the enemy's cavalry, he charged with the leading files.

He had come within sight of the enemy's camp and I

gave the order to retire. "Oh, no," said Colonel Wash-

ington, "let us ride down and capture that fellow an the

gray horse." After some hesitation I assented, and,

leaving our main force, we took only two men and pro-
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ceeded tu capture the fellow on the gray horse. Our

road lay through a narrow defile in the mountain, some

half mile in length, at the end of which the fellow on the

gray horse was awaiting very quietly our approach. We
had barely proceeded three hundred yards, when fire was

opened on us from an ambuscade in the side of the

mountain. At the first volley Colonel Washington fell

from his horse, pierced with balls, myself and escort

wheeled and spurred back, running the gauntlet of their

musketry.
"^^ * '•' How we escaped was one of the mys-

teries of the war. My horse was shot in three or four

places, the other two killed. Colonel Washington's horse

came out with us, bringing his sword, which was tied to

the saddle. His body was sent to General Lee on the next

day, under a flag of truce, and sent by General Lee to

his family. Thus fell Colonel John A. Washington, an

early victim in that deadly struggle in which so many
noble lives were lost. It is not groundless conjecture
when we say that, if he had lived, he would have earned

and honored the highest rank in the gift of the country.

His courage, his knowledge of men, his resolution, his

inflexibility of purpose, and the lofty ambition with which

he was inspired, all of these were of too high a type for

him to have come through such a war without enrolling
his name among the noblest which its annals contained.

"In private life he shone with all the virtues which

should characterize the husband, father, son, and brother.

In his friendship he never faltered and his noble generous
heart prompted him to seek out and aid the distressed.

To strangers this language may seem mere panegyric;

by those who knew him it will be thought to fall far

short of describing the actual virtues of the man."

Jefferson Davis thus speaks of him in his "Rise and
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Fall of the Confederate Government," I, 436 : "The loss

of this valuable and accomplished officer was much re-

gretted by his general and all others who knew him."

The following from the Baltimore Sun also refers to

him :

"In December, 1909, the Lee Camp of Confederate

Veterans met at Richmond to receive the portrait of

Colonel Washington by request of his daughter, lately

deceased, the wife of Major R. M. T. Hunter.

"Colonel Taylor, being present, related that, in defer-

ence to his name and position, the body of Colonel

Washington was sent by his opponents into camp, with

all honors, and under a flag of truce.

"Some eighty odd years had elapsed since Washing-
ton and TJght Horse Harry Lee' were under arms in

their country's cause, and it is now nearly fifty years

again that we find these names linked in a struggle for

their firesides.

"In the forty-odd years of the recent past descendants

of the last Col. John Augustine Washington are quietly

but eflfectivel}^ making a record in their various lines,

but as modestly as did either Washington or Lee.

"Lawrence, the fifth child of Colonel Washington,
holds a trusted position in the Library of Congress. His

daughter, Anna Maria, the wife of the Rev. Dr. Beverly

Dandridge Tucker, Bishop-Coadjutor of Southern Vir-

ginia in the Episcopal Church—said to have been a

stanch fighter in the days of the Confederacy— on the

occasion of the presentation of the portrait of his father-

in-law, wrote and recited this poem in memory of Colonel

Washington :
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'No soldier of fortune, no seeker of pelf,

*No lover of glory and fame
;

*But simply a man who was true to himself,

'The home where he'd dv/elt and his name.

'He rode far away at the call of the land,

'Unmindful of peril and fate;

'A smile on his face and a wave of the hand

For the children who stood at the gate.

'He rode by the side of the kingliest knight,

'And deemed it a guerdon to share

'His tent and tlie march, or the danger and fight,

'To kneel by his chieftain in prayer.

'He lay where he fell, with the light on his face,

'Untouched by dishonor and shame,

'Defeated—yet true to the pride of his race.

'The home where he'd dwelt and his name.

'The tears were like dew in the eyes of the chief,

'Who gazed on the form of his friend

'And thought of the children at home and their grief,

'The blossoms of life and its end!

'He sent all entwined with his pity and love,

'The flowers that grew where he fell—
'And angels who walked on the ramparts above

'Repeated their call, 'It is well.'

< J

Tis well, though for years he has slept 'neath the sod,

^Uncrowned by the laurels of fame,
'And simply a man who was true to his God,

'The home where he'd dwelt and his name.'
"
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Children :

9 i Louisa Fontaine, married Roger Preston Chew.

ii Jean Charlotte, married Nathaniel H. Willis

(see Wilhs Family, No. 2o-b).

iii Eliza Selden, married Maj. Robert W. Hunter

(see Hunter Family, No. 20).

iv Anna Maria, married Rt. Rev. Beverley Dan-

dridge Tucker (see Tucker Family, No. 37).

10 V Lawrence Washington, married Fannie Lack-

land.

12 vi Eleanor Love Selden, married Julian Howard.

14 vii George, married Emily Serena Porterheld.

9 Louisa Fontaine^ Washington (John Augus-

tine^, John Augustine^, Corbin®, William Augustine^,

Augustine*, Augustine^, Lawrence^, John^) was born

February 19, 1844, at Mount Vernon. She married,

August 15, 1871, Colonel Roger Preston Chew, son of

Roger and Sarah (West) Chew, of Jefferson County,

Virginia (now West Virginia). He was captain of

''Chew's Battery," and was promoted to the command of

Stuart's Horse Artillery in 1864, and made Lieutenant-

Colonel in 1865, Army of Northern Virginia.

Children :

i Christine W^ashington Chew, born Sept. 19, 1872
;

married Feb. 2, 1905, Brantz Mayer Roszel.

ii Roger Chew, born May 3, 1874.

iii John Augustine Chew, born Oct. 28, 1876
;
died Feb.

11, 1882.

iv Virginia Chew, born May 29, 1878; died Dec. 25,

1894.

v Wilson Selden Chew, born Sept. 27, 1880
;
died Jan.

4, 1881.
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vi Margaret Preston Chew, born Feb. 1, 1883.

10 Lawrence^ Washington (John Augustine^,

John Augustine", Corbin^ WilHam Augustine^, Augus-

tine^ Augustine\ Lawrence'-, John^) was born at Mount

Vernon, January 14, 1854. He married, June 14, 1876,

Fanny, daughter of Thomas and Martha Ellen (Willis)

Lackland, of Jefiferson County, West Virginia (see Willis

Family, Number 25-a).

Children :

11 i John Augustine, married Eleanor Gaye Altizer.

ii Lawrence,

iii Pattie Willis.

iv Anne Madison.

V Louisa Fontaine.

vi Richard Blackburn,

vii Willis Lackland,

viii Fannie Jacquelyn.

ix Wilson Selden.

X Preston Chew.

xi Julia Howard,
xii Francis Ryland.

11 John Augustine^" Washington (Lawrence^,

John Augustine^, John Augustine", Corbin*^, William Au-

gustine^, Augustine*, Augustine^, Lawrence-, John^) mar-

ried Eleanor Gaye Altizer.

Child :

i Eleanor Gaye.

12 Eleanor Love Selden^ Washington (John

Augustine^ John Augustine^ Corbin^ William Augus-
tine^ Augustine*, Augustine^ Lawrence-, John^) was
born at ]Mount Vernon, March 14, 1856. She married.
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May 5, 1880, Julian Howard, who died May 17, 1884.

He was the son of Charles Howard of Richmond and his

wife, Sarah Anne Smith, of Northumberland County,

Virginia, who were married July 10, 1851.

Child :

13 i Sarah Smith Howard, married Hugh Milton

Caldwell.

13 Sarah Smith^° Howard (Eleanor Love Sel-

den^ Washington, John Augustine'', John Augustine^, Cor-

bin''', William Augustine•^ Augustine'^, xA.ugustine", Law-

rence-, John^) married, October 21, 1903, Hugh Alilton

Caldwell.

Children :

i Eleanor Washington Caldwell born Dec. 27, 1906.

ii Jane Kearsley Caldwell, born Aug. 10, 1908,

iii Anne Howard Caldwell, born April 6, 1910.

14 George^ Washington (John Augustine^ John

Augustine^, Corbin^, William Augustine^, Augustine*,

Augustine", Lawrence-, John^) was born at Mount Ver-

non in 1858. He married, February 16, 1886, Emily Ser-

ena, daughter of George and Emily (Terrill) Porterfield.

Mr. Washington died December 31, 1906.

Child:
, . .

ie^ Richard Blackburn. . i
- \^^n^^x. ^ S^>- -:'.<i-/^iL.

In the following article, from the Baltimore Sun, will

be found a most interesting account of ''Harewood," and

of the Jefferson County Washingtons. During the

war, Jefferson County was, much to the sorrow of her

white population, added to the new State of W'est Vir-

ginia. The author has been told that, at the time the
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transfer was wiadc, there was only one white vote cast

for it.

"More of tlie blood of the Washingtons exists today
in the veins of the residents of Charlestown, West Vir-

ginia, and vicinity, than in any community in the world

and probably more than in all the rest of the world taken

together. In the present generation there are great num-
bers of stalwart men living thereabout who bear the name
of Washington, and yet other great numbers who get the

Washington b^ood through their mothers who have the

characteristics, though not the name.

*'An inquiry establishes the fact that the community is

overrun wath the descendants of the family of Washing-
ton. And wdiy should it not be, for three of the brothers

of Gen. George Washington lived here, bred families,

some of them wondrous large, and their descendants have

lived here and diffused the blood until the whole country-
side is possessed of it and affected by it. In fact the

nearest descendants of the Washingtons of the genera-
tion of Revolutionary days have their homes here today.
If properly accredited, one may even be invited to call

upon Richard Blackburn Washington himself, a vener-

able patriarch of 87 years, and the nearest living link

to the olden days.

"History records the fact that George Washington, a

strip of a lad 16 years old, came into the northern part
of Virginia in 1748 to survey a vast tract of land in the

wilderness wdiich had been acquired from the crown by
Lord Fairfax, the eccentric peer and idol of the court,

who chose to isolate himself here because a woman had
refused him. These lands were in what became the famed
seat of romance and history, the Shenandoah valley.

"The young surveyor lived here three years and ran
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his lines in all directions. To drinking the lime impreg-

nated water of this valley his great stature has been at-

tributed by some. The lines he laid down were followed

by the roads that increasing civilization built and are a

record of his work that will last forever. In the Court-

house at Winchester are the original maps he drew, neat

and precise to a marked degree.
*'

Young George Washington carried the news of the

wonderful country to his old home in tidewater Vir-

ginia, expatiating particularly to the members of his fam-

ily upon it. As a result Lawrence Washington, an older

brother and man of means, bought large tracts. Lawrence,

however, died shortly afterward and the other brothers

in dividing his property, went to see these lands, fell in

love with the country, and later went there to live, taking

their families with them and there dwelt to the end of

their days.

"From the property of Charles Washington, the young-
est of the brothers, was laid out Charlestown, named

after him. Samuel, the eldest, a rollicking country squire,

who wedded five times during his career, laid out the

historic estate at Harewood. George was also interested

in the property and actively in charge of the building of

the old Harewood mansion. John Augustine throve, and

his descendants today live in Charlestown. George be-

came great in war and statesmanship, but returned at in-

tervals as long as he lived to Harewood, of which he was

executor and guardian of his brother's children after

Samuel died. The estate he always regarded as his sum-

mer home.

''Richard Blackburn Washington, who is a grandson

of the generation of which the Father of His Country

was a member, is a descendant of John Augustine. His
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wife was a descendant of Samuel, and because of this

union of kindred blood his four sons and two daughters

have as much of the old strain as had their parents and

more than any other Washingtons, with one possible ex-

ception. Two sons and a daughter still live with Richard

Blackburn Washington at their home in Charlestown.

The sons have prospered and are leading men in their

community. The Washingtons aid in directing the affairs

of the town, hold leading county offices, are independent

farmers, country gentlemen, merchants and bankers.

Some of them have likewise prospered in other sections,

a notable example being George S. Washington, a com-

mission merchant of Philadelphia.

"The town is also the home of Lawrence Washington
and his two sisters, descendants of John Augustine, and

representing another branch of the family. Lawrence,

however, spends little of his time there, as he holds a

position with the Library of Congress and lives mostly in

Washington. Of the 5,000 descendants of the brothers of

the Father of His Country it is claimed that Lawrence is

the only individual holding a Government position.

''Bushrod Washington is a great favorite in the present

generation and is regarded as the fighting member of it.

The favorite story of his exploits at arms is that of a

fight he had during the Civil War, in which he espoused
the cause of the South and was a dashing young lieu-

tenant of cavalry. Upon one occasion he was lured from

the Confederate lines by a Federal officer upon a pretense
of an exchange of tobacco. Washington advanced with

his sword carelessly held in his left hand expecting almost

anything but feeling safe, because he was a left handed

swordsman and the best in his regiment. The rival of-

ficer, not knowing that he was left-handed and supposing
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that he was off his guard, set upon him, but Bushrod

was not as careless as he seemed to be, and succeeded

in defeating his opponent, leaving him dead on the field.

Despite his ever readiness to do battle, this Washington
of today is an ardent church worker and exhorts as

earnestly as he fights. He anticipates making his future

home in the State of Washington, where he will take

upon himself all the hardships of frontier life, despite

his age of 67. But today he is a man of such physical

prowess that few younger men would dare face him.

'There are quantities of other Washington blood about

Charlestown. The communities that most compete with

it are Westmoreland county, Virginia, and Kankakee,

Ills. In Westmoreland county, dwells Robert J. W^ash-

ington and the numerous family that centers in

him. In Kankakee, lives Spottswood Augustine Wash-

ington, the father of many sons and daughters. In the

Civil War the sons of this family espoused the cause of

the North and fought valiantly as members of the Fed-

eral Army. As Washingtons they were in a class by

themselves, however, for all the other descendants of the

family of the first President were Southerners and fought

for the Confederacy. Likewise they have all been

Democrats since the war, and this fact may explain the

limited number of Washingtons in the Government serv-

ice today.

"But coming back to Charlestown, there is much of

interest to be found there in this connection. Harewood

is, next to Mount Vernon, the estate about which hovers

much of early American romance. It was in 1752, 158

years ago, that it was built. Samuel and George were

partners in its construction, and George had actual charge.

He was the architect. The stone for the walls was hewn
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from the limestone beds on the estate, and the man who

hauled it got an acre of land for a team a day, so cheap

was real estate. The walls are two feet thick and so well

built that the house stands today in a good condition of

repair, and has never been repaired, except for the re-

building of a small portico at the entrance. The same

ancient shutters hang at the windows that were made

under tlic direction of Washington. The coat of arms of

the Washingtons still holds place over the door, and it

is from its design and colors that the Stars and Stripes

were taken, an important fact little known.

''On the ancient walls still hangs the painting of Col.

Samuel Washington, the dashing, rollicking, fox-hunting

squire, of the class that made early \Trginia famous by
their entertaining. The easy stairs and balustrades are

almost identical to those of Mount Vernon and were

furnished by the same English firm crossing the ocean at

Washington's order. The mantel over the fireplace in the

parlor was given to Washington by Lafayette. The latter

visited here often, and, after the great war, his small son

also stayed here among American friends who idolized

him.

''General Washington was in charge of Harewood from

1781 to 1796 as guardian of his brother's children, and

spent much time there. It was during this time that

Dolly Payne Todd, the winsome widow from Philadel-

phia, was married to "the great little Madison," after-

ward twice President, and became the most popular mis-

tress the White House has ever known. Lucy Payne,
a sister of the widow Todd, had married a nephew of

Washington when they were but 15 and 17 years of age,

respectively. This niece by marriage was visiting the

Washingtons in Philadelphia in 1791: and disclosed to
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Martha the fact that the widow and Madison were be-

trothed. Martha told the President, the President told

his nephew and all joined in a demand that the popular

couple come down to Harewood to marry.

"The trip was made in Jefferson's coach and required a

week. All the elite in national life, including the Presi-

dent and his wife, made the long trip in coaches and

on horseback. Mr. Madison rode by the door of his

fiancee's carriage and a party of his best friends on horse-

back made up her guard and escort, but there were none

so gallant as "Light Horse Harry" Lee, who, it is re-

ported, Dolly saw ride up on the day of the wedding

"on the finest horse in all Virginia." When the ceremony

was finally performed, the mischievous girls of the com-

pany cut into little bits the fine Mechlin lace of the

groom's costume, indicating that the souvenir craze is not

entirely new, and the future President retired much dis-

heveled to his father's estate at Montpellier, Virginia.

"Yet Harewood has known guests even more noted

than these, for it was here that Louis Philippe, afterward

King of France, his two brothers, the Duke de Montpen-

sier and the Count de Beaujolais, took refuge during the

period of their banishment from their native land.

"In the garden at Harewood there still exist the box-

wood hedges and a wealth of lilac, that are said to have

been planted by Martha Washington herself. There

still remain a great number of flowers of wide varieties

that found their way here from a similar source, for the

first President and his wife were great horticulturists

and fanciers of things that grow from the earth.

"A dozen miles away is Greenway Court, the manor

house of Lord Fairfax, where he lived long, where he

died. The latter is in Virginia, while Harewood, much
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to the chagrin of its owners, was transferred to West

\^irginia when A'irginia was cut in two. Harper's Ferry

is 11 miles away, and the region reverberates with the

tales of John Brown's raids, for he was hanged right here

in Charlestown, and a monument marks the spot. Hes-

sian soldiers were held prisoners here during the Revolu-

tion, and the hordes of Federal and Confederate troops

surged back and forth during the Civil War. It is a

land of much historic association, and a historic family

is planted in the midst of it.

''Harewood, since the time of its building, has always

remained in the possession of the Washington family. It

now belongs to John A. Washington, who lives in Charles-

town. Yet all the Washingtons of today feel a pro-

prietary right to it and a pride in it. It is their most

direct link to the past, which is full of greatness, of ro-

mance, of history. Harewood is the loadstone which

draws the wandering Washingtons back to the old haunts.

It has been the center of the family for more than a

century and a half and is still its center. So strongly are

its walls built that it may well defy the passing of time

and remain the bond of unity for all the blood for genera-

tions yet to come."

15 BusHROD Corbin'^ Washington (Corbin'', Wil-

liam Augustine^, Augustine*, Augustine^, Lawrence^,

John^) was born December 25, 1790. He married, in

1810, Anna Maria Thomasine, second daughter of Cap-
tain Richard Scott Blackburn, and sister of the wife of

his brother, John Augustine Washington. Bushrod Cor-

bin Washington died July 28, 1851.

Children :

i Hannah Lee, married William P. Alexander.
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ii Thomas Blackburn.

16 John Augustine* Washington (Augustine^,

Lawrence-, John^) was born January 13, 1736. He mar-

ried Hannah, daughter of Colonel John Bushrod. John

Augustine Washington died in February, 1787.

Child :

i Jane, married her cousin, William Augustine Washing-
ton (see No. 5).
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KENNEDY FAMILY

Arms: Argent on a chevron gules between three cross

crosslets fitchee sable all within a double tressure flory

counterflory of the second.

Crest: A dolphin naiant proper.

Supporters : Two swans proper beaked and mem-

bered gules.

Motto : Avise la fin.

The following history has been taken from the His-

torical and Genealogical Account of the Principal Fami-

lies of the Name of Kennedy, from an Original Manu-

script, by Robert Pitcairn, writer of His ^Majesty's Sig-

net, F. S. S. A., and the Honorable F. S. A. Perth, &c.,,

published in Edinburgh, by William Tait and John Stev-

enson, and in London, by Longman and Company. Re-

garding it, the author, Pitcairn, makes the following

statement : ''This account is appended to .an Anony-
mous MS., 'Chronicle of Scottish Affairs,' from the ear-

liest period of King James \T, which is preserved in the

Library of the Faculty of Advocates, Edinburgh."

The origin of the name of Kennedy is from the Celtic

*'Ceaunathigue," meaning the head of a sept or clan.

The Gallic or Celtic words are Kean-na-ty, the head of a

honse of chief of a clan. The Kennedys arc originally

believed to be of Carrick. At all events, previous to the

year 1256 (the date of his death), Neil, Earl of Carrick,

granted a charter in favor of Roland of Carrick, who is

proved to be the ancestor of the Kennedys, granting and

confirming to him and to his heirs forever to be the head

369
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or chief of his race, "ut ipse ct heredes fui sint caput

progenisi Suae,'' which grant was confirmed by King
Alexander III, January 20, l^To-fj, and ratified by Rob-

ert II, October 1, 1372. (Reg. Mag. Sig., 114, 115, 116.)

As the family ever after this grant bore the name of

Kennedy (the head of the house or family), it is prob-

able that this surname was ado])ted by it in commemora-

tion of this circumstance. (See Crawford and Wood's

Peerage.)

''Seing that thair is sum noittis, for memory, heirefter

to follow, ofT the name of Kennedy, I thocht it gude to

conteyne heir thair beginning and how they rease to be

gritt, and soe furthe to this hour.

"And first, concerning thair name : it is, out of all dout,

the same proceidit fra then nem Kennethe
;
for of that

nemme thair was sundry Kyngis and also sum very fynd

Capitanis. For by the thrie Kingis that had to thair name

Kennethe, thair was ane Kennethe Thaine of Carrik,

quha was ane of King Gregories Capitanis in his weir in

the land, be quhais skill of rowing doun of Stanes from

ane hiche hill, he vanne ane gritt battell of King Gregorie.

And of this Captane the Kennedyes sayis thai had thair

beginning Bot the Clak Buik of Skoyne settis thair begin-

ning to be in the ring of King Malcome the Secund.

(Without the aid of the Glossary, this narrative would

be hard to understand, therefore what follows will be

written in English, retaining the quaint phraseology and

spelling whenever possible.)

'The Black Book of Skoyne, which sets their beginning

to be in the reign of King ]\Ialcome the Second, who was

crowned in the year of. God 1010, and was the four-

score King of Scotland. There was with this King one
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McKenane of the Yllis that was slain by the Danes at

the Battle of Murlaik, and by him come the AIcKenane

of the Yllis who enjoy the lands Stroworddell to this

hour. This McKenane and his race or posterity were

at the time of King Donnallis' reign, when the Danes got

possession of the whole Yllis. banished by them to Ire-

land where they remained till the reign of Alexander the

Third. He then came to King Alexander before the Bat-

tle of Larkis with three score of his name and his serv-

ants
;
and after that King Acho was defeated, he fled to

Air and there took shipping. The principal man that

pursued him was McKenane with his sons
;
and after that

the King of the Danes was received in the Castle of Air.

McKenane followed one Lord or great Captaine of the

Danes to a Craig in Carrick, whereon there was a strong-

hold McKenane and his sons took, and slew this Captaine

and all who were therein. For the which deed this Mc-

Kenane got the same stronghold from King Alexander,

with certain lands thereto
;
the which he gave to his sec-

ond son. And this was the first beginning of the name

of Kennedy in the Mainland. On the stronghold and

craig there is now a fair castle, which the Chief of the

Lowland Kennedys took their stile of for long space and

were called Lairds of Donour, because of the Don of the

hill above the House. Of this house the rest of that name

are come. This battle was fought on the third day-©f

August the year of God 1263.

''The House of Donour, of Dunnurc.

''This house remained a long time but in' sober estate,

not having any great rent nor power in the country. For

we hear no great mention made of them in Wallis days,

nor the Bruce's time. For at the Barnis of Air the Laird

of Cassillis was Sir Neil Montgomery, who, as we read
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in Wallace I'ook, was hanged in air by the deceit of the

English ; but because that Cronikill makes mention there-

of, I rest thereon. But the heirs of this Sir Xeil held the

lands of Cassillis till the reign of Robert the Second, the

first of the Stewarts, at the which time the lands fell to a

lass; and the Laird of Dalrumpill, her neighbor, came to

her house of Cassillis, and pursued her by force to have

her in marriage ;
the which she would not consent to but

defended her house. And at this time, the Laird of Don-
our that then was, he coming by, and seeing the dame,

set upon the Laird of Dalrumpill and slew him, and re-

leased the lady and took her with him to his house of

Donour
; where, under promise of marriage, he made her

surrender her lands that w^ere in the King's hands to him
;

but I cannot read that ever he married her to his w^ife.

But she seeing herself disappointed by that deed, took

displeasure and died shortly thereafter. This was about

the third year of Robert the Second, which was the

1373 year of God.

*'Now the Laird of Dalrumpill being slane as ye have

heard, his lands fell to his brother's sons, amongst the

which there was great strife; but the youngest at last

sold his right to the Laird of Donour. and then the Laird

of Donour sett for the Eldest and slew him, a little above

the Kirk of Dalrumpill where now^ there is a great cairne

(pile or heap), of stone to this day. And so by that

right he had of the youngest, he took the lands of Dal-

rumpill, and thus was Dalrumpill acquired.

"Now at this time, there was a Laird in Carrick who
was called Macktaise. The Laird of Donour made this

Macktaise his Gossop (Godfather), and the bairne be-

ing a man-child, this AFacktaise would needs have him
to be his foster son

;
and in the end. by wanting children
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of his own, made his foster son his heir and gave him his

lands after him. And of this son came the House of

Bargany which had no benefit of the House of Donour.

"The House of Blaquhan, or Blairquhan.
*Tt is thought that the House of Blaquhan came of the

House of Donour at this time; and got from the Laird,

his father, the twenty pound land of Donourtoune, which

they had off the House to this hour. But their prefer-

ment came by the marriage of one McColloche who was

here-triy of Twymone ; by the which they gat the lands

of Cronstoune and many more lands in Galloway.
"The House of Bargany.

''The House of Bargany came to their preferment by
the valor of the second brother, who was first put to have

been a Friar
;
but his courage not agreeable to this of-

fice, lost the same, and went with the Laird of Blaquhane
to France, to Charles the VH, in the year of our Lord,
1431. He was called Friar Hew (Hugh), and was for

his valor so beloved by the King of France that he re-

mained with him many years thereafter, and went with

him to the Holy Land. And at his returning, he received

word that his brother, the Laird of Bargany, was dead.

Whereupon he took leave of the King of France, and got

in recompense of his service, many great rewards of

gold and money. And above all, he gave him leave to

wear arms quarterly in his arms, to wit, flour-de-lyse,

which that house wears to this day. He came to Scot-

land, and bought the ten pound land of Arstensar, and

built the house thereof, and acquired many more lands,

by the benefit of the stypend of the King of France. This

Friar Hewis (Hugh's) grandchild was called 'Com with

the penny,' who acquired the greatest part of all the liv-

ing, which now is a great rent, and has of it come the
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houses of Ardmillane, Dunneane, Bennane, Kirkhill, Bar-

drohatt."

Sir Gilbert^-de-Carrick had issue, Sir John^ Kennedy
of Dunure, wliose son, Sir Gilbert" Kennedy, was the next

Laird of Donour. By his two wives he had seven sons,

lie was one of the hostages for the hberation of King
David II, Anno Domini 1354. His first wife was Marion,

daughter of Sir James Sandiland of Calder, by Eleanora,

only daughter of Archibald Douglas of that Ilk, and

relict of Alexander Bruce, Earl of Carrick, who was

killed at the battle of Hallidon Hill, Anno Domini 1333.

Her third husband was William Towers of Dairy ;
her

fourth husband was Sir Duncan Wallace of Lundrum
;

her fifth husband was Sir Patrick Hepburn of Hales (See

Wyntown II, 268). Sir Gilbert Kennedy had by her the

following children :

i Gilbert, who was disinherited by him and died

in the French service without issue.

1 ii Sir James, of Dunure, married Princess Mary,
second daughter of King Robert III. and wid-

ow of George Douglas, first Earl of Angus.
iii Ale:^ander, who was Alschunder Dalgour.
iv Sir Plugh, of Ardstinchar, who accompanied

the Scottish troops under the Earl of Buchan,

and was distinguished at the battle of Bauge
in Anjou, March 22, 1421, in being honored by
the King of France with his armorial bearings.

Azure, three fleurs de lis or. From him sprung
the House of Bargany, Kirkhill, and Benning.

These arms are still borne, quarterly with those

of Kennedy, by descendants. By his wife, Ag-

nes, daughter of Sir Robert Maxwell of Cald-

erwood, he had three sons, John, Thomas, and
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David, who was one of the retinue of knights

and esquires who attended Margaret of Scot-

land into France on her marriage to the Dau-

phin, Louis, Anno Domini 1436.

1 Sir James- Kennedy (Sir Gilbert^) of Donour,

had a charter of the barony of Dalrymple, on his father's

resignation, January 27, 1405-G, by which the old privi-

lege is declaimed and ratified by the King as follows :

 

yuod dictus Jacobus et hereaes sui mascuii smc caput

totius progeniei suae, tam in Calumpniis quam in aliis

articulis et negotiis ad Kynkynol pertinen. Valentibus

vnacum Officio Eallivi predictae terrae (Carrick) el

hominum ipsius directione, ac cum armorum ostenta-

tione, in omnibus, sub comite de Carrick, qui pro tem-

pore fuerit." [Confirmed by King James II, August

2, and November 21, 1450.]

Sir James married Mary, daughter of King Robert

III, and the widow of George Douglas, first Earl of An-

gus. Sir James Kennedy was killed in a quarrel with

his disinherited brother, Gilbert, during his father's life-

time. He left two sons,

2 i Gilbert, the first Lord Kennedy.
ii James Kennedy, who was created Bishop of

Dunkeld, 1438
;
made Postulate of St. Andrews,

Anno Domini 1440, during his absence in Flor-

ence with Pope Eugenius iv, who at that time

bestowed upon him the Abbacy of Scone m
commendam

;
chosen one of the Regents of

Scotland, during the minority of King James

III; died May 10, 14GG. This highly eminent

and talented prelate, according to Buchanan,

"surpassed all men in Scotland in point of an-
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thority; his prudence was held in the highest

estimation, and he was lamented at his death as

a publick parent." [See Buchanan's History of

Scotland. Keith's History of the Bishops, Craw-

ford's Lives of Officers of State, &c., Pinker-

ton's History of Scotland, I, 247-254, and

Wood's Peerage, I, 328.]

But now to return to the House of Donour again.

"There was one brother of the House, which was

either the fourth or fifth brother. The eldest who was

Laird being dead, the friends convened to take order who
should be Tutor

;
But this brother, although the young-

est, starts up and, drawing his sword, said, T am best

and worthiest and I will be Tutor !' This brother was

called Alschunder, and because he wore a dagger, which

at that time was not common, he was called Alschunder

Dalgour.

''This Alschunder, or Allexander. fell in misliking with

the Earl of Wigtone Douglasse, who was a very gritt

manne, and had great power in all the country. This Doug-
las was so much offended at him, because it was thought
that he had been in a deadly feud against him at Glayn-

naip, and in another against Lindsay, then Lard of

Craigy, at the w^ater of Done, both in one day, that the

Earl promised to any that would bring this Alexander's

head, they should have the forty mark land of Stewart-

toune, in Cuninghamey the which words coming to Alex-

ander's ears, he assembled a hundred horsemen, and on

Yuill-day, in the morning, came to the town of Wigtone,
about the time he knew the Earl would be at the morn-

ing Mass, and having all his right to the said forty mark

land put in form, came into the Church, and said, 'My
Lord, you have promised this fourty mark land to any
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that would bring you my head, and I know there is none

so meet as myself and therefore will desire your Lord-

ship to do to me, as you would to any other.'

''The Earl perceived, that, if he refused, the same

would cost him his life; and therefore took the pen and

subscribed the same. Alschunder thanked his Lordship,

took his horse, lept on, and went his way. He and his

heirs enjoyed the same at this time or at least to 1602

year of God when the Earl John sold the same to the

Laird of Langschaw. He got this in the fourth year of the

reign of Robert the third which was about the year of

God 1380. This Alexander, coming home to Donour, be-

gan to grow proud, and it was feared he would disin-

herit his brother's son, and also he began to be a tyrant

above his friends. Whereupon they, meeting in Donour,

took him in his bed, cast fedder bed above him, and

smothered him, and there he died, leaving behind him

but one bastard son, of whom the House of Kirkdall is

descended."

''The spirit of the author's remark is that it was feared

that this violent, bold-spirited man would have disin-

herited his brother's son, i. e., that he would have usurped

the inheritance of his nephew, lawful heir, and main-

tained himself in possession by force."

How far this story is founded on fact it would now
be difficult to trace, but it is certain that the Earl of

Wigton made a grant of the town Kyrkyntulach to Sir

Gilbert Kennedy, knight, which was confirmed May 13,

1372. [Reg. Mag. Sig. 104; Wood's Peerage, H, 630.]

2 Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy (Sir James- Kennedy,

Sir Gilbert^) was the first Lord Kennedy and the son of

Sir James Kennedy and his wife, the Princess Mary,
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daughter of Robert III. He was made Lord by King

James, and got the lands of Lachsuad and Meurig from

the said King James, at the forfeiture of the Earl of

Wigtoune, the which lands the House of Cassillis enjoys

to this day. This Gilbert was the King's sister's son,

who was made the first Lord Kennedy. From the

numerous lands acquired by this Lord, and the Charters

in his favor passing under the Great Seal, it wou^d

appear that he was possessed of great power and in-

fluence. He was, Anno 1460, appointed one of the

Six Regents of Scotland, on the death of James H.

He married Catherine, daughter of Herbert, first Lord

Maxwell of Caerlaverock. The issue of this marriage

was three sons and two daughters.

3 i John, second Lord Kennedy.
ii James, married Egidia Blair; half the barony

of Glenstinchar was granted him, on his father's

resignation, May 17, 1473.

iii Walter, called brother of John, Lord Kennedy,
in the Charter of the Earl of Angus, September

25, 1498.

iv Catherine, married to Alexander, second Lord

Montgomery.
V Mariot, married to Sir John Wallace of Craigie.

3 John*, Lord Kennedy (Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy,
Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was the second Lord Kennedy.
He married Elizabeth Montgomery, second daughter of

Alexander, the first Lord Montgomery, by whom he had

an only son, David, who became the third Lord Kennedy.
He married, second, Elizabeth, second daughter of Sir

Alexander Seton de Gordon, first Earl of Huntley (by

his third wife, Elizabeth, eldest daughter of William,
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Lord Crichton, Chancellor of Scotland, whose posterity

took the name of Gordon), and relict of Nicol, second

Earl of Errol. She had a charter of the lands of Cassillis,

dated July 12, 1471. By this marriage there were three

sons and two daughters.

Children (by Elizabeth Montgomery) :

4 i David, third Lord Kennedy.
Children (by Elizabeth Seton de Gordon) :

ii Alexander, ancestor of the Kennedys of Ger-

vanmains and Barquhanny, who had charters

of the lands of Garvane. &c., in Carrick, with

the lands and Barony of Lessvalt.

iii John,

iv William.

V Janet, one of the mistresses of King James IV,

who granted a charter to her, for her lifetime,

under the title of Lady Bothwell, of the Castle

and Forest of Dernway, &c., &c., in shire of

Elgin, June 1, 1501; with this qualification:

''Tamdiu remanserit abseque marito seu alio

viro, cum Rege et suo condilecto filio Jacobo

Stewart, in Castro Regis de Dernway, vel alibi

pront Regiy placuerit et convenientius visum

fuerit." This son was, the same year, created

Earl of Moray. There is evidence of this

lady having formed a similar connection with

Archibald, Earl of Angus, commonly known

by the name of Bell-the-Cat. At all events,

confirmations of Charters exist in the public

Records ; one of them to him and Janet, daugh-
ter of John, Lord Kennedy, and the heirs-male

procreated, or to be procreated, betwixt them,

whom failing, to William Douglas, son of said
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Earl of the Barony of Bradewode, etc. This con-

firmation was dated July 20, 1498. The other

is a confirmation of a grant by the Earl to

her of the Barony of Crawford-Lindsay, Sep-
tember 25, 1498. Hume of Godscroft says

that Archibald, Earl of Angus, was confined to

the Island of Arran for taking Jean Kennedy,

daughter of the Earl of Cassillis, out of Gal-

loway, to whom the King bore aflfection—and

to whom the Earl gave investment and seisin

of the lands of Bothwell, though he never mar-

ried her.

vi Helen, married to Adam Boyd, of Penkill.

This Lord appears frequently in the records

of Parliament, as taking an active share in all

public affairs. On October IG, 1488, he ob-

tained a royal commission "for stanching of

theft, refif," etc., in Carrick, and on February

15, 1489-90, he is held responsible for the King's

Casualties, in Carrick, Leswalt, Monybrig, etc.

4 David^, Lord Kennedy and First Earl of

Cassillis (John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert", Lord Kennedy
Sir James^, Sir Gilbert^) was third Lord Kennedy, and

first Earl of Cassillis. (Created Earl in 1509.) He mar-

ried Anna Bothwick, eldest daughter of Lord John Bor-

thwick. After the death of Anna Bothwick he married, for

his second wife, Gregoria Boyde, daughter of Lord Boyde
and grandchild to King James II, by whom he had no

issue. This Earl David was slain at the battle of Flou-

done in Anno 1513.

Children (by Anna Bothwick) :

5 i Gilbert, second Earl of Cassillis.
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ii William, Abbot of Crosregnall.

iii James, Laird of Broinestoune.

iv Thomas, Laird of Coiff
;
children : Katherine

;

Helen; Christiane.

V Katherine.

vi Helen,

vii Christiane.

5 Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and Second Earl of

Cassillis (David^, Lord Kennedy, the first Earl, John*,

Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir

Gilbert^) succeeded his father in the Earldom. He y
married Issobell Campbell, daughter of Colin Campbell,

Earl of Argyll, and had seven sons and two daughters.

"The Earl shamefully neglected his hostages who had

been placed under the care of the Archbishop of York
^ * '!= Earl Gilbert was killed at the Pon of Prestick

in Kyll, by Hew Campbell of Londoune, Sheriffe of

Aire 28 December, in Anno 1527 and was buried at the

Collegiate Church at Mayboll."

Children :

6 i Gilbert, '*his eldest sonne succidit him."

ii David, married Janet Kennedy, eMest daughter
of Duncan Kennedy of Dalgabre. He was one

of the hostages for his brother, the Earl, in

England, 1543, who was one of the prisoners

taken at the rout of Solway by Dacre and

Musgrave, in November, 1542. Thomas Ken-

nedy of Coif, and David and Thomas, his broth-

ers, were hostages for his ransom, which was

fixed at £1,000.

iii Quinton, Abbott of Crosregnall, ''the learned

and pious Churchman, who publicly disputed
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with Jobn Knox on the subject of the Sacri-

ike of the Mass for three days, at Maybole,"

After his death, in 15f)4, he is said to have been

canonizcfh (See Tracts reprinted 1)y the late

Sir Alexander Boswell of Auchinleck; Knox's

History, Irving's Lives, 1, 80; Appendix to

Keith's Church History, etc.)

iv Archibald.

V Henry.
vi James.
vii Robert.

viii Janet, married the Laird of Freuche and had

issue.

ix Helen, married the Laird of Kilhilt and had

issue.

6 Gilbert", Lord Kennedy and Third Earl of

Cassillis (Gilbert^, the second Earl, DavicP, the first

Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir

James^, Sir Gilbert^) succeeded his father, in 1527, when

he was in his thirteenth year. He married Sophia Ken-

nedy, daughter of Alexander Kennedy, the Laird of

Bargany.
Earl Gilbert was sent to France by Mary, Queen of

Scotland, as an ambassador to conclude the marriage be-

twixt her and Francis, the Dauphin of France, 'Svho

in his return home departed this mortal life at Deipe
in France, not without suspicion of poison, 1-i Novembus,
in Anno 1558, he lays buried at the Collegiat Churche

of Mayboll." [See Buchanan, lib. in.] This nobleman

appears to have been the most eminent and excellent

of the early Earls of Cassillis. He was educated by George

Buchanan, with whom he went abroad, who wrote the
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following epitaph of him: ''Hie situs est Heros humili

Gilbertus in urna Kennedus, antiquae nobilitatis honos :

"Alusarum martisque decus, pacisque minister,

"Et columen patriae consiliumqne suae

"Parce hospes, lachrimis, et inanem comprime luctum
;

"Non misere quisquam qui bene vixit obit."

In November, 1542, he was one of the prisoners taken

at the disastrous rout of Solway, and was committed

to the charge of Cranmer, through whose means he was

finally induced to espouse the reformed religion to which

he had already been secretly attached by the instruction

of Buchanan. Having procured hostages, he returned

home next year and engaged, in the English interest,

to promote the marriage between Queen Mary and Ed-

ward, Prince of Wales, for which service he got a

pension from Henry VHI of 300 marks. The sureties

were neglected and. early in the year 1545, he went to

London and delivered himself to the King.
He was succeeded in the Earldom by his eldest son.

He had three sons and two daughters :

Children :

7 i Gilbert, fourth Earl of Cassillis.

ii David, died as a child.

iii Sir Thomas, Laird of Reiland, was knighted,

iv Jeane, married Willam, Earl of Orknay.
V Catharine, married Sir Patrick Yrus of Barn-

baroch and had issue.

7 Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and Fourth Earl of

Cassillis (Gilbe^t^ the third Earl, Gilbert*^, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert'^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) succeeded

his father. He married Margaret Layone, daughter of
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Patrick, Lord Glames, by whom he had issue, a son and a

daughter, who both died in childhood. He then had two

sons, John and Gilbert. Another account gives Hew

(Hugh) as second son and says of him, "This Hew
was married to the Laird of Carslandis' sister, who bore

to him two laidis and one dochter and Hew died within

twenty five years of age. He was a well conditioned

man and had the love of all men."

Another statement about Hugh is as follows :

"Hew, Master of Cassillis, married Margaret, daughter

of Uchtred Macdowall of Garthland, who, on the death

of her husband, married, secondly, James, Lord Ochil-

tree.''

Mr. Wood, in his Peerage, mentions a third son, Gil-

bert, Master of Cassillis, on the authority of Doctor

Stewart, in his history of the Stewarts, page 121. This

Earl Gilbert was one of the judges of Francis, Earl of

Bothw^ell, wdio was convicted of the murder of Henry,
Duke of Albany, the husband of Mary, Queen of Scot-

land, and the father of James \T, King of Great Britain.

This Earl Gilbert departed this mortal life at Edinburgh,
December 14, 151G, and w^as entombed at ]\Iayboll.

''Gilbert was a particular man, and a very greedy

man, and cared naught how^ he got land, so that he could

come by the same
;
and for that cause he entered into an

agreement with one Abbott of Glenlufe, concerning the

Abacie, to take the same in fee
;
but or lie got the same

performed, the Abbott died. And then he dealt with

one monk of the same Abacie, who counterfitt the

Abbott's hand-writt, and all the whole convent, and got

him counterfitt their names. And when he had gotten

the same done, fearing that the monk would reveal it,

he caused one Churl they caUd Carnachane, to kill him,
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and then for fear that Carnachane would reveal it, he

got his uncle on his father's side, Hew of Bargany

(Barquhouny) accuse this Carnachane of theft, and

hang him in Corsragall. And so the lands of Glenluse

was obtained." (See full account of the Roasting of

the Abbott of Crossraguel in the notes of Ivanhoe.)

"Now as concerning the Abbacye of Coisragall, this

Earl Gilbert acquired the Abbacy in this form : There

was an fader-broder of his, called Abbott Quinteyne, a

^'ood man, and one that feared God, after the manner

of his religione. He at the alteration of the religion

My Lord dealt with the Abbott, and got the rent of the

said Abbacy set to him, but this was refused by the next

incoming Abbot
;
and because the same was not confirmed

by the King, the same was made null. And then the

Abott, Allane Stewart, got the xA.bbacy ;
and this Abott

had married the sister of Lady Barganyis ; and, for

that reason, the Abott was with the Laird of Bargany,
and followed his opinions in all his doing. My Lord

of Cassillis perceiving the same, desired the Laird of

Bargany, to induce the Abbott to confirm his right as

given by Abbott Quinteyne before. But the Laird could

not get the Abbott to agree to come to him, that he

might deal with him, in that, himself, with faithful prom-
ises to use him well. Whereupon the Laird persuaded
the Abbott, and sent him to Mayboll, to my Lord. At

which coming, my Lord delt with him to ratify his right ;

but could not get him moved thereto. Whereupon he

took purpose to convey him to Donour and there to move
him to do the same by violence. And when he found

him obstinate, at last took him and bound him to a

form, and set his bare legs to a great fire, and ex-

tremely burnt him, that he was ever thereafter unable

/
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of his legs. Tlie word of this coming abroad, the Laird

desired my Lord to send him back the Abott; but my
Lord gave answer, that he remained with him of his

own wi'h and not by compulsion. But the truth coming
to the Laird of Barganyis ear how he was used, he con-

sulted with a man of his own, called David Kennedy
Maxsnltone. who had been his page before; who took

with him tlic number of ten or twelve of his master's

servants, and in the night drew near the gate, within

a chapell, which was at the draw end. And in the

morning when the keepers were opening the gate, the

draw and all being free, they issued out of the chapeH,

and forced open the gate, and so entered the house, and

took them all prisoners that were there. But the day

being bright, and this house in my Lord's bounds, they

could not then carey itt with them, and therefore were

forced to remain in the house, and send one away to

the Laird, to show him wdiat was proceeding, but or

ever before he could get his force gathered together

the Master and my Lord's brother entered about the

house, with all my Lord's force, and enclosed the same,

and entering in the afore said chapell, and thought to

have pierced the wall, because the chapell was joined to

the dungeone. But the Laird's men that were within,

Cast great stones down from the battlement of the dun-

geon and so brake the roof of the chapell, in such manner,

that they were obliged to leave the same. And in their

waygoing shot at them, and shot the master through the

sholder. The Laird of Bargany, in this time had gathered
his whole force; and also a great part of Kyill and Cun-

inghame came with him, that he was such a number, as

the Master and my Lord's servants and friends were

forced to retire, and suffer him to release his men, and
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take the Abbott, burnt as he was, to Air, home with him.

And this moved a great feud between them, but in the

end it was taken away by friends, Mr. David Lindsay
of Leithe minister, being umpire ;

and my Lord, the Laird

and Abbott ah agreitt. My Lord gave the Abbott some

money to Hve upon, which contentet him all his days ;
and

this was my Lord's conquest of Crosragall, which was but

a bad form."

In reference to the /\bbacy of Crossraguel, which

was the bone of contention in this barbarous affair, it

is proper to say a few words.

''Doctor Irving, in his learned and valuable life of

George Buchanan, observes, that Mary, Queen of Scots

was not insensible of his powerful claims upon the

protection of his country. In the year 15GJ:, she had re-

warded his literary merits by conferring upon him the

temporalities of Crossragwell Abbay, which amounted

in annual valuation to the sum of five hundred pounds,
in Scottish currency. The Abbacy was at that time

vacant by the decease of Quinton Kennedy, who was a

man of learning, and the brother of Buchanan's former

pupil, the Earl of Cassillis. And that about the period

when Buchanan was appointed preceptor to the King,
he seems to 'have entertained some apprehensions for his

personal safety, as well as his pension, &c." (Irving's

Life of Buchanan, Ed. 1817, pages 123, 168.)

In his Appendix, No. V, and No. VI, Doctor Irving-

has preserved copies of the documents from the Privy

Seal Record, relative to Buchanan's pension, etc., to

which the reader is referred. The following are Ex-

tracts from the Acts of the Privy Council, October 16,

1564.

''Master George Buchanan makes complaint that al-
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though the Temporalities of the Abbay had been given

to him, Gilbert Earl of Cassillis had, since the death

of the last Abbott, taken possession of said Abbay and

would in no way deliver the same to ]\Iaster George
Buchanan * "^ "^'^ The Lords of Secret Council ordered

the said Gilbert Earl of Cassillis to deliver the said Abbay
and Place Corsragwell with its orchards, &c., to said

Master George or any one in his name, within six days

next after, under pain of rebellion. And if he fail, the

said six days being bipast to put him to the borne '*' "''' ''"'

Master Allane Stewart, friends of Captain James Stewart

of Cardonal, by means of the Queen's corrupted court,

obtained the Abbacies of Crosraguel. The said Earl,

thinking himself greater than any King in these parts,

determined to have the whole benifice. And because he

could not find such securities as his insatiate appetite

required, this shift was devised. Here follow the dread-

ful account of the roasting of ]\Iaster Allen Stewart,

much more grusome in detail than the one herein re-

corded." (See Histor}^ of the Kennedys, by Robert

Pitcairn.)

The children of the fourth Earl of Cassillis were as

follows :

i A son, died in childhood,

ii A daughter, died in childhood,

iii John, fifth Earl of Cassillis, succeeded his

father. He married Jean Fleming (daughter
of Malcolm, Lord Fleming, and widow of

Thome Mettelane, Lord Thirlstane, Chancellor

of Scotland, and mother of Jhone, Earl of

Lauderdaill), by whom he had no issue. He

departed this life at London, England, and

was brought home and interred at Mayboll in
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the year 1615, in the reign of James, King of

Great Britain, Ireland, &c. He was succeeded

by his nephew, John, the son of his brother,

Gilbert Kennedy.
iv Hugh,

8 V Gilbert.

8 Gilbert^ Kennedy (Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and

fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert", the third Earl, Gilbert*^,

the second Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord

Kennedy, Gilbert", Lord Kennedy, Sir James", Sir Gil-

bert^) was the son of the fourth Earl of Cassillis. His

brother, John, the fifth Earl, dying without issue, was

succeeded by his nephew, John, the son of Gilbert^ Ken-

nedy.

Children :

i John, the sixth Earl of Cassillis, and the "eldest

son of Gilbert Kennedy, who was second

brother to John, the fifth Earl of Cassillis,

succeeded his uncle who died without heirs

gotten of his own body. He married Ham-

iltoune, third daughter to Thomas, Earl of

Haddingtoune, and had issue. He lives Earl

of Cassillis in this present year of God 1628."

The narrative from which the early history of

the Kennedys has been obtained here termi-

nates abruptly at the period of the public ac-

cusation of Auchindrayne and his son of being

guilty of the murder of the Laird of Dalrymple.
In Elias Davidson Kennedy's "History of

Descendants of William Kennedy and his wife,

Mary, giving their chain of the Kennedys from

Scotland to Ireland and thence to America,"
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is the following: ''John Kennedy, sixth Earl

of Cassillis, was one of the three Scotch noble-

men appointed to act as lay assessors to

Westminster assembly in 1643, but he never

attended."

9 ii Gilbert.

The following line of descent is to be found in Burke's

Landed Gentry :

King Robert Bruce of Scotland married Isabella,

daughter of the Earl of Mar, and had Princess Margery

Bruce, who married Walter, Lord High Steward (a

qus Stewart and Stuart) of Scotland, and had,

King Robert II, who had,

King Robert III, who had.

Princess Mary Stewart, who married Sir James Ken-

nedy of Dunure, and had

Gilbert, first Lord Kennedy, who married and had

John, Lord Kennedy, who married and had David,

Lord Kennedy and first Earl of Cassillis, created 1509

(ancestor of the Marquis of Ailsa, by his wife, Agnes,
eldest daughter of William, Lord Bothwick). David

had three sons, Gilbert, the second Earl, James, and

Thomas of Coif. Gilbert, the second Earl of Cassillis,

married and had Gilbert, the third Earl, who died in

1558, Ouinton, Abbot of Crossraguel, and other sons.

Gilbert, the third Earl of Cassillis, married and had

Gilbert, the fourth Earl, and Thomas of Culleau. Gil-

bert, the fourth Earl of Cassillis, who died 1576, married

and had John, the fifth Earl, who died in 1615, without

issue, and was succeeded by his nephew, John, the sixth

Earl, who died in 1668. His brother, Gilbert Kennedy,
was the progenitor of two lines of Kennedys in America.
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9 Colonel Gilbert^*^ Kennedy (Gilbert^ Gilbert^

Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^ the

third Earl, Gilbert*^, the second Earl, David^, the first

Earl, John"^, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir

James-, Sir Gilbert^) served under Cromwell at the

battle of Marston Moor.

Children :

10 i Thomas.

37 ii Gilbert.

10 Rev. TiiOMAS^i Kennedy (Gilbert^o, Gilbert^

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis,

Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert*^, the second Earl, David^,

the first Earl, John"^, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) of Donoughmore and

Carlan, in Tyrone, Ireland, where he removed in 1642.

The following baptismal record refers to him and is

from Mrs. Goodall's Memoir of her husband's residence

and imprisonment at Armagh in Reid's History of the

Presbyterian Church in Ireland : "Joseph, our third son

was baptized by Mr. Thomas Kennedy, minister of

Dungannon, A. D., 1658-77."

i Thomas, a Presbyterian minister.

11 ii John, a Presbyterian minister.

11 Rev. John^- Kennedy (Thomas''\ Gilbert^",

Gilbert^, Gilbert*, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of

Cassillis, Gilbert", the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second

Earl, David^. the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James^, Sir Gilbert^) of Newton

Cunningham, County Donegal, Ireland, married Lilly

. He died after 1786.



392 Seldens of Virginia

Children (all born in Ireland) :

i Andrew, born in 1717. He came to Pennsyl-

vania some time previous to the Revolution.

He was a man of property, which he used to

aid the Government during the war. He owned

an estate called Langhorn, in Bucks County,

Pennsylvania, six miles from Kittany, which is

in Armstrong County. This was afterward the

home of his niece, Mrs. Joyce. He was a

man of fashion and entertained lavishly. He

bought, on March 18, 1795, for $30,000, the

house on Market Street, Philadelphia, which

had been used as a presidential mansion. It

remained in possession of Andrew Kennedy
and his heirs, until April, 1832. It is now

526-530 Market Street. The stairway and two

pier glasses from this house were removed to

the house of Anthony Kennedy at Frank ford,

Pennsylvania. These pier glasses were after-

ward bought by Mr. Cadwallader of Philadel-

phia. There was, for many years, a curious

little box in the family of Andrew Kennedy,
which had been used by the sons of the Rev.

John Kennedy of Ireland to send Guineas to

the old country to their parents. There is a

tradition that the mother in Ireland was blind.

Andrew Kennedy died in 1800, in Philadelphia,

without issue. His will, dated December 20,

1786, is to be found in Philadelphia, and has

the following items :

'T Andrew Kennedy of the City of Philadel-

phia, Merchant, do make and ordain this My
last Will and testament in manner and form

V
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following that is to say Imprimus I give and

bequeathe to My Honored father and Mother,

John and Lilly Kennedy and to my loving

Sister Elizabeth Kennedy and Janet Rusk an

annuity of twenty-five pounds sterling money
of Great Britain to be remitted to them several-

ly by My executors hereinafter mentioned,

yearly and every year during the respective

natural lives, and at the decease of either or

any or all of them then My will is that the an-

nuity above devised to him, her, or them, so

deceased, shall thence forth be equally and

annually divided among the children of my
above two sisters, regard being had to the

number of such children who shall be alive

at every annual payment, and in case that any
of the children of My said Sisters shall die

without legal issue, before they arrive at the

age of 21 '•' '^ "^ I give and bequeathe to my
loving brother Anthony Kennedy

"^ "^ * to be

employed in commerce or otherwise at his dis-

cretion until the beginning of the year 1793.

The beginning of the year 1793 an inventory

of My estate * * '^ and a division of the whole

be then made between my said brother Anthony
and my brother John Kennedy. He, My said

brother Anthony, to have 2-3 and brother John
1-3. And, in the Case of Anthony's death be-

fore 1793,
* ''' * be delivered unto My said

brother John as soon as he shall arrive at the

age of 21.

Made this 20th day of December, 1786.

Proved 21st day of April, 1800."
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ii Anthony, born in 1749; came to America; died

in 1828, in Frank ford, Pennsylvania, without

issue; the following- names appear in his will,

made ]\Iarch 15, 1828, and proved October 7,

1828.

"Anthony Kennedy Joyce, son of my niece—
Rebecca Joyce, till he is of Suitable age and

qualified to enter the Theological Seminary at

Princeton, New Jersey.
'^ '•' '^

Jane McCoy,
in right of her Mother ''' * '•'

John Kennedy,

Andrew, Pendleton, and Anthony.
''' '•' '''

Niece, Nancy K. Risk [spelled Rusk in Andrew

Kennedy's will]
^ ^ ^

Nephew, Anthony Ken-

nelly Joyce,
^ * ''•'' then to his brothers Andrew

Kennedy Joyce,
''' ''" '^

John Joyce whose edu-

cation shall be under the care and direction of

the Rev. Thomas I. Riggs & the same Nancy K.

Risk ''' "^^ * If Anthony Joyce die in his mi-

nority then the same shall go to his Sisters,

Catharine Joyce and Jennet Joyce
'^ '" ''' Buck

County, Pen : part of Langhorn Park whereon

James Joyce & My Niece Rebecca his wife

now reside. 6 miles from Kittaning in Elders

District in Armstrong County
'•' * * My Niece

Jane or Jannett Risk (Anthony McCoy)
'^' '^' *

if Jannett die without heirs her property is to

go to her Sister Rebecca Joyce
* * *

I give

to my niece Lilly Colhoun wife of Benjamin C.

Colhoun * * *
[Her eldest son, John Calhoun,

he excludes from any share in the estate]
* * =^ My Niece Margaret Risk, My Nephew
David Risk » ^ * to be paid to my Niece

Nancy K. Risk ^ =!- *
John Risk son of My
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Nephew David Risk. * * ^= Nephew Anthony

McCoy -^
"

"^ My Kinsman Anthony Kennedy
Calhoun ^' ^'' '^

Anthony Kennedy Joyce and x\n-

drew Joyce Children of my Niece Rebecca

Joyce
''' '' '•'

Anthony Kennedy Calhoun Son of

My Niece Lilly Calhoun ^'' * "^ My friend Rev.

Thomas J. Riggs My nephew John Kennedy
& Anthony Kennedy Calhoun."

The following account of Anthony Kennedy
is from the diary of his nephew, John Pendle-

ton Kennedy, published in the Life of John P.

Kennedy, by Tuckerman :

*'My uncle Anthony, an older brother of my
father by some twenty years, paid off his

debts. This uncle was a man of fortune and

resided in the neighborhood of Philadelphia.

Lie enabled my father to retain our little coun-

try residence, known as Shrub Hill, where my
father had built a small but comfortable house

and which now became our only dwelling place.

Anthony Kennedy was an old bachelor who
had grown rusty from solitude. He lived near

Ffankford, in the neighborhood of Philadel-

phia, in a large house
;
had a great deal of

property in the City and out of it; collected

his rents with all imaginable punctuality ;

looked at a penny on both sides before he

parted with it, and grew to be, in his old age,

a silent, unsociable, and apparently unsympa-

thising man—the natural effect of solitary life.

But he loved my father, paid many thousands

for him, and left about seventy thousand dol-

lars of his property to my father's children—
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that is to my three brothers and myself.

When he died, in 1828, and left us these be-

quests, my father was in debt in his business

about twenty thousand dollars, sixteen thou-

sand of it to John McKim; so we paid the

whole amount off and left our parents very
comfortable."

The following is a letter written by this

nephew, John P. Kennedy, soon after his uncle

Anthony's death :

"Philadelphia, Oct. 18, 1828
''* * * I have been too much engaged since

I left you almost to write; my Uncle's estate

having been left under the control of three

executors, of whom I am the only counsellor,

you may imagine the few days I have been

here have not been idly spent. I can hardly
tell you the value of what he has devised to

myself and my brothers—property in town here

worth perhaps forty thousand dollars & Heaven
knows how much land in Maryland, Virginia
& Penn : some of it about thirteen miles from

Pittsburg
—a rather troublesome inheritance

and I apprehend, in my hands not worth much.

I shall let it all be quiet to increase in value

as the country grows, and support myself and

family by my professional labors, seeking that

darling of my hopes, renoun, in a course of

assiduous application."

This will of Anthony Kennedy is to be seen

in the City Hall, Philadelphia. It covers pages,

and his fortune seemed to be largely in lands

in all parts of the country.
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12 iii John, born in 1769; came to America; married

Nancy Clayton Pendleton of Virginia,

iv Elizabeth, married Anthony McCoy of Pennsyl-

vania
;
had issue.

V Jannett, married David Rusk of Scotland
;
had

issue.

12 JoHN^^ Kennedy (John^-, Thomas^S Gil-

bert^°, Gilbert^, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl

of Cassillis, Gilbert^ the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy. Sir James^, Sir Gilbert^) was born

in Ireland, in 1769. He emigrated to America, and mar-

ried Nancy Clayton Pendleton, of Virginia. (See Pendle-

ton Family, No. 18.) He resided in Baltimore, Mary-
land. The following account of him is taken from

Tuckerman's Life of John P. Kennedy.
*'Some of the most successful merchants of Baltimore

were of Scotch descent, although they came directly from

the north of Ireland; and by their exertions and wealth

the city became originally famed as a commercial port.

"Among these emigrants was John Kennedy, the father

of John P. Kennedy, who, after some years of prosperous

activity, was unfortunate, but being generously aided by

his elder brothers who resided in Philadelphia, was en-

abled to maintain his family in comfort and give his

children a good education. He married a daughter of

Philip Pendleton of Berkeley County, Virginia. A minia-

ture of this lady, taken two years after the period of her

marriage, which occurred at the age of sixteen, exhibits

a face of singular beauty, wherein gentleness and dig-

nity combined to give the impression of rare womanly
charm with unusual intelligence and force of character.
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She was evidently one of the recognized beauties of

her day, and the announcement of her wedding in the

old county pai)er is accompanied with a quaint but glow-

ing tribute to her attractions, after the chivalric style

of the times. It is from the Potomac Guardian and

Berkeley Advertiser, of Monday, October 6th, 1794.

'2^Iartinsburg, October 6th, 1794,

'Married last Thursday evening by Rev. Mr. Boyd,
Mr. John Kennedy of Baltimore, Merchant, to the elegant
and equally accomplished Miss Nancy Pendleton of this

town, a young lady

Tor whom art and nature kindly strove

'To form an object for the love

'Of a distinguished few.

'How blest to gain the sparkling prize,

'Bask in the radiance of those eyes,

'Thy Sex's pride and envy too.

'May all the joys of disint'ested love

*(And such alone the Gods were wont t approve),

'^lay all the honour, sense—the bliss virtue can yield,

'Mark every movement, every hour shield,

'And when the mortal fleeting period's o'er

'O May this happy pair attain the Elysian shore

'Those regions fraught with every joy supreme
'Where gold's not bliss, nor dignity a dream.

J j>

John Kennedy died on February 17, 1836. His wife,

Nancy Clayton (Pendleton) Kennedy, died on September
13, 1854, in her seventy-sixth year.

The following account is copied from the diary of

John P. Kennedy, eldest son of John and Nancy Clayton
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(Pendleton) Kennedy, in the Life of John P. Kennedy,

by Tuckerman.
''

'My Father, John Kennedy, born in Ireland in 17G9,

died in Virginia, in 1836, was an excellent man. He
came from Ireland in the year 1785, was brought np to

business as a merchant by my uncle Andrew, in Philadel-

phia ;
had a good estate left him by that gentleman—suc-

ceeded well in trade in Baltimore, where he came about

1792, married in 1794. He was respected and loved by
his townsmen, and was an upright, liberal, true-hearted

man, who always did his duty and stood by his friends.

He was involved in some unlucky speculations in 1804 by
his partner, Mr. Benjamin Cox, which resulted in bank-

ruptcy in 1809. He struggled after this with industry

to retrieve his fortune
;
tried business again, which, how-

ever, brought him nothing more than a meagre support

for his family. My mother had a small landed estate

in Virginia, which was, at last, our main reliance. * * "^^

[Next comes an account of his uncle, Anthony Kennedy,
wdiich will be quoted in the latter 's biography.]

"
'My Father was an excellent horseman, a brave man,

and somewhat distinguished as a dragoon in the Volun-

teers in the time of Ross's invasion of Washington and

Baltimore. He was in both actions of that campaign,
and did there, as everywhere he did, his duty.

"
'In 1820 he removed, with my mother and my three

brothers—for I stayed in Baltimore—to a farm of my
mother's in Jefferson County, near Charlestown, in Vir-

ginia. Jane McCoy, a niece of my father's, lived with

them. When she died, which occurred about 1825, and

my younger brothers grew up and set off to take care

of themselves, my father and mother being left alone,

sold "Clayton," the farm they lived on, to my brother.
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Andrew, and removed to the ''Bower,
"

the residence of

niy motlier's sister, ]\Irs. Dandridge, a gay, lively estab-

lishment, where they made a portion of the family by an

arrangement much desired by my aunt
;
and there my

father died on the 17th of February, 1(S3G of a paralysis,

being the third attack of this disease, originally produced,

some years before, by a fatiguing journey on a hot

summer's day, witliout protection from the sun. He
was sixty-seven years old. He was a man of compact
and vigorous frame with great capability to endure fa-

tigue, his nature was kind and sociable, and full of trust

in every one. He had a relish for humor, loved his

friends, and had. as far as I know, no enemies. He was

careless and liberal in money matters, and preserved

that trait through all the period of his struggles to

maintain his family. He was very fond of me, and

proud of me for what little I had to make him proud,

and never for one moment, allowed the straitness of his

circumstances to interfere with the due progress of my
education. Luckily he was able to sustain my brothers

and myself in the destiny he had allotted to us through-
out. He was rich while I was a child, and when his

affluence might have done me harm in the way of

indulgence: and he was poor just at that period of my
life when his wealth might have given me many advan-

tages. Heaven's blessing on his memory! There was

nothing which he had which was not at my disposal if

I needed it.

*'My mother was a Virginian. I ought to say is, for

she is now (April 18, 1847) living in Martinsburg, in

her father's house, in Berkelev County. Her father was

Mr. Philip Pendleton—a lawyer, and something better—
a most worthy and honorable gentleman. His brothers
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f
were Judge Henry Pendleton of South Carolina, who has

given the name to one of the districts of that State; Na-

thaniel Pendleton, the Aid de Camp of Greene in the

War of the Revolution, and the second of Alexander

Hamilton in that fatal duel with Burr—also Hamilton's

executor. William Pendleton was another brother. How

many more there were of them I do not know. But the

family was full of good men and distinguished men, of

whom Mr. President Edmund Pendleton of the Court

of Appeals of Virginia was chief. The connection is

spread all over Virginia, reticulated, as Governor Barbour,

who was one of them, would say. When General Harrison

Avas inaugurated in 1841, everybody was in Washington.

There I met John S. Pendleton,—Jack, as we call him—
the present member of Congress from Culpeper and

lately minister or charge d'affaires at Chili. He pro-

posed to me that we should get up a dinner of the fam-

ily then happening to be in Washington. So we set

about it and ordered a large table to be provided at

Brown's. When we mustered our Company thirty-two

gentlemen took their seats. Governor James Barbour

presided. I remember among the company Edmund H.

Pendleton of New York, former member of Congress

from Duchess
;
Green Pendleton, his brother, member of

Congress from Cincinnati
; Jack, of Chili ;

three sons of

my uncle, Philip Pendleton; Ned Hunter, and others.

Mr. Clay came in after dinner and made us a speech with

some laudation of the old President Pendleton, whom
he knew when he (Clay) was a boy. But the country

is full of Pendletons and their descendants. Amongst
them is General Zachary Taylor, the hero of Buena

Vista, and next President, I hope, and General Gaines,

. a pretty good specimen of the old stock.
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"
'My mother, Nancy Clayton Pendleton, was very

beautiful when she was married. I have a miniature

which proves this, independent of the traditions of the

elders, which I often hear. She is an uncommonly good

looking woman now, at seventy. She was married at

seventeen, in Martinsburg, in the house which she now
owns and dwells in. Aly father brought her to Balti-

more, where she was greatly admired. The year of his

marriage was that of the Whiskey Insurrection, and my
father was the lieutenant in command of a Company of

Volunteers, which marched under General Washington,

against the rebels. His Company had reached Frederick-

town and were encamped there, when the quarrel was

settled, and my father went from that encampment to

Martinsburg and took his wife, as the Scripture has it.

They were married on Thursday, the second of October,

in the year 1794. It was about the year 1809 that we

made Shrub Hill our permanent Residence; before that

we had a house in Baltimore and only went to the coun-

try in the summer. My mother was in delicate health

for many years before this, and travelled a great deal.

My brother, Andrew, and myself were her constant

companions on these rambles. Our circuit always ended

at Martinsburg, where I passed a month or two always

in hot weather. ]\Iy grandmother was then alive (Mrs.

Philip Pendleton), and took great delight in having my
mother with her. The family in Martinsburg was large.

My mother's eldest sister, Mrs. Hunter, lived there with

her husband. Colonel Hunter, and a house full of chil-

dren. Philip Clayton, and Edmund, James, and Henry,

all younger than My Mother, were at home; Sally and

Maria, now Mrs. Dandridge, and Mrs. Cooke, were very

young then. I remember ray grandmother's sister, Mrs.
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Ferguson, an old lady who used to come in from the

country, somewhere near Alartinsburg, and stay a few

days at a time with us * '''

*.

*'

'My uncle Philip, with whom I have passed the last

ten days, I think the first man in point of talents and

acquirements and manners that I have ever been ac-

quainted with. His influence upon society here is per-

vading & irresistible, and his reputation throughout the

State very high.
*'

'My mother had a face of singular beauty wherein

gentleness and dignity combined to give the impression
of rare womanly Charms with unusual intelligence and

force of character.' Family and social tradition amply
confirmed the promise of her youth, and even in advanced

age she exercised an influence and retained an aft'ection

among kindred and friends, which is the best evidence of

womanly traits and noble principles. Of her four sons,

John Pendleton Kennedy was the first born, and through-
out life he was a devoted son and tlie object of maternal

pride and tenderness. He writes of her and describes

her at the age of fifty-eight as a 'majestic looking wo-

man.' More than twenty years after this date she was

vigorous, and in the enjoyment of all her faculties when
her death occurred, after but a few hours' illness, from

Cholera.

"The following mention of the news, when first re-

ceived, is noted in her son's journal.
"
Tatapsco, September 12th, 1854—My poor ^lother

died Tuesday night at eight o'clock. I am deeply

grieved at this melancholy message—so sudden and un-

expected is the event. My I\rothcr was so cheerful when
I parted with her a few days ago; she was quite well,

but with a calm outlook towards her end, resigned, con-
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tented & happy, in the contemplation of it
;
but not

dreaming of it so soon or by such a disease. Martins-

burg was entirely free from all signs of cholera until

Thursday ;
and my Alother, after she had gone to the

Bower (The home of her sister Mrs. Dandridge) was

particularly well
;
On Alonday morning when my brother

Anthony's three children left her, she had been playing

the piano for the family and was in unusually good

spirits.'

Nancy Clayton Pendleton Kennedy, born 1778, died

September 13, 1854, in her seventy-sixth year.

The line of descent of the Kennedys is given by John
Pendleton Kennedy (Life of Kennedy by Tuckerman,

page 32), in a half playful style; but it coinsides with

the other accounts, and, as John Pendleton Kennedy was

the oldest grandson in this country, his testimony is most

valuable in establishing the Kennedy pedigree as it has

been given in this work.
*'

'As every man has a pedigree, I state mine thus, be-

ing the exact truth established upon the most precise

historical dates. Somebody begat the father of Ken-

neth, King of Scotland—^I do not wish to carry the

roll of my lineage beyond the king
—and he of course

begat his son
; and Kenneth begat sons and daughters ;

and one of the sons begat sons who begat others, and,

in due time, one of them begat a gentleman who was

on Flodden Field, having therefore—he or some of his

fathers—changed the spelling of the name to Kennedy.

And he of Flodden Field, who had degenerated from

a king into an Earl, begat a son, and in regular proces-

sion of begetting, a great Clan of Kennedys came to in-

habit certain Mountains of Scotland. And they got into

feuds and rows and sprees; and lifted blackmail, stole
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cattle, burnt barnyards, whereby many got themselves

hung. And some kept the border in hot water
;
and some

fought the Irvings ;

—
by the bye, I brought this to Wash-

ington Irving's notice, and we established upon it a truce

between the clans, and have found out some honest re-

lationship. And while some got hung, and some staid to

keep up the reputation of St. Kennedy' as Sir Walter

calls him, one man went over to Ireland and fixed his

tent at New^ton Cunningham in Donegal, where he begat
two sons and daughters, all Presbyterians, and the last

of these (namely John) begat Andrew, Anthony, John
which last John was my father."

These three sons, with their two sisters, Mrs. Risk and

Mrs. McCoy, all came to America and settled in Penn-

sylvania, two of them, Andrew and Anthony, before the

Revolution, John and his sisters later. John was the only
one of these three brothers who married and left de-

scendants.

John P. Kennedy's journal gives the following account

of the Pendleton family :

"
'On my Mother's side certain Pendletons lived in

England in the time of the Conqueror. Whereby it hap-

pened that Philip Pendleton came to be a resident of

Norwich
;
and about the close of seventeenth century

he, with his household, migrated to America & Settled

in Caroline County in Virginia; & there he begat

Henry Pendleton who married Mary Taylor & they

had sons & daughters. One of the sons was Edmund
of celebrated memory who was born in that County of

Caroline, 1721. xA.nd the brother of this Edmund begat

the father of Henry, Nathaniel, William, and Philip, of

whom I have spoken, which father in like manner begat

his own sons.
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"'Philip ran away with Miss Patterson of Berkeley

by whom he got a good landed Estate near Martinsburg,

which induced him to leave Culpeper & take up his

residence at Martinsburg; & hence my good mother

& all her brothers & sisters, & hence again the sub-

ject of this memoir.
"

'I was born on the ^otli of October, 171)5, being the

oldest of four children all sons. My Mother had an-

other son after my brother Andrew but he died when a

few months of age.'
"

Children :

i John Pendleton, born in Baltimore, October

25, 1795. He was an author, statesman, and a

patriot. His life, written by Henry T. Tuck-

erman, gives his history, both as a statesman

and an author. He was Secretary of the Navy
under President Filmore. This period was

made interesting in Naval history by Doctor

Kane's search for Sir John Franklin. His

books are : Swallow Barn
;
Horse-shoe Robin-

son
;
Rob of the Bowl; Annals of Ouodlibet;

Life of Wirt
;
Notes for Essays ; Miscellaneous

Writings ; Autograph Leaves
;
Occasional Ad-

dress, etc. He was a member of Congress, and,

in 1824, Mr. Monroe appointed him Secretary

of Legation to Chili. For some time he hesi-

tated as to his final acceptance, but at last

resigned the office. He died without issue,

August 18, 1870, after a prosperous and happy

Hfe, in all the blessedness of a Christian's hope.

One of his oldest friends said of him. "All

wholesome, glad influence flowed out from his

daily life, strong as the strongest of men, and



Kennedy Family 407

sweet as the sweetest of women. Such men as

he, at once so genial and so intellectual, with

a fascination alike for young and old, ought
never to die."

There is a small Bible belonging to John P.

Kennedy, with this inscription, written by John
P. Kennedy of Baltimore.

"This little Bible belonged to my Grand-

father John Kennedy of County Donegal, Ire-

land. It was given by him to his son John Ken-

nedy, My father, then leaving Ireland to Emi-

grate to the United States when but a boy of ten

or twelve years. It is signed with his name 1785.

He gave it to me in 1820. I now give it to

my Nephew John Willoughby Kennedy with an

injunction that it be handed down to his son

John P. Kennedy and be transmitted there-

after to those of the family who may succes-

sively bear the name of John.

''John Pendleton Kennedy, d. Aug. 13, 1870."

13 ii Andrew, married Mary Ann Riddle Lane.

32 iii Anthony, married, first, Sarah Stephena Dan-

dridge, second, Margaret S. Hughes.
iv Pendleton, died unmarried.

13 Andrew^* Kennedy (John^^, John^-, Thom-

as^S Gilbert^^, Gilbert^, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and

fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^, the third Earl, Gilbert^',

the second Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord

Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James^, Sir Gil-

bert^), second son of John and Nancy Clayton (Pen-

dleton) Kennedy, was born in Baltimore, July 27, 1797.

He married in Charlestown, Jefferson County, Virginia,
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January 1, 1822, Mary i\nn Riddle Lane, born in Charles-

town. December 3, 1799, daughter of Willoughby Wash-

ington and Rebecca (Riddle) Lane (see Lane Family,
Number 3, Westmoreland branch).

jNIary Ann Riddle Lane, wife of Andrew Kennedy,
died at Cassillis, April 21, 1873. She was often in ill

health in her young life but later became very strong

and well. She died, after a short illness, of erysipelas.

She was a woman of great personality, a strong, beauti-

ful Christian character, loved and respected by all Vv^ho

knew her. She lived in a beautiful home, where she

entertained with true hospitality, rarely being without

guests. She loved her church, ''Mount Zion," and under

its shadow she was buried.

Andrew Kennedy died at Cassillis, Jefferson County,

Virginia, the beautiful home that he built about 1825,

on February 17, 1858. He was a lawyer. The esteem

in which he was held was shown at the time of his fun-

eral, the line of carriages being more than a mile long.

The Virginia Free Press published the following obitu-

ary:

DIED, on Saturday evening, the 27th of February,

1858, ANDREW KENNEDY, Esq., aged about 61

years.

Rarely, if ever, has Death in his onward and resistless

march, stricken down one more worthy the esteem and

honored recollection of those who knew him, than the

subject of the above notice.

The unmerited eulogies, so often lavished upon the

memory of the recent dead, ought not and will not deter

the hand of friendship, in this instance, from penning a

just tribute to the pure character, and solid worth of

him, who has gone from among us, to dwell in the nar-

row house appointed for all the children of Adam.
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To speak of him simply as an honorable man, might, in

tjmcs like these, when the word Honor is so often mis-

applied, leave room for misconstruction among those who

knew him not
;
but applied to him, as all who did know

him will cordially respond, the term is applicable in its

highest and most significant sense.

An innate love of the just and true, mantled over with

an enlarged charity, constituted the ruling feature of his

character. Scrupulously upright himself in all the busi-

ness intercourse of life, he indulged in no harsh condem-

nation of the faults and foibles of others.

A certain reserve of manner, and somewhat retired

course of life, may have left many unprepared to ap-

preciate fully the genuine excellencies of his character.

But those whose opportunities enabled them to see the

inner man, valued him the highest. Those who knew him

best loved him most. Whatever of the praise-worthy and

commendable marked his conduct and course of life,

sprang not, as too often occurs, from the love of popular

favor and applause. They proceeded alone from the

inborn nobleness of his soul, and the constant culture

of the higher developments of his moral nature. He may,

and perhaps did, err by an excessive disregard of the

former. The latter, for this reason, endeared him the

more to those who saw and knew him within the inner

circle of his friends and acquaintance.

As a member of the Bar in early life, and latterly an

intelligent and efficient magistrate of the county, and at

the same time presiding over the Banking institution of

this place, there is but one voice going up from the whole

community, proclaiming in terms of peculiar emphasis

truly and faithfully,

"He acted well his part."
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Such, briefly, was his pubhc and social position. But

if from this, the phase of his character as seen by the

outer world, we turn to view him in the sacred precincts

of home, and the domestic circle, the qualities of his

character are seen here to stand out in still more shin-

ing and attractive relief.

As a husband, father and brother, those alone who

bore to him those endearing relations, can measure the

greatness of their loss. It is not meet, that others should

intrude upon the sacred privacy of their sorrow; yet it

may be allowed to them, his friends and neighbors, who

knew and esteemed him so highly to mingle with their

sadness, their deep regrets that the hand of Death had

not spared him a few years longer.

As a master, the ingenuous grief of his servants

around the open grave attested how keenly they felt the

loss of one, who was ever kind and indulgent.

And last—but above all; he died a Christian, leaning

upon and full of the blessed hopes, which alone can, and

did in his case, rob Death of all its terrors.

'The chamber where the good man meets his fate,

Is privileged beyond the common walk

Of virtuous life, quite on the verge of Heaven."

Children :

14 i John Willoughby, born in 1822
;
married Sarah

M. Rutherford
;
died in 1905.

18 ii Andrew Eskridge, born in 1824; married his

cousin, Maria Pendleton Cooke; died in 1900.

22 iii Anne Rebecca, born in 1825
;
married John

Selden (see Selden Family, No. 50) ;
died in

1854.

23 iv Mary Elizabeth Lane, born in 1830
;
married

Henry Pendleton Cooke
;
died in 1902.
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25 V Sarah Pendleton Dandridge, born in 1834;
married John Selden (see Selden Family, No.

50).

36 vi Edmund Pendleton, born in 1836
;
married

Julia Chew Paca; died in 1881.

14 Judge John Willoughby^^ Kennedy (An-

drew^*, Johnl^ John^-, Thomas^S Gilbertl^ Gilbert^ Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gil-

bert^, the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second Earl, David^,

the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born in Charlestown,

Jefferson County, Virginia, November 25, 1822. He was

a Judge in Wheeling, West Virginia. He married Sarah

M., daughter of Thomas and Mary (Duffield) Ruther-

ford, in Charlestown, April 30, 1857. Judge Kennedy
died of paralysis, February 2, 1905, in Washington, D. C.

The following record of his children is from his wife:

Children :

i Alice, married Charles Stevens
;
no children.

15 ii Thomas R., born May 26, 1861
;
married Min-

nie Whittaker.

16 iii Mary Willoughby, born October 2, 1865
;
mar-

ried Henry Clay Sincell.

iv John W. (baptized John W., but adopted the

name of John Pendleton, his brother of this

name having died), born May 17, 1871; mar-

ried May 9, 1903, Minnie C. Haukness.

17 v Annie R., born September 27, 1874
;
married

November 28, 1901, Francis Randolph,
vi Elizabeth Gray, born November 26, 1875.

15 Thomas R.^^ Kennedy (John Willoughby^^,
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Andi-e\vi\ Jolin'\ John^-, Thomas^\ Gilbert^", Gilbert^

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis,

Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert'', the second Earl, David'^,

the first Earl, John^ Lord Kennedy, Gilbert\ Lord

Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born ]\Iay 26,

1861. He married. December 18, 1880, Minnie Lee,

dauditer of A. O. Whittaker, of Woodlands, West Vir-

ginia.

Children :

i Thomas R., born December 13, 1891.

ii John Alexander W., born May 2-1, 1898.

iii Jennie R., born October 6, 1903.

16 Mary Willoughby^'^ Kennedy (John Wil-

loughby^^, Andrew^^, John^-\ John^-, Thomas^\ Gilbert^'',

Gilbert^, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of

Cassillis, Gilbert^, the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born

October 2, 1865. She married, September 10, 1892,

Henry Clay Lincell.

Children :

i Sally Douglas ^^icell, horn August 9, 1894.

ii Leah R. Lincell, born October 1, 1898.

iii Margaret R. Lincell, born July 8, 1901.

17 Annie R.^^ Kennedy (John Willoughby^^, An-

drew^*, John^\ John^-, Thomas^^, Gilbert^", Gilbert^ Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gil-

bert'', the third Earl, Gilbert'"', the second Earl, David^,

the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbcrf) was born September 27,

1874. She married, November 28, 1901, Francis Ran-

dolph.
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Children :

i Sarah Winifred Randolph, born May 6, 1903.

ii —
,
born about 1907\

iii
,
born 1909 or 1910.

18 Andrew Eskridge^^ Kennedy (Andrew^^,

Jol^V^ John^-, Thomas^\ Gilbert^^ Gilbert", Gilbert%

Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert', the

third Earl, Gilbert'', the second Earl, David^, the first

Earl, John"^, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir

James-, Sir Gi'bert^) was born July 18, 1824. He mar-

ried October 11, 1859, his cousin, Maria Pendleton,

daughter of Philip and Willie Ann (Burwell) Cooke, of

the ''Vineyard,'' Clarke County, Virginia. (See Cooke

.Family, Number 4.) She was born in 1840, and died

February 17, 1902, in Washington, D. C. Andrew Esk-

ridge Kennedy died of paralysis, January 1, 1900. He
and his wife are both buried at Mount Zion, Charles-

town, West Virginia. 'The following record of their

children is taken from the family Bible :

19 i Philip Cooke, born September 20, 1860
;
mar-

ried Selina Anderson Frizell.

ii Agnes Esten.

iii Elizabeth Pendleton,

iv Rebecca Willoughby.
20 V Andrew Eskridge, born March 9, 1875

;
mar-

ried Blanche Breeden; died in 1908.

21 vi Margaret Hughes, born June 23, 1878; mar-

ried Alexander Stronach.

19 Philip Cooke^^ Kennedy (Andrew Eskridge^^,

Andrew^-^, John^', John^-, Thomas^\ Gilbert^^^ Gilbert^

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis,
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Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second Earl, David^,

the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born at Cassillis,

September 20, 18G0. He married, November 17, 1887,

Selina Anderson Frizell, of Westminster, Maryland.
Children:

i Caroline Wright, born at Tompkinsville, Staten Is-

land, New York, October 28, 1889.

ii Philip Eskridge, born in Charlestown, West Virginia,

April 27, 1891.

20 Andrew Eskridge^^ Kennedy (Andrew Esk-

ridge^^, Andrew^*, John^*^, John^-, Thomas^\ Gilbert^*^,

Gilbert^, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cas-

sillis, Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second Earl,

David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^,

Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born at

Cassillis, Charlestown, March 9, 1875. He married, in

June, 1902, Blanche Breeden, of Richmond. He died in

the winter of 1908-9.

Children :

i Maria May, born January 13, 1903.

ii Elizabeth Pendleton, born December 24, 1904.

iii Blanche Breeden, born March 25, 1907.

21 Margaret Hughes^^ Kennedy (Andrew Esk-

ridge^^, Andrew^*, John", John^-, Thomas^ \ Gilbert^",

Gilbert^, Gilbert^ Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of

Cassillis, Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert'^, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born

June 23, 1878. She married, October 11, 1904, Alex-

ander Stronach, a lawyer, of Raleigh. North Carolina.
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Children :

i Alexander Stronach, born July 22, 1905.

ii Margaret Hughes Kennedy Stronach, born January 6,

1908.

iii Maria Pendleton Stronach, born October 29, 1909.

22 Anne Rebecca^^ Kennedy (Andrew^*, John^^,

John^-, Thomases Gilbert^«, Gilbert^ Gilbert^ Lord Ken-

nedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^, the third Earl,

Gilbert'^, the second Earl, David^, the first Earl, John"^,

Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir

Gilbert^) was born September 29, 1825. She married,

June 19, 1845, John Selden. (See Selden family. Num-
ber 50.) She died July 14, 1854.

Children (see Selden family, No. 50) :

i Wilson Gary Selden.

ii Mary Selden, married Dr. Stephen Dandridge Ken-

nedy (see No. 33).

iii Elizabeth Gray Selden.

iv Andrew Kennedy Selden.

23 Mary Elizabeth Lane^^ Kennedy (Andrew^*,

John^\ John^% Thomas^\ Gilbert^«, Gilbert^, Gilbert^,

Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^, the

third Earl, Gilbert^, the second Earl, David^, the first

Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert", Lord Kennedy, Sir

James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born January 3, 1830. She

married, January 1, 1855, Henry Pendleton Cooke, son

of John Rogers and Maria (Pendleton) Cooke (see

Cooke family). She died in March, 1902.

Children :

i Annie Selden Cooke,

ii Marian Willoughby Cooke, of Norfolk, Va.
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24 iii Henry Pendleton Cooke (name changed from

John Rogers), born March 21, 1857; married

Mrs. CaroHne L. Richardson, nee Evans.

24 Henry Pendletoni^ Cooke (Mary EHzabeth

Lane^-"' Kennedy, Andrew^ ^ John^-', John'-, Thomas '\

Gilbert^o, Gilbert^, Gilbert^ Lord Kennedy and fourth

Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert^ the

second Earl, David^, the first Earl, John'*, Lord Kennedy,
Gilbert^ Lord Kennedy, Sir James", Sir Gilbert^) was
born March 21, 1857. His name was originally John
Rogers, but was changed to Henry Pendleton. He mar-

ried, at Galveston, Texas, January 1, 1886, Mrs. Caro-

line L. (Richardson) Evans. (See Cooke Family, No.

8.) They had one son,

i Willard Cooke.

25 Sarah Pendleton Dandridge'^ Kennedy (An-
drew^^, John'", John'-, Thomas^S Gilbert^^, Gilbert^

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis,

Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert^ the second Earl, David%
the first Earl, John\ Lord Kennedy, Gilbert\ Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born September 23,

1834. She married, January 7, 1858, at Cassillis, Jeffer-
son County, John Selden (see Selden Eamily, No. 50).

Children (see Selden family) :

i John Selden, born October 3, 1859
;
married Susan

Worthington.
ii Annie Rebecca Selden.

26 Edmund Pendleton^^ Kennedy (Andrew^*,

John^^ John^2^ Thomas^\ Gilbert^^, Gilbert^ Gilbert^

Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^ the
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third Earl, Gilbert^, the second Earl, David^, the first

Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir

James-, Sir Gilbert^,) was born at Cassillis, December 15,

1836. He married, July 25, 1860, Julia Chew, daughter

of Edmund Tilghman and Alarian Eden (Jones) Paca, of

Wye, Eastern Shore, Maryland. The mother of Julia

Chew (Paca) Kennedy died while visiting her daughter

at Cassilhs, January 30, 1873, and is buried in Zion

Church yard. She was born June 28, 1818. Her hus-

band, Edmund Tilghman Paca, died many years before,

and is buried at Wye (see Paca Family, No. 3). Ed-

mund Pendleton Kennedy died May 30, 1881.

The children of Edmund Pendleton and Julia Chew

(Paca) Kennedy are:

27 i Julia Chew Paca, born May 12, 1861; married

Edmund Randolph Taylor,

ii Mary Selden, born at Wye, Maryland.

28 iii Edmund Pendleton, born November 14, 1865
;

married Josephine Maria Martelle.

29 iv Andrew, born July 8, in 1867
;
married Ethel

Phillips.

30 V Anthony K., born September 12, 1870; mar-

ried Katherine Conrad,

vi Margaret Hughes Paca.

vii John Pendleton, born March 21, 1873; mar-

ried January 24, 1905, at the English church,

Rue des Tanneurs, Antwerp, Belgium, and also

at the British Consulate, to Fanny Pickard,

who was born in Battersea, London, in 1872.

31 viii Ethel, married Charles Pitt Nicholson.

ix Paca, born August 2, 1878; a clergyman; mar-

ried, August 16, 1906, at Buena Vista Springs,

Pennsylvania, Erin, daughter of Doctor F. H.

H. Paine, of Galveston, Texas.
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27 Julia Chew Paca^*^ Kennedy (Edmund Pen-

dleton^^ Andrew^^ John", John^^, Thomas^\ Gilbert^^,

Gilbert^, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of

CassilHs, Gilbert^, the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John^, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born

at Wye, Eastern Shore, Maryland, May 12, 18G1. She

married, July 7, 1892, Edmund Randolph Taylor, of

Charlestown, West Virginia. (See Taylor Family, Num-
ber 3.)

Children :

i Julia Paca Taylor, born January 31, 1894.

ii Elizabeth Gray Taylor, born June 10, 1895.

iii Edmund Randolph Taylor, born October 5, 1898.

iv Margaret Beverly, born in January, 1908.

28 Edmund Pendleton^^ Kennedy (Edmund
Pendleton^^ Andrew^*, John", John", Thomas^\ Gil-

bert", Gilbert^, Gilbert^ Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl

of Cassillis, Gilbert^ the third Earl, Gilbert®, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^ Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born

November 14, 18G5. He married June 20, 1901, Jo-

sephine Maria Martelle.

Child :

i Josephine M., born June 2, 1907.

29 Andrew" Kennedy (Edmund Pendleton",

Andrewl^ John", John", Thomas^\ Gilbert", Gilbert^

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis,

Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert^ the second Earl, David^

the first Earl, John^ Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^ Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born July 8, 18G7.
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He married Ethel Phillips, February 21, 190(1, in Jersey

City, New Jersey.

Child :

i Ethel Paca, born December 30, 1906.

30 Anthony K.^^ Kennedy (Edmund Pendleton^^,

Andrew!-^, John^'', John^-, Thomas^\ Gilbert^ «, Gilbert^.

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gil-

bert^, the third Earl, Gilbert", the second Earl David^,

the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert', Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born September 12,

1870. He married, at Camden, New Jersey, June 18,

1901, Katherine Conrad.

Children :

i Anthony, born March 18, 1902.

ii Joseph Conrad, born September 28, 1903.

iii Edward Tilghman, born September 27, 1905.

31 Ethel^" Kennedy (Edmund Pendleton^^, An-

drew^*, John^-, John^^ Thomasi\ Gilbert^", Gilbert^

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of CassiUis,

Gilbert^ the third Earl, Gilbert^ the second Earl, Davids

the first Earl, John^.Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^ Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James^, Sir Gilbert^) married February 16,

1905, Charles Pitt Nicholson.

Child :

i Charles Pitt Nicholson, born December 3, 1905.

32 Anthony^* Kennedy (John^", John^-, Thom-

as^\ Gilbert^o, Gilbert^ Gilbert^ Lord Kennedy and

fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^ the third Earl, Gilbert^,

the second Earl, David^ the first Earl, John'^, Lord Ken-

nedy, Gilbert", Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^)
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married, first, Sarah Stephena, daughter of Adam Ste-

phen and Sarah (Pendleton) Dandridge (see Dan-

dridge Family, Number 8), and, second, Miss Hughes, of

Baltimore.

''Senator Kennedy was born in Baltimore, at Shrub

Hill, an estate of about fifteen acres, on which is now
Fremont Street, near Franklin, on December 21, 1810.

His father, John Kennedy, born in Londonderry, Ire-

land, was of Scotch descent, and came to this country
while a boy, joined his elder brothers, Andrew and An-

thony, who became very prosperous merchants in Phila-

delphia before the Revolutionary War, and contributed

largely of their means toward the assistance of the states

in their struggle against Great Britain. A branch house

was established in Baltimore, which they placed in charge
of their younger brother, John, who subsequently mar-

ried Ann Clayton, daughter of Philip Pendleton, of Ber-

keley County, Virginia. He died at an advanced age,

leaving four sons—John P., Andrew, Philip P., and An-

thony. John P. Kennedy was an author.

"When he was a small boy his father removed to that

state [Virginia] and settled in Charlestown, Jefferson

County. The son returned a young man and went into

partnership with Air. Edward Gray in the Patapsco Cot-

ton Mills, at Ellicott City, but tired of business and re-

turned to Jefferson County, where he began to live the

more pleasant life of a country gentleman.
"Natural inclination led him into politics, and after a

year of service in the legislature at Richmond, he was

put up as the candidate for Congress against Henry
Bedinger, a well-known Virginia Democrat of those days,

who was afterward honored with the appointment of

minister to Denmark under President Pierce.
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"At that time, as always until the formation of the

American party, Mr. Kennedy was a stout advocate of

Whig principles. The district in which the contest took

place was called the Tenth Legion of Democracy and

usually gave a majority of two thousand. It was com-

posed of counties most of which are now within the

territorial limits of West Virginia. Messrs. Kennedy
and Bedinger, the rival candidates, rode around to the

different towns together, and spoke from the same stump.
The result of the long hot fight was that Bedinger was

barely successful by sixty votes.

*'Mr. Kennedy was a member of the Virginia legis-

lature in 1840 and 1841, and was one of the Presidential

electors on the Whig ticket during the campaign in which

Zachary Taylor was elected President.

''He married, for his first wife. Miss Dandridge, of

Virginia. She died in 1847, and in 1857 he married Miss

Hughes, daughter of Christopher Hughes, of Baltimore,

who was abroad in the United States diplomatic service

seventeen years at Stockholm and The Hague. This

caused him to remove to Baltimore, and he took a house

on St. Paul Street, next door to that occupied by Henry
Winter Davis. He joined the American party when it

was first organized, and in 1857, was sent to the House of

Delegates. Some of the members wanted to make him

speaker, but he declined. He did all in his power to

push the claims of his brother. John Pendleton Kennedy,
the distinguished author of 'Horseshoe Robinson,' and

other books, for the Senate, but was elected himself after

a sharp contest. His opponents were James Dixon Ro-

man, of Hagerstown, Henry Winter Davis, and William

Price.

"In the Senate Mr. Kennedy always voted with the



4:22 Seldens of Virginia

Democrats, as he was not in sympathy with some of the

tenets of the American party men. He did not like their

secret society features or their bitter prejudices against

CathoHcs, and soon after he took his seat the party went

to pieces. Mr. Kennedy was a war Democrat as long

as he was a member of the Senate, and was one of a

celebrated quartet consisting of Kennedy, the late ex-

Minister Pendleton, \"oorhees and Clement L. Vallandig-
ham.

"His colleague in the Senate was James Alfred Pearce.

He remained in the Senate until 1862. In 1867 he was

selected by the Democrats as a member of the State

Constitutional Convention. Since then he has taken no

active part in politics. He resolved to spend his last

years in the enjoyment of domestic peace, and, with that

object in view, purchased a country home on the Fred-

erick road, about nine miles from Baltimore, where he

lived until very recently, when he took up his residence

with his son at Annapolis, where he died July 31,

1892.

''Senator Kennedy was tall and commanding in per-

son, of a genial disposition and took a lively interest in

public matters up to within ten days of his death. He
had three children, two of whom survive him. The sur-

viving ones are Mrs. Harrison, wife of Rev. Hall Har-

rison, rector of St. John's Church, near Ellicott City,

and Dr. S. D. Kennedy, of Annapolis. The deceased

son was Captain Philip C. Kennedy, United States

Marine Corps.

"Mr. Kennedy's career was a singularly interesting one,

and until a few years ago his memory for the remarkable

scenes through which he passed was wonderfully minute.

He could repeat whole debates, reproducing the speeches
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word for word, and tell anecdote after anecdote of the

great men who rose and fell beside him.

*'One of Mr. Kennedy's stories about Jefferson Davis

was especially interesting, and shows that duelling as a

settlement for Congressional disputes was held in favor

up to a comparatively recent date. 'One day about I860,'

he said, in giving an account of the occurrence, 'Mr.

Davis and Mr. Benjamin became angry with one another

in a debate on the floor of the Senate. Mr. Benjamin

thought his colleague from the South was talking in too

petulant a strain, and exclaimed, angrily, "Do you want

to insult me, sir?" I shall never forget Mr. Davis' ex-

pression when he waved his hand at Mr. Benjamin, as

if he were throwing an insult at him, and said, with

equal emphasis ;
"You have it now, sir !" The occur-

rence created a sensation among the other senators.

Davis left his seat and sent for Rob Johnson, of Ar-

kansas, of whom he thought a great deal. I asked John-
son what they were going to do, and he answered in a

low tone, with his head down to avoid attention
;
"Chal-

lenge."
"

'All that night Crittenden, Toombs and another man,
whose name I cannot remember, worked on Davis in an

effort to get him to make an explanation to Benjamin, as

it was evident there had been some misunderstanding
on both sides. When the Senate met the next day the

men were in their seats. Mr. Benjamin arose and ad-

dressed the presiding officer, withdrawing his remarks in

a beautiful speech of ten or fifteen minutes, which seemed

to fall from his mouth like running water. It was a fine

effort but Davis did fully as well when it came his turn

to explain.
"
'As I remember Mr. Davis,' the Senator said recently,
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in talking over tlie reminiscences of his life, 'he was a

very courteous man, scrupulously polite to everybody,

ordinarily, but petulant and cross when his health was

bad, as was often the case. His habits were temperate

and he did liis work faithfully. Although he did not

speak often, his remarks were always delivered with a

force which commanded attention. I heard a great deal

of private conversation among the southern leaders at

Mr. Davis' desk, where they sometimes collected to talk.

Nearly all thev did was decided upon in caucus before-

hand.'

''It used to be told as a good thing on Mr. Kennedy
that although he was sent to the Senate as a Know-

nothing, he was the son of a native born Irishman and

selected for an appointment during his term another

man of the same nationality. This appointee he made

doorkeeper in the Senate, and the incident aroused some

attention at the time.

"Mr. Kennedy used to possess an extensive fund of

reminiscences about his campaign with Bedinger, one of

which is as follows : On a certain afternoon both candi-

dates rode up to the house of an ignorant but aggressive

old man named Johnson, who was a well-known Demo-

crat and a great admirer of Bedinger. Mr. Kennedy,
as a measure of necessity, made his companion known to

Johnson, but cleverly avoided introducing himself.

When both visitors prepared to leave in the morning,

Johnson noticed the omission and said to Mr. Kennedy :

'Why, hang it. man, you haven't even told me who you
are!' Bedinger let the cat out of the bag by explaining

that it was the Whig candidate. The host at first re-

fused to believe it true that his political idol would

thus travel, eat and sleep with a Whig, and was not con-
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vinced until he heard both speak in the afternoon. Never

afterward would he say another word in praise of Mr.

Bedinger.

''Senator Kennedy was the only man ever elected to

the United States Senate as representative of the Ameri-

can or Know-nothing party."

Children (by first wife) :

33 i Stephen Dandridge, married Mary Selden.

ii "Philip Pendleton, died young,
iii Agnes Spottiswoode.

33 Dr. Stephen Dandridge^^ Kennedy (Anth-

onyi*, Johnl^ John^^^ Thomas^S Gilbert^^ Gilbert^ Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^,

the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second Earl, David^, the first

Earl, John*, Lord' Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy
Sir James^, Sir Gilbert^) married, in Baltimore, Novem-
ber 34, 1863, Frances, daughter of Lewis* and Margaret

(Armistead) Howell (Benjamin^, Joseph^, Joseph^)

(see Armistead Family, Number 22). Doctor Kennedy,

married, sepond, June 22, 1869, his cousin, Mary, daugh-
ter of John Selden (see Selden Family. Numbers 50

and' 52). She was born at Cassillis, Jefferson County,

Virginia, October 3, 1847. Doctof Kennedy was born

May 25, 1834, at the "Bower," Jefferson County. He
was educated at the Virginia Military Institute, at the

University of Virginia, and the Ijniversity of Mary-
land. He graduated in medicine from the last-named

institution in 1855. He practised in Baltimore and was

one of the visiting physicians to the Baltimore City and

Coun^ Almshouse. He is a member of the Baltimore

Pathological Society, the Medical and Chirurgical Fac-

ulty of Maryland, as also of the Alston Art Club, and
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of the Maryland Club. He was a delegate to the National

Convention of Physicians, which met in Washington,
in 1857.

In 1861 he entered the United States Navy as Assistant

Surgeon, and served with distinction as surgeon under

Farragut. In 1861 he was ordered to the U. S. S.

Colorado, which joined the Gulf Squadron off Fort

Pickens, Texas. On September 13, 1861, a boat expedi-

tion under command of Lieutenant J. H. Russell was

sent in from the Colorado to cut out and destroy the

Confederate Privateer Schooner, Judah, which was lying

at the Pensacola Navy Yard, awaiting a chance to run

past the fleet. Doctor Kennedy was detailed as medical

officer of the expedition and assigned to Lieutenant Rus-

sell's boat. Fort Pickens, on Santa Rosa Island, was

held by Federal troops. On the mainland across the

narrow channel were Forts Macrea and Barrancas, with

Confederate garrisons. From the latter for two or

three miles up to the Navy Yard was a Hne of batteries.

The Judah was at the dock of the Yard which was held

by about twelve hundred Confederate troops. To reach

the Yard it was necessary to pass close to Forts McRea
and Barancas, and beyond all of the batteries.

The expedition numbered one hundred men and of-

ficers in four boats, one launch and three cutters. Doc-

tor Kennedy was in Lieutenant Russell's boat, the launch,

which carried thirty-seven men, of which number two

were killed, and seven wounded. Leaving the ship near

midnight, when it was very dark, the boats pulled with

muffled oars to the narrow channel between the island

and the mainland. They passed close to the Forts with-

out being seen and pulling farther across the bay, passed,

unnoticed by the batteries in the darkness. When abreast
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of the Judah, the boats formed in Hne and stopped for

a few moments for the order to attack. Russell's and

Blake's boats were to attack and board the schooner and

set fire to her. The other two boats were to attack

one eleven-inch gun battery near either end of the vessel.

During this pause, an officer asked Doctor Kennedy to

change seats wnth him, and, as he did so, the man by
whom he sat down said, ''Doc, that may be a luck swap
for you, some of us will miss the number of our mess

in a few minutes." The boats rushed in and in a few

moments the schooner poured a heavy fire into them.

At the first fire, the two men on either side of Doctor

Kennedy, were killed, one of whom had joked about his

change of seat, and the officer who had exchanged with

him was hit in the arm. After a short but hot fight,

the privateer was taken and set on fire, the batteries

taken, and their guns spiked. The troops in the Yard

came rushing down the dock, but the men, regaining

the boats, checked them by a fire from their howitzers,

and, pulling over to the other side of the bay, stopped

to look after the killed and wounded. Aided by the

dim light, they succeeded in passing out without being

hit by the Forts or batteries, and reached the Colorado

at daylight.

Doctor Kennedy was afterward attached to the Hart-

ford, Farragut's Flagship, and was in the fights with

the batteries at Port Hudson. Grand Gulf, and Warren-

ton, below Vicksburg, Mississippi. He was promoted to

the post of Surgeon in 1863. While attached to the U. S.

S. Lackawanna, cruising in the Pacific, he was at the

Hawaian Islands during the great eruption of the volcano

of Kilawea, earthquakes and tidal wave in 1868. A few

days before its eruption he visited the volcano, and went



428 Seldens of Virginia

clown into its crater, and while exploring it twice made

very narrow escapes, once from suffocation by poisonous

gases, and, again, by walking on a lake of partially

cooled and hardened lava which suddenly started into

renewed activity. The escape was accomplished in both

instances by a rapid and trying run.

Doctor Kennedy resigned from the Service at the

close of the War, but re-entered it a year or two later.

In 1880 he was promoted to the post of Medical Inspector

with the relative rank of Commander in the Navy and

Lieutenant Colonel in the Army. He remained in the

Service until 1882. After this he lived at Annapolis,

w^here he practised his profession until 1897, when he,

with his family, removed to Warrenton, Virginia, where

they have since resided.

Children (by first wife) :

34 i Fanny Howell Hughes, married William

Maurice Manly,

(by second wiie) :

i Anthony K., born at the "Cave," April 22, 1873
;

. married Sept. 8, 1897. by the Rev. William

Mumford, and the Rev. Mr. Hall Harrison

Ellen, daughter of Rev. William Mumford. She

died Dec. 29, 1909.

ii Mary Willoughby. born in Norfolk, Va., Feb.

28, 1875.

35 iii Margaret Hughes, married Arthur Merwin
Ross.

36 iv Agnes Gray, married Dr. William Beverley

Mason.

34 Fanny Hov^ell Hughes^^ Kennedy (Stephen

Dandridge^^, Anthony^*, John^^, John^^, Thomas^\
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Gilbert^*^, Gilbert^, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and

fourth Earl of Cassillis, Gilbert^, the third Earl, Gilbert*^,

the second Earl, David^, the first Earl, John"^, Lord

Kennedy, Gilbert", Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gil-

bert^) was born October 9, 1864. She married, June

10, 1886, William Maurice Manly, son of Matthias E.

and Sarah (Simson) Manly, of Newburn, North Caro-

lina. She died July 20, 1894. Mr. Manly married,

second, in 1902, Mathilde L., daughter of William and

Sarah (Brent) Keyser, of Baltimore, by whom he had

a son, William Keyser Manly, and a daughter.

Child:

Christopher Hughes Manly, born March 29, 1888
;

member of the Order of the Cincinnati, eligibility for

which he inherited from his uncle, Lewis Howell.

35 Margaret Hughes^^ Kennedy (Stephen Dan-

dridge^^, Anthony^*, John^^, John^-, Thomas^ \ Gilbert^^,

Gilbert®, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of

CassiUis, Gilbert^, the third Earl, Gilbert*^, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born

in Charlestown, Jefferson County, Virginia, July 17,

1877. She married, June 9, 1900, Arthur Merwin Ross,

son of Albert and Alice (Brewer) Ross (see Ross Fam-

ily, Number 3). They were married at Cassillis, Fau-

quier County, Virginia, by the Reverend Joseph P.

McCormick.

Children :

i Arthur Merwin Ross, born May 28, 1901; lived

twenty-four hours.

ii Margaret Selden Kennedy Ross, born at Cassillis,

Virginia, Sept. 30, 1902.
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36 Agnes Gray^" Kennedy (Stephen Dandridge^%

A^thony^^ John^', John^-, Thomas^\ Gilbert^o, Gilbert^

Gilbert'', Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis,

Gilbert", the third Earl, Gilbert'*, the second Earl, David^,

the first Earl, John'*, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^ Lord Ken-

nedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was born at the Navy
Yard, Portsmouth, Virginia, December 4, 1881. She

married, August 29, 1907, Doctor William Beverley
Mason of Marshall, Virginia, son of John Stevens and

Eliza (Beverley) Mason. They were married at St.

James' Church, Warrenton, Virginia (see Mason Family,
No. 10).

Child :

William Beverley Mason, born in Washington, D. C.,

Monday, July 13, 1908, at 2:30 p. m.

37 Rev. Gilbert^^ Kennedy (Gilbert^«, Gilbert^

Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of Cassillis,

Gilbert^, the third Earl, Gilbert", the second Earl, David^,

the first Earl, John^,, Lord Kennedy, Gilbert^, Lord

Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert^) was a Presbyterian

minister, at Girvan, in Ayrshire, in 1651.

Reid's History of the Presbyterian Church in Ireland,

Volume II, page 300; and Volume III, pages 168, 177,

193, 278, and 357, refer to him and one of his grandsons,
as follows :

*'In 1662 the Reverend Gilbert Kennedy, who had been

ordained as a minister of Gervan in Ayrshire in 1651,

was ejected from that Parish and came to Ireland about

1668. He settled in Dundonald, after the death of Mr.

Peebles, and died in that charge, February 6, 1687-88.

He was brother to the Rev. Thomas Kennedy of Don-

oughmore and Carlan in Tyrone, and grandfather to the
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Rev. Gilbert Kennedy, minister successively of Lisburn,

Killileagh and Belfast, who died 1773."

"In 1744 when the second congregation of Belfast

became vacant by the death of the Rev. Kirkpatrick, the

Rev. Gilbert Kennedy became his successor."

Son:

38 Gilbert, a Presbyterian minister.

38 Rev. Gilbert^- Kennedy (Gilbert^\ Gilbert^^

Gilbert^, Gilbert^, Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of

Cassillis, Gilbert^, the third Earl, Gilbert^, the second

Earl, David^, the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^, Lord Kennedy, Sir James^, Sir Gilbert^) was

minister of Donaclony or Tullylish, and afterward dis-

tinguished himself as a writer on behalf of subscrip-

tions. He was elected moderator in 1720. He had three

sons and one daughter, who all emigrated to America.

Children:

i Gilbert, ordained a Presbyterian minister in

1704; emigrated to America in 1730.

ii Robert, ordained a Presbyterian minister in

1704; emigrated to America in 1730.

39 iii Wilham, born in Londonderry, in 1695; or-

dained a Presbyterian minister in 1704; married

Mary or Marian Henderson; emigrated to

America in 1730.

iv Katharine, married William Tennant, an Epis-

copal clergyman, who afterward became a Pres-

byterian minister
;
he came to America in 1716,

and built the Log College, in Bucks County,

Pennsylvania, the only place, outside of New

England, where a classical theological educa-

tion could be obtained at that date.
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39 Rev. William^- Kennedy (Gilbert^\ Gilbert^",

Gilbert^ Gilbcrt^ Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl of

Cassillis, Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert^ the second

Earl, David^ the first Earl, John^ Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^ Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir Gilbert') was born

in Londonderry, in the north of Ireland, in 1685. He

was ordained a minister in 1704, and emigrated to Ameri-

ca in 1730, and settled in Bucks County, Pennsylvania.

His wife was Mary or Marian Henderson. His death

occurred in 1777, and he was buried in this country.

He and his wife have numerous descendants, but the

genealogy has not been carried beyond his grandson in

this volume.

Children :

i Thomas, born in 1729; married Janet ;

no issue; died January 24, 1794.

40 ii James, born in 1730, in Bucks County, Penn-

sylvania; married, first, Jane Maxwell, second,

Jane McCalla or McCauly.
iii Robert, born in 1733.

iv John.

V Lucy,
vi Mary,
vii Rebecca Jane, unmarried.

40 James'2 Kennedy (William'^ Gilbert'\ Gil-

bert'^ Gilbert^ Gilbert^ Lord Kennedy and fourth Earl

of Cassillis, Gilbert', the third Earl, Gilbert^ the second

Earl, David^ the first Earl, John*, Lord Kennedy, Gil-

bert^ Lord Kennedy, Sir James-, Sir GilberP) was born

in Bucks County, Pennsylvania, in 1730. He married,

first, in 1761, Jane Maxwell, sister of General Maxwell of

the Revolutionary Army. She died September 7, 1784.
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He married, second, Jane ]\IcCalla or McCauly, by whom
he had no children. James Kennedy and his second wife

died on the same day, October 7, 1799, and were buried

in the same grave.

Son (by first wife) :

John, had twelve children.

h
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The following genealogy has been obtained from mem-
bers of the family, living in 1901, and from other

sources.

Thomas^ Forrest, with his wife, Lady Forrest, and
her maid, Ann Burris, came to Virginia from England,
in 1607, in company with Sir Anthony Forrest, Gent.,

and other colonists. When Maryland was founded by
the Calverts, the Forrests, dissatisfied with the established

church in Virginia, removed to that Colony, in 1634.

Thomas Forrest and his wife, and also Ann Burris, her

maid, and John Laydon, the man she married, are repre-
sented in the painting of the Baptism of Pocahontas, in

1613, in the rotunda of the Capitol at Washington. Their

names appear below the picture. History records that

this marriage was the first to be solemnized in the Colony,
and also that ''Mistress Forrest" was the first gentle-

woman to arrive in the Colony. Thomas Forrest left a

son,

1 Patrick.

1 Patrick^ Forrest (Thomas^) married Helen

Qievaille, according to tradition. It is thought that

this name may have been Cavalier. In the Congressional

Library, at Washington, in the List of French Refugees
to America, is the following:

"
'Pierre Cavalier la femme

et un garson' French refugees embarked in London in

my said ship for Virginia, landing in Jamestown, Sept.

20th, 1700. Capt. Daniel Perrand." Patrick Forrest

437
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died in St. Mary's County, Maryland, about 1675. He
and his wife had the following children:

2 i Richard.

ii Ann.

iii Margaret,
iv Elizabeth.

2 Richard^ Forrest (Patrick-, Thomas^) had a

son :

3 Thomas.

3 Thomas* Forrest (Richard^ Patrick^ Thomas^)
had a son :

4 Peter.

4 Peter^ Forrest (ThomasS Richard^ Patrick-,

Thomas^) married and had the following children:

i Patrick, married Frances Home.
ii William,

iii James.
iv John.

5 V Thomas.

5 Doctor Thomas^ Forrest (Peter^, Thomas*,

Richard", Patrick-, Thomas^) married a daughter of

Zachariah Hazel, who was a member of the Provincial

Convention, at Annapolis, Maryland, in April, 1774 (Md.
Archives, Vol. 1, page 1060).

Children :

Uriah, married Ann Plater.

Zachariah, married, first, Nancy Edwards, sec-

ond, Rebecca Goldsmith, third. Miss Ford.

Zephaniah, married Fenwick.

Thomas, married .

6
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6 Brigadier-general Uriah' Forrest (Thomas°,

Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) married

Ann, daughter of Governor Plater of Maryland. He
was appointed Major of the Lower Battalion of Militia

in St. Mary's County, Maryland, August 26, 1777, and

rose to the rank of Brigadier-General (Maryland Ar-

chives, 1765-80). He died in 1803, leaving the following
children :

i Eliza, married Mr. Reed,

ii Benjamin, married Ann Summers,

iii George Plater, married Miss Chapman.
7 iv Nancy, married Lieut. Green, U. S. N.

8 v Maria, married, first, John Tayloe, second. Doc-

tor Bohrer.

7 Nancy^ Forrest (Uriahs Thomas^, Peter^,

Thomas'^, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) married Lieu-

tenant Green, of the United States Navy, in 1812.

Children :

i George, married Miss Devereux.

ii Rose, married N. Quisenbery.
iii Alice, married Angel de Yturbide, son of the Em-

peror of Mexico,

iv Imogen, married Fielding Lewis, of King George

County, Virginia,

v Nannie,

vi Osceola, married Eastman Pyles.

8 Maria^ Forrest (Uriah^, Thomas", Peter^,

Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) married, first,

John Tayloe, of Mount Airy, Virginia, and, second, Doc-

tor Bohrer, of Georgetown, D. C. Her son, by her first

husband,
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John Tayloe, married Miss Lewis
;

lived near Fred-

ericksburg, Virginia.

9 Capt. Zachariah^ Forrest (Thomas^ Peter^,

Thomas"', Richard", Patrick-, Thomas^) was born in St.

Mary's County, Maryland, November G, 1742. He be-

longed to the Lower Battalion of Alilitia in St. Mary's

County, and was appointed Captain by the Council of

Maryland, August 2(), 1777 (Maryland Archives, 1765-

80). After the Revolution, Zachariah Forrest was one of

the first Judges appointed for St. Mary's County. He
was married three times. His first wife was Nancy
Edwards, whom he married in 1764. His second wife

was Rebecca Goldsmith, and his third wife was Miss

Ford. By the last he had no children.

Children :

Richard.

Joseph.

Lydia.

Catherine, born in 1773
;
died unmarried.

Sarah.

Margaret, born in 1777; died unmarried.

James.

Mary Anne.

Elizabeth.

10 Richard"^ Forrest (Zachariah", Thomas*^,

Peter^, Thomas*, Richard", Patrick^, Thomas^) was born

in 1767. He was appointed Postmaster of Georgetown,
D, C, by President Washington, and held that ofhce

1797-99. He was again appointed, by President Jef-

ferson, in 1800. He was one of the first Justices of

the city of Washington (see Annals of Georgetown and

10
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Washington, in the Congressional Library). He married

Sarah, daughter of David Crawford, the patriot of the

Revolution, who gave £1,000 and two hogshead of to-

bacco for the relief of the soldiers. David Crauford

was a member of the House of Burgesses for Prince

George County, Maryland, and the first Judge of that

County after the Revolution.

Children:

i Sarah,

ii David, married Mary Dulany Clagett.

11 iii Julius, married Sophia Ogle.

12 iv Mary, married Doctor Kearney.

11 Julius^ Forrest (Richard^, Zachariah^ Thom-

as^, Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick", Thomas^) mar-

ried Sophia Ogle. Their daughter,

Zuleima, married Daniel Carroll Digges.

12 Mary^ Forrest (Richard^, Zachariah^, Thom-

as*^, Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^ Patrick-, Thomas^) mar-

ried Doctor Kearney of the United States Navy. She

died in Mexico.

Children :

i Richard Kearney, married Rosalie Calvert, of

Mount Airy, Maryland, great-granddaughter of

the last Lord Baltimore.

13 ii Kate Kearney, married Captain Henry, of the

United States Army.

13 Kate^^ Kearne;y (M;ary^ Forrest, Richard^,

Zachariah^ Thomas^ Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^ Pat-

rick-, Thomas^) married Captain Henry of the United

States Army.
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Children:

14 i Kate Henry, married Judge John Mason.

15 ii Alalcohn Henry, married Kate Vorhies.

16 iii WiUiam Henry, married Frances E. Barber.

14 Kate^^ Henry (Kate^^ Kearney, Mary^ For-

rest, Richard^, Zachariah^ Thomas^, Peter^, Thomas*,

Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) married Judge John

Mason, of King George County, Virginia. His mother

was Miss Randolph, of Edgehill, the great-granddaughter
of Thomas Jefferson.

i Flora Mason.

ii Thomas Jefferson Mason.

15 Malcolm^^ Henry (Kate^'' Kearney, Mary^

Forrest, Richard*, Zachariah^ Thomas^, Peter^, Thomas*,

Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) married Kate Vorhies, of

California.

Children :

i Robina.

ii Malcolm.

16 WiLLiAM^^ Henry (Kate'° Kearney, Mary^

Forrest, Richard*, Zachariah^, Thomas^, Peter^, Thomas*,

Richard^, Patrick^, Thomas^) married Frances B. Barber,

of Maryland.
Child :

Anita.

17 Joseph* Forrest (Zachariah^ Thomas^, Peter^,

Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick^, Thomas^) was born in

1768. He married Elizabeth Dulany.
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Children :

i Dulany, died in United States Navy. Was
wounded Sept. 10, 1813, in battle on Lake Erie,

wounded, and sent to Washington with dis-

patches.

18 ii French, married Emily Semmes.
iii Sophia, married John De Butts,

iv Josephine, married Mr. Denham.
V Moreau, married Mrs. Robinson, of Baltimore,

Maryland,
vi James, died unmarried,

vii Bladen, married Miss Keith, of Georgetown,
D. C.

viii Julia, died unmarried,

ix Zachariah, married Victoria Worcester.

18 French^ Forrest (Joseph^, Zachariah^, Thom-

as^, Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) was

in the United States Navy. He afterward was a Confed-

erate Admiral. His wife was Emily Semmes. They
had a son.

Rev. Douglas French.

19 Lydia^ Forrest (Zachariah^, Thomas^, Peter^,

Thomas'^, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) was born in

1771. She married Mr. Johnson.

Children :

i Anne Johnson, married Spaulding.
ii James Johnson.
iii Susannah Johnson, married Doctor Summers, of

Rockville, Maryland,
iv Zachariah Johnson, lieutenant in the United States

Navy married Anne Holland, of Rockville, Maryland.
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V Thomas Johnson,
vi Sally Johnson.

20 Sarah^ Forrest (Zachariah', Thomas*', Peter^,

Thomas'^, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) was born in

1775. She married Mr. Abell.

Children :

i Susan Abell, married McSherry.
ii Benjamin Abell.

iii Nancy Abell, married Commodore Boarman,
U. S. N.

iv Joseph Abell, married his cousin, Alary Goode.

V James Abell, married Cleveland.

vi Martha Abell, married Edmund P. Hunter.

vii Margaret Abell, died in infancy.

viii John James Abell, married Bettie Thompson.

21 James^ Forrest (Zachariah^, Thomas^, Peter^,

Thomas*, Richard"', Patrick-, Thomas^) was born in

1781. He married Emily Jackson.

Children :

i Richard.

ii Joseph, lived at "Home Place," Forrest Hall, St.

Mary's County, Maryland ; captain in the Civil War ;

married Cecilia Plowdon, a descendant of Sir Ed-

mund Plowdon.

22 Mary Anne® Forrest (Zachariah^, Thomas®,

Peter^, Thomas*, Richard\ Patrick-, Thomas^) was born

in 1784. She married William Goode, who was of

Scotch descent.

Children :

i Alexander Goode.
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23 ii Mary Goode, married Joseph F. Abell.

24 iii Martha Goode, married Judge Moor£liead.

23 Mary^ Goode (Mary Anne^ Forrest, Zachariah^,

Thomas^, Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^)
married Joseph F. Abell.

Children :

i Nannie Abell.

ii Janet Abell.

24 Martha^ Goode (Mary Anne^ Forrest, Zacha-

riah^, Thomas^, Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick-,

Thomas^) married Judge Moorehead, of Zanesville,

Ohio. She removed to Iowa.

Children :

i William Moorehead.

ii Hammond Moorehead.

iii Frank Moorehead.

iv Giles F. Moorehead.

V Anna Moorehead, married the Rev. Woodworth

a Methodist minister.

25 Elizabeth^ Forrest (Zachariah^ Thomas^,

Peter^ Thomas*, Richard^ Patrick-, Thomas^) was born

February 17, 1790. She married, first, Giles Cook, and,

second, William Brown, for many years cashier of the

bank in Charlestown, West Virginia. She died in August,

1880.

Child (by first husband) :

i Giles F. Cook, married, first, Miss Fort, sec-

ond, Miss Harrison
;
no children.

Children (by second husband) :

26 ii Thomas Augustus Brown, married Annie

Washington.
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28 iii Sarah Rebecca Brown, married G. W. T.

Kearsley.

26 Thomas Augustus^ Brown (Elizabeth^ For-

rest, Zachariah^ Thomas^, Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^,

Patrick^, Thomas^) married Annie Washington, of Hare-

wood.

Children :

27 i Forrest W., married Emma Tucker,

ii Mary M., married St. George Brooke,

iii Ida C, married George Rogers,

iv Annie Floride,

27 Forrest W.^^ Brown (Thomas Augustus®,

Elizabeth^ Forrest, Zachariah^ Thomas^, Peter^, Thom-

as*, Richard^, Patrick^, Thomas^) married Emma Tucker.

Son:

Forrest A.

28 Sarah Rebecca® Brown (Elizabeth® Forrest,

Zachariah^, Thomas^, Peter^, Thomas*, Richard^, Pat-

rick^, Thomas^) married G. W. T. Kearsley, May 30,

1849. He was a Major in the Confederate army (see

Kearsley History).

Children :

i William Keyes Kearsley, married Mattie Hill of St.

Louis,

ii Anna Humphreys Kearsley, married G. W. Lam-

bright.

iii Bettie Forrest Kearsley.

iv George Tate Kearsley.

V Jeannie Templeton Kearsley, married T. M. Cald-

well.
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vi Elizabeth Forrest Kearsley, married J. J. Wysong.
vii Margaret (Meta) Burnett Kearsley, married

Andrew Kennedy Selden (see Selden Family No.

55).

viii Agnes Kearsley, married H^nry H. Cooke.

ix Rebecca A. Kearsley, married H. H. Reese.

X Charles Brice Kearsley, married Frances Thompson.

29 Lieut. Zephaniah^ Forrest (Thomas^ Peter^,

Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^) was born in

1764. He was a member of the Lower Battalion of

Militia, in St. Mary's County, Maryland, and was ap-

pointed Lieutenant by the Council of Maryland, August
26, 1777, the same date as that of the appointments of

his two brothers as officers (Maryland Archives, 1765-

80). Lieutenant Forrest married Fenwick.

Children :

30 i Henry, married Jane Love,

ii Elizabeth Dick.

iii Richard,

iv Thomas.

V Uriah,

vi Henry.

30 Henry^ Forrest (Zephaniah^ Thomas^, Peter^,

Thomas*, Richard^, Patrick^, Thomas^) married Jane
Love.

Children :

i Samuel, paymaster in the United States Navy;
married Anna Henderson, who died Nov. 21,

1900
;
buried at Charlestown, W. Va.

31 ii Charles, married Nourse.

32 iii Ann Love, married Dr. Chapman Johnson.
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31 Charles^ Forrest (Henry^, Zephaniah^ Thom-

as*', Peter^, Thomas'^, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^)
married Nourse, who resided near Georgetown.

Child :

Louisa, married Erwin.

32 Ann Love^ Forrest (Henry^ Zephaniah^

Thomas'^, Peter^, Thomas^, Richard^, Patrick-, Thomas^)
married Doctor Chapman Johnson, of Richmond.

Children :

i A daughter,
ii Chapman Johnson.

33 Thomas^ Forrest (Thomas''', Peter^, Thomas*,

Richard'^, Patrick", Thomas^) married .

Children :

i Fannie,

ii Catherine,

iii Eleanor.
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The following account of the Breckenridge Family
has been furnished by Mr. James M. Breckenridge, of

St. Louis.
'"" '" * Besides these children of our emigrant ancestor,

named Alexander Breckenridge, there were three others :

John, evidently the eldest son, who was killed by Indians

before 1751; George, who married Ann ^Trak-, and who
was my ancestor; and Robert, who married first ^aj^afe ^tt^^^
Poage, having by her ^' "••' ^ two sons, Alexander and

Robert, both of whom served in the Revolutionary War,
and afterward settled near Louisville, Kentucky, and,

by his second wife, Letitia Preston, had, among other

children. General James Breckenridge, of Fincastle. I

do not know the exact date of the death of Robert

Breckenridge, his father, but have ahvays understood

it was 1772, and that he was born in Ireland, about

1720. His wife, Letitia Preston, as I am informed, died

in 1798. The date of her birth is variously stated, but

this date I once looked up for General Joseph C. Breck-

enridge, of Washington, and, according to the best author-

ities, she was born in Ireland in 1725, although for this

I cannot vouch. [She died in 1798, aged seventy years.]

''George Breckenridge, my ancestor, died in Wythe
County, Virginia, in 1790, having previously moved from

Augusta County to Albemarle, Boutetourt, and Fincastle

Counties, respectively. His three sons all settled in Ken-

tucky.

"Our emigrant ancestor, Alexander, whose wife was

451
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Jane (thought to have been a sister of John Preston, an-

cestor of that family), proved his importation at Orange
Court House, Virginia, in May, 1740, but the earhest

record I have been able to discover of his presence in

the United States, is that of a survey made for him in

Augusta County, May 12, 1738.

"The records of the Preston family, especially the

narrative of Mrs. Letitia Preston Floyd (a very rare

manuscript written in 1843, of which I have a copy),

indicate that they emigrated to America in 1737, and all

traditions hold that the Preston and Breckenridge fami-

shes came over together. Therefore, I am inclined to

think that my ancestor came over in 1737 instead of the

date 1728 held by Colonel W. C. P. Breckenridge, of Lex-

ington.

"Alexander Breckenridge, the emigrant, was a native

of Ireland, of Scottish descent, and a Presbyterian. The

statement that he or his forefathers fled from persecu-

tion during the reign of Charles II is mere tradition, and

the exact date of his emigration is unknown. On May 22,

1740. he made oath at Orange Court House, Virginia,

that he 'had imported himself, his wife Jane,' and his

children (they are given by name, among them being

George and Robert) 'from Ireland to Philadelphia and

thence to this colony, at his own charges,' etc.

"He may have been in Virginia a couple of years prior

to this (late, as there is a record of a survey being made

for him in Augusta County, May 12, 1738.

"There is nothing but tradition to bear out the state-

ment that his wife's family name was Preston. He died

in 1744, in Augusta County, Virginia. Of his children,

only two are known to have left descendants. George,

the executor of his father's estate, married Ann Doak,
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and their childrc.
.^^ere Alexander, who married Mag-

dalen Gamble, and died m Ji^u.^K^n County, Kentucky,
in 1813; Robert, who married Mary omw%,'...,4 ^-^^ -^^ 7^0^
Bath County, Kentucky, in 1814; John, who marrieu

Elizabeth Willoughby, and died in Bourbon County, Ken-

tucky, in 1824
; Elizabeth, who married Jesse Evans

;

Letitia, who married Lindsey ; Sarah, who married Find-

ley, and Jane, who married Alcorn. George Brecken-

ridge died in Wythe County, Virginia, in 1790.

"Colonel Robert Breckenridge, his brother, married,

first, S-af=ah Poage, by whom he had two sons, Alexander, 7?^ <S

who married Mrs. Jane Buchanan Floyd, and Robert,

who died unmarried. Both these sons were officers in

the Revolutionary War, and settled in Kentucky whei*^

they were men of prominence.
''Colonel Robert, by his second wife, Letitia Preston,

daughter of John Preston, the emigrant, and his wife,

Elizabeth Patton, had six children : William, who mar-

ried Miss ^il44^n-; John, afterward Attorney General of O*/*-***

the United States, under Jefferson, and United States o ^y^

Senator from Kentucky, married Mary Hopkins Cabell
;

James, who married Ann Selden
; Preston, who married

Miss Trigg ; Jane, who married Samuel Meredith
;
and

Elizabeth, who died young. Colonel Robert Brecken-

ridge was an officer in the Indian Wars, Sheriff of Au-

gusta County, one of the first Justices of the Botetourt

County Court in 1770, in which county he died in 1773.

His wife, Letitia Preston Breckenridge, died in Ken-

tucky in 1796. She was born in Ireland, date unknown,

but about 1725, '28, since her brother, William, who was

the second child younger than herself, was born on

Christmas Day, 1729.

"Judge George W. Breckenridge of Fincastle, is au-
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thoritv '^ '-'' '•' Jor ^^^* statement that the home at Grove

pjjil ,,.-.0 ouilt ill 1795, and that the plantation originally

comprised 4,000 acres. The Bible '•' '-^^ '•' of General

James Breckenridge must have been burned three or four

years ago in the destruction of Colonel Gary Brecken-

ridge's home. * * *

"The descendants of George Breckenridge to this day

spell the name as I do—'"Breckenridge." His brother,

Colonel Robert, used the same spelling throughout his

life, but Colonel Robert's descendants followed the form

"Breckinridge,"
'•' '' ''' The records of Augusta and

Botetourt Counties ""•'' '•' '^

prove the truth of this state-

ment. '^ "^^ *

"The History of Henrico Parish and Old St. John's

Church, Richmond, Virginia,—IGll to 1904,"
^ * ^

by

J. Staunton Moore, of Richmond. * "^^ * Rev. Miles Sel-

den '•' * *
is stated to be a grandson of John Selden, the

first settler of the name '•' '^
'•'. He was elected minister

of that Parish in 1752, died 1785; and the book contains

a very full account of his ministry on pages 20 to 25. I

notice the statement that his daughter, Rebecca, married

Thomas Watkins—then occurs an account of the Wat-

kins Family, page 189. From page 232 I give you in ex-

act words the following :

''.'Solemnized by Rev. John Buchanan, certified by him-

self and filed in Henrico Record office—1791, January 1

—James Breckenridge and Nancy Selden.'

'Tn Lamb's Biographical Dictionary of the United

States, it is stated that General James Breckenridge was

the leader of the Federal Party in Virginia, and represen-

tative in the Eleventh and three successive Conofresses."
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FROM A BIBLE OWNED BY GARY BRECKIN-
RIDGE

Fincastle, Botetourt Gounty.

"James Breckinridge was born in the county of Bote-

tourt on 7th, of March 1763 Died at Grove Hill 13th

May 1833.

''James Breckinridge & Ann Selden were married on

the 1st of January 1791. Letitia, their daughter, was

born on 26th October 1791 in Fincastle (Mrs. Gamble

Died 3-10 1866) Elizabeth, their daughter, was

born in Fincastle 31 of March 1791 (Mrs. Watts died

July 8, 1862) Gary, their son, was born on the 13th of

February 1796 in Fincastle, Died March 1867. Mary
Ann, their daughter, born March 12, 1797, Died August

13, 1830. Matilda their daughter was born April 15,

1799 (Mrs. Bowyer). James, their son, born 20 of Jan-

uary 1801, died July 1824. Robert, their son, was born

12th of May 1802. John, their son, was born 28 of

October 1803 Died August 28 1805. Wilson Selden,

their son, was born 14th of February 1805, Died June
1 of same year John, their son, was born on the 28 of

August 1809, Died May 5, 1844. Ann Breckinridge,

wife of James Breckinridge, died in Fincastle 17 of

March 1843.

"Peachy R. Gilmer & Mary House were married at

Pen Park 1803. William Wirt, their son, was born

September 1804. Emma Walker, their daughter, born

July 18, 1807 in Henry Gounty. George Henry, their

son, born in Henry Gounty 22 of September 1810.

Peachy Harmer born in Henry Gounty 19 July 1813,

Died 10 March 1872. Francis Walker born in Henry

Gounty, Died October 1841, at Gatawba. Lucy Walker

born in Liberty 1820, died same year. Lucy born in
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Liberty September 21st 1821, Died April 16, 1845. John
born in Liberty 26 of January 1826. Mary Peachy born

in Liberty May 11, 1829. Mrs. Gihiier Died 17 of April

1853.

''Gary Breckinridge & Emma W. Gilmer were married

by Rev. Nicholas H. Cobbs in Liberty November 25,

1830. Mary Ann, their daughter, born at Grove Hill

December 11, 1831 Sunday Morning at six o'clock, Bap-

tized by Rev. N. H. Gobbs. Peachy Gilmer, their son,

born at Gatawba Saturday 5, September 1835 at 8 a. m.,

Bap. by Reverend Mc. H. Gobbs. James, their son,

born at Gatawba Friday September 1, 1837 at 9 o'clock

a. m., baptized by Rev. N. H. Gobbs. Gary, their son,

born at Gatawba Saturday Oct. 5, 1839 at 4 o'clock a.

m., Bap. by Rev. D. M. Wharton, Eliza Watts, their

daughter, was born on Friday April 30 1841 at 4 o'clock

p. m. at Gatawba, baptized by Rev. D. M. Wharton.

Lucy Gilmer, their daughter, born at Gatawba, 1 February

1843 Wednesday, Bap. by Rev. Dabney M. Wharton

July 1843. John Harmer, their son, born at Gatawba

Sunday July 14 1844 at one A. M. Bap. by Rev. George

Wilmer. Emma Jane born at Grove Hill Thursday

September 25, 1845 11 P. M., Bap. by Rev. G. T. Wilmer

May 3 1846. George William born at Grove Hill Tues-

day I\Iay 25, 1847 at 2 A. M., Bap. by Rev. G. T. \V.

October 17 1847. James Lewis Woodville & Mary

Breckinridge were married at Grove Hill Sept. 29, 1852.

Emma Gilmer, their daughter, born at Grove Hill Tues-

day February 13, 1855, Bap. Rev. F. N. Baker March

30, 1856. James Littlefield, their son, was born at Grove

Hill, on Thursday Feb. 28, 1856, bap. by Rev. F. M.

Baker ]\Iarch 30, 1856. Gary Breckinridge, their son.
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born at Grove Hill on Tuesday Aug. 31, 1858, bap. Rev.

F. M. Ambler Oct. 2-1, 1858. Mary Lewis, their daugh-
ter, born at Grove Hill Monday August 5th, 1861, Bap-
tized by Rev. Wm. McGuire July 27, 1862. Fanny Bur-

well, their daughter, born at Grove Hill December 3,

1863, baptized by Wm. McGuire June 24, 1866. Oliver

Burne, their son, born Grove Hill Monday April 9, 1866,

Bap. Wm. McGuire June 24 1866.

"Peachy Gilmer Breckinridge & Julia M. Anthony
were married at Buchanan on the 4th of January by
Rev. T. M. Ambler 1860. Anne Anthony born at Grove

Hill October 25, 1860, baptized by Rev. Wm. McGuire

June 16, 1861. John Gilmer Breckinridge born at Grove

Hill February 11 1863, Baptized by Reverend George
Wilmer August 10th, 1864.

'Jefferson Bassett & Lucy Gilmer Breckinridge were

married at Grove Hill on Saturday 28 of January 1865

at 10 A. M. by Rev. McGuire.

''Nannie Breckinridge and Wm. Gordon Robertson

were married November 2, Thursday 1882 at Grove Hill.

Julia Breckinridge Robertson born Tuesday June 3, 1884.

"James Breckinridge was married to Fanny Burwell

at Areno in Bedford County March 4, 1862 by Rev. Mr.

Wharton. Gary Breckinridge was married to Virginia
Caldwell at Briarfield, West Virginia June 2, 1866 by
Rev. William Linsley. James, their son, was born Au-

gust 4, 1867. Lucy Gilmer, their daughter, was born

Sunday 20 of December 1869. Henry Caldwell, their son,

born at Catawba July 24, 1871. Gary Breckinridge, their

son, born at Catawba Nov. 23, 1872. John Peachy, their

son, born at Catawba Thursday June 12, 1873. Wm. Nor-

wood, their son, born at Catawba Saturday May 1, 1875.

Emma Gary, their daughter, born at Catawba Saturday
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July 7, 1877. George Gilmer, son of William Gilmer, was

married to Mary Peachy Walker 13 of May 1732. Their

son, George Gilmer, was born in Williamsburg Va. Jan-

uary 19th 1742. George Gilmer and Lucy Walker daugh-
ter of Thomas Walker of Albemarle, were married 27

August 17G7. Thomas Walker, their son, was born 5

of February 1771, died April 24, ITDl. Mildred, after-

wards Airs. Wirt, was born August 13, 1779, Died 17

of September 1799. Lucy was born June 7th 1774, Died

August of same year. George was born March 11, 1778,

Died 183G. Peachy Ridgway born November 25, 1779,

Died 8th of April 1836. John, Born April 30, 1782—,
Died 1S34. James Blair born 16 of April 1784, Died

1810 Lucy Mrs. Minor born October 13, 1785. Harmer

born Oct. 20, 1787, Died 1812. Francis Walker, born 9

October 1790, Died 25 February 1826 Susan born 25

Alay 1793, Died 1817, they had four other children d. in

infancy.

"DEATHS
"Gary Breckinridge died ]\Iarch 25, 1867 at Grove Hill

aged 71 years. Emma W. Breckinridge died March 25,

1893 at Grove Hill aged 85 years & 8 months. John
Harmer Breckinridge, son of Gary and Emma Breckin-

ridge, died in Richmond June 3, 1863 aged 17 years.

Fanny Burwell Breckinridge, wife of James Breckinridge

and daughter of W^illiam M. Burwell, died at Areno,

Bedford County, Virginia, August 26, 1862, aged 23

years. Peachy Gilmer Breckinridge, eldest son of Gary
and Emma Breckinridge, fell on the battlefield of Remons

Landing, May 24, 1864, aged 28 years Lucy Breckinridge

Bassett, daughter of Gary and Emma Breckinridge died

at Grove Hill, June 16, 1865 aged 22 years. James

Breckinridge, son of Gary and Emma Breckinridge, died
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in the Spring of 1865 aged 27 years. Mary A. Woodville

died at Grove Hill, 23—
, aged 51 years. Emma Breckin-

ridge died at Grove Hill June 28, 1891. Gary Breckin-

ridge died March 25, 18G7 at Grove Hill aged 71 years."
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Wadclell's ''Annals of Augusta County," gives this data

regarding the Gamble family :

Robert^ Gamble, born 1679, left Londonderry, Ireland

about 1735, had two brothers, said to have been killed at

the siege of Derry, 1689. Robert Prage conveyed 306

acres of land to Robert Gamble, March 6, 1646. Robert^

followed to America his son, James-, who came hither

in 1729.

James- married Agnes Sarah Bell, settled in Spring-

field, Augusta County, Virginia, inherited his father's

farm and had children : Robert^, John^, Mrs. Agnes^

Davis, Mrs. Elizabeth^ Moffett, and Mrs. Esther^ Bell.

Robert^ Gamble was an officer in the Revolution, under

the immediate command of Washington, served through-

out the war, furloughed once in two years to visit his

family. He married Catherine Grattan and had :

John*.

Robert*, married Letitia Breckenridge [See Brecken-

ridge Family] .

Agnes Bell*, married Judge William H. Cabell of Vir-

ginia, and had seven children, (a) Robert Gamble, (b)

Emma, (c) Elizabeth Hannah, (d) William Wirt, (e)

Edward Carrington, (f) Col. John Grattan, married

Nancy Payton, eldest daughter of Christopher and

Catherine ( ) Greenup, born November 6, 1790,

died September 24, 1871; (g) Henry Coalter (See

Cabells and their Kin).
Elizabeth*.

463
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Mary*.
Elizabeth'^ Gamble married William Wirt, once At-

torney-General of the United States, and had twelve

children, among whom were the following: Laura, mar-

ried Thomas Randall of Annapolis, Alaryland, lived in

Florida, died leaving four daughters :

Elizabeth, married Lewis Goldsborough, later Admiral

of the United States Xavy.
Catherine, married Alexander Randall of Annapolis,

and had son, Hon. John Wirt Randall of Annapolis.

Ellen, married (1) Mr. Voss in Florida, (2) Dr. Mc-
Cormick, no issue.

Rosa, married Dr. Alexander C. Robinson of Balti-

more, Marvland.

William, married Bettie Dayne of Westmoreland

County, no issue.

Dabney Carr, married • Washington of West-

moreland County, no issue.

Henry Grattan, married Anderson of Florida,

and left two daughters.

A daughter of Robert^ Gamble, and sister of James^,
married Samuel Glass in 1736. They came in their old

age to Virginia from Ban-Bridge, County Down, Ire-

land, and settled on the Opequon.
Memoranda relating to the Gamble Family, belonging

to Mr. James M. Breckenridge of St. Louis :

*T : Being correspondence and family record of the

Gammon family of Tennessee, descended in the female

line from Sarah Gamble, of Virginia, which I believe to

be the branch connected with my own.

"n : Account of his ancestry by Archibald Gamble,
brother of Governor Hamilton R. Gamble, of Missouri,

being the Winchester, Virginia, family.
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"III : Notes relating to the family of Colonel Robert

Gamble, of the Revolutionary War, whose son, Robert,

married Letitia Breckenridge. These notes were given
me by Mrs. Gray, of this city

—a Cabell by birth and a

descendant of Colonel Robert Gamble. * =5^ *

"IV: Condensed replies to letters of inquiry which I

wrote three years ago. The Blount County, Tennessee,

families are * * * of the same stock as my great-great-

grandmother, Magdalen Gamble, wife of Alexander

Breckenridge, of Washington County, Virginia."





WALKER FAMILY





WALKER FAMILY

Dr. Thomas^ Walker, of Castle Hill, Albemarle

County, Virginia, married Mildred, daughter of Gregory
and Alildred Thornton, and widow of Nicholas Meri-

wether.

Children :

1 i John, married Elizabeth ]\Ioore.

4 ii Thomas, married Margaret Hoops.
10 iii Lucy, married George Gilmer.

1 Hon. John- Walker (Thomas^) member of the

Virginia House of Burgesses and aid to General Wash-

ington, with rank of Colonel, in the Revolution, was born

at Castle Hill in 1744. He married, Elizabeth, daughter
of Bernard and Anne Catherine (Spottswood) Moore, of

Chelsea, King William County. (See Moore Family,

Number 10.) They were married at Chelsea in 1764.

Anne Catherine (Spottswood) Moore was the daughter of

Governor Alexander Spottswood, who was aide-de-camp

to the Duke of Marlborough at the Battle of Blenheim.

"There are still extant several copies of a quaint and in-

teresting correspondence between Doctor Thomas Walk-

er, of Castle Hill, and Colonel Bernard Moore of Chel-

sea in regard to the settlements for this marriage, which,

being happily arranged, the young people were married

and took up their residence at Belvoir. This estate of

Belvoir was originally part of the Castle Hill estate, the

enormous grant made by George II to Nicholas Meri-

wether. It was first settled by Robert Lewis, who was a

469
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Meriwether. The old Lewis burying ground is still

there. The old Lewis house disappeared long ago, and

the second house, built by Colonel Walker in 1790, was

destroyed by fire in 1836." In 1790 he was United States

Senator from Virginia. Elizabeth (Moore) Walker died

about the same time as her husband. Honorable John
Walker at Belvoir, in December, 1809, and was buried

there.

Child :

2 Mildred, married Francis Kinloch.

2 Mildred-^ Walker (John-, Thomas^) was the

only child of her parents. She married Francis Kinloch,

of Kensington, South Carolina. He was a delegate to

the Congress at Philadelphia, of which Colonel John
Walker was a member. *Tt is said he fell in love with

the fair Mildred at first sight, 'she having at that moment

just come from her hair-dresser.'
'' "On the morning

when General Tarleton and his British troops raided

Castle Hill and were so fortunately delayed by the tardy

appearance of General Tarleton's breakfast, he also sent

Captain Kinloch, one of his officers, with a party to

Belvoir, the home of Col. John Walker, about

three miles distant. They surprised and took

prisoner Col. John Syme, brother-in-law of Pat-

rick Henry, Judge Lyons and some others. There

is a family tradition that when Captain Kinloch was

about to leave England, the ladies of his household told

him not to kill his cousin Francis Kinloch of Kensington.

He replied : *No, but I will be sure to take him prisoner,'

which threat he that morning accomplished." Mildred

(Walker) Kinloch died October 17, 1784. Francis Kin-

loch married, second, Anne Middleton, of South Caro-

lina.
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Child:

3 Eliza Kinloch, married Hon. Hugh Nelson.

3 Eliza* Kinloch (Mildred^ Walker, John-,

Thomas^), born December 31, 1781, was, like her mother,

the only child of her parents. She married, April 28,

1799, Honorable Hugh Nelson, son of Governor Thomas

Nelson, of Yorktown, York County, Virginia. Their

son.

Dr. Robert W. Nelson, inherited the estate of Belvoir.

4 Thomas^ Walker (Thomas^) was born at Castle

Hill, March 17, 1749. He married, about 1774, Margaret

Hoops, of Carlisle, Pennsylvania. The estate of Thomas

Walker, in Albemarle County, was called 'Tndian

Fields." There is still standing on this land an old

mill which was built by him.

Children :

i 'Jane, born at Indian Fields, in 1775; married,

in 1795. Rice of Clarke Co.

ii Elizabeth, born in 1777; married, in 1822,

Michie, of Albemarle Co.
;
she was a writer

and published a novel which appeared in the

Southern Literary Messenger.
5 iii Marie Barclay, married Richard Duke.

7 iv Meriwether Lewis, married Maria Lindsay.
V Thomas, born at Indian Fields, in 1788

;
died

without issue,

vi Martha, born at Indian Fields, In 1789
;
mar-

ried, in 1808, Goolshy, of Kentucky.
vii John, died without issue.

5 Marie Barclay^ Walker (Thomas^, Thomas^)
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was born in 1780, at Indian Fields. She married, in

1805, Richard Duke, an architect, of Albemarle County,

son of Clivears Duke, a descendant of a Huguenot family

and grandson of Colonel Henry Duke, of Governor Nich-

olson's Council, whose sister, Elizabeth Duke, was the

wife of Nathaniel Bacon who instigated the rebellion.

Children :

6 i William John Duke, married Anderson.

ii Lucy A. Duke, married Wood, of Tennes-

see.

iii T^Iary J. C. Duke, married Smith.

iv Margaret Hoops Duke, died without issue.

V Elizabeth Duke, married Blades.

vi Mildred Wirt Duke, married George Chris-

topher Gilmer,

vii Hon. Richard Thomas Walker Duke, member

of Congress and Commonwealth's Attorney, of

Charlotteville
;
married Elizabeth Scott Esk-

ridge (see Eskridge Family, No. 4).

viii Sally Duke, married Deskins.

ix Charles Carroll Duke, of Mississippi, married

Hattie Walker.

X Mattie L. Duke.

6 William John* Duke (Marie Barclay^ Walker,

Thomas-, Thomas^) was born in 1807. He married, in

1844, Anderson of Kentucky.
Children :

i Richard.

ii Florence Anderson,

iii Laura Anderson.

7 Capt. Meriwether Lewis^ Walker (Thomas^,
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Thomas^) was named for the Indian fighter, Meriwether

Lewis. He was born at Indian Fields, in 1792. His

estate, in Albemarle County, was called ''Logan." He
married, in 1817, Maria, daughter of Colonel Reuben

and Maria (Tidwell) Lindsay. She was his second wife.

Her sister, Elizabeth Lindsay, married General William

Fitzhugh Gordon, of Edgewater, Albemarle County,

Captain Lewis died in 18G1, aged sixty-nine years.

Children :

8 i Isabelle, married Dr. Peachy Harmer Gilmer,

ii Thomas L., born at Logan, Albemarle Co.. in

1820
;
removed to Lynchburg in 1855

;
married

Dabney.
9 iii Reuben Lindsay, married Eskridge.

iv Margaret, born at Logan, in 1832
; married, in

1856, William H. Pryor.

8 Isabelle* Walker (Meriwether Lewis^, Thom-

as-, Thomas^) was born in 1818. She married, in 183G,

Doctor Peachy Harmer Gilmer (see Selden Family,
Number 73).

Children :

i Margaret W. Gilmer, burned to death in the fire

which destroyed the house at Indian Fields,

ii Walker Gilmer.

9 Reuben Lindsay* Walker (Meriwether Lewis^,

Thomas'-, Thomas^) was born at Logan in 1828. He
removed to Richmond. He married Eskridge, of

Staunton, Virginia, in 1848.

Child :

Francis, married, in 1879, Pryor, daughter of

Judge Roger A. Pryor, of New York City, formerly

of Va.
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10 Lucy- Walker (Thomas^) was born at Castle

Hill in May, 1751. She married Doctor George Gilmer

of Pen Park, Albemarle County, in 1771.

Children :

i James Gilmer, born in 1772.

ii Mildred Gilmer, born in 1774; married, in

1794, Hon. William Wirt, Attorney-General.

11 iii George Gilmer, married Hudson.

iv Peachy Gilmer, born in 1778
;
married

Wirt.

V John Gilmer, born in 1778; a physician; mar-

ried Minor in 1805.

vi Lucy Gilmer, born in 1782; married Peter

Minor, of Albemarle Co.

vii Susan Gilmer, born in 1784.

viii Harmer Gilmer, born in 1786.

ix Francis Walker Gilmer, born in 1788; profes-

sor of law at University of Virginia, sent on

mission to England by ex-President Jefferson,

to obtain instructors for the University of Vir-

ginia.

11 Gov. George'^ Gilmer (Lucy^ Walker, Thom-

as^), of Virginia, was born in 1776. He married, in

1801, Hudson.

Children :

i Thomas Walker, Governor of Virginia; appointed,

by President Harrison. Secretary of the Navy, and

held this office at the time of his death, which oc-

curred on board the U. S. Battleship, "Princeton."

from the bursting of a cannon, Feb. 28, 1844; Mr.

Upshur, Secretary of State, was also killed and
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President Tyler and other persons of prominence
were on board but were not injured,

ii Juliet Gilmer.

iii James Gilmer,

iv Elizabeth Gilmer, married St. George Tucker (see

Tucker Family, No. 1).
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MASON FAMILY

Among the authorities from which the following ac-

count of the Mason Family has been obtained, are an

article which appeared in the Baltimore Sun; "The Life

J
of George Mason," by Miss Kate Roland

;
letters from

Mrs. Armat, Professor St. George Tucker Brooke
;
Mr.

William R. Mercer, and Mrs. Thomas Swann.

"The motto of the Warwickshire Masons is pro

patria semper. The arms are, as described by Dugdale;
Azure on a point with three embattlements argent, as

many fleur-de-lis gules, on the middle battlement

a dove with wings displayed proper. These Masons

came from Worcestershire to Stratford-on-Avon early

in the seventeenth century. The name is found in Wor-
cestershire in the fifteenth century, where Thomas Mason
was the incumbent of the Parish of St. Swithin in llOL

The name is found in Shropsliire (or Salop) in the

twelfth and thirteenth centuries. Salop, Stafford, and

Warwickshire all border on the county of Worcester.

North of Salop is Shropshire, once the two forming one

county. And in the Herald's College the arms of 'Mason

of the Marsh,' County Salop, are the earliest recorded,

taking them back to the fourteenth century. These arms,

as given in the 'Visitation of Shropshire, 1623,' are: Or,

a lion rampant, with two heads, azure
; crest, a mermaid

proper. In this pedigree, which goes back to the reign of

Edward III, 1373, the name of 'Georgino Mason' occurs

five times. The last is 'Georgius Mason de London,

Merchant/ 1623. It would be interesting to know if this

481
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was the same George Mason who was an adventurer in

the London Company, 1606-1620, subscribing in the latter

year £12, 10s., and one of the leading men interested in

the colonization of Virginia during this period.

**Capt. George^ Mason, the founder of the Staf-

ford County Mason family of Virginia, born 1626, came,

it is said, from Staffordshire about the same time with

Col. Gerard Fowke, of the same county. According to

tradition Captain Mason fought for King Charles at

the Battle of Worcester in 1651. His name first appears in

the Virginia Land Grants in 1655. His son, of the

same name, married Mary, daughter of Col. Gerard

Fowke, H, and their grandson, Col. George Mason, of

the Revolution, built and named Gunston Hall, in Fair-

fax County ( once a part of Stafford) ,
on land inherited

from his grandfather. The Fowke family were of Bre-

wood Hall and Gunston Hall, Staffordshire. George

Mason, of Gunston, the fourth of his name in Virginia,

used the arms of the Alasons of Stratford-on-Avon on

his silver plate, and these arms, quartered with Thompson
of Yorkshire, his mother's family, were emblazoned on

parchment, 'set in an oval frame of heavy gilded work,'

and are mentioned by George Alason's granddaughter
in 1850. They 'hung in my room at the time I married

and left Lexington, in the year 1808,' writes this lady.

Lexington was near Gunston, a part of the original

estate, and the residence of George Mason, the fifth of

his name in a direct line. His son, George Mason, lived

at Gunston Hall, which remained in the family until

after the War of 1861-65."

The following memorandum was among the papers
of General John Mason, of "Analosten," or Mason's

Island. The original paper, of which this is a copy.
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was sent by the late Colonel George Mason, of Gunston,

to Mr. Joshua Johnson, about the year 1784, in order to

have the arms thereon described engraved on some plate

he had ordered, "and the copy from which the annexed

is taken was given to John Mason in London by Mr. J.

Johnson in 1789."

The Mason arms of Stratford-uoon-Avon in War-

wickshire, and the Thompson arms of Yorkshire, quar-

tered together with the following motto. Pro Republica

Semper, to be engraved on such pieces of silver as will

properly admit of it, and the crest of said arms upon
the other pieces. The above Mason Arms are:

A point with three battlements charged with as many
fleur-de-lis, on the middle battlement a dove with wings

displayed proper, and may be easily found in the Herald's

Office, where they are more particularly described.

As the Revolution was over in 1784 Colonel Mason

wished to change the motto from Pro Patria Semper
to Pro Republica Semper, and, for this reason, he sends

the memorandum for new plate. The Arms, as described

above, with the crest, are the same as in the Herald's

College entries, and on the Mason tablets, etc., at Strat-

ford-upon-Avon.

George Mason came to Virginia in 1G49 or 1651. He
married Mary before 1658. His death occurred in

1686.

Child :

1 George, married, first Mary Fowke, second,

.Elizabeth Waugh, third, Sarah Brent.

1 George- Mason (George^) married three times.

His first wife was Mary, daughter of Colonel Gerard

Fowke. He married, second, Elizabeth, daughter of
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Reverend John Waugh, and, third, Sarah Brent, who

died in 171G. George Alason probably died in that year,

as his will was proved November 14, 1716.

Children (by first wife) :

2 i George, married Ann Thomson,

ii French.

iii Nicholas, died without issue in 1716 (see

Hayden).
iv Elizabeth, married Daniels (see Hayden).
v Simpha Rosa, married, first, John Dinwiddle,

second, Jeremiah Bronaugh.

(by second wife) :

vi Catharine, married John Mercer, of Marl-

borough ;
their daughter, Sarah Ann Mason

Mercer, was the second wife of Samuel Selden

of Salvington (see Selden Family, No. 90, and

Mercer Family, No. 1).

(by third wife) :

vii Francis,

viii Thomas,

ix Sarah, married George Fitzhugh.

X Gerard, not living at the time of his father's

will,

xi Ann, married three times,

xii Mary, married twice; her second husband was

Fitzhugh.

2 CoL. George" ]\Iasox (George-, George^) was

born in 1G90. Tradition says that he married twice,

but his first wife died early, leaving no children. He

married, in 1721, Ann, daughter of Stephen Thomson,

of ''Hollins Hall," Staffordshire, England (see Thomson

Family, Number 2). By this marriage he had six or
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seven children. Three of his daughters died of an

eruptive disease, supposed to have been smallpox. Three

children lived to maturity, namely, George, Thomson,
and Mary, who became the wife of Colonel Samuel

Selden (see Selden Family, Number 90). Colonel

Mason's death took place in 1735. While he was cross<

ing the Potomac River from Virginia to Maryland in

a sailboat, it capsized and he was drowned. It is said

that he was buried at "New Town," the seat of his

brother-in-law, Mr. Bronaugh, but it is probable that his

remains were afterward removed to "Gunston," his

estate, to be placed beside those of his widow.

"Mrs. Ann Mason proved herself a very careful and

prudent guardian. Her husband left no will, and, under

the then existing laws of primogeniture, his whole estate

vested in his eldest son. 'At this period,' to quote from

the manuscript sketch of the family by the late Judge
Mason, 'there had already sprung up a strong opposi-

tion to this system, and in this Mrs. Mason participated

on the ground of its manifest injustice, as was especially

developed in the case of her own children. Her young-

est children were left without a farthing. To remedy
this inequality she directed all energies and talents toward

the accumulation of the means to place them, as near as

possible, upon an equal footing with their elder brother.

Their mother appropriated all the money she could

gather, whether from economy or otherwise, to the pur-

chase of ten thousand acres of what was then called

'Wild lands,' in Loudoun County, for which she paid

only a few shillings per acre. [The lawsuit, referred to

later, was regarding this land.] No sooner had she

completed the purchase, than she divided the land be-

tween her younger children. She did not delay this until
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her death, for the reason assigned hy her, that she did
not wish her children to grow up with any sense of

inequahty among them in regard to fortune. The in-

vestment turned out a most fortunate one, and she thereby
unwittingly made her two younger children wealthier
than their elder brother.'

"

"Ann Mason, yet a young and beautiful woman, when
left a widow by her husband's untimely death, never
married again, though tradition reports that her hand
was sought by numerous suitors. She devoted herself to
her children, and her sons owed much to this wise and
affectionate parent. She is said to have possessed all

the brilliant and intellectual qualities of her father,
Stevens Thomson, and she was also a woman of great
personal charms and most amiable and domestic dis-

position."

Children:

3 i George, married Ann Eilbeck.

ii Mary, married Samuel Selden (see Selden

Family, No. 90).
iii Thomson.

3 George* AIason (George^, George^, George^) of

Gunston, was born in 1725. He was ten years of age
at the time of his father's death, in 1735, and his brother,
Thomson, was two years old, and :\Iary, their only sister,
was four. Their mother, Ann (Thomson) Mason, and
their uncle-in-law, John Mercer, of Marlborough, who
had married Catherine Mason, sister of their mother,
were appointed their guardians. John Mercer was a
man of fine talents and attainments. He was a lawyer
of ability, and was among the first to raise his voice

against the aggressions of Great Britain. It was under his



Mason Family 487

influence that George Mason, the patriot and statesman,

passed his youth. He was the owner of one of the

most extensive and valuable libraries in the Colony, and

some of his books, bearing his heraldic book-plate, are

still to be found in the collections of Virginia bibliophiles.

George Mason must have enjoyed the advantages of the

library and the benefits of his uncle's scholarship. There

is no evidence of his having been sent to college, and it

seems that his education w^as received at home. In his

writings and speeches is found testimony that he was a

classical scholar, and his well-filled library, in later years,

attested his wide and solid reading in the literature of

his own tongue. His father is said to have been a man
of scholarly tastes, and he may also have had a share

in forming the mind of his young son.

George Mason married Ann, daughter of William

Eilbeck. The record of their marriage is here given :

George Mason of Stafford County, Virginia, aged about

twenty-five years, and Ann Eilbeck, the daughter of

William Eilbeck, of Charles County, Maryland, Merchant,

aged about sixteen years, were married Wednesday, the

4th of April, in 1750, by the Rev. Mr. John Moncure,

Rector of Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Vir-

ginia. The portraits of Mr. and Mrs, Mason were

painted by Hesselius, the early instructor of Wilson

Peale. Their home, Gunston Hall, was finished in

1755. George Mason died Sunday, October 7, 1792, in

the sixty-seventh year of his age, and was buried at

Gunston, by the side of his wife. His will was proved
in 1792.

George Mason, the author of the Virginia Bill of

Rights, was one of the greatest men of a great period.

He was born in Stafford in 1726 and was the descendant
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of an officer of the Army of Charles 11. He was large

in person, athletic, with a swarthy complexion, and black

eyes, whose expression was described as "half sad, half

severe." He was a man of reserved address, but his

wit was biting. When an opponent in politics said that

the people of Fairfax knew that "Colonel Mason's mind

was failing him from age," he retorted with mordant

sarcasm, that his friend had one consolation: ''When

his mind failed him no one ivoiild ever discover it."

He lived the life of a planter at "Gunston Hall," on

the Potomac, wrapped up in his ''dear little family"

reading the best English books, and averse to public

position, though he had served in the Burgesses and

was recognized as a man of first ability. His views and

the great elements of his character were well known to

the leaders. Mason was an American of Americans and

clung to his rights with all the vehemence of his strong

nature. As the outburst of the great struggle he wrote:

"If I can only live to see the American Union firmly

fixed, and free government established in our Western

World, and can leave to my children but a crust of

bread and liberty, I shall die satisfied, and say with

the Psalmist, 'Lord, now lettest thou thy servant depart

in peace'." During the Revolution, he wrote, "I will

risque the last penny of my fortune and the last drop

of my blood upon the issue"
;
and in his will he enjoined

his sons "never to let the motive of private interest

or ambition induce them to betray, nor the terrors of

poverty and disgrace, or the fear of danger or death,

deter them from asserting the liberty of their country,

and endeavoring to transmit to their posterity those

sacred rights to which themselves were born."

Mason was called upon to draft the Virginia Bill of
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Rights and Constitution, and did so. The former is the

most remarkable paper of the epoch, and was the foun-

dation of the great American assertion of right. Jef-
ferson went to it for the phrases and expressions of

the Declaration, and it remains the original chart by
which free government must steer their course in all

coming time. The writer lays down the fundamental

principle, that all men are "by nature equally free and

independent, and have certain inherent rights of which,

when they enter into a state of society, they cannot by

any compact deprive or divest their posterity." And those

rights are named: they are "the enjoyment of life and

liberty, with the means of acquiring and possessing

property, and pursuing and obtaining happiness and

safety."

"All power is vested in and consequently derived from

the people,
* * *

Magistrates are their trustees and

servants, and at all times amenable to them. * '^ * Gov-

ernment is instituted for the common benefit of all, and

when it is found inadequate or hostile, a Majority
of the community has the right to alter or abolish it. All

men having "Sufficient evidence of permanent common
interest with, and attachment to, the community should

have the right of suffrage. The freedom of the press

is one of the great bulwarks of Liberty and can never be

restrained but by despotic government. The natural

defense of a state is a well-regulated Militia
; standing

armies are dangerous to liberty ;

''' * * in all cases the

Military should be under strict subordination to,

and governed by, the civil power."

Religion is "the duty which we owe to our Creator,

and the manner of discharging it can be directed only by
reason and conviction, not by force or violence

;
and
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therefore all men are equally entitled to the free exercise

of religion according to the dictates of conscience."

Lastly the blessing of liberty can only be preserved by ''a

firm adherence to justice, moderation, temperance, fru-

gality, and virtue, and by frequent recurrence to funda-

mental principles." (''American Commonwealths," by

John Esten Cooke.)
Children :

i George, born in 1753, at Dogue Neck; capt.

in the Revolution,

ii Ann Eilbeck, married Rinaldo Johnson, of

Maryland.
iii William, born in 1756.

4 iv Thomson, married Sarah Chichester.

V Mary, married John Cooke.

vi Sarah, married Daniel McCarty.
12 vii John, married Ann Maria Murray.

viii Elizabeth, married William Thornton.

14 ix Thomas, married Hooe.

4 Hon. Thomson^ Mason (George*, George^,

George-, George^) of HolHn's Hall, was born in 1759 at

Gunston. He married Sarah, daughter of Richard and

Ellen (Ball) Chichester. He was a soldier of the Revo-

lutionary War (see Va. Historical Register, II, 32).

Children :

i George Washington, married Patton.

ii William.

iii Thomson F., of Alexandria, where he was a

judge ;
married Price.

5 iv Elizabeth, married George Mason.

6 V Richard Chichester, married Lucy Randolph.
vi Ann.
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vii Sarah, probably married William Mason Mc-

Carty.

viii Ann Eilbeck, married, in 1819, Samuel Dawson,
born Sept. 9, 1787, died Dec. 11, 1845 (see

Dawson Family, page 245).
ix Mary Thomson, married, Oct. 6, 1819, Fayette

Ball; died April 13, 1837.

5 Elizabeth^ Mason (Thomson^, George*,

George", George^, George^) married George Mason.

Children (see Hayden, 109) :

i John McCarty Mason,

ii George Thomson Mason.

6 Dr. Richard Chichester® Mason (Thomson^,

George*, George^, George", George^) married Lucy,

daughter of Colonel Robert Randolph of Fauquier Coun-

ty, son of William Randolph (1651-1711), and his wife,

Eliza (1764-1832), daughter of Charles* Carter, of Shir-

ley (John^, Robert", John^ 1649), and his wife, Mary W.
Carter, of Cleve.

Children :

i Robert T.

7 ii Randolph F., married, his cousin, Lavinia Deas.

iii Lucius, midshipman, U. S. N., born Oct. 19,

1841
;
died young,

iv Eliza.

V Rev. Richard Randolph, D. D., married. May
14, 1858, Nannie Van Dyke, daughter of Rt.

Rev. John Johns, D. D., Bishop of Virginia and

his wife, Julianna Johnson, of Frederick, Md.

(see Hayden's Van Dyke and Johns Geneal-

ogy) ; graduated from Virginia Theological
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ii Julia,

iii Lucy.

9 EvA^ Mason (Richard Chichester^, Thomson^,

George^, George^, George"-, George^) married Captain

Robert Heth, C. S. A.

Children :

i Eva Heth.

ii Lucy Heth, .   . • .

iii Robert Heth.

10 John Stevens^ Mason (Richard Chichester^,

Thomson^, George^, George", George-, George^), C. S. A.,

married Eliza, daughter of Robert and Jane (Carter)

Beverley (see Beverley Family, No. 3-d). He was a

private in the Seventeenth Virginia Lifantry, in 18G1,

and was wounded in the second battle of Manassas. He
was Lieutenant of the Signal Corps, Staff of General

Bragg, in 1862
; Quartermaster, C. S. N., in 18G3, and in

Moseby's Battalion, 18G4-5. He was wounded in 1864.

Children :

i Robert B., died of typhoid fever; no children.

ii Richard, M. D., of Fauquier Co.
; married, in Oct.,

1909, Lucy Heth.

iii John Stephens.

iv William Beverley, M. D., of Washington, D. C. ;
mar-

ried, at St. James Church, Warrenton, Va., August

29, 1907, Agnes Gray Kennedy, daughter of Dr. and

Mrs. Stephen Dandridge Kennedy (see Kennedy

Family, Xo. 36), son, William Beverley, born July

13, 1908.

V Jane, married John Ramey ;
three children.

vi Landon, died of typhoid fever; no children.

vii Eliza.
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11 Rev. Landon R.' Mason (Richard Chichester^,

Thomson^, George*, George^, George-, George^), C. S.

A., private, Seventeenth Virginia Infantry, 1861
;
hon-

orably discharged for ill-health, in 1862
;
re-enlisted in

1864; Ewell's Cavalry Escort, 1863, and Moseby's Battal-

ion, 1864. He was a prisoner of war until June, 1865.

He graduated from the Virginia Theological Seminary,
in 1873, and was ordered Deacon, of the Episcopal

Church in that year ;
ordered Priest, in 1874. He was

Rector of Trinity Church, Shepherdstown. He married,

November 9, 1875, Lucy, daughter of Major, now Rev-

erend, John Ambler, C. S. A.

Child :

i Anna, born in December, 1876; died Feb. 16, 1880.

12 Gen. John^ Mason (George*, George^, George-,

George^) of Analostan and Clermont, was born in 1764.

He married Anna Maria Murray. He died in 1824.

Children :

i John, married Catherine ?^Iacomb.

ii James Alurray, born in 1798; Confederate

States Commissioner, with John Slidell to Eng-

land, in 1861
;
married Eliza Chew; died in 1871.

iii Sarah ]^Iaria, married Gen. Samuel Cooper,

Adjutant-General, C. S. A.

iv Virginia, married George Mason.—
V Catherine Eliza, married Cecilius C. Jamison.

vi Eilbeck, married Virginia McGee.

vii Maynadier, married Virginia French,

viii Murray, Capt. C. S. A.
;
married Clara For-

syth.

ix Barlow, C. S. A., Staff of Gen. J. E. Johnson ;

mortally wounded, July 21, 1861.
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13 X Anna Maria, married Capt. Sidney Smith Lee

(see Lee Family, No. 10).

13 Anna M.^ Mason (John^ GeorgeS George^

George-, George^) married Captain Sidney Smith Lee, C.

S. N., brother of General R. E. Lee (see Lee Family,

No. 10).

Children :

i Fitzhugh Lee, General, C. S. A.
;
Governor of Cali-

fornia
;
married Ellen Fowle.

ii Wallace Lee.

iii Hooe Lee.

iv Smith Lee, Capt. C. S. N.

V John Henry Lee.

vi Daniel Murray Lee.

vii Robert Lee.

(For further notice of this line, see Hanson, ''Old

Kent," 268-70; "Thomas Family," 58; Hayden, 110.)

14 Thomas^ Mason (George*, George^ George",

George') of Woodbridge, was born in 1770. He married

Hooe.

Children :

i Gerard, died without issue.

ii Thomas.
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Robert^ Mercer married Ann Smith of Castle Aldie,

Scotland, afterward of Noel, Chester, England, and had

children,

1 i John Mercer.

ii Robert Mercer, married Eleanor Reynolds.

1 John- Mercer (Robert^), a native of Ireland, a

distinguished lawyer, and the compiler of Mercer's

Abridgment of the Laws of Virginia [Bishop Meade],
was born in Dublin, February 6, 1704, and died at Marl-

borough, Virginia, October 14, 1768. He married twice,

or three times. One wife was Catherine Mason, daugh-
ter of George Mason (see Mason Family, Number 1).

She was the mother of Sarah Ann (Mason) Mercer,

second wife of Samuel Selden of Salvington, and the

grandmother of Ann Mercer Selden who married John
Taliaferro Brooke.

John Mercer of Alarlborough was married again, No-

vember 11, 1750, to Ann, daughter of Mungo Roy. Ac-

cording to the Richmond Standard, he had nineteen chil-

dren among them the following:

i George, a colonel in the British Service, who

served under Washington, in 1754; severely

wounded in the battle of Monongahela, with

Braddock, and was complimented for his brav-

ery; in 1758, he was promoted to the rank of

lieutenant-colonel of the Second Virginia Regi-

ment, commanded by Colonel William Byrd of

499
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Westover; he was a member of the House of

Burgesses in 17G1; died about the commence-

ment of the Revohitionary War.

ii James, a judge.

iii John Fenton, an ensign of the \^irginia forces

under Washington, was born August 31, 1738
;

inchided, with liis brother. Captain George

]\lercer, who was with Washington in 1754, in

a vote of thanks by the House of Burgesses to

the officers for their gallant and brave behaviour

in defence of the country ; killed and scalped by

the Indians in an engagement April 18, 1756, in

the Warm Spring Mountains
;

his heirs re-

ceived the portion of land to which he was en-

titled, under the Dinwiddie Proclamation, for

military service at Fort Edward, on the Great

Cacapon.
iv Sarah Ann ^lason, married Samuel Selden of

Salvington (see Selden Family, No. 90).

2 V Grace Fenton, born February 20, 1751
;
married

Muscoe Garnett ;
died June 4, 1814.

3 vi John Francis, born May 17, 1759; married So-

phia Sprigg.

vii Maria (by third wife), married Richard

Brooke, son of Col. George and Anna (Tun-

stall) Brooke (see Brooke Family).

2 Grace Fenton^ Mercer (John-, Robert^) was

born February 20. 1751. She married July 19, 17G7,

Muscoe Garnett. Her death occurred June 4, 1814.

Children :

i James Mercer Garnett, of Elmwood.

ii John Garnett.
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iii Muscoe Garnett, of Prospect Hill,

iv William Garnett, of Rose Hill.

V Robert Selden Garnett, of Champlain.
vi Maria Garnett, married James Hunter (see Hunter

Family, branch descended from James Hunter of

Scotland),
vii Grace Fenton Garnett, married Muscoe Garnett

Hunter, brother of James Hunter.

3 Gov. John Francis^ Mercer (John-, Robert^)
was born May 17, 1759. He was Governor of Maryland
from 1801 to 1803. The following account of him is

from the Baltimore Sun.

"John Francis Mercer was born at Marlborough, Staf-

ford County, Va., on May 17, 1759. He was the son of

Robert and Ann (Roy) Mercer and grandson of Robert

Mercer, Sr., an eminent lawyer and secretary of the Ohio

Company, who emigrated to Virginia in 1720.

"Mercer received what in those days was a very liberal

academic education, being graduated from William and

Mary College in 1775. It is probable that his father

planned to prepare him for the legal profession; but

whatever his parents' plans may have been, the oncoming
storm that was to free the children-colonies from their

mother's control, put in an interference. As soon as war

became inevitable, Mercer cast aside all thought of studies

and professions and sought an opportunity to take up
arms against England. Early in the year 1776, he an-

nounced his intention of joining the Revolutionary forces,

although revolt had not yet become an established fact,

and on February 26, 1776, was commissioned lieutenant in

the Third Virginia Regiment.
"Mercer took part in the battle of Brandywine, on
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September 11, 1777, when he was sHghtly wounded. In

the same month he was promoted to captain, his com-

mission dating from June 27, and the following year he

became attached as aid-de-camp to the staff of the ill-

fated and ill-humored Charles Lee. Under Lee, Mercer

was in the battle of ^Monmouth, June 28, 1778, when his

immediate chief wilfully disobeyed the orders of Wash-

ington and by his conduct generally left the Commander-
in-chief no alternative to having him court-martialed.

Despite the disgrace of Lee, Mercer stood faithfully by

him, and when the former was suspended for a year, and

finally deprived of his commission, ?^Iercer in sympathy
surrendered his own commission and returned to his

home in Virginia.

"The association of Mercer with a man of as little

intrinsic worth as Lee is of importance in a survey of

Mercer's life chiefly because it reveals how courageously
he stood to his convictions, even when his convictions

were against those of the masses or the majority. He
never sought to convince others that Lee was done an

injustice, nor did he parade the fact that because Lee was

disciplined and dismissed that he was determined to sever

his connection with an organization that was inconsider-

ate to his chief. His action in leaving the army was

rather the refined expression of devotion of a subordi-

nate who was soldier enough to lose sight of all other facts

than the one that Lee was his superior officer, and his

superior's misfortune was also his own.

"Mercer did not, however, long remain out of the con-

flict between the struggling Colonies and the mother

country. Upon his return to Virginia he immediately set

about recruiting a regiment of horse soldiers, whom he

equipped at his own expense, and then offered his serv-
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ices to the Continental Army. He was commissioned

lieutenant-colonel and his regiment joined to the brigade

commanded by Gen. Robert Lawson. In this command,
Mercer saw service at Guilford, N. C., and the other

engagements during the rather doubtful Southern cam-

paign. He later joined Lafayette, with whom his regi-

ment remained until the termination of hostilities.

"After the war had been brought to a successful end,

Mercer again took up the subject of his education at the

point where war had interrupted it. He returned to his

estate of Marlborough, on the Potomac, and began to

study for a legal career. In his reading of law he was

to come into close relations with one who in later years

exerted a remarkable influence over his career. His

preceptor was Thomas Jefferson, and, at, the feet of the

founder of democratic principles in America, Mercer

learned, not only law, but also the true meaning of re-

publicanism as differentiated from that policy of aristoc-

racy which at first shaped affairs in the United States.

Mercer, throughout his life, continued the faithful dis-

ciple of Jefferson. He was Jefferson's fellow-laborer and

friend, and when he came into public life he upheld the

hands in national and state affairs of his former teacher.

''In 1782 Mercer was elected a Delegate from Virginia

to the Continental Congress, and served in that body

until 1785. At this time a new influence came into

his life, which was responsible for changing the scene

of his activity from the Old Dominion to Maryland. So-

phia Sprigg, the daughter of a prominent resident of

Anne Arundel County, became Mrs. Mercer, and the

couple 'set up house' at the home of the bride. Cedar Park,

on West River. The children of this union were Col.

John Francis Mercer and Margaret Mercer, the latter a
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notable figure among the philanthropic and literary work-

ers of Maryland in the early part of the nineteenth cen-

tury."

The daughter of John Francis Mercer, Governor of

Maryland, was the "aunt Margaret," mentioned pre-

viously in this volume. She was born in 1791, and died

in 1846. She voluntarily reduced herself to poverty by

freeing her slaves, supporting herself for twenty-five

years by teaching. Her brother, Colonel John Mercer,

accompanied General Winfield Scott to Europe upon an

inspection of the military fortifications there. After the

war of 1812, he married, in 1818, Mary Scott, daughter

of Thomas and Jane Byrd (Page) Swann, of Alexan-

dria, Virginia. She was the sister of Governor Thomas

Swann, of Maryland.
The children of Governor John Francis and Sophia

(Sprigg) Mercer, were:

4 i John Francis, married Mary Scott Swann.

ii Margaret, born in 1791
;
died in 1846.

4 CoL. John Francis* AIercer (John Francis^,

John^ Robert') of Cedar Park, West River, Maryland,

married, in 1818, Mary Scott, daughter of Thomas Swann

and his wife Jane Byrd Page (see Page Family, Number

28).

Children :

i Richard Sprigg, married E. E. Coxe, of Pa.

ii Margaret.
iii Ella, married, first, William Peter, of Mary-

land
;
second, Edwin J. Farber.

iv Jane Byrd.

5 v William Robert, married Mary Rebecca Chap-

man.
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5 William Robert^ Mercer (John Francis*, John
Francis^ John-, Robert^) was born March 23, 1827. He
married, October 11, 1855, Mary Rebecca Chapman,

daughter of Honorable Henry Chapman, of Doylestown,
Buck County, Pennsylvania. She died in the summer of

1903.

Children :

i Henry Chapman, born June 24, 1856.

ii Elizabeth L. Chapman, born May 18, 1858
; married,

July 24, 1888, Captain Hubert Feidler Von Isarborn,

of the Austrian Army,
iii William Robert, born May 30, 1862

; married, De-

cember 15, 1904, Martha Dana of Boston, Mass.
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PAGE FAMILY

The following account of the Page Family has been

obtained from articles appearing in the Baltimore Sun.

"Arms—Or, a fess dancettee between three martlets,

azure, a border of the last.

''Crest—A demi-horse per pale dancettee or and azure.

''Motto—Spe Labor Levis/'

*'Dr. Richard Channing Moore Page, of New York

City, gives us in his most carefully prepared and valuable

book, 'Genealogy of the Page Family of Virginia,' a most

intensely interesting account of the search for and finally

the finding of the connecting link between Col. John Page,
the immigrant, of Williamsburg, James City county, Va.,

and his father, Francis Page, Esq., of Bed font, Middle-

sex county, England.
"The search began [sic] by Mr. Stephen Tucker, of the

College of Arms, in London, England, in 188J:, and after

the death of Mr. Tucker, in January, 1887, was carried

on by Mr. Ebblewhite, assistant of Mr. Tucker, under Mr.

Burke, who succeeded Mr. Tucker in the office of Somer-

set Herald.

"Mr. Burke says : Tn April, 1887, I was instructed by
Dr. Page to proceed with the investigation.

* -5= * i de-

cided to act upon a clue in the will of John Page, of Vir-

ginia, dated 1686-87, in which he mentioned his brother

Robert as "late of Halton on Hounslow Heath." I found

Halton to have been in the parish of Bedfont, Middlesex

county, and instructed Mr. Ebblewhite to go there and

examine the parish registers and monuments.

511
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"
'After thoroughly examining the church and sur-

roundings, Mr. Ebblewhite discovered a large marble

stone with the Page arms fixed against the churchyard
wall. The inscription seemed only to record the death of

Francis Page, in 1678, aged 84; but having carefully re-

moved the mossy grass and mold from the foot of the

stone, my assistant discovered a further statement to the

effect that it had been placed there at the instance and

cost of John Page, of York county, in Virginia, merchant,

the son of the deceased Francis.'
"

Francis^ Page, Esq., of Bedfont, Middlesex County,

England, died October 13, 1678, aged eighty-four, as

recorded on his tombstone in that parish. The inscrip-

tion states that the stone was erected by his son, as above

stated.

Child :

1 i John, married Alice Luckin.

1 "Col. John- Page (Francis^) the progenitor of

the family in \'irginia, was born in England in 1627, and

emigrated to \'irginia about 1650. He was the second

son of Francis Page, Sr., of Bedfont, Middlesex county,

England, who, according to the inscription on his tomb-

stone, died on the 13th and was buried on the 16th of

October, 1678, aged 84 years. The Pages of Bedfont are

a very old family. Rowland Page held the manor of

Pates, in ^^liddlesex, during the reign of Edward VI.

''Bishop Meade, in his account of Bruton Parish, at

Williamsburg, which was named in honor of Thomas

Ludwell. who came from Bruton, Somersetshire, Eng-

land, says: Tn 1678, when it was proposed to build one

good church to take the place of two indiflferent ones, the

first person to subscribe was Col. John Page, who gen-
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erously gave £20 and the ground for the .church and

graveyard.' Col. John Page married Alice Luckin, of

Middlesex county, England. She died at Williamsburg,
Va., June 22, 169—

, aged 78 years. Her tombstone, with

her coat-of-arms and the inscription, is still in a good
state of preservation.

''

'The tombstone of her husband, Col. John Page, was

placed in the vestibule of Old Bruton Church, at Wil-

liamsburg, in 1877, for preservation. It bears the in-

scription: ''Here lieth, in hope of a joyful resurrection,

the body of Col. John Page, of Bruton Parish, Esq. One
of their Majesties, Council in the Dominion of Virginia.

Wlio departed this life the 23rd of January, in the year
of our Lord, 1669. Aged 65."

'

"Gov. John Page, of Virginia, in his autobiography,

says :

''
'I discover from the tombstone in Williamisburg

churchyard and from others in my grandfather's burying

ground at his family seat called Rosewell, first, that one

of my ancestors, named John Page, was a highly re-

spectable character and had long been one of the King's
Council in this colony. A manuscript of his which I have

seen proves that he was learned and pious.'

"The manuscript referred to was a little book written

on parchment and presented by Col. John Page to his

son Matthew on January 1, 1668. Copies of this book,

known as The Deed of Gift,' are to be found in the

possession of descendants of Col. Page."
Children :

2 i Francis, married Mary Diggs.
3 ii Matthew, married Mary Mann.

2 Capt. Francis^ Page (John-, Francis^) was
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born in Virginia, in 1G57. He was Clerk of the House of

Burgesses of Virginia, He married, in 1682, Mary,

daughter of Edward Diggs. He died in Virginia in 1692.

Child :

i Elizabeth, married her cousin, John Page, and died

without issue.

3 CoL. Matthew^ Page (John^, Erancis^) of

*'Rosewell," Gloucester County,Virginia,wasborninl659,
He was a member of the original board of trustees of

William and Mary College, and one of Her Majesty's

Council. Colonel ^latthew Page married, in 1689, Mary,

daughter and heiress of John Mann and his wife, Mary
of Timberneck, Gloucester County. After the death of

Matthew Page, his widow married, in 1703, her cousin,

John Page, a lawyer. Colonel Matthew Page died in

1703. His tombstone is inscribed, "Collonell Matthew

Page, Esq., and One of Her Majesties most Honorable

Councell of the Parish of Abington, in the County of

Gloucester." He bequeathed an enormous estate to

his only son, Mann Page. In Henning's Statutes, Vol-

ume V, threre is recorded a suit brought by Mann Page
to break the entail. The statement made by him shows

that he inherited from his father more than 27,000 acres,

together with slaves, live stock, and silver. Matthew

and Mary (Mann) Page had four children, of whom
Mann Page was the onlv one who lived to maturity.

Child:

4 Mann, married, first, Judith Wormeley, second,
 Judith Carter.

4 Hon. Mann* Page (Matthew^, John^, Francis^),

the second child of his parents, was born in 1691. He
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inherited the estate of ''Rosewell'' from his father, con-

sisting of more than twenty-seven thousand acres in

Gloucester County. He was a member of the Council

and prominent in the affairs of the Colony. Governor

Page, speaking of him, says : "His letters to friends

and theirs to him exhibit him as patriotic, well educated,

and truly amiable. He had his education at Eton School

in England."
"Mann Page was the founder of the present Rosewell

mansion, which has always been considererd the largest

and handsomest house in Virginia. It was commenced

in 1725, and was just completed in 1730, when its owner,

the Hon. ]\Iann Page, died, and he was laid out in the

great hall. Rosewell is situated on Carter's Creek, near

the York River. The rooms are of magnificent pro-

portions and the woodwork of mahogany superbly carved.

It is one of the traditions of the house that Thomas

Jefferson was staying there with his intimate friend.

Gov. John Page, when he drafted the Declaration of

Independence."
Mann Page married, first, when he was twenty-one

years of age. Judith, daughter of Honorable Ralph

Wormeley, Secretary of the Colony of Virginia. See

Wormeley Lineage.) His second wife, whom he mar-

ried in 1718, was Judith, second daughter of Robert

("King") Carter, of Corotoman, Lancaster County, Vir-

ginia. (See Carter Lineage.)

Honorable Mann Page died January 24, 17e30, aged

thirty-nine years. On his tombstone at Rosewell is in-

scribed the following: "Here lie the remains of Hon.

Mann Page, one of his Majesty's Council of this colony

of Virginia, who departed this life the 24th day of

January, 1730, in the fortieth year of his age. He was
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the only son of Hon. Matthew Page, who was Hkewise

a member of his Majesty's Council. His first wife was

Judith, daughter of Ralph Wormeley, Secretary of Vir-

ginia, by whom he had two sons and a daughter. He
afterward married Judith, daughter of Hon. Robert

Carter, President of Virginia, with whom he lived in the

most tender and reciprocal affection for twelve years."

''The three brothers, sons of Hon. Mann Page, became

the heads, respectively, of the three branches of the Page

family of Virginia: First—Descendants of Mann, of

Rosewell, who are called the White Pages ; second, de-

scendants of John, of North End, called the Black Pages ;

third descendants of Robert, of Broadneck, who removed

to Clarke county, Virginia."

Children (by first wife) :

i Ralph Wormeley, born December, 1713; died

without children,

ii Maria, born February, 1714; married William

Randolph, of ''Tuckahoe." Goochland Co., Va.

iii Alann, born December, 1716.

Children (by second wife) :

5 iv Mann, married, first, Alice Grymes, second,

Anne Corbin Tayloe.

John, married Jane Byrd.
Robert, married Sarah Walker.

Carter, born at Rosewell, 1724.

Matthew, born at Rosewell, 1726; died with-

out children,

ix A daughter, born at Rosewell, 1728
;
died with-

out children.

5 Mann^ Page (Mann*, Matthew^ John^, Fran-

cis^) was born at Rosewell, in 1718, and resided there.

23
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He married, first, in 1743, Alice, daughter of Honorable

John Grymes, of Middlesex County, Virginia. He mar-

ried, second, in 1748, Anne Corbin Tayloe, of Mount

Airy, Spottsylvania County. Mann Page was, in 1758,

a member of the Board of Visitors of William and

Mary College. His son. Governor John Page, says of

him in his autobiography, ''He might also have been

appointed to the office of Councillor, but he declined it

in favor of his younger brother, John, who, my father

said, having been brought up in the study of the law

regularly, was a much more proper person for that

office than he was." "My father was frequently urged

by friends, but not by relations, to pay court to Sir

Gregory Page, whose heir, from his coat of arms and

many circumstances, he was supposed to be. But he

despised titles 60 years ago as much as you and I do

now, and would have nothing to say to the rich, silly

knight, who died, leaving his estate and title to a sillier

man than himself, viz., his sister's son, a Mr. Turner,

who took his name and title by act of Parliament."

Children (by first wife) :

6 i John, married, first, Frances Burwell, second,

Margaret Lowther.

ii Judith, born at .Rosewell, in 1745
;
married

Lewis Burwell, of Carter's Creek,

iii A son, died without issue.

Children (by second wife) :

15 iv Mann, married Mary Tayloe.
16 V Robert, married Elizabeth Carter.

vi Tayloe, born at Rosewell, in 175G
;
died aged

four years.

18 vii Gwynn, married, first, Hereford, second,

Hooe.
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viii Matthew, born at Rosewell, in 1760.

ix Elizabeth, born at Roseweh, in 1762
; married,

in 1782, Benjamin Harrison, of Brandon,

Prince George Co., their daughter, Lucy, mar-

ried Richard Byrd.
21 X Lucy Burwell, married, first, Col. George W.

Baylor, second, Col. Nathaniel Burwell.

6 Gov. JoHN^ Page (Mann^, Mann*, Matthew",

John-, Francis^) was born at Rosewell, April 17, 1744.

He was a graduate of William and ]\Iary College and,

while there, became the intimate friend of Thomas Jef-

ferson, a friendship which lasted all their lives. He
w^as with Washington in one of the expeditions of the

French and Indian War, and served as an officer of

Gloucester County during the Revolution.

Governor Page married, first, in 1765, Frances, daugh-
ter of Colonel Robert Burwell, of Isle of Wight County,

Mrginia (see Burwell Family, Xo. 11), and his wife,

Sally, daughter of Thomas Xelson, of Yorktown. His

second wife was Margaret, daughter of William Lowther,

of Scotland.

"Bishop Aleade says of Governor Page that he was

not only the patriot, soldier and politician, the well read

theologian and zealous churchman, but he was also the

most afifectionate domestic character and loving father.

Many of his letters written to his children are still

extant and are delightful reading. The vestry books

of old Bruton Parish show that Hon. John Page de-

fended the rights of the vestry against the claims of

both King and Governor. So important was this action

for the well-being of the church that he was urged by

many to take orders with a view to making him Bishop
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of Virginia. He was elected member of Congress from

1789 to 1797. In 1802 he was elected Governor of

Virginia to succeed Monroe, serving until 1805. He
was made Commissioner of Loans by President Jeffer-

son, w^hich office he held until his death. He died at

Richmond, Va., October 11, 1808, and is buried in the

old churchyard around St. John's." ^

"The members of the Page family of Virginia have

always been notable churchmen from the days of Col.

John Page, the progenitor in this country, who, in 1678

gave the ground for the church and graveyard of Old

Bruton parish, in Williamsburg, unto the present day.

Bishop Meade says : 'The effects of paternal as well as ma-

ternal examples have been seen in the numerous descen-

dants of Gov. John Page, who have embraced the religion

and loved the church of their fathers, instead of abjuring

the former and deserting the latter, as too many of that

day did.'

"At one time there were nine of the Page family who
were clergymen of the Episcopal Church."

Children (by first wife) :

7 i Mann, married Elizabeth Nelson,

ii John, born in 1768
;
died young.

iii Robert, born in 1770; died without issue,

iv Sally Burwell, born in 1771
;
married William

Nelson, eldest son of Gov. Thomas Nelson, of

Yorktown.

V John, born in 1773
;
drowned in 1784:.

vi Alice Grymes, born in 1775
; married, first, Dr.

John Augustine Smith, second, Col. Dudley

Diggs.

vii Frances, born in 1777
; married, first, Thomas

Nelson, Jr., son of Gov. Thomas Nelson, sec-

ond, Dr. Carter Berkeley.
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12 viii Francis, married Susan Nelson.

ix Judith Carter, born in 1783
;
married Robert

Nelson, son of Gov. Thomas Nelson.

Children (by second wife) :

X Margaret Lowther, born in 1790
; married, first,

John H. Blair, second, Richard Anderson,

xi William Lowther, died without issue,

xii Mary ]\Iann, died without issue,

xiii Gregory, died without issue,

xiv John, died without issue.

XV John William, died without issue.

xvi Barbara, born in 1795
;
died unmarried,

xvii Lucy Burwell, born in 1807; married Hon.

Robert Saunders, of Williamsburg, Va.

7 Mann"^ Page (John«, Mann^ Mann*, Matthew^

John-, Francis^) was born in 17()G, at Rosewell. "Mann

Page built Shelly, on the York river, in 1794. Shelly

was originally part of the Rosewell estate. The site

is said to be highly picturesque and beautiful. Gov-

ernor Page always believed Shelly to be the original

Werowocomico, but he dropped the unpronounceable

name and called the estate Shelly on account of the extra-

ordinary accumulation of oyster shells at the mouth of

Carter's creek. The original house was burned in 188.3,

but another has since been erected."

Mann Page married, June 5, 1788, Elizabeth, eldest

dauHiter and sixth child of Governor Thomas Nelson,

of Yorktown, Virginia.

Children :

i John, born in 1789; married, in 1812, Elizabeth

Perin.

ii Lucy, born Feb. 9, 1790; married about 1811,

Dr. Nathaniel Nelson, of Hanover Co., Va.
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iii Frances Burwell, born in 1791; married Major
William Perin.

8 iv Thomas Nelson, married Julianna Randolph.
9 V Mann, married, first, Judith Nelson, second,

Anne Page Jones.

vi Eliza Nelson, born in 1795; married Benja-
min Pollard.

vii WilHam Nelson, died unmarried.

viii Mary Jane, married Archie McGill.

ix Warner Lewis, born in 1800
;
died at Rug-

swamp, unmarried.

X Sally Burwell, born in 1802, at Shelly; died

unmarried.

xi Ann, born in 1803
;
married Francis K. Nel-

son, of Cloverfield.

xii Philip L. G., born in 1804; died unmarried.

xiii Robert Nelson, born in 1805; died unmarried.

11 xiv Thomas Jefferson, married Benjamina Price.

XV Cornelia Mann, born in 1809
;
married Lieut.

Alberto Griffith.

8 ThOxMas Nelson'^ Page (Mann^, John^, Mann'^,

Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) ''of Shelly, second

son of Mann and Elizabeth (Carter) Page," was born

in 1792. He married, in 1827, Julianna, daughter of

Isham Randolph, of Richmond, Virginia, and his wife,

Nancy Coupland. Thomas Nelson Page died at Shelly

in 1835.

Child :

Mann, born at Shelly, April 21, 1835; "Major Mann

Page, being the eldest son of the eldest son, is the

head of the Page family in Virginia."
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9 Mann« Page (Mann^ John«, Mann^ Mann*,

Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born in 1794. His first

wife was Judith Nelson, and his second, Anne Page.

He lived at Greenland, Gloucester County, Virginia.

Child (by first wife) :

10 Francis Nelson, married Susan Duval.

10 Major Francis Nelson^ Page (]Mann^, Mann^
John**, Mann^, Mann^, Matthew^, John^, Francis^) of the

United States Armv, was born in 1820. He married, in

1851, Susan, daughter of Colonel William Duval, of

Florida. Major Page died at Fort Smith, Arkansas,

in 18G0.

Children :

i Francis Nelson, born in 1852.

ii Lucy Nelson, born in 1853; married Dr. Hardway, of

St. Louis,

iii Powhatan Randolph, born in 1854.

iv Kate Rector, born in 1857
;
married Lawrence,

of Mexico.

V Elias Rector, born in 1858; died without issue.

11 Capt. Thomas Jefferson^ Page (Mann'',

John^, ]\Tann^, ^lann*, Matthew^, John^, Francis^) was

born in 1807, or 1808, at Shelly. He was an officer of

the United States Navy. He is called "eighth son of

Mann Page, of Shelly, and Elizabeth (Nelson) Page."

He married, in 1838, Benjamina, daughter of Benjamin

Price, of Loudoun County, Virginia.

Children :

i Thomas Jefferson, born in 1839; died, September,

1864, without issue,

ii John, born in 1840; removed to South America;
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married Julia Laws, of Buenos Ayres; capt. in the

Argentine Navy, and killed by savages, in 1890.

iii Lily, born in 1842
; married, in 1866, Marquis Spin-

ola, of Florence, Italy,

iv Philip, born in 18-17; removed to South America.

V May Bell, born in 1848
;
died without issue,

vi Frederick M., born in 1852; married, in 1880, Sadie

Byrd.
vii George C, of Rome, Italy.

12 Francis' Page (John^ Mann^ Mann^ Mat-

thew,^ John-, Francis^), of Rugswamp, was born in

1781, at Rosewell. He was "fifth son of Gov. John

Page and Frances Burwell." "In 1806 he married Susan,

daughter of Governor Thomas and Lucy G. Page, of

Yorktown, Va."

Children :

i Anzolette, born in 1807
;
married Rev. Wil-

liam H. Pendleton (see Pendleton Family, No.

28).

ii Thomas Lucius, born at Rugswamp ;
died with-

out children,

iii Francis Mann, born in 1813
;
married Victorine

Valette.

iv Anne Rose, born in 1815.

13 V Frances Burwell, married Philip N. Meade.

14 vl John, married Elizabeth Burwell Nelson.

13 Frances Burwell^ "Page (Francis^ John",

IMann^, Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born in

1818. She married, in 1838, Philip N. Meade.

Children :

i William Meade,

ii Rev. Everard Meade.
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iii Philip N. i\Ieade.

iv Henry Vernon Meade.

V Susan Page Meade,

vi Mary Nelson Meade.

14 JoHN^ Page (Francis^ John^ Mann^, Mann*,

Matthew", John-, Francis^) of Oakland, Hanover Coun-

ty, was born in 1822. He married, in 1847, Elizabeth

Burwell, daughter of Captain Thomas Nelson.

Children :

i Rev. Francis.

ii Thomas Nelson
;
"the distinguished author, Thomas

Nelson Page, whose beautiful and touching stories

of Southern life have elicited the admiration of the

English-speaking world."

iii Rosewell, of Danville.

15 Hox. Mann^ Page (Mann% Mann^ Matthew^

John-, Francis^), of Spottsylvania County, Virginia, was

born at Rosewell, in 1749. He lived at Mansfield, Spott-

sylvania County. He married, April 18, 1776, Mary,

daughter of John Tayloe, of Spottsylvania County, and

his wife, Rebecca, who was the daughter of Honor-

able George Plater, Governor of Maryland, and his wife,

Rebecca Addison (see Addison Family, Number 5).

Children :

i Maria, born in 1777; married Lewis Burwell (see

Burwell Family, No. 9).

ii Lucy Gwynn. born in 1779; married Josiah Tidball.

iii Mann, born in 1781.

16 Robert" Page (Mann^ Mann*, Matthew^

John-, Francis^) was born in 1751. He lived in Han-

overtown, Hanover County, Virginia. His wife was
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Elizabeth, daughter of Charles Carter, of Fredericksburg,

Virginia.

Children :

i Elizabeth, born in 1777; married Philip Bur-

well,

ii Charles, born in 1778
;
married Sally Cary

Nelson.

17 iii Mann, born in 1780; married Mary Chiswell

Nelson.

17 Mann"^ Page (Robert^ Mann^ Mann*, Mat-

thew^, John-, Francis^) of Hanovertown, was born in

1780. He was ''son of Robert and Elizabeth (Carter)

Page." He married, in 1803, Mary Chiswell, daughter
of Colonel William Nelson, of the Dairill, Hanover

County.

Children :

i Robert, born in 1802.

ii Charles, born in 1806.

iii John F., born in 1808
; married, in 1833, Catherine,

daughter of Wilson Cary Nelson.

18 GwYNN^ Page (Mann^ MannS Matthew^

John-, Francis^) was born at Rosewell. He removed

to Kentucky. He married, first, Hereford, second,

Hoe, of Caroline County, Virginia.

Child (by second wife) :

19 Matthew, married Mary Randolph.

19 Dr. Matthew^ Page (Gwynn^', Mann^, Mann*,

Matthew^, John^, Francis^) born in 1789, lived in Clarke

County, Virginia. He married, in 1814, Mary, daughter

of Archibald Cary Randolph, of Clarke County.
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Children :

i Archibald Gary,
ii Gwynn.
iii William Meade, a physician of San Francisco,

20 iv Metthewella, married, Benjamin Harrison, Jr.

20 Metthewella^ Page (Matthew^ Gwynn^,
Mann^ Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) married, in

1858, Benjamin Harrison, Junior, of Berkeley.

Ghild:

Dr. Benjamin Harrison.

21 Lucy Burwell^ Page (Mann^ Mann*, Mat-

thew^, John-, Frances^) was born at Rosewell, in 1764.

She married, first, in 1784, Colonel George W. Baylor,

and, second, in 1708, Colonel Nathaniel Burwell, of

Carter Hall, Clarke County, Virginia (see Burwell Fam-

ily, Number 8).

Children (by second husband) :

i Tayloe Burwell, died unmarried.

22 ii William Burwell, married Mary Brook,

iii Eliza Burwell, married Dr. James Hay.
iv Mary Burwell, married Francis Whiting, of

"Clay Hill." Millwood, Clarke Co.; died in

1881.

V George Harrison Burwell.

22 William^ Burwell (Lucy Burweir^ Page,
Mann^, Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) married

Mary Brook, niece of Chief Justice Marshall.

Child:

Anne Corbin Tayloe, married Philip Pendleton Cooke.

(See Cooke Family.)
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23 Hon. John^ Page (Mann*, Matthew^ John^,

Francis^) was born at Rosewell, in 1720. He removed
to North End Gloucester County, Virginia, situated on the

North River. He was educated as a lawyer, and became a

member of the Council, in place of his elder brother,

Mann Page, of Rosewell. He married, in 1746, Jane,

daughter of Colonel William Byrd, of Westover, on

the James River, by his second wife, Maria Taylor,
eldest daughter and co-heiress of Thomas Taylor, of

Kensington, England (see Byrd Family).
"The name of Hon. John Page, of North End, appears

in the Virginia Almanac for 1776, which was the record

of the last Virginia Council under King George HI.

He died in 1780 and was buried at North End. The
North End house was destroyed by fire during the Revo-

lutionary War of 1776. Governor Page says in his

diary : 'The fashion or practice of that day was for men
of landed property to dispose of their children in the

following manner: They entailed all their land on the

eldest son and brought up the others, according to their

genius or dispositions, as physician, lawyers, merchants

or ministers of the Church of England, which hand-

somely maintained such as were frugal and industrious'."

Honorable John and Jane (Byrd) Page had fifteen

children, of whom eleven survived.

Children :

24 i Mann, married Mary Mason Selden (see Sel-

den Family. No. 91).

30 ii John, married Elizabeth Burwell.

iii Jane, born at North End, in 1751
; married, in

1770, Dr. Nathaniel Nelson, son of President

William Nelson, of Yorktown, Va.

iv William, born at North End, in 1753; a physi-

^
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cian; removed to Richmond, Va., married, in

1778,  

Jones.

V Judith, born in 1755; married, in 1775, Col.

Hugh Nelson, third son of President WilHam

Nelson, of Yorktown.

32 vi Carter, married, first, Mary Cary, second, Lucy
Nelson.

36 vii Robert, married Sarah Page.

viii Molly, born in 1765, married, first, John Byrd,

second, Archie Boiling, third, Peter Randolph,

ix Matthew, born in 1767
;
died without issue.

X Thomas, born in 1773; married, in 1798, Mil-

dred, daughter of Edmund Pendleton (see

Pendleton Family, No. 27).

xi Lucy, born in 1775; married, in 1792, Francis

Nelson, of Mount Air.

21 Mann« Page (John^ :\IannS Matthew^ John",

Francis^) was born at North End, Gloucester County,

in 1747. He removed to Fairfield, Clarke County, Vir-

ginia. In 1767 he married Mary ]\Iason, daughter of

Samuel Selden, of Salvington, Stafford County, Vir-

ginia (see Selden Family, No. 91). After his death Mary
Mason (Selden) Page married, as her second husband.

Doctor Wilson Cary Selden, who became the guardian

of the children of ]\Iann Page (see Selden Family, Num-
ber 42).

Children :

25 i William Byrd, married Anne Lee.

28 ii Jane Byrd, married ]\Iajor Thomas Swann.

25 William Byrd^ Page (Mann^ John^ Mann*,

Matthew^ John^, Francis^) was born in 1768. He mar-
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ried, in 1793, Anne, daughter of Henry Lee, and sister

of General Henry Lee, the famous "Light Horse Harry."
(See Lee Family, Number 8.)

Children :

i William Byrd, born in 1794; died without issue.

ii Mary Anne, born in 1796; married, in 1816,

Gen. Roger Jones, Adjutant-General, U. S.

Army, by whom she had twelve children,

iii Rev. Charles Henry, born in 1801; married,

Gabriella Crawford, of Amherst County, Vir-

ginia.

26 iv Mann Randolph, married Beall.

V Jane Byrd, born in 1805; died without issue.

vi Gary Selden, born in 1806.

27 vii Richard S., married Alexanina Taylor.
viii Dr. Thomas S., born in 1813

;
married

Joliff; died, leaving issue,

ix Edmonia, born about 1815; married, about

1833, Hall Nelson.

26 Mann Randolph^ Page (William Byrd^
Mann*^, John^, Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) born

in 1803, married Beall, of Jefferson County, Vir-

ginia.

Children :

i George R., married, first,
—•—Cabell, second,

Timberlake.

ii Jane Byrd, married,  May 11, 1854, Guerdon H.

Pendleton, of Clarke County, Va.

iii Mary.
iv Ann, died without issue.

v Margaret, married Charles Lee.
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27 Capt. Richard S.^ Page (William Byrd'

Mann^, John% Mann*, Matthew^, John^ Francis^) of the

United States Navy, was born in 1811, and resided in

Norfolk, Virginia. He married, about 1832, Alexanina

Taylor.

Children:

i Fannie, married Capt. Whittle,

ii William Byrd, married Louisa Blow, of Norfolk.

iii Alexina, died without issue.

iv Walter Taylor, Analytical Chemist at the University

of Virginia; married, March 17, 1884, Anne, daugh-
ter of Prof. John R. Page; removed to Omaha, Neb.

28 Jane Byrd^ Page (Mann«, John^ Mann^ Mat-

thew", John-, Francis^) was born in 1770. She married

Thomas Swann. He was a lawyer of considerable im-

portance, practising chiefly in Washington. During the

Administration of President Monroe, he was United

States District Attorney for the District of Columbia.

Jane Byrd (Page) Swann died in 1812.

Children :

i Wilson Cary Swann.

ii Edward Swann.

29 iii Thomas Swann, married, first, Elizabeth Gil-

mor Sherlock, second, Mrs. John R. Thompson,
who was Josephine Ward of New York,

iv Mary Scott Swann, married John Mercer (see

Mercer Family, No. 4).

29 Gov. Thomas^ Swann (Jane Byrd^ Page

Mann^, John^ Mann*. Matthew\ John-, Francis^) was

born in Alexandria, Virginia. He was Governor of

Maryland from 1866 to 1869. The following is an ac-

count of his life:
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"The youth of young Swann was passed among such

surroundings' as would inculcate into a receptive lad all

the polish and refinement of manners that characterizes—or ought to characterize—official circles at the national

capital. He was entered at Columbian College, Wash-

ington, where he received his preparatory training. Sub-

sequently he matriculated at the University of Virginia,
and at the Charlottesville Institute gained the finishing
touches to his academic schooling.

"Upon the completion of Swann's college career, he

entered his father's office as a law student, and, under

the guidance of the elder Swann, fitted himself for the

legal profession. When President Jackson appointed the

commission to Naples, young Swann was chosen sec-

retary of that body, and he served in that capacity until

the work of the commission was completed.
"In November 1834, Mr. Swann was married to Eliza-

beth Gilmor Sherlock, a daughter of John and Elizabeth

Sherlock and a granddaughter of Robert Gilmor. Shortly
after his marriage, he took up his residence in Baltimore,

where he became interested in several commercial enter-

prises. He acquired an interest in the Baltimore and Ohio

Railroad and was chosen a member of the company's
directorate in 1845. At this time, however, the outlook

for the transportation line was not too encouraging; its

purpose was still unaccomplished, the expenditure of

considerable money being necessary to carry out the

extensions already planned, and, furthermore, through-
out the American States the supply of funds was low

and the need for currency great.

"Two years after Mr. Swann assumed the duties of

director of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad, President

Louis McLane, of that company, resigned his position.
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In the crisis Thomas Swann was prevailed upon to

assume the vacant chair, and, with his induction into

office, began a period of determined advance in the

history of the railroad. During the six years that Swann
retained the presidency, the company overcame both the

financial and natural obstacles that stood in the way of

its extension westward.

"Mr. Swann, even after severing his connections with

the Baltimore and Ohio, in 1853, assumed the presidency
of the Northwestern Virginia Railroad Company, an

enterprise which he had been interested in from its

inception and for whose charter he had labored. While

serving as president of this railway, Mr. Swann made a

trip to Europe and engaged in a somewhat extensive

tour of the Continent.

"After his return to America, he appeared to have

lost his ambition to be a great railroad builder in the

more absorbing passion for political honors. At all

events, in 1856, Thomas Swann invited the people of

Baltimore to elect him Alayor of the Monumental City.

"Very late in life Governor Swann made a second

venture into matrimony. On June 20, 1878, when he

had reached an age of 71 or 72, he married Mrs. John
R. Thompson, who, as Josephine Ward of New York,

had once been a famous belle of society, and who, in

later years, became a social leader of Washington. The

marriage did not bring much joy to the aged statesman.

"Governor Swann. who had become a resident of Bal-

timore in the thirties, removed to his old home, Morven

Park, near Leesburg, Virginia, after the close of his

Congressional career, where he died on July 24, 1883.

Although Virginia was his native State, his remains were

brought for burial to the city and State which he had
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adopted as his own and which had so richly honored

him for the services which he had rendered in their

behalf.

"With flags at halfmast, Baltimore, then steeped in

the great distress that was caused by the famous Tivoli

disaster, could still find tears to shed upon the bier of

Thomas Swann. The older generation of citizens re-

membered, perhaps, the time when the deceased, as May-
or, had brought upon his head the just condemnation

of many who then mourned him, but, if they remembered

this, it was only to contrast more strongly the great

things he had done for his fellow-men. The good he did

lived after him; the evil w-as not interred with his bones,

for it had been erased long years before his death."

Children :

i Thomas Swann.

ii Elizabeth G. Sw^ann.

iii Jane B. Swann.

iv Mary M. Swann.

V Louisa G. Swann.

30 JoHN« Page (John^ Mann*, Matthew^ John-,

Francis^) was born at North End, in 1749. (Another

statement says 1743.) He removed to Caroline County,

Virgina. He married, in 1764, Elizabeth Burwell, of

King's Mills, York County, Virginia. "Mrs. Page was

burned to death in the terrible disaster in the Richmond

Theatre, December 11, 1811." John Page died in 1781).

He had fifteen children of whom the following survived.

Children :

i Octavius Augustine, Lieut, in the U. S. Navy;
served in the War of 1812.

ii Jane Burwell, born in 1774; married, in 1794,

Edmund Pendleton, Jr., of Caroline County.
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iii Peyton Randolph, born in 1776
; married, in

1801, Mrs. Bryant; served in the War of

1812, and was taken prisoner by the British.

31 iv Lewis Burwell, married Mrs. Reade.

31 Lewis Burwell^ Page (John^, John^ Mann^
Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born in 1778. He
served in the United States Navy. He married, in 1803,

Mrs. Reade, of Philadelphia.

Child :

Elizabeth, married Dr. John R. Chandler, of the U. S.

Navy.

32 Major Carter^ Page (John^ Mann*, Matthew^

John-, Francis^) of Willis Forks, Cumberland County,
was born in 1758. ''Major Page served in the Revolu-

tionary Army and was aid-de-camp to General Lafay-
ette during the campaign in Virginia against Cornwallis.

When General Lafayette visited America, in 1824, Major
Carter Page was one of the Revolutionary officers who
assembled in Richmond to meet and make him welcome.

At the banquet in honor of General Lafayette toasts were

given Governor Pleasants, Chief Justice Marshall, Mr.

Calhoun, and Major Carter Page." Carter Page married,

first, Mary (or Polly), daughter of Colonel Archibald

Cary, of Ampthlll. She may have been widow of Thom-
as Mann Randolph, as Col. Archibald Gary's daughter,

Mary, is stated to have married him (see Cary Family,
No. 7). His second wife was Lucy, daus^hter of Gov-

ernor Thomas Nelson, of Yorktown. Major Carter

Page died in 1825.

Children (by first wife) :

I John Cary, born at "The Fork," in 1784; re-



Page Family 535

moved to Union Hill; married, in 1808, Mary
Anna Trent,

ii Henry, born in 1785; married Jane Dean; re-

moved to Kentucky,
iii Carter, born in 1786; died in the same year,

iv Lavinia Randolph, born in 1788.

V Carter, born in 1790.

vi Mann, born in 1791
;
a physician ;

removed to

Turkey Hill, Albemarle County; married Jane
F. Walker,

vii William, born in 1793.

viii Mary Isham.

Children (by second wife) :

ix Thomas Nelson, born in 1800.

33 X Nelson, married, first, Lucia Harrison, second,

Maria Hamilton,

xi William Nelson, born in 1803
;
married Fan-

nie R. Randolph,
xii Lucy Jane, born in 1804

; married, in 1827,

Jonathan P. Cushing, of Massachusetts,

xiii Robert Burwell, born in 1806
; married, in 1829,

Sarah H., daughter of Thomas May, of Buck-

ingham Courthouse
;
died in 1837 : their daugh-

ter, Sarah, married Robert Page (see No. 36).

xiv Thomas, born in 1807
;
lived at Locust Grove,

Cumberland County; married, in 1839, Sally

Page, of Clarke County, Va.

35 XV Sally Maria, married Rev. George W. Dame.

33 Nelson^ Page (Carter^ John^, Mann*, Mat-

thew^, John^, Francis^) was born in 1801. He married,

in 1828, Lucia, daughter of Randolph Harrison, of Clif-

ton. His second wife was Maria Hamilton.
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Child (by first wife) :

34 Alary Randolph, married Benjamin Harrison.

34 Mary Randolph* Page (Nelson^ Carter^,

John^, Mann"*, Matthew"^, John-, Francis^) married, in

1835, Benjamin Harrison, of Upper Brandon.

Children :

i William Byrd Harrison.

ii Lucia Harrison,

iii Benjamin Harrison, of Upper Brandon.

35 Sally Maria^ Page (Carter^ John^ Mann*,

Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born in 1813. She mar-

ried, in 1835, Reverend George W. Dame.

Children :

i Jonathan Cushing Dame.

ii Lucy Carter Dame,

iii Rev. William Aleade Dame,

iv Ellen Dame.

V Nelson Dame,

vi Rev. George Dame, Jr.

36 Capt. Robert*' Page (John^, Mann*, Matthew^

John-, Francis^) was born in 1764. In 1776, when a

student at William and Mary College, at Williamsburg,

he left it with other students, to enlist in the Revolu-

tionary Army. He was representative in Congress from

Virginia, from 1799 to 1801. He married Sarah W.,

daughter of Robert Page (son of Major Carter Page),

his first cousin (see Number 32).

Children :

i Jane Byrd, born in 1789; married, in 1812, John
W. Page.
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ii John, born in 1792; removed to North End; mar-

ried, first, Jane Nelson, second, Sarah Williamson,
iii Sarah Walker, died without issue.

iv Robert, born in 1795
;
died without issue.

V Judith Carter, born in 1800; died without issue,

vi Catherine, born in 1803; died without issue.

vii Mary Mann, born in 1805; married, in 1832, Jos-

eph A. Williamson, of Orange Courthouse.

viii Robert Walker, died without issue.

37 Robert^ Page (Mann*, I\Iatthew^ John-, Fran-

cis^) of Broadneck, Hanover County, Virginia, was born

at Rosewell, in 1722. He married, January 20, 1750,

Sarah Walker, the daughter of an English gentleman.
Her sister, Clara, married Mr. Allen, of Clairmont, on

the James River. Clara and Sarah Walker were heir-

esses. ''Robert Page founded the Broadneck house, in

Hanover County, in 1750. This house was destroyed by
fire during the Revolution, but was afterward rebuilt."

Robert Page died at Broadneck, in 1768, aged forty-six.

Children :

i Mann, born at Broadneck, Hanover County,
Va., October 26, 1750.

38 ii Robert, married Mary Braxton.

iii Judith, born at Broadneck, in 1756
;
married,

first, in 1774, John Waller, Clerk of Spottsyl-

vania Courthouse and member of the House
of Delegates in 1791.

iv Catharine, born in 1758; married, in 1778, Ben-

jamin Carter Waller, of Williamsburg, Va.,

member of the House of Delegates, 1798-1800.

41 V John, married Maria Horsemander Byrd.
60 vi Matthew, married Anne Meade.
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vii Jane Byrd, married John White Page (see No.

39).

38 Robert^ Page (Robert^ Mann^ Matthew^

John", Francis^) was born at Broadneck, June 15, 1752.

He re-built the Broadneck House, which had been burned

during the Revohitionary War. In 1779, he married

Mary, daughter of Carter Braxton, of Chericoke, King
WilHam County. Robert Page died at Broadneck, in

1794, aged forty-two years.

Children :

i Robert, born in 1780
;
died without issue,

ii Carter Braxton, born in 1783; married Eliza

Nicholson
;
died without issue.

iii Sally W., born in 1784; married, in 1804,

Humphrey Brooke.

39 iv John White, married, first, Jane Byrd Page,

second, Emily Smith.

V Judith Robinson, born in 1788
;
died without

issue,

vi Walker Y., born in 1790, at Broadneck; died

without issue.

vii Mattie, born in 1792
;
died without issue,

viii Catherine, born in 1794; died without issue.

39 John White^ Page (Robert^ Robert^ Mann*,

Matthew^ John^, Francis^) of White Hall, was born in

1786, at Broadneck. He removed to Clarke County,

West Virginia. He married, first, in 1812, Jane Byrd,

daughter of Honorable Robert Page, of Janeville, and

Sarah Walker Page, his wife (see Number 37). His

second wife whom he married in 1833, was Emily Smith,

of Winchester, Virginia.
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Children (by first wife) :

i Robert Matthew, born in 1814; died without

issue.

40 ii Walker Yates, married Nannie C. Tyler.

iii Sally, born in 1818
; married, in 1839, Thomas

Page, of Locust Grove, Cumberland County,

Va.

iv Nathaniel B., born in 1820; married, in 1848,

Mary Anna Richardson.

V Mary B., born in 1821
;
died without issue.

vi Jane Byrd, born in 1823
; married, in 1847,

Rev. James Chisolm; issue, two sons.

vii John White, born in 1824, at White Hall; re-

moved to Petersville, Frederick County, Md.
;

married, in 1855, Ellen, daughter of Dr.

George W. West, of Maryland,
viii Judith Robinson, died without issue.

ix Carter Braxton Page, born at White Hall in

1829, moved to Bladensburg, Prince George

County, Md.
; married, first, Emily, daughter

of Dr. William Armistead, of Fluvanna County,

may have been son of John White Page.

40 Walker Yates^ Page (John White^ Robert",

Robert^ Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born

in 1816, at Janeville. He removed to Frederick City,

Maryland, and married Nannie C. daughter of Doctor

William Tyler, of Frederick, June 1, 1858. "Walker

Yates Page, being the eldest son of the eldest son in de-

scent from Robert Page, of Broadneck, is at present the

representative of that branch of the family."

Children :

i Mary Addison, married, in 1879, William Stiles, of

Baltimore.
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ii Nannie Walker, died without issue,

iii William Tyler, of Baltimore.

41 JoHN« Page (Robert^ }^IannS Matthew^, John-,

Francis^) of Pagebrook, Clarke County, Virginia,

was born at Broadneck, June 29, 1760. He married, in

1784, Maria Horsemander, daughter of Colonel William

E. Byrd, of Westover, on the James River, granddaugh-

ter of Colonel Warham Horsemander, "some time of

Virginia," and the niece of Jane Byrd, who married,

in 1746, Honorable John Page of North End. John Page

died September 17, 1838, aged seventy-eight years.

Children :

i Nancy, born in 1786
;
died young,

42 ii Mary W., married Benjamin Harrison.

44 iii William Byrd. married, first, Evelyn Byrd

Page, second, Eliza M. Atkinson.

49 iv Sarah Walker, married Major Thomas M.

Nelson.

53 v Robert Powell, married, first, Mary Francis,

second, Susan Grymes Randolph.

57 vi John E., married Emily McGuire.

vii Abby, born in 1798; married, in 1816, John

Hopkins, of Winchester.

59 viii Matthew, married, first, Mary Matilda Collins ;

second, Henrietta Elizabeth Collins.

42 Mary W.^ Page (John«, Robert^ Mann*, Mat-

thew^ John^, Francis^) was born in 1788. She married,

in 1816, Benjamin Harrison of Berkeley.

Children :

i Lucy Harrison.
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ii Henry Harrison, married, in 1845, Fannie Tabb
Burwell.

43 iii Benjamin Harrison, married Mattie Page.

43 Benjamin^ Harrison (Mary W/ Page, John*',

Robert^, Mann'*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) married, in

1858, Mattie, daughter of Doctor Matthew Page, of

Clarke County, West Virginia (see No. 59).

Children :

i Dr. Benjamin Harrison,

ii Mary Cary, married Archie Bevan, of England.

44 William Byrd" Page (John^ Robert^ Mann*,

Matthew^, John-, Francis^) of Pagebrook, was born in

1790. It is stated that he ''married, first, in 1813, Eve-

lyn Byrd Page." In the same article from which this

quotation is made, it is stated that William Byrd Page,

son of John and Maria Horsemander (Byrd) Page,

''married, first, in 1813, at Westover, on the James River,

Evelyn Byrd, daughter of Judge Wilham Nelson." She

was probably Evelyn Byrd Page Nelson. His second

wife w^as Eliza Mayo, daughter of Robert Atkinson, of

Mansfield, Dinwiddie County, whom he married in 1822.

Children (by first wife) :

45 i Anne Willing, married Thomas Carter.

46 ii William Byrd. married Celestine Davis.

47 iii John, married Lucy Mann Burwell.

Children (by second wife) :

48 iv Evelyn Byrd, married Richard Henry Lee.

v Mary, born in 1825
; married, in 1842, William

Norborne Nelson, son of Major Thomas Nel-

son, of Mecklenburg County (see No. 50).



542 Seldens of Virginia

45 Anne Willing^ Page (William Byrd^ John%
Robert^, Mann'*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born in

1814. She married, in 1835, Thomas Carter, of Anne-

field.

Children :

i Dr. Charles Shirley Carter, of Baltimore
;
married

Swann.

ii Capt. William Page Carter, of Clarke County, mar-

ried Lucy Byrd, daughter of Dr. Robert Powell Page,

(see No. 53).

46 Dr. William Byrd^ Page (William Byrd^
John^, Robert^, Mann*, Matthew", John-, Francis^) re-

moved to Philadelphia, and married, in 1840, Celestine,

daughter of Samuel Davis, of Louisiana.

Child:

i S. Davis, Comptroller of the City of Philadelphia.

47 JOHN^ Page (William Byrd^ John«, Robert^

Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) of Longwood, Clarke

County, was born in 1820. He married, in 1845, Lucy
Mann, daughter of George H. Burwell, of Carter Hall

(see Burwell Family, Number 10).

Children :

i Evelyn,
ii Celestine.

48 Evelyn Byrd^ Page (William Byrd^ John",

Robert^, Mann*, Matthew", John-, Francis^) was born in

1823 and married, in 1841, Richard Henry Lee, of Graf-

ton, Clarke County.
Children :

i Rev. William Lee.
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ii Richard Henry Lee.

iii Mary Lee.

iv Charles Lee.

49 Sarah Walker^ Page (John^ Robert^ Mann*,

Matthew^, John^, Francis^) was born in 1792. She mar-

ried, in 1815, Major Thomas M. Nelson, of Mecklenburg

County, Virginia, son of Major John Nelson, of Oak
Hill, and his wife, Nancy Carter, and grandson of Secre-

tary Thomas Nelson and his wife, Lucy Armistead.

Children :

i Evelyn Byrd Page Nelson, born in 1819, mar-

ried Robert Carter,

ii Hon. John P. Nelson.

50 iii William Norborne Nelson, married Mary Page.
51 iv Maria B. Nelson, married William G. Wool-

folk.

50 CoL. William Norborne^ Nelson (Sarah
Walker^ Page, John^ Robert^ Mann^ Matthew^ John-,

Francis^) of Milwood, married Mary, daughter of Wil-

liam Byrd and Eliza (Atkinson) Page, of Pagebrook

(see Number 44).

Children :

i Thomas M., married, in 1877, Susie, daughter of

Dr. Robert Atkinson, of Baltimore,

ii Eliza, married, in 1878, John A. Woolfolk, of Co-

lumbus, Ga.

iii Evelyn Willing.

51 Maria B.« Nelson (Sarah Walker^ Page,

John^, Robert^, Mann*, Matthew^ John^, Francis^) mar-

ried, in 1845, William G. Woolfolk, of Columbus, Geor-

gia.
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Children :

i Thomas Nelson Wool folk.

52 ii Rosa Wool folk, married Robert Ober.

52 Rosa'-^ Woolfolk (Maria B.^ Nelson, Sarah

Walker" Page, John^, Robert^, Mann'*, Matthew", John^,

Francis^) married Robert Ober, of Baltimore.

Children :

i Robert Ober.

ii Maria Horsemander Ober.

53 Dr. Robert Powell^ Page (John^, Robert^,

Mann"*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) of Briars, in Clarke

County, was born at Pagebrook, in 1794. He married,

first, in 1819, Mary, daughter of Doctor Willing Francis,

of Philadelphia. His second wife, whom he married in

1839, was Sarah Grymes, daughter of Archibald Ran-

dolph and his wife, Susan Randolph, of Carter Hall.

''Archibald Randolph was the eldest son of Isham Ran-

dolph, of Dungeness, Goochland County."

Children (by first wife) :

54 i Maria B., married Mayhew Wainwright.
55 ii Dora W., married Nathaniel Burwell.

Children (by second wife) :

iii Elizabeth B.. born in 1838
;
died without issue.

56 iv Alary Francis, married John Esten Cooke.

V Lucy Byrd, born in 1842
; married, in 1867,

William P. Carter, of Clarke County (see No.

45).

vi Robert Powell, of Saratoga, Clarke County,

born in 1846
; married, in 1870, Agnes, daugh-

ter of George H. Burwell, of Carter Hall.
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54 Maria B.« Page (Robert PowelP, John«, Rob-

ert^, Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born in

1820. She married, in 1840, Mayhew Wainwright, of

New York City.

Children :

i Elizabeth Wainwright, married, in 1875, Dr. John

Page Burwell, of Clarke County.
ii Mayhew Wainwright, lieutenant in the United

States Navy ;
killed by pirates on the Pacific coast,

iii Robert Wainwright, United States Army,
iv Maria Wainwright, married, first, in 1873, Henry

Slaughter, of New York, and, second, James.

55 Dora W.« Page (Robert PowelF, John«, Rob-

ert^, Mann*, Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born in

1822. She married, in 1842, Nathaniel Burwell, of

Clarke County.

Children :

i Dr. John P. Burwell.

ii Dr. William P. Burwell.

iii Susie Burwell, married Archie Randolph.

56 Mary Francis^ Page (Robert Powell', John^

Robert^ Mann*, Matthew^ John-, Francis^) was born in

1840. She married, in 18G7, John Esten Cooke, of Clarke

County (see Cooke Family, Number 13). Mr. Cooke

was an author. He died at the Briars, in 188G.

Children :

i Susie Randolph Cooke, married Rev. Charles Lee.

ii Edmund Pendleton Cooke, died young,

iii Robert Powell Page Cooke, M. D., born in 1874.

57 Judge John E."^ Page (John«, Robert^ Mann^
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Matthew^, John% Francis^) of Pagebrook, was born

there March 11, 1796, and resided there after the death

of his brother, Wilham Byrd Page. He was Judge of the

Circuit Court of the Counties of Clarke and Warren.

Judge Page married, in 1823, Emily, daughter of Col-

onel William McGuire, of Harper's Ferry.

Children :

i John Y., born in 1827; removed to St. Louis

County, Mo.
; married, in 1859, Wash.

ii Mary M., born in 1829.

iii Emma, born at Pagebrook in 1833
; married,

in 1853, Philip Nelson, of Nelson Co., Va.

iv Anne W., born in 1835; married, in 1864, Dr.

William Douglas Aleriwether, of Kinloch, Albe-

marle Co., Va.

58 V Robert P., married Martha Turner Har-

dee,

vi Jane McGuire.

vii Evelyn Byrd, died without issue,

viii Edward Charles,

ix William Byrd, born in 1848; died in 1864.

58 Dr. Robert P.« Page (John E.', John", Robert^

Mann*, Matthew^, John^, Francis^) resided in Berryville.

He married, in 1864, Martha Turner, daughter of Wil-

liam Hardee, of Petersburg.

Children :

i William Hardee,

ii Evelyn Byrd.^
iii John Evelyn,
iv Bettie.

V Edward Douglas.
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59 Dr. Matthew' Page (John^ Robert^ Mann*,

Matthew^, John-, Francis^) was born at Pagebrook, in

1801. He removed to North Carolina. He married,

first, in 1829, Mary Matilda, daughter of Josiah Collins,

and, second, in 1848, her sister, Henrietta Elizabeth Col-

lins.

Children :

i Mattie, married Benjamin Harrison (see No. 43).

ii Herbert Henry, married, in 1876, Mary Louise Clai-

born.

60 Matthew^ Page (Robert^ Mann^ Matthew^

John^, Francis^) was born at Broadneck in 1762. He
resided at Annefield, Clarke County, Virginia. In 1787,

he married Anne, daughter of Richard K. Meade and sis-

ter of Bishop Meade of Virginia.

Children :

i Sally, married, in 1808, Rev. Charles W. Andrews,

of Shepherdstown, West Va.

ii Mary Frances, married, in 1810, John Byrd.

iii Walker, born in 1764; died without issue.

iv Sarah Walker, born in 1766; married, in 1788, Hon.

Robert Page, of Janeville, Clarke Co., Va.
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BROOKE FAMILY

Arms : Chequy or and azure, on a bend gules a lion

passant of the first.

Crest: A demi lion rampant erased or.

The following account has been obtained from a sketch

of the Brooke family by St. George Tucker Brooke.

Richard^ Brooke, born at White Church, Hamp-
shire, England, was a wealthy banker. He married

Elizabeth Twyne, of White Church, who was the heiress

of her brother. Richard Brooke executed a will in 1593.

which was proved in 1599.

Children :

i Richard,

ii Robert.

1 iii Thomas.

iv Barbara.

V Dorothea.

1 Hon. Thomas^ Brooke (Richard^) was born at

White Church in 1567. He married, in 1590, Susan,

daughter of Thomas Foster, Judge of the Court of Com-
mon Pleas, and niece of Robert Foster, Chief Justice of

the King's Bench. The Fosters were a branch of the

ancient family of Etherstone, in the County of Durham.

Thomas and Robert Foster were grandsons of Alexander

Comyns, Earl of Bucan, who was descended from Roger
de Quincy, Earl of Winchester, a Magna Charta Baron,

and also from David I, King of Scotland, son of Mal-

colm HI, who married Margaret, daughter of Edward,
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the outlaw, son of Edmund Ironsides, Saxon King of

England. King David's grandfather, Duncan I, was mur-

dered by Macbeth, and this royal line goes back without a

break to Fergus II, King of Scotland, A. D., 404.

Thomas Brooke died May 18, 1612.

Children :

i Thomas,

ii Richard.

2 iii Robert.

2 Robert^ Brooke (Thomas", Richard^) was born

in 1602. He was educated for the ministry, graduated
at Oxford, and was admitted to Holy Orders February

25, 1627. He married, first, Mary, only daughter of

Thomas Baker of Battle, and his wife, Mary, daughter
of Sir Thomas Ingham, Knight of Goodelstone in Kent.

Robert Brooke had four children by this marriage. His

first wife died in 1634, and on May 11, 1635, he married

Mary, second daughter of Roger Mainwaring, Doctor

of Divinity, Dean of Worcester, and, in 1636, Bishop of

St. David's.

In 1650 Robert Brooke embarked for Maryland with

his wife, Mary, and ten children. He arrived there June

29, 1650, and settled on the Patuxent River, calling the

place ''De la Brooke Manor." Lord Baltimore, his per-

sonal friend, bestowed upon him large grants of lands,

created him Commander of Clarke County, and gave him

a seat in the Privy Council. He died July 20, 1663. His

wife died November 29, of the same year. Hon. Thomas
Brooke, of De la Brooke Manor, a grandson of Robert

Brooke and his second wife, had a daughter, Eleanor,

who married John Tasker (see Tasker Family, Number

1).
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Children (by first wife) :

i Baker.



556 Seldens of Virginia

and Horse Shoe Knight.

[Then comes the Horse Shoe with motto and the date

1714]

"Francis T. Brooke

''Judge of the Supreme Court of Appeals
1811-18

"Wilham Hill Brooke, J. P.,

1870."

Robert and Catherine (Booth) Brooke had the follow-

ing children :

4 i Robert, married Phoebe .

ii Humphrey.
iii William.

4 Robert^ Brooke (Robert*, Robert^, Thomas^,

Richard^) was called "Knight of the Golden Horse

Shoe." A letter from Judge White of the Circuit Court,

says :

"Robert Brooke, Jr. (which is the way the 'Horse

Shoe Knight' always signed his name), was Deputy

Clerk of Essex County, 1700." This is clearly the Knight,

as his father, the Justice, was then alive and on the bench.

He married Phoebe
,
and had eight children, four

sons, and four daughters. The youngest of these four

sons was

5 i Richard, who married, first, Anne Hay Tah'a-

ferro, and, second, Sarah Taliaferro.

5 Richard'^ Brooke (Robert^, Robert*, Robert^

Thomas^ Richard^, of "Smithfield." married, first, Anne

Hay TaHaferro, and, second, Sarah Taliaferro.

Children :

6 i John Taliaferro, married Anne Mason IMercer

Selden.
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ii Francis Taliaferro, married Alary Randolph

Spottswood (see Spottiswoode Family, No.

15) ; Judge Francis T. and Mary Randolph

(Spottswood) Brooke had a daughter, Mary
Randolph Spottswood Brooke, who married Dr.

Edmund Carter Berkeley (see Berkeley Line-

age).

G John Taliaferro^ Brooke (Richard", Robert^,.

Robert"^, Robert^ Thomas-, Richard^) married Anne Ma-
son Mercer Selden (see Selden Family, Number 92).

Children :

i Louisa, died unmarried in 1866, aged seventy.

7 ii Samuel, married Angelina Edrington.
iii Anne Mason Mercer, born in 1804; died in

1864.

iv Francis John, born in 1808
;
fell at the battle of

Okeechobee, in the Seminole War, in Florida,

about 1848.; Ft. Frank Brooke, Fla., was named

for him, and he was buried there.

15 V Henry Laurens, married Virginia Tucker.

7 Samuel^ Brooke (John Taliaferro^ Richard^,

Robert^, Robert^, Robert^, Thomas-, Richard^) was born

in 1800. He married, January 5, 1825, Angelina Edring-

ton, who died May 9, 1862. He was a member of the

Order of the Cincinnati, his eligibility for which was in-

herited from Colonel Samuel Selden of the Revolution.

Children :

i John Mercer, died without issue.

8 ii Fenton, married John Henry Moncure Daniels,

iii ATaria Louisa, died without issue.

iv Anne Selden, died without issue.

t

\
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11 V Anne Maria, married Christopher Armat.

vi Angehna, married Col. James Douglas Bruce;

no children.

12 vii Samuel Selden, married Bettie L. Young,
viii Virginia Tucker.

ix Louisa Selden, died unmarried in 1904.

8 Fenton^ Brooke (SamueP, John TaHaferro^,

Richard^ Robert^ Robert*, Robert^ Thomas^ RichardM

married, in 1853, John Henry Moncure Daniels, born

October 7, 1813.

Children:

i John AI. Daniels.

9 ii Selden Brooke Daniels, married Mrali- Eliza

Todd.

10 iii Thomas Cushing Daniels, married Mr^ Julia

Waggerman.

9 Selden Brooke^'' Daniels (Fenton^ Brooke,

SamueP, John Taliaferro", Richard", Robert^ Robert^

Robert^, Thomas-, Richard^) married Airs. Eliza Todd.

Children :

i John M.
ii David Todd,

iii Selden Brooke,

iv Ruth.

V Sarah.

10 Thomas Cushing^" Daniels (Fenton^ Brooke,

SamueP, John Taliaferro", Richard% Robert^ Robert^

Robert^ Thomas-, Richard') married Mt4J Julia Wagger-
man.

Child :

i Thomas Cushing Daniels.
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11 Ann Maria^ Brooke (Samuel^, John Talia-

ferro', Richard^ Robert^ Robert^ Robe^t^ Thomas-,

Richard^) married Christopher Armat.

Children :

i Angie Brooke Armat.

ii Thomas Armat.

iii Christopher Armat.

iv Selden Brooke Armat.

V John Hunter Armat.

12 Samuel Selden^ Brooke (SamueP, John Talia-

ferro^, Richard^, Robert^ Robert^ Robert^ Thomas-,

Richard^) married Bettie L. Young.
Children :

i Samuel Selden, married Annie Rucker.

ii Henry Mercer, died without issue.

13 iii Edgar S., married Alary Rucker.

14 iv Vena Y., married Joseph Hunter.

V Cary Minor.

13 Edgar S.^^ Brooke (Samuel Selden^, Samuel**,

John Taliaferro', Richard^, Robert^, Robert*, Robert^,

Thomas^, Richard^) married Mary Rucker.

Children :

i Virginia Mercer,

ii Edgar S.

14 Vena Y.^° Brooke (Samuel Selden^, SamueP,

John Taliaferro^, Richard*^, Robert^, Robert*, Robert^,

Thomas^, Richard^) married Joseph Hunter.

Child :

i Samuel Selden Brooke Hunter.
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15 Henry Laurens^ Brooke (John Taliaferro^

Richard", Robert^, Robert"*, Robert^, Thomas^, Richard^)
was born July 16, 1808. He married, September 21,

1836, Virginia Tucker, daughter of Henry St. George

Tucker, Judge of the Court of Appeals of Virginia, and

Evelina Hunter, the half-sister of Adam Stephen Dan-

dridge of the "Bower.'' They were both grandchildren
of General Adam Stephen (see Tucker Family, No. 1).

Virginia Tucker ^vas born June 30, 1817, and died Octo-

ber 7, 18G4. . -""r

Children :

16 i Evelina Tucker, married Daniel B. Lucas.

17 ii Nannie Selden, married James Fairfax Mc-

Laughlin,
iii Virginia Dandridge, born June 3, 1842

;
died

in July, 1846, at "Eastern V^iew," the resi-

dence of Mr. Robert Randolph ;
buried in the

Randolph lot, at Warrenton, Va.

18 iv St. George, married Alary H. Brow^n.

V John Taliaferro, died in infancy.

19 vi Francis John, married Gay Bentley.

vii Mrginia Tucker, born July 26, 1850; died July

1, 1865.

20 viii David Tucker, married Lucy Higgins.

ix Henry Laurens, born October 3, 1856; editor

of the Bulletin, San Francisco, Cal.

X Elizabeth Dallas
;
unmarried.

21 xi Laura Beverly, married Everett W. Bedenger.

16 Evelina Tucker^ Brooke (Henry Laurens^,

John Taliaferro", Richard^, Robert^, Robert*, Robert^,

Thomas-, Richard^) was born July 20, 1838. She mar-

ried, in October, 1869, Daniel B. Lucas. The following

account of him is taken from the Baltimore Sim.
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"Judge Daniel B. Lucas, one of the most distinguished
citizens of West Virginia, died at his home, Ryon Hall,

Saturday, after being sick for several weeks. Judge Lu-

cas, known as the poet of Shenandoah Valley, was born

at Charlestown on March 16, 1836. After attending a

number of private academies, he was sent to the Univers-

ity of Virginia, during the session of 1851 and 1852, and

remained there for four years, when he was graduated.
He then entered the law school of Judge John W. Brook
and was graduated from there and commenced practicing

law in his native place in the spring of 1859.

*'At the beginning of the following year he removed

to Richmond, Va., and was a resident of that city when
the Civil War broke out. He joined the staff of General

Henry A. Wise, June, 1861, and served with him through-
out the campaign in the valley, which terminated October,

1861.

"Judge Lucas' poems, many of which were written dur-

ing the war, early attracted attention.

"He ran the blockade to Canada, leaving Richmond

June 1, 1865, in order to assist in the defense of Capt.

John Yates Bell, a college friend of his youth, who was

tried as a spy at Governor's Island by a courtmartial,

and who was condemned and executed February 24, 1865.

"Captain Bell's defense was conducted by the famous

lawyer, John P. Brady. Mr. Lucas not having been per-

mitted by General Dix, commandant of the detachment,

to take part in his schoolmate's defense, remained in

Canada for the next few months, and there wrote, short-

ly after the surrender of General Lee, his celebrated poem
entitled, 'The Land Where We Were Dreaming,' which

was published first in the Montreal Gazette and after-

ward reproduced in many papers in England and the

United States.
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"Judge Lucas returned to West Virginia shortly after

the close of the war, but was not allowed to practice his

profession by the 'test oath' until 1870. On regaining

his practice he entered into partnership with Judge
Thomas B. Green, who was afterward made president of

the Court of Appeals of West Virginia.

"In 188-1 and 1S8G he was elected to the Legislature

from Jefferson County. His most notable act was his

resistance to the caucus which proposed to re-elect Sena-

tor John M. Camden, president of the Standard Oil

Company of West Virginia, to the United States Senate.

In a speech delivered in joint assembly February 14,

1887, Judge Lucas denounced the denomination of a

packed caucus. This speech w^as extensively copied by

the press throughout the country and settled the contest,

and Mr. Camden was defeated.

"On March 5, 1887, Judge Lucas was appointed United

States Senator by Governor Wilson. The Legislature

reassembled in a special session the following April and

elected Charles J. Faulkner Senator.

"Judge Lucas was a prominent candidate for Congress

in 1882, at which convention the late William L. Wilson

was nominated.

"On December 5, 1889, on the death of Judge Green,

Judge Lucas was appointed to fill the vacancy on the

bench of the Supreme Court of Appeals of his State and

was re-elected by a handsome majority in 1890. He

always took an active part in politics, and during the last

few years he lived a retired life. He is survived by a

widow, who before marriage was a Miss Brooke, and

one daughter, Miss Virginia Lucas."

Child :

i Virginia Lucas.
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17 Nannie Selden^ Brooke (Henry Laurens^,

John Taliaferro^ Richard^ Robert^ Robert\ Robe^t^
Thomas-, Richard^) was born June 10, 1810. She mar-
ried James Fairfax McLaughHn, December 5, 1867. They
had eight children.

Children :

i Virginia McLaughlin,
ii Alexander JMcLaughlin.
iii Fairfax McLaughlin,
iv Hugh AlcLaughlin.
V Selden B. ^McLaughlin.
vi Robert McLaughlin.
vii Beverly McLaughlin,
viii A child, name unknown. ^

f 7

18 St. George T.^ Brooke (Henry Laurens^, John
Taliaferro^ Richard^, Robert^ Roberf*, Robert^, Thom-

as-, Richard^) was born July 22, 1844. He married, Au-

gust 15, 1882, Mary H. Brown, daughter of Thomas A.

Brown and Annie Washington, his wife. He was Pro-

fessor of Law at the University of West Virginia.

Children :
* f

A child.

A child.1

ii A child.

19 Rev. Francis Joiin^ Brooke (Henry Laurens^,

John Taliaferro^, Richard'', Robert^. Robert^, Robert^,

Thomas-, Richard^ was born December 24, 1847. He is

a Presbyterian minister, now (1897), located in Alexan-

dria, Virginia. He married Gay Bentley, daughter of

Efifert G. Bentley, of Richmond, Virginia.
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Children:

i A child.
^'

ii A child,

iii A child.

20 David Tucker^ Brooke (Henry Laurens^,

John Taliaferro^ Richard'', Robert^, Robert*, Robert^,

Thomas'-, Richard^) was born April 88, 1852. He mar-

ried Lucy Higgins of Norfolk, Virginia, where he re-

sided.

Children :

i Lucy,
ii Eloise.

iii Lawrence,

iv May.
V Lena,

vi Marguerite.

21 Laura Beverly^ Brooke (Henry Laurens^,

John Taliaferro^, Richard*', Robert^, Robert*, Robert^,

Thomas-, Richard^) was born April 21, 1860. She mar-

ried Everett W. Bedenger, Junior, of Kentucky, April 4,

1883. They have had seven children. One son died;

six daughters living.

Children :

i A child.

ii A child.

iii A child.

iv A child.

V A child.

vi A child.

vii A child.

There were eight Brookes of the Virginia family in
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the Revolutionary Army, while the ninth, Doctor Law-
rence Brooke, was with Paul Jones in the American

Navy. The officers were,

Colonel George Brooke, of Mantapike; Colonel J. H.

Brooke, of Fauquier; Captain William Brooke; Hum-

phrey Brooke, a midshipman in the British Navy, after-

ward on Washington's staff as volunteer aid; Lieutenant

Robert Francis T. Brooke; Lieutenant John T. Brooke;

and Lieutenant Edmund Brooke. Of course this list in-

cludes Commodore Brooke and Reuben Brooke of the

Virginia Navy. They were of the Maryland family, and

closely connected with that of Virginia.

Colonel George Brooke of Mantapike, married Anna
Tunstall. Their children were,

i Richard, married Maria, daughter of John Mercer

of Marlboro, by his third wife, Ann Roy, daugh-
ter of Mungo Roy (John Mercer's first wife was

Catherine Mason, aunt of Mrs. Samuel Selden and

of George Mason of Gunston Hall (see Mercer Fam-

ily, Number 1). He had by her George, James, John,

and Sarah Ann Mason Mercer. The last named

married Samuel Selden of Salvington (see Selden

family), and her daughter, Ann Mason Mercer Sel-

den, married John Taliaferro Brooke (see above).

ii William, died without issue,

iii Elizabeth, married Robert Price,

iv Catherine, married Richard Tunstall.

V Mary, married Baylor Hill,

vi Hannah, died without issue.

Humphrey Brooke of Fauquier, brother of Colonel

George Brooke of Mantapike (mentioned above), mar-

ried, first, Ann Whiting, and second, Mildred ,

who had been the second wife and widow of Colonel

Francis Tompkins of Gloucester County, Virginia.
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JoHN^ Riddle lived in Gettysburg, Pennsylvania, in

174—.

Children :

1 i John, married Rebecca McKee.
2 ii James, married . .

6 iii Joseph, married Sarah Morrow Kearsley.
iv Robert, married Judith, daughter of William

and Maria (Carter) Armistead. He was her

second husband. See Armistead Family.)
V Samuel,

vi Joshua,
vii David,

viii George,
ix William.

1 John- Riddle (John^) was born in 1752. He
married Rebecca McKee, of Hagerstown, Maryland.
She died in 1803.

Child :

Rebecca, married, about 1798, Willoughby Washington
Lane (see Lane Family, Westmoreland Branch, No.

3) ;
she had two daughters, Mary Ann, who married

Andrew Kennedy (see Kennedy Family No. 13), and

Rebecca, who married, first, Houston, and, second,
Dr. David Hunter (see Hunter Family No. 14).

2 Judge James^ Riddle (John'), of Meadville,

Pennsylvania, was born in 1755. He was Judge of

5G9
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Franklin County. The name of his wife is unknown
to the author.

Children :

3 i Horatio Ross, married Sarah Houston.

4 ii John S., married .

3 Horatio Ross" Riddle (James-, John^) was b.

in Franklin Co. Pa., July 30, 1811
;
d. Oct. 23, 1904 aged

93
;
married his cousin, Sarah Houston.

Children:

i Mary, married Major McDonald,
ii Katherine. <

iii Anna.

4 John S.^ Riddle (James-, John^) married

Child :

6 Ariana, married Thomas B. Kennedy.

5 Ariana* Riddle (John S.,^ James^ John^) mar-

ried Thomas B. Kennedy, of Chambersburg, President

of the Cumberland Valley Railroad. He was the son of

Judge James Kennedy, and brother of James S. Kennedy,
of Junction City, Kansas

; J. Logan Kennedy, of Ventura

County, Cal.
;
Mrs. Ellen H. Culberson, of Chambers-

burg; and Mrs. Emily Chambers, of Chambersburg, who
died in June, 1905.

Children :

i James S. Kennedy, of Bayonne, N. J.

ii A daughter, married Rev. Dr. Russell Stevenson,

of Schenectady, N. Y.

iii Morehead C. Kennedy, Vice-President and General

Superintendent of Cumberland Valley R. R.
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iv Thomas B. Kennedy, Supt. Western Division of

Cumberland Valley R. R.

V Ariana Kennedy, married Irvin C. Elder, a lawyer
of Chambersbiirg.

6 Joseph- Riddle (John^) of Richmond, Virginia,

married Sarah Morrow, the eldest child of Judge John

Kearsley, of Jonathan, who came to this country about

1761.

Children :

7 i Nancy, married Dr. George Watson.

ii Caroline Homassel, married Benjamin Johnson,
of Orange County, Virginia.

iii Anne V'irginia, married Robert S. Archer, of

Richmond, Virginia.

iv John Adams, married Susan Tabb, of Glou-

cester County, Virginia.

V Julia Maria, married Dr. Thomas Nelson, of

Richmond, Va.

vi Susan Ariana, married Dr. William Allen Sel-

den, of Charlotte Co., Va. (see Selden Family,

No. 113).

7 Nancy^ Riddle (Joseph-, John"^) married Doctor

George Watson.

Children :

i Sally Kearsley Watson, married Judge Alex-

ander Rives, of Albemarle Co., Va.

8 ii Julia Maria Watson, married Richard O. Mor-

ris.

8 Julia Maria* Watson (Nancy'' Riddle, Joseph",

John^) married Richard O. Morris, of Louisa County,

Virginia.
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Children :

i Ann Watson Barbour Morris, married Richard A.

Anderson
;
six children,

ii George Watson Morris, married Constance Morris,

iii James Maury Morris,

iv Richard Overton Morris.

V Julian Morris, married Sally Lindsay Walker.
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Gideon^ Macon, believed to be of Huguenot descent,

was living in New Kent County, Virginia, as early as

1682, when his eldest son was baptized. He was a mem-
ber of the House of Burgesses in 1696. His wife's bap-
tismal name was Martha. ''J^^^'ig 24, 1703, there was a

suit depending in York county, between Nathaniel West
and Martha, his wife, executrix of Gideon Macon, late

of New Kent county, deceased, and Richard Packe, of

Londpn, merchant. Martha is said to have married, third-

ly, a Mr. Bigger, and the Goochland records name, about

1760, a Macon Biggers. We miss from the register

Gideon Macon's daughter, Martha, who married Orlando

Jones, and was the grandmother of Martha Custis, wife

of George Washington, but her tomb is at the old Macon

place, on the Pamunkey—'Prospect Hill'." William and

Mary College Quarterly, Volume xii, page 33 et seq.) vi

Children (records from St. Peter's Parish Register,

New Kent County, Virginia, Ibid, xii, page 33 et seq.) :

i "Gideon, son of Gideon Macon and

his wife, natt the 20th June and bapt. the 22

June, 1682.

1 ii "Martha, married Orlando Jones.

iii "Ann, the daughter of Gideon Macon and Mar-

tha, his wife, natt the loth Dec, bapt. the 2d

Feb., 1685.

2 iv "William, son of Gideon Macon, born the 12th

Novr. 1693.^=

"These entries arc on different papes, and both differ from the
Family Bible, which has Nov. 11, ICfM. The register, from its unsteady
dates, bears internal evidence that it was not kept from day to day."

575
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"William, son of ]\Ir. Gideon Macon and Mar-

tha, his wife, born the 11th Novr, 1693.*

"William Macon, a son of Gideon Macon and

Martha, his wife, was born Novr 11, 1694."

V "John, son as above, born the 17th Deer, 1695.

"Anne, the wife of John Macon, died February

15, 1724-25."

vi "James, son as above, born the 28th October,

1701."

1 Martha^ Macon (Gideon^) married Orlando

Jones, of King William County, January 31, 1703, and

died May 4, 1716. Their daughter,

Frances Jones, born August 6, 1710, married Col.

John Dandridge (see Dandridge Family, New Kent

County branch; descendants of Col. John Dandridge),
and was the mother of Martha (Dandridge) Custis,

whose second husband was George Washington. ( See

further "William and ]\Iary College Quarterly," v,

pages 192, 197; vi, pages 33-36.)

2 William- Macon (Gideon^) married Mary,

daughter of William Hartwell, and Ann, his wife, Sep-
tember 24, 1719. Mary Hartwell was born June 18,

1703. (Marriage record in Family Bible, belonging to

William H. ^lacon, Esq., of Williamsburg, printed in

Philadelphia in 1801 by Matthew Gary. Ibid, Volume

xii, page 34.) "William Hartwell, of James City county,

captain, justice, etc., had, according to will of his brother,

Henry Hartwell, Esq., of the council (New Eng. Hist,

and Gen. ^Nlag.) : 1, Henry, who died without issue

(Surry County Records) ; 2, William, who had an only

child, Mary, who married William Macon, as above



Macon Family 577

(Deed in Surry County, dated Sept. 15, 1725) ; 3, Mary,
married George Marable, and had George Marable, Jr.,

and William Hartwell Marable
; 4, John, whose will was

proved in Surry, May 19, 1714, and names daughter

Elizabeth, who married Richard Cocke (Obelisk at Mt.

Pleasant, Surry County)." (Ibid.) Mary (Hartwell)

Macon died November 19, 1770. William Macon died

November 1, 1773.

Children :

i Ann, born Oct. 21, 1720; died Nov. 9, 1736.

ii Martha, born August 12, 1722
;
died August 8,

1759.

iii Mary, born March 9, 1723; died Jan. 29, 1733.

3 iv WiUiam, married Lucy Scott.

V Henry, born Sept. 1 or 13, 1727; died Sept. 11,

1785 (or 1765).

vi Elizabeth, born Feb. 15, 1729; died April 25,

1763.

vii Sarah, born Feb. 21, 1731.

viii Mary, born April 17, 1735.

ix Judy, born August 12, 1737; died Feb. 1, 1768.

X Hartwell, born June 30, 1741.

xi Anna, born July 31, 1747.

3 William^ Macon (William-, Gideon^) was born

January 4, 1725. He married, November 2, 1753, Lucy,

daughter of John and Elizabeth Scott. She was born

May 29, 1737. She died December 1, 1802. William

Macon died November 24, 1813.

Children :

4 i William Hartwell, married, first, Sarah Ambler,

second, Hannah Selden, third, Sarah (Smith)

Dabney.
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ii Thomas, born Sept. 11, 1761
;
died July 4, 1762.

iii Thomas, born June 11, 1765.

9 iv Ehzabeth, married, first, WilHam Waller, sec-

ond, George Nicolson.

4 William Hartwell* Macon (William^, Wil-

liam-, Gideon^) was born March 2, 1759. His first wife

was Sarah Ambler, whom he married March 25, 1779.

She died September 21, 1782. His second wife was

Hannah Selden (see Selden Family, Number 131). They
were married December 22, 1783. She was born Feb-

ruary 7, 1762, and died September 18, 1813, aged fifty-

one years, seven months, eleven days. He married, third,

August 4, 1814, Sarah, daughter of Reverend Thomas

Smith, of Cople Parish (see William and Mary Quarterly,

Volume iv, page 103), and widow of Benjamin Dabney.
She was born February 27, 1775. William Hartwell

Macon died August 24, 1843, in his eighty-fifth year.

Children (by first wife) :

i Mary Gary, born Dec. 29, 1779
;
married Wil-

liam Marshall, Dec. 10, 1803
;
died Jan. 5, 1812,

aged thirty-two years and seven days,

ii Sarah, born June 30, 1782; called Sarah Amb-

ler; died Oct.. 23, 1782.

(by second wife) :

iii Lucy Scott, born Nov. 2, 1784; married Wil-

liam Temple, August 24 or 28, 1804.

iv William, born Dec. 5, 1786.

v Miles Selden, born Oct. 27, 1788; died May 5,

1790.

vi Rebekah, born August 26, 1790; died May 1,

1809.

5 vii Miles, born August 13, 1791.
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viii Gary Selden, born May 23, 1795.

ix Thomas, born March 18, 1797.

X Joseph, born Dec. 22, 1798; died Sept. 10 or 15,

1807.

xi Ann EHzabeth, born Jan. 15, 1801.

(by third wife) :

xii Mary Smith, born July 18, 1815.

xiii John Augustine, born June 22, 1817
;
died Oct.

3, 1817, aged three months, eleven days.

5 MiLES^ Macon (William Hartwell*, William^

William^, Gideon^) was born August 13, 1791. The name
of his wife is not known. His son,

6 i William H., married Nora Griena Braxton.

6 William H.« Macon (Miles^ William Hart-

well*, William^, William^, Gideon^) married Nora Griena,

eldest daughter of Garter and Mart G. Braxton, Decem-

ber 21, 1848.

Ghildren :

7 i Mary Sayre, born May 7, 1850; married, Dec.

27, 1881, Nathaniel B. Johnston, grandson of

Nathaniel Burwell, of Roanoke Gounty, Va.

8 ii William Hartwell, born Jan. 25, 1852
; married,

in Bruton Parish Ghurch. at Williamsburg, by
Rev. S. S. Hepburn, Mrs. Mary Gait Webb,

daughter of Gol. Randolph Harrison, Dec. 9,

1885.

7 Mary Sayre^ Macon (William Hartwell",

Miles^, William Hartwell*, William^ WiIliam^ Gideon^)

was born May 7, 1850. She married, December 27, 1881,

Nathaniel B. Johnston, grandson of Nathaniel Burwell

of Roanoke Gounty, Virginia.
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Children :

i Charles Johnston, born Nov. 25, 1882.

ii J. Ambler Johnston, born May 18, 1885.

iii Myles Cary Macon Johnston, "born Saturday, July

11, 1888, at 12 M."

8 William Hartwell^ Macon (William Hart-

well^ Miles^ William Hartwell*, W^lliam^, William^,

Gideon^) was born January 25, 1852. He married, in

Bruton Parish Church, Williamsburg, by Reverend S. S.

Hepburn, Mrs. Mary Gait Webb, daughter of Colonel

Randolph Harrison, December 9, 1885.

Children :

i William Hartwell, born Sept. 15, 1886.

ii Randolph Harrison, born Dec. 1, 1887.

iii Nora Criena, "born on Tuesday, Jan. 2, 1889."

iv Helen Stanley Gordon, "born on Wednesday, Sept.

1, 1891."

9 Elizabeth* Macon (William^ William^ Gide-

on^) was born 21 May, 1768. She married, November

30, 1786, William Waller, who died January 6, 1799. Her
second husband was George Nicolson, whom she married

March 31, 1800. She died January 5, 1802.

Children (by first husband) :

i William Macon Waller, born Nov. 13, 1789.

ii Lucy, born Dec. 10, 1791.

iii Dolly Ann, born July 10, 1794
;
died August 5, 1797.
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WORMELEY LINEAGE

Arms: Gules on a chief indented argent, three Hons

rampant sable.

Sir John^ de Wormeley married Margaret de London.

Their son,

John- de Wormeley,, married Eliner Foliot. Their son,

Richard^ de Wormeley, married Margaret Cresacre.

Their son,

Richard^ de Wormeley, married . Their son,

Robert^ de Wormeley, married . Their

son,

Charles^ de Wormeley, married . Their

son,

JOHN^ DE Wormeley, married Margery Hutchins.

Their son,

Christopher^ de Wormeley, married Elizabeth

Hogge. Their son,

Christopher^ de Wormeley, married Mary Adams.

He came to Virginia and was a member of the Council,

1637. Their son,

Ralph^*^ Wormeley, born in England, came to Vir-

ginia. He lived at Wormeley's Creek. He was of York

County, Virginia, and later of "Rosegill," in Lancaster,

now Middlesex County, Virginia. He was a member
of the Council, 1650, died, 1651

;
married Agatha Elken-

head. Their son,

Ralph^^ Wormeley, of "Rosegill," was a member of

the Council, 1677. He was born in Virginia in 1650,

and died December 5, 1700. The first wife of Ralph

585
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Wormeley was Catherine, daughter and heiress of Sir

Thomas Lunsford, styled in the Parish Register, 1685,

''The Hon. Lady Catharine Wormeley." She appears
to have been the widow of Peter Jennings, Attorney-
General of Virginia, for Catharine, widow of Peter Jen-

nings, sues in the General Court, and, in 1674, Wormeley
sues, as marrying the widow, Christian name not given

—
of the same person. By her he had an only daughter,

Elizabeth, who married, in 1703, John Lomax, of Essex

County. Another account of this family states that the

wife of Ralph Wormeley was the Honorable Catharine

Fairfax. She may have been the widow Fairfax when
he married her. The following refers to her death :

"Hon. Lady, Madame Katherine Wormley, wi*fe of Hon.

Ralph Wormley, Esqr., Departed this life 17th of May,
1685." Ralph Wormeley married, second, Februyy 16,

1687, Elizabeth, daughter of Colonel John Armistead of

Gloucester County (see Armistead Family, Number 2),

by whom he had several sons and daughters. The record

of their marriage is here given : "Hon. Ralph Wormley,

Esqr., and Madame Elizabeth Armistead of Gloucester

were married at Col. Armistead's in Gloucester 16 of

February, 1687." She married, when a widow, William

Churchill (see Keith, Hayden, and Middlesex Register),

as is attested by the following record : "Mr. Wm.
Churchill and Mrs. Elizabeth Wormley were married

October ye 5, 1703." The son of Ralph Wormeley,

JOHN^- Wormeley, of "Rosegill," married Elizabeth

. Their daughter,
Elizabeth^^ Wormeley, married Landon Carter, of

"Sabine Hall," as his third wife (see Carter Lineage).
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Richard^ Carter, was lord of the manor of Garstoun,

Parish of Waterford. His son,

William^ Carter, lord of the manor of Garstoun,

married Padmer. Their son,

Robert^ Carter, lord of the manor of Garstoun, mar-

ried Petronel Curie. Their son,

William* Carter, of the Middle Temple, married and

had a son,

JoHN^ Carter, who was born in England, and came

to America in 1640. He married Sarah Ludlow. Their

son,

Robert^ Carter, of Corotoman, called "King Carter,"

marrietl, first, Judith Armistead (see Armistead Family,

No. 3), and, second, Elizabeth Landon. His son by his

first wife,

JOHN^ Carter, married Elizabeth Hill, of Shirley.

Their son,

Charles^ Carter, of Shirley, married Anne Butler

Moore, of Chelsea (see Moore Family, No 5).

Children :

i Robert, married Mary Nelson, of York County.
ii Anne Hill, married Gen. Henry Lee (see Lee Fam-

ily, No. 8).

iii Bernard Moore, married Lucy Lee.

iv Catherine Spottswood, married Dr. Carter Berkeley

(see Berkeley Lineage).
V William, married Charlotte Touslee.

vi Mildred Walker.

589
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vii Lucy, married Nathaniel Burwell, of Roanoke,

viii Fitzhugh.

Landon^ Carter, son of Robert^ Carter, by his second

wife, EHzabeth Landon, was of ''Sabine HalL" He mar-

ried Elizabeth, daughter of John Wormeley (see Worme-

ley Lineage). She was his third wife. Their daughter,

Elizabeth Wormeley Carter, married Nelson Berkeley

(see Berkeley Lineage).
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BURWELL FAMILY

Arms : Paly of six argent and sable, on a bend or a

teal's head erased azure.

Crest : A lion's gamb erect and erased argent grasping
three burr leaves vert.

The following account of this family has been taken

from an article which appeared in the Baltimore Sun :

"The Burwell family of Virginia is one of the oldest

as wqW as most widely connected families of the Old

Dominion. The many witticisms on the subject of the

cousinship of the Virginians seems to have had its origin

very early in the history of the colony. We read in the

published letters of Governor Spottswood, dated 1713 :

'The greater part of the present Council are related to

the family of the Burwells. If Mr. Bassett and Mr.

Berkeley should take their places, there will be no less

than seven so near related that they will go off the

bench whenever a cause of the Burwells come to be

tryed.'

"The different members of the Burwell family filled

many prominent positions during the Colonial period.

Three of them were members of the Council at different

times and one of them President of the Council and

Acting Governor for two years. At least six of them

were members of the House of Burgesses.

"Among the list of families entitled to bear arms

previous to 1776 appears the name of Burwell. The
Burwell family of Virginia is descended from the ancient

family of Burwell, of Bedford and Northamptonshire,

England."

595
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Through the female Hne the family can be traced to

John Bedell, of Wollaston, Northampton, who died in

1485. In the records of York County, Virginia, is a

deed, dated July 28, 1G1:8, in which Dorothy Wingate,
relict of Roger Wingate, Treasurer of Virginia, conveyed
to her "well-beloved son,'' Lewis Burwell, all rents due

at the decease of said Roger Wingate, which are con-

firmed to her by the King. "The *\Tsitations of Bed-

fordshire,' published by the Harleian Society, tell us

that Roger Wingate, living in London in January, 1637,

married Dorothy, daughter of W^illiam Bedell, of Cat-

worth, County Huntingdon, widow of Edward Burwell,

of Harlington, County Bedford.'' She was descended

from the John Bedell, of Wollaston, who died in 1485

(mentioned above), with whom the pedigree in "Cam-

den's \'isitations" commences.

Edward^ Burwell, of Harlington, Bedfordshire, Eng-

land, married Dorothy, daughter of William Bedell.

Children :

i Edward, baptized at Houghton Conquest, April

14, 1616; died and was buried at Ampthill,

March 4, 1620.

ii Dorothy, baptized at Ampthill, June 24, 1618;

probably married Woodington.
iii Elizabeth, baptized at Ampthill, Feb. 25, 1620;

probably married Robert \'aulx (or Vause),
of London, who had been a merchant in Vir-

ginia; about 1656, his wife is named as "Eliza-

beth," and he gave power of attorney to his

brother, Lewis Burwell.

1 iv Lewis, married Lucy Higginson.
V George, baptized at Ampthill, May 17, 1624.

vi Edward, baptized at Ami)thill. Feb. 19, 1625.
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1 Major Lewis- Burwell (Edward^) immigrated
to Virginia early in the seventeenth century. He lived

at Fairfield, Gloucester County. He married Lucy, daugh-
ter of Captain Robert Higginson. "Robert Higginson,
of Virginia, was son of Thomas and Ann Higginson of

Barkeswell, in Warwick, and younger brother of Thomas
of that place. He married Joanna Tokesey, and about

1643 they went to Virginia, where he died in August,

1649, leaving a sole daughter and heir. Lucy. His

widow returned to England in July, 1650. Robert was

a printer and painter-stainer of London. * ''^ * The

Barkeswell Higginsons were descended from John, who
left a will dated 1640, and was of the Higginsons of

Wem in county Salop. Robert Higginson must have

been a cousin or second cousin of the Rev. Francis, of

Salem." 'Tn 1657 there is mention in the York

County records of 'Joanna Higginson, widow.'
"

Lucy (Higginson) Burwell lived many years after

the death of her husband, Lewis Burwell. She

married, second, Sir Philip Ludwell, and, third. Captain

William Bernard. Her tombstone is at Carter's Creek,

Gloucester County, Virginia, and bears the family arms,

with the inscription :

"In perpetual memory of ye virtuous Lucy Burwell,

the loving and Beloved wife of Majr. Lewis Burwell,

of ye County of Gloucester, in Virginia (long since de-

ceased). She was descended from the Ancient family

of the Higginsons. She was ye daughter of the Val-

liant Capt. Robert His^ginson, one of our first Com-

manders that subdued the country of Virginia from the

power of the Heathen, who not being more worthy in

her birth than Virtuous in her life. Exchanged this

World for a Better one on the 16th of Nov., in the
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year of Our Lord A. D. 1675, the year of

her age buried on the ght of her d

her M 11 of her owne grandchildren." (The inscrip-

tion is illegible.)

Major Lewis Burwell died in 1658, and was also buried

at Carter's Creek. Below his Coat of Arms on his

tombstone is the following: ,

"To the lasting memory of Majr. Lewis Burwell, of

the County of Gloucester, in Virginia, Gentleman, who
descended from the Ancient family of the Burwells

of the Counties of Bedford and Northampton, in Eng-

land, nothing more worthy in his birth than virtuous in

his life. Exchanged this life for a better on the 19th day
of Nov., in the 33d year of his age, A. D. 1G58."

Child :

2 i Lewis, married, first, Abigail Smith, second,

Martha (Lear) Cole.

2 Hon. Lewis^ Burwell (Lewis-, Edward^) was

a member of the Council in 1700. He was of Carter's

Creek, Gloucester County, and, later, of Queen's Creek,

York County. "Carter's Creek, the old family seat of

the Burwells in Gloucester County, near the York river,

is said to be the oldest house in Virginia, bearing a

date on its walls. The walls are very massive, the win-

dows narrow, with small panes, and several groups
of tall, diamond-shaped chimneys. On one of these

groups of chimneys is cut the inscription 'L. B. A.,

1694,' which shows that Carter's Creek was built by
the Hon. Lewis Burwell and his wife, Abigail Smith,

the heireiss of President Nathaniel Bacon. Carter's

Creek is said to resemble and to be built in the style

of the old English manor houses of that period. The
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plan of the house was originally a central pjortion,

with two wings, but one of the wings has been torn down.

A visitor, in describing the old mansion, has said the

beautiful marble mantels, the old-fashioned paneling of

the interior, and near by the old graveyard, where many

generations of Burwells are buried, remind one that

Virginia is truly the Old Dominion. This estate of

Carter's Creek was successively the property of Major

Lewis Burwell, who died in 1658
;
Hon. Lewis Burwell,

of the Council, who died in 1710; Major Nathaniel

Burwell, member of the House of Burgesses, died in

1721; Hon. Lewis Burwell, Governor of Virginia, who

died in 1752; Lewis Burwell, member of the House of

Burgesses and of the Revolutionary Convention, who

died in 1779. Some years after the Revolution this old

estate passed into other hands, but the graveyard, shaded

by locust trees and overrun by wild grapevine, with the

tombstones on which the family arms are carved, still

bears witness to the antiquity of the family."

The first wife of Lewis Burwell was Abigail Smith,

who was born March 11, 1656. She was the niece and

heiress of Nathaniel Bacon, President of the Virginia

Council in 1688, and cousin of Nathaniel Bacon who

instigated the revolt known as "Bacon's Rebellion." She

died November 12, 1692. His second wife was Martha,

daughter of John Lear, a councillor, and the widow of

Honorable William Cole (see Selden Family, Number 1).

The following is from an article which appeared in

the William and Mary Quarterly.

 "One of the most entertaining
—in fact, most amusing

stories, because, although it came to blows did not end in

bloodshed, I find in the history of the Colony of Vir-

ginia, is the authentic account of the mad courtship of
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Governor Nicholson, of Virginia, of the beautiful Miss

Burwell, daughter of Major Lewis Burwell, of the Grove,

and his wife Abigail Smith.

"Bishop Meade tells us that Major Burwell, of the

'Grove,' had a bevy of nine charming daughters, one

of whom, he pertinently says, 'completely upset what little

reason there was in Governor Nicholson, of famous

memory.'

''Becoming passionately enamored of this young lady,

he demanded her in marriage of her parents in the

most arbitrary and royal style. But neither she nor

her parents were in the least inclined to comply with

his request. But the Governor persisted in his attentions,

and, becoming very much enraged at being balked in

his wishes, he began a most unusual course of perse-

cutions, not only of the young lady herself and of her

parents, but also of their personal friends
;

in fact,

the whole neighborhood felt the effect of his displeasure.

"Meeting the Rev. Mr. Fouace, of whom he was

jealous, on the road one day, who had been paying
a parochial call at the Burwell mansion, he maltreated

him in the most shocking manner. The account reads :

"
'Besides abusive language and other indignities, he

pulled ofif the minister's hat and wig, as being disre-

spectful to him (the Governor) for one to keep on his

hat, even on horseback, and commanded that he should

never again go to the Burwell house without leave

from himself.' To the young lady herself he threatened

the life of her father and brothers. To Commissary
Bland he declared that 'he would cut the throats of

three men (if the lady should marry any other than

himself), viz: the bridegroom, the minister who per-

formed the ceremony and the justice who issued the

license.*



BuRWELL Family 601

"Such unprecedented and outrageous misconduct as

this on the part of the Governor excited the most in-

tense indignation. So we are not surprised to hear

that the Council of Virginia and the clergy united in

a petition to the Crown for the removal of Governor

Nicholson, which petition was granted. All of this

most entertaining reading and many more unique cir-

cumstances connected with the story, I am told, are

still to be seen on record in the archives of Lambeth

Palace, London."

Honorable Lewis Burwell died in 1710, and his will,

probated February 19, in that year, and recorded in

York County, leaves to his Godson, William Burwell,

plate of the value of £65, ''that hath his mother's coat

of arms." In the will he mentions sons and daughters,

and son-in-law, Henry Seaton
; Godson, William Bur-

well, four years of age, living with William and Elinor

Davis, whom he directs to be educated at William and

Mary College, in style becoming a gentleman's son. He

gives i30 to the poor of Abingdon Parish and

i30 for mourning rings. If his children die with-

out issue, his property in York, James City, and King
William Counties, is to be used to establish free schools

and a chair of law and medicine, or divinity, in William

and Mary College. His tombstone bears his coat of arms

and the following inscription :

"Here lyeth the Body of Hon. Lewis Burwell, Son

of Major Lewis Burwell and Lucy his Wife, of the

County of Gloucester, Who first married Abigail Smith,

of the family of ye Bacons, by whom he had four sons

and six daughters, and, after her death, to Martha, the

widow of ye Hon. William Cole, by whom he had also

two sons and three daughters. Departed this life the
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19th day of December, Anno Domini 1710, leaving be-

hind him three sons and six daughters.

Children (by first wife) :

i Jane, died without issue,

ii Joanna, born in 1675; married, Nov. 28, 1693,

William Bassett; died Oct. 7, 1727.

iii Elizabeth, married Benjamin Harrison, of

Berkley, Charles City County, \'irginia, At-

torney-General, Treasurer and Speaker of the

House of Burgesses, who died April 10, 1710;

she died in 1734.

3 iv Nathaniel, married Elizabeth Carter.

V Lewis, born in 1682
;
died Sept. 1(), 1696, in

his fifteenth year.,

vi A daughter, died in 1691.

vii Lucy, married, Dec. 1, 1704, Edmund Berkeley,

member of the Council; died Dec. 16, 1716,

in her thirty-third year.

viii Martha, married Henry Armistead, son of

John and Judith (Bowles) Armistead (see

Armistead Family, No. 6).

15 ix James, married Mary Armistead.

(by second wife) :

17 X Lewis, married Frances Thacker.

3 CoL. Nathaniel* Burwell (Lewis^, Lewis^

Edward^), of Carter's Creek. Gloucester County, was

baptized October 14, 1680. He was a member of the

Council and of the House of Burgesses, in 1710. He
married Elizabeth, daughter of Robert Carter of Coroto-

man, called "King Carter." (See Carter Lineage.)
Colonel Nathaniel Burwell died in 172L
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Children :

4 i Lewis, married Mary Willis.

7 ii Carter, married Lucy Grymes.

11 iii Robert, married, first, Sarah Nelson, second,

Y Braxton.

14 iv Elizabeth, married William Nelson.

4 Hon. Lewis^ Burwell (Nathaniel^ Lewis"\

Lewis% Edward^), of White Marsh, Gloucester County,

Virginia, was President of the Council, 1743-J:4 and

Acting Governor of Virginia in 1750. He was a graduate

of Cains College, Cambridge University, England, and, so

great was his learning, he is said to have acquired

almost every branch of human knowledge. ''During the

administration of Mr. Burwell, some Cherokee Indian

Chiefs with a party of warriors, visited Williamsburg

for the purpose of opening a trade with Virginia. While

there, a party of Nottoways, their hereditary enemies,

approached to attack them. The Cherokees raised the

war song, and, but for the presence of mind and bravery

of President Burwell, who stepped between the two

parties of savages, the consequences might have been

terrific; but, instead, they all sat down and smoked the

pipe of peace. In the 'Virginia Gazette' is the following

notice: The Hon. Lewis Burwell, Esq., President of

the Council, is returned from the medicinal springs,

on the frontiers, where he has been for some time for

the recovery of his health. He is now at his seat in

Gloucester county.' (Virginia Gazette, June 27, 1751.)

The springs were the Warm Sulphur Springs, in Berke-

ley County." Lewis Burwell married, in 1736, Mary,

daughter of Colonel Francis and Anne (Rich) Willis

(see Willis Family, Number 21). He died soon after

1750, in which year he became Acting Governor.
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Child :

5 i Lewis, married

5 Col. Lewis^ Burwell (Lewis^ Nathaniel,

Lewis^ Lewis^, Edward^) received his education in Eng-
land. ''Lewis Burwell, son of Lewis Burwell, of Vir-

ginia, America
;
Balliol College, matriculated 30th Alarch,

1765, aged 18 years." He entered the Inner Temple, and

commenced the study of the law, being recorded as the son

of Lewis Burwell, of Gloucester, \'irginia. Esquire. In

1767 he was sheriff of Gloucester, and was a member of

the Mrginia House of Burgesses, 1769-74, and a member
of the Convention of 1775-76. The name of his wife is

unknown. He died in 1779.

Children (order of birth unknown) :

i Nathaniel, married Anne Rich Willis
;
"There

is a notice in the Virginia Gazette which speaks
of Nathaniel Burwell as son of Col. Lewis

Burwell, who died in 1779, who was a son of

President Lewis Burwell and Mary Willis, his

wife."

ii A daughter, married Peter Whiting,
iii A daughter, married Armistead Ligl

iv Rebecca, married Jacqueline Ambler.

6 Rebecca^ Burwell (Lewis'*, Lewis% Nathaniel^

Lewis^, Lewis-, Edward^) was born May 29, 1746. She

married Jacqueline Ambler, who was born August 9,

1742. the son of Richard Ambler. They were married

May 24, 1764. ''The charming Rebecca Burwell was

the inamorata of Thomas Jefferson's college days to

whom he refers as 'Belinda.' Bishop ^leade says: 'It

is a curious fact that the two brothers, Jacqueline and
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Edward Ambler, were the successful rivals of two of

the Presidents of the United States—Washington and

Thomas Jefferson'."

Children :

i Eliza, married, first, William Brent, of Stafford Coun-

ty, and, second. Col. Edward Carington, of Cumber-

land, an officer of the Revolutionary army,

ii Mary, married John Marshall, afterward Chief

Justice of the U. S.
; "Jo^n Marshall, a very young

man, but already a captain in the Revolutionary

Army, fell in love with Mary Ambler at first sight,

she being then only U years of age; but he stuck

to his post until the end of hostilities, when they

were married at The Cottage, in Hanover county, a

family seat of one of the Amblers. It is said that

after having paid the minister's fee his fortune was

only one guinea in his pocket, but he lived to be

Chief Justice of the United States and is generaUy

considered the greatest lawyer America has ever

produced."

iii Anne Ambler, married George Fisher,

iv Lucy Ambler, married Daniel Call.

7 Hon. Carter^ Burwell (Nathaniel^ Lewis^

Lewis^, Edward^ was a member of the House of Bur-

gesses for James City County, from 1745 to 1753. His

estate in that County was called 'The Grove," and the

house was built in 1751. He married, in 1737, Lucy,

daughter of Flonorable John Grymes, of Brandon, in

Middlesex County. The notice of their marriage here

given is from the Virginia Gazette. "Mr. Carter Bur-

well was married yesterday to Miss Lucy Grymes,

daughter of the Hon. Jolin Grymes, Esq., one of his
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Majesty's Council; a very agreeable young lady of great
merit and fortune, January 6, 1737- 38."

Carter Burwell died leaving a will which directed

that, during the minority of his son, Nathaniel, then six

years of age, his estate should provide maintenance
at school for five poor children.

Child :

8 i Nathaniel, married, first, Susanna Grymes, sec-

ond, Lucy (Page) Baylor.

8 Col. Nathaniel^ Burwell (Carter^ Nathan-

iel^ Lewis^ Lewis-, Edward^) was born at the Grove, i

James City County, April 15, 1750. He was educated

at William and Mary College, and, in 1773, won the

Botetourt medal for proficiency in mathematics, which,
with another gold medal, was given every four years
to the students by the provision made by Lord Botetourt

when he was Governor of Virginia. This medal was
won by Nathaniel Burwell, the grandfather of Colonel

Nathaniel, in 1772. It is now in possession of George H.

Burwell of Clarke County, Virginia. Colonel Burwell

was the representative from James City County in the

State Convention of 1788. About 1792, he erected Carter

Hall, in Frederick County (now Clarke), where he had
inherited a large estate, naming it after his father and

grandfather, "King Carter." of Corotoman. He re-

moved there and did much to develop the county, build-

ing mills, establishing tanyards, and planting vineyards.
He gave the land for the old chapel, "to be used forever

as a place of public worship and a burying ground."
Each year, on the second Sunday in September, a service

is held in this chapel, in accordance with his wish. His

first wife was Susanna Grymes, and his second wife
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Lucy, daughter of Mann Page (see Page Family, Num-
ber 21), and widow of Colonel George W. Baylor. ''On

September, 1890, the 'old chapel,' of Cunningham Parish,
Clark County, Virginia, celebrated the one hundreth

anniversary of its birth. The land for the chapel was

given by Col. Nathaniel Burwell, of Carter Hall, who
removed from James City county, to Frederick (now

Clark) county, about 1790. The only condition of the

gift was that it should be used as a place of worship
and a burying ground forever. The good people of

this county used to drive for miles in their old-fashioned

carriages over muddy roads to attend these services.

Captain William Nelson, a descendant of Col. Nathaniel

Burwell, delivered the address at the anniversary cele-

bration and has also written a most interesting historical

sketch called 'The Old Chapel.' He says :

" 'Few persons who were brought here as children

can forget the melancholy swing of the old C-spring

carriages, as they rolled through mud axle deep to sit

in a stone-cold church while their saintly mothers sang

the good old hymns and psalms of the collection of that

day. One of the favorite hymns was "Children of the

Heavenly King, As We Journey Let Us Sing'." Col.

Nathaniel Burwell and a large number of his de-

scendants are buried here."

Colonel Nathaniel Burwell died at Carter Hall, March

29, 1814. His children, of whom the author has knowl-

edge, are given below.

Children (by first wife) :

i Nathaniel, born at Carter's Grove, James City

County, Feb. 16, 1779; married Elizabeth

("Pretty Betty"), daughter of Dr. Nathaniel

Nelson, of Yorktown ; vestryman of the
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Church, and a member of the State Legislature;

died at his estate, "Saratoga," Nov. 1, 1849,

without issue.

9 ii Lewis, married Maria Mann Page,

(by second wife) :

10 iii George Harrison, married, first, Isabella Smith

Dixon, second, Agnes Atkinson,

iv William, married Mary Brooke, niece of Chief

Justice Marshall
;
their daughter Anne Corbin

Tayloe Burwell m. Philip Cooke.

V Tayloe, died unmarried,

vi Eliza, married Dr. Janso Hay. •

vii Mary, married Francis Whiting, of "Clay

Hill," Millwood, Clarke County; died in 1881.

viii George Harrison.

9 Dr. Lewis" Burwell (Nathaniel, Carter^,

Nathaniel*, Lewis^, Lewis-, Edward^) "sixth son" of

Colonel Nathaniel and Susanna (Grymes) Burwell, was

born at Carter's Grove, September 26, 1783. He re-

moved to Clarke County, with his father, about 1790.

He studied medicine in Philadelphia, receiving the de-

gree of M. D., and later was several years in Europe,

visiting hospitals. He married, September 26, 1808,

Maria Mann, daughter of Alann and Mary Page, of

Mannsfield. (See Page Family, No. 15.) He had a

large fortune and did not practise his profession. He
built a residence at Prospect Hill, which was destroyed

by fire after his death. He died February 24, 1826.

Children :

i Lewis, died at Saratoga, the estate of Col. Nathaniel

Burwell, in the twenty-first year of his age, from

injuries received in a runaway accident.
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ii Mary Mann, born June 10, 1819; married, Sept. 19,

1838, Francis Meade, of Mountain View
;
died at

Prospect Hill, March 12, 1898.

10 George Harrison" Burwell (Nathaniel^, Car-

ter^, Nathaniel^ Lewis^, Lewis-, Edward^) was born in

Millwood, October 6, 1799. "He was named for his

mother's first husband and for her brother-in-law, Mr.

Harrison, of Brandon." He was graduated at William

and Mary College and at Yale University. His first

wife was Isabella Smith, daughter of John Peyton and

Isabella (Throckmorton) Dixon, of Airville, Gloucester

County. They were married at Airville, March 28, 1820.

Isabella Smith Dixon was born in 1801. 'The memories

of the great beauty and sweetness of her character and

person have been handed down for generations to her

descendants." She died at Carter Hall, May 24, 1830.

The second wife of George Harrison Burwell was Agnes

Atkinson, of Mannsfield, Dinwiddle County.

''Mr. Burwell gave the land upon which Christ Church,

Millwood, now stands. He was of a very generous

nature and contributed largely to the Emancipation So-

ciety for the Emigration of Free Negroes to Liberia.

Mr. Burwell lost a beloved son in the Civil War. He
died at Carter Hall, October 5, 1873."

Children (by first wife) :

i William Taylor, of Carter Hall, born July 2, 1824 ;

died Feb. 15, 1869.

ii Frances Tabb, born March 5, 1827; married, Feb.,

1846, Henry Harrison of Berkeley; died August 6,

1897.

iii John Longbourn, born Oct. 8, 1828
;
a physician ;

died Oct. 24, 1856.
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iv George, born May 4, 1830
;
died without issue.

V George Harrison, married Laura, only child of

Charles H., and Elizabeth A. Lee; she died in

Richmond, April 25, 1883
;

their daughter, Lucy
Mann, married John Page (see Page Family, No.

47).

(by second wife) :

vi Nathaniel, of Carter Plall
;
member of Second Vir-

ginia ''Stonewall Brigade," and died at Aldie, Lou-

doun County, September 5, 18G2, from effects of a

wound received at the second battle of Manassas;
buried the day before his twenty-fourth birthday.

vii Mary Atkinson, born at Carter Hall, Oct. 12, 1835
;

died in 1847.

11 Hon. Robert'^ Burwell (NathanieP, Lewis^\

Lewis^, Edward^) of Isle of Wight County, was a mem-
ber of the Virginia House of Burgesses and of the

Council. His first wife was Sarah, daughter of Thomas
Nelson of Yorktown, and the sister of President Nelson,

of the Council, and of Secretary Nelson. They were

married in 1742. His second wife was Mary Braxton,

of King and Queen County. Honorable Robert Burwell

died in 1779. Plis will leaves his manor, plantation,

lands and mill in Surry to his "beloved son Nathaniel."

He leaves his plantation, "Meadow Quarter," to his son-

in-law. Captain John Page, of Rosewell (see Page Fam-

ily), in lieu of his wife's portion of one thousand

pounds sterling. To his daughter, Frances, he bequeathes
his repeating watch, "with all the trinkets belonging to

it, and her mother's 50 guinea ring ; 50 guineas for a

ring to my daughter Burwell, wife of my son Nathaniel."

A codicil, dated January 18. 1777, is as follows: "Robert
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Burwell, of Isle of Wight, now of King and Queen,
since making will two years ago had married Alary
Braxton. To dear wife, Mary, my chariot and horses

and all household furniture, the use of my plate and

my manor, plantation at Bull Run for her life."

Children (by first wife) :

12 i Xathaniel, of Lancaster County, married

Wormeley.
ii Frances, first wife of Gov. John Page (see

Page Family, No. 6).

12 Nathaniel^' Burwkll (Robert^, Nathaniel\

Lewis^ Lewis-, Edward^) was Lieutenant of Isle of

Wight County, Virginia, in 1772
;
member of the Com-

mittee of Safety, in 1775; and Clerk of Isle of Wight
from 1772 to 1787. He married Wormeley.

Children :

i Robert Carter, built "Lonsf Branch," and died

there about 1817, leaving the estate to his sister,

Sarah.

13 ii Sarah, married Philip Nelson.

13 Sarah' Burwell (XathanieF", Robert^ Na-

thaniel*, Lewis^, Lewis-, EdwardM married Philip Nel-

son. Their daughter,

Mary, born in 1792, married, in 1812, Rt. Rev. William

. IMeade, third Bishop of Virginia.

14' Elizabeth^ Burwell (Nathaniel*, Lewis^,

][.ewis-, EdwardM married William Nelson, President of

the Council. The following is from the \^irginia Gazette:

''Mr. A\^illiam Nelson, eldest son of AFr. Thomas Xclson.

an eminent merchant of York, was married vcsterdav
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sennight at Mrs. Page's, in Gloucester county, to Miss

Elizabeth Burwell, a very genteel, accomplished young

lady of great merit and considerable fortune. February,

1738." Their son was,

Thomas Nelson, Signer of the Declaration of Indepen-

dence.

15 James* Burwell (Lewis", Lewis-, Edward^)
was born in 1G90. He married Mary, daughter of Wil-

Ham Armistead (see Armistead Family, Number 4).

His death occurred in 1718, when he was in his twenty-

ninth year. His will was probated September 15, 1718,

at Yorktown. In it he names his wife, Mary; daughter,

Lucy ; son, Nathaniel Bacon Burwell
;
and sisters, Mrs.

Johanna Bassett, Mrs. Elizabeth Harrison, Mrs. Martha

Armistead, and several others. His executors were his

brothers, Nathaniel and Lewis Burwell and his brother-

in-law, William Bassett.

Children (as named in will) :

i Lucy.
16 ii Nathaniel Bacon, married .

16 Capt. Nathaniel Bacon^ Burwell (James*,

Lewis'^, Lewis-, Edward^) was born in 1749. His wife

was Elizabeth, daughter of Jolui Smith, and sister of

Doctor Augustine Smith, of Richmond County. 'Tn

1790 Nathaniel Bacon Burwell, Jr., and Elizabeth, his

wife, sold Carter's Creek of 1,800 acres, on which he

now lives, and his late father, James Burwell, lived, to

John Tayloe Corbin, of King and Queen County."
Children :

»

i James Bacon.

ii A daughter, married John Reade, son of Robert

Reade, and grandson of Col. George Reade.
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17 Lewis* Burwell (Lewis^, Lewis^ Edward^),
of King's Mill, married Frances, daughter of Edwin
Thacker. He died in 1784.

Children :

18 i Thacker, married Mary Armistead.

18 Thacker^ Burwell (Lewis*, Lewis^, Lewis-,

Edward\) married Mary, daughter of Colonel Gill Armi-

stead (see Armistead Family, Number 58). She died

in 1825. Their son was,

William Armistead, who was the private secretary

of President Thomas Jefferson.
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ADDISON FAMILY

This account of the Addison family has been obtained

from an article appearing in the Baltimore Siiii.

Arms—Ermine on a bend gules three annulets or
;

on a chief azure three leopards' heads of the third.

Crest—-A unicorn's head erased transpierced by an

arrow in bend sinister.

Motto— VkIjius Opemque Fero.

The name of Addison appears in the records of the

Parish of Crosby Ravensworth, Westmoreland, England.
as early as 1570. "Some authorities claim that the Ad-

disons of Westmoreland were originally from Cumber-

land, but as the Westmoreland records of this family

antedate those of the Cumberland branch it seems likelv

that the reverse is true. At Meaburn Town Head, Cros-

by Ravensworth, a monument was erected some years

since which bears this inscription : 'On this spot dwelt

the paternal ancestors of the celebrated Joseph Addison.

His father, Launcelot Addison, was lorn here A. D. 1G32.'

It has also the same coat of arms which is over the

doorway of Litchfield Cathedral, which was restored

by Dean Addison."

William^ Addison lived in Crabstock, in the Parish

of Crosby Ravensworth, Westmoreland County. He had

a son,

1 i Launcelot.

1 Rev. Launcelot- Addison ( WilliamM was

called "Launcelot of the IHll." The name of his wife

is unknown.

619
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Children :

i Anthony, Rector of Abingdon, and Chaplain
to the Duke of Marlborough.
2 ii John, married Mrs. Rebecca Dent.

iii Launcelot, educated at Queen's College, Ox-
ford

; chaplain of the garrison at Dunkirk,

1660-62; Rector of Melston, Wiltshire, 1671;

Prebendary ininor pars alteris, Salisbury Ca-

thedral, 1678
;

installed Dean of Litchfield,

1683
;
installed Arch-Deacon of Coventry, 1684;

author of eleven publications, religions and

biographical ;
died April 20, 1703, aged seventy-

one, and was interred in the west part of

Litchfield Cathedral
;

his widow, youngest

daughter of John Danvers, Esq., of Shakerston,

and widow of Philip Hacket, was buried June

30, 1719, aged eighty-four, four days after the

burial of Joseph Addison, the poet, who was

the second son of the Dean of Litchfield by
his first wife, Jane Gulston. One of their sons

was Gulston Addison, "The President of the

Right Honorable Company's affairs on the coast

of Coromandel and Orissa, and of the Gingee
and Mahratta countries, and Governor of Fort

St. George and Fort St. David." Their son,

the poet, Joseph Addison, married the Countess

of Warwick, of Holland House, "from whose

grandeur it is said he often escaped to the

cofifee house with his friends, Pope and Steel.''

His step-son was Henry Edward, Earl of War-
wick and Holland.

2 CoL. JoHN^ Addison (Launcelot^ William^), sec-
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ond son of Reverend Launcelot Addison and elder broth-

er of the Dean of Litchfield, emigrated to Maryland in

1667. In 1680 a tract of 480 acres of land was granted

to him in that Colony, in St. Mary's County. It was

called "Chesberton." He afterward removed to Charles

County, of which he was Chief Justice, and from 1692,

until his death, was a vestryman of Piscattaway parish.

"He was the leading spirit in old St. John's Parish,

and contributed materially toward the Broad Creek

church, of which his grandson was the beloved rector in

later years." He was a trustee of King WiUiam's School,

which he aided financially. He was placed in command

of the militia of Prince George County, as its Colonel,

March 3, 1696, and, after fighting the Indians with dis-

tinction, was placed in command of Baltimore County,

Upper Potomac District, March 30, 1698. He was a

member of the Privy Council from April 6, 1692, to

1704. He was commissioned custodian of the Great

Seal of the Province, December 9, 1696, which office he

resigned January 2. He married Mrs. Rebecca Dent,

a widow, and daughter of the first clergyman of the

Church of England in the Province of Maryland.

Colonel Addison died during a visit to England in 1705,

leaving a large estate to his only son.

Child:

3 i Thomas, married, first, Elizabeth Tasker, sec-

ond, Eleanore Smith.

3 Col. Thomas* Addison (John^ Launcelot^, Wil-

liam^) "like his father,
* * * became one of the most

important men of his day as a member of the Council

and Colonel of the Colonial militia. He was one of the

visitors of the free schools appointed by the royal gov-
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ernor, and, as proprietor of Addison Manor, dispensed

a hospitality which made Oxon Hill one of the notable

great houses of that day." His first wife, whom he

married when about twenty-two, April 21, 1701, was

Elizabeth, daughter of Honorable Thomas Tasker, mem-
ber of the Council, Justice of the High Provincial Court

and Treasurer of Maryland. (See Tasker Family.) At

the time of her marriage Elizabeth Tasker was about

fifteen years of age. She died February 10, 1706. Thom-
as Addison married, second, June 17, 1709, Eleanore,

second daughter of Colonel Walter Smith, of Patuxent

river. She was aged about nineteen. Her sister, Rebecca,

Smith, married the first Daniel Dulany, as his sec-

ond wife. His first wife was a daughter of Governor

George Plater, and his third Henrietta Maria Lloyd, of

the Lloyd family of Wye, wlio was the widow of Samuel

Chew. The daughter of Daniel Dulnay, who married

Rebecca Smith, had a daughter, Rachel Dulnay, who

married, as her second husband, Reverend Henry Ad-

dison. Her niece, Rebecca Dulnay, became first the wife

of Thomas Addison, Junior, and, second, of Captain
Thomas Hanson. The Dinwiddle Papers state that

Thomas Addison was an Admiral in the British Navy.
Children (by first wife) :

4 i Rebecca, married, first, James Bowles, second,

Hon. Col. George Plater (another account

states that her second husband was Sir Robert

Henley of the Grange, Lord Chancellor of

England, afterward Earl of Xorthington).
G ii Eleanore, married, first, Bennet Lowe, second.

Col. Richard Smith, third. Posthumous Thorn-

ton, fourth. Corbin Lee.
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(by second wife) :

iii Ann, married William Alurdock
;
died in 1753.

7 iv John, married Susanna .

9 V Thomas, married his cousin, Rachel Dulany.

vi Anthony, died unmarried.

-1 Rebecca^ Addison (Thomas^ John^ Launce-

lot-, William^) was born June 3, 1703. She married,

first, James Bowles, brother of General Bowles, of the

British Army, by whom slie had children. Her second

husband was Honorable George Plater, Governor of

Maryland. His estate was Satterly, "famous still more

for the elegance of its interior finish than for its wide-

reaching domain." By him she became the ancestress

of many distino^uished descendants in A'irginia and Mary-

land.

Children (by first husband) :

i Eleanor Bowles m. 1st. Wm. Gooch ; 2n(l.

Warner Lewis,

ii ]\Iary Bowles m. W^m. Armistcad. (See Arm-

istead Family, No. 7.)

iii Jean Bowles.

(By second husband) :

5 iv Rebecca Plater, married Hon. John Tayloe.

5 Rebecca^ Plater (Rebecca^ Addison. Thomas^

•John^ Launcelot-, William^) married Honorable John

Tayloe, of Mount Airy, son of John Tayloe.

Children :

i John Tayloe, married Ann. daughter of Benjamin

Ogle,

ii EMzabeth Tayloe, married Hon. Col. Edward

Lloyd, fourth, of Wye House.

iii Rebecca Plater Tayloe. married Francis Lightfoot
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Lee, brother of Hon. Richard Henry Lee (see Lee

Family, No. 3).

iv Ann Corbin Tayloe, married Major Thomas Lomax.

V Eleanore Tayloe, married Ralph Wormeley, of

Rosegill.

vi Mary Tayloe, married Col. Alann Page (see Page

Family, No. 15).

vii Catherine Tayloe, married Col. Landon Carter,

of Sabine Hall,

viii Jane Tayloe, married Col. Robert Beverley, of

Blandfield (see Beverley Family, No. 3-b).

ix Sarah Tayloe, married Col. William Augustine

Washington, nephew of George Washington (see

Washington Family, No. 5).

6 Eleanore^ Addison (Thomas*, John^, Launce-

lot", William^) married, first, Bennett Lowe; second, Col-

onel Richard Smith, son of Colonel Walter Smith; third.

Posthumous Thornton
;
and fourth, Corbin Lee. An-

other account states that her husband was ''Lowe, of

Lowes, Derby Park, in Derbyshire."

Children (by second husband) :

i Rebecca Addison Smith, married James C. Gittings.

ii Eleanor Addison Smith, married John S. Gittings.

7 JoHN^ Addison (Thomas*, John^ Launcelot-,

William^) was born in 1713. His wife was Susanna

. He died in November, 1764, in Prince George

County or Nev/ York. Their son,

8 i Thomas, married Rebecca Dulany.

8 Thomas*^ Addison (John^, Thomas*, John^

Launcelot^, William^) married Rebecca, daughter of

Walter Dulany, Commissary-General.
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Children :

i John,
ii Eleanor,

iii Anne.

9 Thomas^ Addisox (Thomas*, John"^, Launcelot^,

William^) married Rebecca Dulany. "Thomas Addison

and his wife, Rebecca Dulany, lived in great state at Oxon

Hill, and drove a coach, and four with liveried outriders,

as did the Platers of Satterlee, and others of that day."

After the death of her husband, Rebecca (Dulany) Addi-

son married, second, Captain Thomas Hanson. Thomas
Addison had five children.

Children :

i Walter, a clergyman; married Elizabeth Dulany
Hesselius.

ii John, married Sarah Leitch.

iii Mary, married Samuel Ridout.

iv Thomas, married Henrietta Maria Paca.

V Henry, married Martha Claggett.

The following is from the Baltiinore Sun:

In a memoir of Rev. Walter Dulaney Addison, pub-

lished by his granddaughter, Elizabeth Hesselius Mur-

ray, upon the one hundredth anniversary of his ordina-

tion, the author says : ''The oldest parish record spoken
of is Piscataway, or Broad Creek, parish, called St.

John's, Prince George's county, contiguous to the Po-

tomack and Piscataway creek, dated January 30, 1G93.

It contains the name of John Addison, Privy Councilor.

His grandson Henry was rector of St. John's for 30 years.

He was educated at Oxford and in the corner of a

quaint old portrait of him in the possession of the family

is a scroll containing the picture of his college. His
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parisli would have no other rector during his hfe. A
later descendant, Walter Dulaney Addison, became rec-

tor in the year 1801. The old Bible and prayer book

used by Rev. Henry Addison in this church are still pre-

served in the family. In them is written: 'Presented to

me l.'V the honored Lady, my Mother.'
" His mother

was Eleanore Smith, daughter of Col. AValter Smith.

Like so many notable old mansions which stood as

monuments to the stately life of the Colonial period. Oxon
Hill was burned to the ground a few years ago. In the

Baltimore Sun of February 7, 189-5, we find the follow-

ing: "Another one of Maryland's historic mansions has

been destroyed. The spacious dwelling on Oxon Hill,

overlooking the Potomac, opposite Alexandria, caught fire

last night and was left a wreck by the flames at day-

break this morning. This mansion has long been one of

the landmarks of the neighborhocKl of Washington, and

with ]\Iount \^ernon, Belvoir and Carlisle House made

up the noted mansions of the neighborhood in Colonial

days."

Among the many well-known persons who descend

from Col. John Addison the first, of Maryland, are Col.

Edward Lloyd, seventh, of Wye House, and his wife;

ex-Gov. Henry Lloyd and Henry Lloyd, Jr. ;
Miss Kate

Lloyd. Miss Mary Lloyd, Mr. Upshur Lloyd and Mr.

Daniel Lloyd, all of Cambridge, ]\Id.
;
ex-Gov. and Mrs.

Lloyd Lowndes, Dr. Charles Lowndes, of the Anchorage;
Mrs. Elizabeth Tayloe Lowndes Johnson, ]\Irs. Charles

Pennington, Miss Elizabeth Lloyd Pennington, Mr. Josias

Pennington. ]\Irs. John R. ]\Iagruder, Air. Peter H. Mag-
ruder, Mi'^scs Magruder, Airs. Annie King Steele Bar-

tow (Airs. J. F. Bartow), Airs. Charlton Morgan, Prof.

Thomas Alorgan ;
Air. Edward Lloyd, United States
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Navy; Mrs. C. Howard Lloyd, Mr. J. Eager Lloyd, Mr.

W. Blair Lloyd, Mr. DeCourcey Lloyd, Mrs. Harry
Oliver; Mrs. Roger Upton, of Massachusetts; Mrs. David

Trimble, of Wye Heights, Talbot county, ^Maryland; Dr.

L R. Trimble, Mrs. Edward Shippen. Mr. J. E. Howard

Post, LIr. Lloyd Parker Shippen; Mrs. Charles S. Wind-

er, of Talbot county, Maryland ;
Mr. Charles S. Winder,

Mrs. Ellicott Fisher, Mrs. Thomas AL Chatard.

Miss Elizabeth Hesselius Murray, of West River; Mrs.

Jeanie Garner Lyles and the Misses Lyles, of Harwood,
Anne Arundel county ;

Mrs. Alfred Batre. of Alabama ;

Mrs. Daniel C. Woods, Mr. Charles T. Crane, Mr. Ed-

ward Lloyd Winder
; the Goldsboroughs, of Horn Point,

Dorchester county, Md.
;
Mr. Charles Goldsborough, Mr.

W^illiam F. Goldsborough, Dr. Frank C. Goldsborough,
Mr. Robert Goldsborough and Miss Lillian Goldsborough,
Mrs. Alary Goldsborough Purnell, Miss Ellen Lloyd

Goldsborough, Mr. Murray Lloyd Goldsborough, Mrs.

Sullivan Pitts, Mrs. John Bergland. Mrs. Felix R. Sul-

livan, Mrs. J. Thruston Manning, Mrs. William Hoff,

Mrs. James W'illiams, Mrs. Tilghman Owen, Mr. Ken-

nedy Owen, Mr. Buchanan Owen, the Misses Alice and

Letitia Buchanan, Mrs. Nannie Lloyd Meiere, Mr. Mc-

Kean ]\Ieiere, Miss Ellen Lloyd Meiere, Mrs. Josephine

Nicholson Tilton ; Capt. McLean Tilton, United States

Marine Corps; Mrs. Clara Tilton Emory, Mr. Mead

Emory, Miss Elizabeth Lloyd Tilton, Mrs. Robert A.

Dobbin, Mrs. Fred Hoppin Howland, Dr. George Dob-

bin, Mr. Robert A. Dobbin, Jr., Mrs. William Gilmor.

Francis Kev Gilmor. Mr. John Gilmor. Mr. William Gil-

mor, Mrs. Annie Llovd Stirling Pcnniman. Dr. Joseph

Nicholson Henry, of New York; Mrs. Franklin IT. Bcck-

with. Miss Elizabeth Llovd Pennington, Mr. McHenry
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Howard, Mrs. John E. Howard, Col. James Howard,
Mr. Charles Howard, Misses Elizabeth, May and Fran-

ces Howard, Mrs. Lydia Howard Deford, Miss Nannie

H. Howard, Mr. Francis Key Howard, Mr. Charles M.

Howard, Mrs. Alice Key Trenor Brown, Mrs. Ed-

ward Wharton, of Philadelphia; Mrs. Samuel Humes

Kerfoot, of Chicago; Air. Thomas Lee Shippen and Dr.

Charles Shippen, of Petersburg, Va.
;
Mr. Shippen Wal-

lace, of New Jersey; Mrs. William Reynolds, and Miss

Norice Reynolds of Baltimore.

In addition to these are certain branches of the follow-

ing families : Nicholson, Magruder, Henry, Emory, Trim-

ble, Tyson, Weld, Ghieslings, Harwood, Smith, West,

Key, Manning, Hoff, Williams, Brice, Tarleton, Locke,

the Wormeleys, of Rosegill ;
the Bushrod Washingtons,

the Lees, Pages, Beverleys, Tayloes, Lomaxes and others,

of Virginia.
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The following account of the Tasker Family is taken

from the Dinwiddle Papers, X'olume 1, page 14:

The Tasker family of Maryland is an old and honor-

able one, and, by frequent inter-marriages, is connected

with many distinguished families of America and Eng-
land.

Captain Thomas^ Tasker had a grant of land in

Calvert County, Maryland, in 1682. He was treasurer

of the Province and a man of wealth and inlluence.

There is a family tradition that he married a near relative

of Lord Baltimore. He died in iG'Ji).

Children :

1 i John, married Eleanor Brooke.

ii Elizabeth, married Hon. Thomas Addison (see

Addison Family, No. 3).

2 iii Benjamin, b. lf)!)0; d. 17()S; married Anne

Bladen.

1 John- Tasker (Thomas') married Eleanor,

daughter of Honorable Thomas Brooke of De la Brooke

Manor, grandson of Robert lirooke, and Mary, his wife,

•daughter of Roger Mainwaring. D. 1)., Bishoj) of St.

David's (see Brooke h^amily, Number 2).

Son:

i Thomas, married Clara, daughter of Major .\icholas

Sewall, a grandson of Jane. Lady lialiimorc.

2 Hon. Benjamin- Tasker (ThomasM wa-- Trcsi-

C31
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(lent of the Council of Maryland for thirty-two years,

and, as such, was Acting Governor of the Province from

the death of Governor Ogle, ]\Iay o, 17."3 'i, until the ar-

rival of Governor Horatio Sharp, August 10, 1753. He
and Charles Carroll (Signers of the Declaration of In-

dependence ) , were the delegates from Providence to the

famous Albany Convention of 175+, of which I Bancroft

writes that "America had never before seen such an as-

sembly." Benjamin Tasker married Anne, daughter of

Honorable W'illiam lUaden. The tomb of Governor

Benjamin Tasker is at Annapolis. Maryland. It bears the

Tasker and B'aden arms impaled.

Children :

i Benjamin.
ii Rebecca, married Daniel Dulaney.

iii Anne, married Gov. Samuel r)gle.

iv Elizabeth, marrierl Christopher Lowmes.

v Frances, married Robert Carter, the Councillor, son

of Robert Carter, of Nomini, and grandson of Robert

Carter of Corotoman, known as "King Carter," who
married Priscilla Bladen.
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PRESTON FAMILY

The account here given of the Preston family is taken

from an article which appeared in the Baltimore Sun,
and from a Sketch of the Preston Family by John Mason
Brown.

"Arms of Preston of Flashy Hall, County York, Eng-
land :

''Arms—Argent, two bars on a canton of the last

gules, a cinque foil or.

"Crest—On a ruined tower argent a falcon rising of the

same beaked, legged and belled or.

"Motto—Si dieu veult."

JOHN^ Preston, the first of the family who came to

America, was born in Ireland, in the city of Londonderry.
His father and three uncles were Englishmen who served

under King William, and aided in the defence of Lon-

donderry when that city was besieged by King James.
He was a Protestant of the Presbyterian denomination,

and was a man of strong mind and correct principles.

He married Elizabeth Patton, a sister of Colonel James

Patton, of Donegal, with whom he removed to \'irginia

in 1740. "Mrs. Letitia Floyd, a daughter of Col. Wil-

liam Preston, only son of John Preston, the emigrant,

by his wife, Elizabeth Patton, many years ago wrote an

account of the Preston family, drawn fr(im her own

recollections and the traditions of the family. In these

memoirs she says her great-uncle. Col. James Patton,

brother of her grandmother, Elizabeth, had four sisters,

two of whom married men of 'quality' in the Old Coun-

637
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try. The youngest sister, Elizabeth, while crossing the

river Shannon in a boat, had, as a fellow-companion a

young man of very striking appearance, who proved to

be the shipmaster of Dublin. John Preston. This casual

acquaintance led eventually to a very romantic run-away
match. From this apparently heedless match has sprung
a most unusually long line of distinguished men and

women, who have left their impress for good in all parts

of the South and West.''

Colonel Patton had, for some years, commanded a

merchant ship, and was a man of property, enterprise

and influence. He obtained an order of Council from

the Governor of Virginia, under which there were ap-

propriated to himself and his associates one hundred and

twenty thousand acres of the best lands lying above the

Blue Ridge in that Colony, several valuable tracts of land

which fell to the share of his descendants. He was

killed by Indians at Smithfield, Virginia, in the year 1753.

Colonel Patton left two daughters, one of whom married

Captain William Thompson, and the other Colonel John
Buchanan. From the last-named are descended John

Floyd, late member of Congress and Governor of Vir-

ginia ; James D. Breckinridge, of Louisville, Kentucky,
late member of Congress, and the late Colonel W. P.

Anderson, of the United States Army.

John Preston, on the passage from Ireland, lost part of

his property in a storm. Uiider the order of Council,

before mentioned, he obtained a valuable tract of land

called "Robinson's," which descended to his son. and,

until recently, remained in the family. John Preston's

first residence in A'irginia was at Spring Hill, in Au-

gusta County, but before the year 1743. he purchased,

and. with his family, settled upon a tract of land ad-
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joining Staunton, on the north side of that town. He
died soon after and was buried at the Tinkling Spring

Meeting House. He left a widow and five children.

Mrs. Preston exhibited great energy and strength of

character, continuing to reside upon and manage the

plantation they had purchased until her children were

all educated and married. She then removed to Green-

field, the seat of her son, Colonel William Preston, where

she died in 177G, aged seventy-six years.

Children :

i Letitia, born about 1T28; married Col. Robert

Breckinridge, who died in 1??3; died in 1708,

aged seventy.

William, married Susanna Smith.

^Margaret, married Rev. John Brown.

Ann, married John or Francis Smith.

i\Iary, married Benjamin Howard.

1 Col. William- Preston (JohnM was the only

son of his parents. He was born in 1729. He married

Susanna Smith, and died in 1783.

Children (order of birth unknown) :

i Letitia, married Floyd ; her son. John

B. Floyd, was Governor of Virginia, 1S50-3

(see No. 9).

James Patton, married Ann Taylor.

Francis, married Sarah Campbell.

Susanna, married Nathaniel Hart.

William, married Caroline Hancock.

Thomas Lewis, married Fdmonia Randolph.

2 Gov. James Patto.n-'' Preston (William-. JohnM

was born in Smithficld. \'ir<;inia. June '.M . 17: I. lie was

1
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a graduate of William and Mary College. In 1813 he

was a Colonel in the United States Army. He repre-

sented Montgomery County, where he resided, in the Vir-

ginia Legislature, served in the War of 1812, and was

wounded at the battle of Chrystler's Field, which per-

manently crippled him, and was promoted for gallantry.

He was Governor of Virginia from 1816 to 1819, and

served two terms as State Senator. He was the post-

master of Richmond for many years, and Preston Coun-

ty, Virginia, was named for him. Governor James Pat-

ton Preston married Ann, daughter of Robert Taylor, of

Norfolk, and his wife, Sally Curie Ballard. They were

married June 23, 1801. She died June 8, 1861, aged

eighty-four.

Children:

Sarah Ballard, born in May, 1804.

William Ballard, married Lucinda Staples

Redd.

Robert Taylor, married Mary Hart.

James Francis, married Sarah Caperton.

Virginia Ann, born in 1815.

Susanna Edmonia, born in 1818.

Catharine Jane Grace, born in 1821
; married,

Nov. 27, 1845, George A. Gilmer.

3 Hon. William Ballard* Preston (James Pat-

ton^, William-, John^) was born November 29, 1805. He
was a member of Congress, 1847-49, and Secretary of

the Xavy in the administration of President Taylor, 1849-

50. He was a Confederate States senator. He married

Lucinda Staples Redd, November 28, 1839, and died in

1862.
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Children :

i Waller Redd, married, in 18G7, Harriet Means.

4 ii Ann Taylor, married Walter Coles.

4 Ann Taylor^ Preston (William Ballard*, James
Patton^, William-, John^) married Walter Coles in 1804.

Children :

i Lucy Coles,

ii Walter Coles.

iii Nannie Preston CoVs, twin sister of Walter.

iv James Patton Coles.

5 V Lucinda Redd Coles, married William R. Beale.

5 Lucinda Redd^' Coles (Ann Taylor^ Preston,

William Ballard^ James Patton^ William-. John^) mar-

ried, in 1866, William R. Beale.

Children :

i Ballard Preston Beale.

ii Ann Preston Radford Beale.

iii Jane Grace Beale.

iv Mary Rezin Preston Beale, died in ls(il.

6 Gen. Robert Taylor* Preston (James Patton^

William-. John^) was born in 1809. He married Mary

daughter of Benjamin Hart, of Hartwood. South Caro-

lina, January 21. 18oo.

Children :

7 i \'irginia Ann Emily, married Robert Stork

Means,

ii Benjamin Hart, born at Smithficld, Montgom-

ery Co., \'a. ;
(lied in 1S.*)1.

iii lames Pattnn.
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7 Virginia Ann Emily^ Preston (Robert Tay-
lor"*, James Patton^, William-, John^) married Robert

Stork Aleans, M. D., son of Governor John Hugh Means
of South Carolina. They were married August 26, 1856.

Robert Stork ^Nleans was a ^lajor in the Confederate

Army, and was wounded at the Battle of South Moun-
tain. Pie received the rank of Colonel for his bravery.

Pie died in 1874.

Children :

i Robert Preston ]\Ieans.

ii Sally Stork ]\Ieans.

iii ]\Iary Hart ]\Ieans.

iv John Hugh Aleans.

V Courtney Hanson Means.

8 James Francis* Preston (James Patton^, Wil-

liam", John^) was born in 1813. He married, in 1851,

Sarah A., daughter of Hugh Caperton. James Francis

Preston died in January, 1861.

Children :

i Hugh Caperton.
ii W'illiam Ballard,

iii James Francis, born April 9, 1860.

9 Gen. Francis^ Preston (William-, John^) mar-

ried Sarah, only daughter of General William and Eliza-

beth (Henry) Campbell. General Campbell was ''the

hero of King's Mountain." The mother of Sarah Camp-
bell was the sister of Patrick Henry.

Children:

i William C, senator from South Carolina,

ii Eliza, married Gen. Carrington, of Halifax

Co., Va.
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10 iii Susanna, married Gov. James McDowell, of

Va.

13 iv Ann Sophonisha, married Rev. Robert J.

Breckinridge (see Number 15).

V Sarah Buchan, married her cousin, John B.

Floyd, Governor of Va.

vi Charles Campbell,

vii Maria, married John H. Preston,

viii John Smith, born at the salt works, near

Abingdon, Va., April 20, 1809; graduated at

Hampden-Sidney, B. A., in 1824; studied law

at Harvard
; married, in 1830, Catherine, daugh-

ter of Maj.-Gen. Wade Hampden, Sr., at that

time the wealthiest planter in the United States
;

removed to Columbia, S. C, and later to

Louisiana; on the staff of Gen. Beauregard in

the first battle of Bull Run, in 18G1, and re-

ceived the rank of Brigadier-General ;
noted for

his oratory and delivered last public address

at the unveiling of the Confederate monument

at Columbia, S. C.
;
died there May 1, 1881.

ix Margaret, married Gen. Wade Hampton, Jr.,

Gov. of South Carolina and U. S. Senator.

10 Susanna'^ Preston (Francis^ William'-. John')

married Governor James McDowell, of Virginia. Had a

daughter.

11 i Elizabeth McDowell, married Thomas Hart

Preston Benton.

11 Elizabeth^ McDowell (Susanna^ Preston,

Francis^ William^ John') married Thomas Hart Pres-

ton Benton, who was born near Hillsborough, North
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Carolina, March 14, 1782. He was the son of Jesse and

Ann Gooch Benton. He was an aid-de-camp to General

Andrew Jackson in the War of 1812, and, later, during
President Jackson's administration, became one of the

most prominent men in the United States, being Senator

from Missouri for many years.

Children :

i Jessie Benton, married Ma j.-Gen. John C. Fre-

mont. Republican candidate for the Presidency
and Governor of Arizona,

ii Sarah Benton, married Richard T. Jacobs,

Lieut.-Gov. of Ky.
12 iii Susan V. Benton, married Baron Souldree

Boilleau.

12 Susan V.^ Benton (Elizabeth^ ^IcDowell,

Susanna* Preston, Francis^, William-, John^) married

Baron Souldree Boilleau, ^linister to Peru from France.

Child :

i Philip Boilleau. an artist of Baltimore, who has

painted some charming portraits of the noted beauties

of that city.

13 Ann Sophonisha'^ Preston (Francis^ Wil-

liam-, John^) married Reverend Robert Jefferson Breck-

inridge, in 1823. She died December 21, 1844. His

second wife was her cousin, Mrs. Virginia (Hart) Shel-

by (see Number 15).

Children :

i Francis Preston Breckinridge,

ii Louisiana Hart Breckinridge,

iii Mary Cabell Breckinridge,

iv John Breckinridge.
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V Sarah Breckinridge.
vi Robert Jefferson Breckinridge.
vii Alarie Lettice Breckinridge,
viii William Campbell Breckinridge.
ix Soplionisha Breckinridge.
X Joseph Cabell Breckinridge.
xi Charles Henry Breckinridge.

"One of the most noted of the great-great-grandchil-
dren of John Preston was the Honorable John C. Breck-

inridge, member of Congress and United States Senator

from Kentucky, Vice President of the United States."

He was Major-General and Secretary of War of the

Confederate States.

William §\P. Breckinridge was a Colonel in the Con-

federate Army.

14 Susanna- Preston (William-, John^) married

Captain Nathaniel Plart, a pioneer of Kentucky.
Children (order of birth unknown) :

15 i Virginia Hart, married, first, Alfred Shelby,

second. Rev. Robert J. Breckinridge (see Num-
ber 13).

16 ii Louisiana Hart, married Gibson.

17 iii Chenoe Hart, married John Smith.

15 Virginia* Hart (Susanna^ Preston. William-,

John^) married, first, Alfred Shelby, son of Governor

Isaac Shelby, and, second. Reverend Robert J. lireckin-

ridge. She was his second wife. (See Number 13.)

**Not the least among the many distinguished descend-

ants of John and Elizabeth (Patton) Preston may be

mentioned the Rev. Robert Jefiferson Breckinridge.

seventh child of John (son of Robert, son of Alexander.
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the immigrant) and ]\Iary Hopkins (Cabell) Breckin-

ridge. Robert Jefferson Breckinridge was born at Ca-

bell's Dale, Ky., on ]\Iarch 8, 1800. He was president

of Jeft'erson College, Pennsylvania, 1845-47
;
was made

pastor of Lexington, Ky. ;
was professor of theology at

Danville, Ky. Rev. Robert J. Breckinridge was pro-

nounced one of the most able, as well as one of the most

voluminous writers of his day. He was styled the Na-

poleon of his church on account of his learning, eloquence

and ability. He married, first, in 1823, Ann Sophonisha,

daughter of Gen. Francis Preston, of Abingdon, Ya.., by
his wife, Sarah Campbell, and niece of Patrick Henry.
^ >f: •<< Rev. Robert J. Breckinridge married, second,

April 1, 18-lT, ]\Irs. \'irginia Shelby (first cousin of his

wife), widow of Alfred, son of Gov. Isaac Shelby and

daughter of Nathaniel Hart by his wife, Susanna Pres-

ton, sister of Gen. Francis Preston and son of Nathaniel

Hart, Sr.. the Kentucky pioneer, born in Hanover county,

A'irginia, in 1731:.''' Reverend Robert J. Breckinridge

married, third, in 1868, ]^Irs. ^largaret (Faulkner)

Wliite, by whom he had no issue.

Children (by second husband) :

i \'irginia Hart Breckinridge,

ii Nathaniel Hart Breckinridge.

iii John Robert Breckinridge.

16 LouisiAXA* Hart (Susanna^ Preston, William-,

John^) married Gibson, of Kentucky.
Children :

i Randall Lee Gibson, Brig.-Gen. in Confederate Army,
and member of Congress from La.

ii Hart Gibson, member of the Kentucky Legislature,

iii \Mlliam Preston Gibson, member of the Louisiana
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Legislature; Confederate soldier; died in the Civil

War.

iv Claude Gibson, Confederate soldier; died in the

Civil War.
V Tobias Gibson, Confederate soldier.

vi McKinley Gibson, Confederate soldier.

17 Chenge"* Hart (Susanna^ Preston, William-,

John^) was the first v^hite child born in Kentucky. The

name, "Chenoe," is the Indian word for Kentucky. She

married John Smith, the son of Francis Smith, who re-

moved from Virginia to Kentucky, by his wife, Ann

Preston, daughter of the emigrant. (See Number 25.)

Child:

18 i William Preston Smith, took the name of Pres-

ton by law
; married, Hebe Carter Grayson.

18 William^ Prestox (Chenoe"^ Hart, Susanna^

Preston, William-, John^) of Henderson County, Ken-

tucky, took the name of Preston by law. He married, in

1833, Hebe Carter Grayson, who was born January 8,

1814. After the death of her husband, February 1?,

1850, Mrs. Preston married, second, her cousin, William

Peartree Smith, of Henderson, Kentucky, October 31,

1852.

Child :

i Sophonisha G., born Oct. 27, 1833; married Carter

Harrison.

19 Major William^ Preston (William-, JohnM
married Caroline, daughter of Colonel George Hancock,

of Fotheringay, X^irginia, representative in the fourth

Congress of the United States.
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Child :

i William, born near Louisville, Ky., Oct. 16, 1816;

educated at St. Joseph's College, Bardstown, Ky., and

at Yale; graduated at Harvard, with degree of B. A.,

in 1838
;
in 1840 married Margaret Howard, daughter

of Robert Wickliffe, of Lexington, Ky. ;
Lieut.-Col.

of Fourth Ky. Volunteers in the Alexican War; mem-
ber of Convention to frame a new constitution for

Ky., in 1849
; representative to Thirty-second Con-

gress from Ky. ; appointed U. S. Alinister to Spain

by President Pierce in 1851; Maj.-Gen. in Confed-

erate army.

20 Major Thomas Lewis-''^ Preston (William",

John^) married Edmonia, daughter of Honorable Ed-

mund Randolph, Secretary of State in Washington's
cabinet.

Children :

21 i John Thomas Lewis, married, first, Sara Lyle

Caruthers, second, Margaret Jenkins,

ii EHzabeth Randolph, married William Armi-

stead Cocke (see Armistead Family, No. 10).

21 John Thomas Lewis* Preston (Thomas

Lewis^, William-, John^j was born in Lexington, Vir-

ginia, April 25, 1811. "Jo^ii^ Thomas Smith had the

honor of being the founder of the Virginia Military In-

stitute, known as the V. AL I., which has been of such

inestimable value to the State. We are told that Mr.

John Thomas Patton. in 1836, conceived the idea of sub-

stituting for the company of soldiers who guarded the

arsenal a company of cadets, who in addition to the

duties of an armed guard for the arsenal, should pursue
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a course of scientific and military studies. This idea

materialized three years later—March, 1839—in the

Military Institute of Virginia, of which John Thomas
Lewis Preston and Gen. Francis H. Smith constituted

the entire faculty from 1839-42. In April, 18G1, at the

call of the State, the corps of cadets marched for Rich-

mond under command of- Major T. J. Jackson, of whose

staff John Thomas Lewis Preston was a member, with

rank of colonel. In 1862 the Institute was re-opened as

a training school to supply skilled and educated officers

for the Confederate Army. In 1864 all the institutional

buildings were burned by order of Gen. David Hunter.

When the Virginia Military Institute re-opened, in Octo-

ber, 1865, Col. John Thomas Lewis Preston resumed his

professional duties." Colonel Preston married, first,

August 2, 1832, Sara Lyle, daughter of William and

Phoebe (Alexander) Caruthers, of Lexington. \'irginia,

by whom he had five sons and three daughters. He

married, second, August 4, 1857, Margaret, daughter of

George Jenkins. "Margaret Jenkins Preston born in

Philadelphia, May 24, 1820, * =^ * attained a wide-

spread literary reputation. Her first stories appeared

in Sartain's Magazine in 1847. During the Civil War

she became especially endeared to all women of the

South through her beautiful and touching poems. Of

these, 'Beechenbrook' told with an exquisite simplicity

and pathos, is the most appealing, because it is such :i

sad but true picture of the heart-lircaking tragedies of

that period."

Children (by first wife) :

Five sons and three daughters.

(by second wife) :

i George Jenkins, graduate of Washington and Lee



650 Seldens of Virginia

University, in 1879, and of the University of Penn-

sylvania in 1883
;
a physician and distinguished nerve

speciahst of Baltimore,

ii Herbert Rush, a lawyer of Baltimore.

22 Margaret- Preston (John^) second daughter
of John Preston, the emigrant, was born in Ireland in

1730. She married, about 1753, Reverend John Brown,
a Presbyterian minister, and a licentiate of New Castle

Presbytery, who was a graduate of Nassau Hall, Prince-

ton, in 1749. In 1753 he was made the minister of Tim-

ber Ridge church. He is said to have been a man of in-

tellect and was held in much esteem by his father-in-law,

John Preston. He continued his ministry during the

Indian warfare, after settling at New Providence, Rock-

bridge County, Virginia, where he was a minister for

forty years. In 1796 he resigned his charge and removed

to Kentucky to be with his children, where he died in

1803, aged seventy-five. IMargaret (Preston) Brown
died in Kentucky in 1802.

Children :

i Elizabeth Brown, married Rev. Thomas B.

Craighuae, of Tennessee.

23 ii John Brown, married ^largaretta Mason.

iii William Brown, educated at Princeton
;

a

physician ;
died in South Carolina,

iv Mary Brown, married Dr. Alexander Hum-

phrey,

v James Brown, born near Staunton, Va., Sept.

11, 1766
; graduate of Washington College ;

practised law at Frankfort, Ky. ;
in 1791 led

a company of sharpshooters against the In-

dians
; appointed by President Jefiferson Secre-
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tary of the Territory of Louisiana, after it was

acquired by the government ;
made Judge in

1804; elected to the U. S. Senate in 1812, and

resigned this to accept appointment as U. S.

Minister to France, holding that office until

1829
;
married Ann Hart, sister of Mrs. Henry

Clay ;
died at Philadelphia, April 7, 1833.

vi Samuel Brown, an eminent physician and profes-

sor in the Medical School of Transylvania.
vii Preston Brown, a physician.

23 Hon. John^ Brown (Margaret- Preston, John^)
was born at Staunton, Virginia, September 12, 1757.

He was a student at Princeton when the college was at-

tacked by the British, and afterward served as a sol-

dier in the Continental /\rmy. He was a lawyer and

commenced the practice of his profession at Frankfort,

Kentucky. Fie married Alargaretta Mason. In 1787 he

was elected to the Virginia Legislature from a district of

Kentucky, and was a delegate to the Continental Con-

gress from that year to 1789. He was elected Representa-

tive to the first Congress of the United States, and served

until 1792, when he was elected United States Senator.

He died in Frankfort, August 28, 1837.

Child :

24 i John Mason, married .

24 John Mason* Brown (John\ Margaret- Pres-

ton, John^) lived among the Indian tribes for several

years, making a study of their dialects, and contributing

valuable articles to the Encyclopaedia Britannica. He
was an eminent scholar and linguist, being a master of

classic and modern languages. Fie died at Louisville.

Kentucky, January 29, 1890.
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Child :

i Benjamin Gratz, born in Lexington, Ky., May 28,

1826
;
Senator from Kentucky, in 1852, and from Mis-

souri, in 18G3
;
candidate for the Vice-Presidency on

ticket with Horace Greeley; Governor of Missouri in

1871; served in the Confederate army; died in 1885.

25 Ann- Preston (John^) married Francis Smith,

Esquire, of Virginia, who removed to Kentucky. John
Mason Brown states that her husband was John Smith.

Ann (Preston) Smith died in Kentucky, in 1813, aged

seventy-four years.

Child :

i John Smith, married Chenoe Hart (see Number 17).

The following line of descent has not been linked with

the foregoing, but Colonel John Preston was of the same

family.

CoL. JoHN^ Preston married Mary Radford. Their

son,

1 i William Radford, married Elizabeth Cabell.

1 William Radford- Preston (John^) was the

eldest son of Colonel John Preston by his wife, Mary
Radford. He married Elizabeth Cabell, December 23,

1819. They removed to ^Missouri.

Children :

i Landonia.

2 ii Paulina, married Dr. William Talley.

iii Andrew.

iv Aurinthia, married Joseph A. Talley, broth-

er of Dr. William Talley, her sister's husband.

3 V Marion Radford, married Samuel Davis Wil-

liamson.
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vi Washawtan, named for an Indian chief,

vii Landon.

viii Elizabeth, married Randoli)h.
ix Isadore.

X Thomas.

xi Rebecca, married Dr. Aleux, of Mississippi.

2 Paulina^ Preston (W'ilHam Radford', John')
married Doctor WilHam Talley, son of WilHam Talley

by his wife, Fanny Daniel, born in 177G, daughter of

William Daniel, an Ensign in the Revolutionarv Army,
and sister of Judge William Daniel. Doctor William

Talley removed from Cumberland County, \'irginia, to

Missouri.

Children :

i William Talley, a physician ;
married liis cousin,

Lucy Talley.

ii Joseph Talley.

3 Marion Radford^ Preston (William Radford-.

John^) married Samuel Davis Williamson, of X'irginia.

Children :

i Rose Judith W^illiamson, married, first. S. .">. Kirk,

second, Capt. William Cash, of Washington, I). C.

ii William Preston Williamson.

iii Landon Cabell Williamson. l)orn in ^><o'^: president

of the Young ]\ren's Christian Association, of Wash-

ington ; president of General Afasonic Relief Associa-

tion of the U. S. and Canada, and Grand Master of

Masons of the District of Columbia ; married Amelia

Sheppard A'an Vlick. of a distinguished New York

family.

iv Samuel Stuart Williams )n. married Marv Pcrrv.
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V Marion Radford Williamson, married Dr. Franklin

Castle, of Philadelphia. Pa.

Mary Massie, great-great-granddaughter of John Pres-

ton, married John Hampden Pleasants, a well-known Vir-

ginia journalist, who died in 1846.

Children :

i James Pleasants, married his cousin, Caroline

Massie.

1 ii Ann Eliza Pleasants, married Douglas H. Gor-

don.

1 Ann Eliza- Pleasants (Mary^ Massie, great-

great-granddaughter of John Preston) married Douglas
H. Gordon, of Baltimore.

Children :

i Basil Gordon, married Lelia IMontague.
ii Alary Gordon, married De Coursey Thom.

iii Ann Gordon, married Lieut. Lovell, U. S. Navy,
iv Douglas H. Gordon, married Elizabeth Clark of

Newport News, Va.

V Rose Gordon, married Triplett Haxall, of Virginia.

Honorable Alontgomery Blair, Postmaster in Presi-

dent Lincoln's cabinet, was the great-great-grandson of

John Preston, as were also James Blair, and Francis P.

Blair, United States Senator from Missouri, and a Major-
General in the Union Army. Elizabeth Blair married

Admiral Lee, of the United States Navy. Ellen Preston

married James W. Sheffey. Mary Sheffey married Pro-

fessor W. E. Peters, of the University of Virginia.
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BAYLOR FAAIILY

The foliovving is taken from the Dinwiddie i'apers,

Volume II, page 104:

The Baylors of Virginia are of Hungarian extraction

and the name is still numerously represented in and

about Pesth. One of the family migrated to England,

and settled in Devonshire, where he amassed a fortune.

His son, John Baylor, ship-owner and merchant, migrated

to Virginia about 1(350, accompanied by his son, John,

a minor
;
settled in Gloucester County, and secured large

grants of land. He married, in 1098, Lucy Todd O'Brien.

Their sole issue was Colonel John Baylor, born at W'alk-

erton, King and Queen County, May 12, 1705. He was

sent to England to be educated, first at Putney Grammar

School, and thence to Cains College, Cambridge. Col-

onel Baylor moved in IT'^ii to New Market, in what is

now Caroline County, and married, in 1744, Lucy Walk-

er. Pier sister, Courtney, married John Norton, of Lon-

don, Merchant. John Baylor occupied several positions

of trust and prominence ;
said to have secured the friend-

ship of Sir William Francis "''^ '^ =^ The second son of

Colonel John Baylor was Major George Baylor, aide

to Washington at the Battle of Trenton. George liaykir

was a member of the House of Burgesses from Orange

County, 1758.

From the Virginia Historical Magazine. X'olume (5,

page 197:

John Baylor, born 1050, emigrated to Virginia with his

brother Robert, and was followed l)y their aged father,

also named John.

C57
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Colonel John Baylor, son of John and Lucy Baylor,

was born May 12, 1705, and was, perhaps, the leader in

the period before the Revolutionary War in importing

and breeding thoroughbred horses. Among these were

''Sober John," and the famous "Fearnaught," the bill of

sale of whose purchase is in the papers at "New Market,"

and is stated to be for 1,000 guineas. After Colonel

Baylor's death, nearly a hundred thoroughbred or

"blooded" horses, as they were then called, were sold by

his executors. He married, at Yorktown, Virginia, Jan-

uary 2, 1744, Frances, daughter of Jacob Walker. He

died April 16, 1772. His children were Courtney, who,

like her sisters, was educated in England, at Croydon,

Kent, married Jasper Clayton, of Gloucester County, and

had four children, Arthur, Baylor, ; and Eliza;

Lucy, who married John Armistead (see Armistead

Family, No. 14) ; Frances, who married Nicholson ;

Elizabeth, who died unmarried; John; George; Walker,

and Robert.
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FONTAINE FAMILY

Arms: D'azur an chevron, ace. en chef de deux trctle

et en p. d'une gerbe, le tout d'or.

Jacques (or John)^ de la Fontaine was born in the

Province of Maine, France, near the border of Nor-

mandie, in 1500. As soon as he could bear arms his

father secured for him a commission in tlie household

of King Francis I, which commission he held during the

reigns of Francis I, Henry II, Francis II, and until 1562,

when he resigned. Both Jacques and his father had

early become converts to Protestantism, and during the

troublous times which followed its spread, they were

protected by the high position the former held at Court,

in what was then called ''Les Ordonnances du Roi."

[Memoirs of a Huguenot Family, by Ann Maury pages

16, 21, 22, 29, 37, 39, &c.] In the second year of the reign

of Charles IX, Jacques de la Fontaine voluntarily resign-

ed his commission and retired to his paternal estates in

Maine. The Edict of Pacification had been passed and

the Protestants believed that oppression was ended. But

their faith was deceived. Persecution, before open and

with a show of justice, was now practised with the cun-

ning cruelty of secrecy. Great animosity was felt by

the Catholic party to Jacques de la Fontaine, who, by

his elevated position, gave strength to the Protestant

cause. Assassins were sent to his house and he was

murdered in 1563. His wife, trying to intercede for her

husband, was murdered also, as was a faithful valet.

The children, three boys, fled from their home and this

663
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awful tragedy in the midnight, and made their way to

Rochelle. In one moment they had been bereft of every-

thing, except their pure faith, their intellectual strength,
and their noble bearing. But the story of their lives

indicates the reward which follows uin-ightness and earn-

est ability. Even the old material fortune was gained

again to the family.

Children :

i
, eighteen years of age in 1563

;
his history

is unknown.

1 ii James, born in 1549
;
fourteen years of age in

1563.

iii Abraham, about twelve years of age in 1563.

1 James^ de la Fontaine (Jacques^) was born in

1549. He was fourteen years of age in 1563. He mar-

ried and had several children, three of whom, two daugh-
ters and one son, lived to maturity and married.

Children :

i A daughter,
ii A daughter.

2 iii James, married first, Thompson, second

Maria Chaillon.

2 Rev. James^ Fontaine (James^, Jacques^) was

born in 1603. He married, first, in 1628,  Thomp-
son, and, second, in 1641, Maria Chaillon. The *'de la,"

indicative of nobility, was dropped from the name of

Fontaine by him. He was a minister of the reformed

religion and was a man of high spiritual and intellectual

attainments. He died in 1686, aged eighty-three years.

Children (by first wife) :

i Jane.
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ii James.
iii Judith.

iv Elizabeth.

V Peter,

vi Francis.

Children (by second wife) :

vii Susan,

viii Peter,

ix Mary.
X Ann.

3 xi James, married Anne Elizabeth Boursiquot.

3 Rfa'. James'' Fontaine (James^ James'-,

Jacques^) was born in Jenouille, France, in 1658. Like

his father, he was called to the ministry, and was perhaps
the most brilliant of the family. Pie possessed high

courage and lofty characteristics of mind and soul, which

enabled him to fulfill his unique and thrilling life. After

the Revocation of the Edict of Nantes, he determined to

leave friends, country, and fortune for his faith. He
succeeded in escaping from France, taking with him his

promised wife, Anne Elizabeth P>oursiquot, whom he

married on the 8th of February, KKSC, in t1ie Parish

church of Barnstable. England. The actual occurrences

of his life were like a romance. Early in the eighteenth

century, the thoughts of the Fontaines turned to Ameri-

ca. James never visited the New World which was to

become the home of his descendants. Tlis son. John, who

had been an English officer, was the first to make the

vovage. James Fontaine left Taunt(Mi in Id!*!, and went

to Cork, Ireland. At that time he had six children.

James, Aaron, Mary Anne. Peter. John, and Mosc^.

his youngest children, Francis and Elizabeth being horn

later.
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Children (see Miss Maury's "Huguenot Family," for

interesting details) :

i James, born in 1686
;
came to Virginia in 1716,

and settled in King William County,
ii Aaron.

4 iii Mary Anne, married Matthew Maury; came

to Virginia, with her husband, in 1716.

6 iv Peter, married first, Elizabeth Fourreau, sec-

ond, Elizabeth Wade; came to Virginia, in

1716.

V John, born in 1693
;
an officer in England ;

the

first of the family to come to Virginia, where

he purchased a plantation, and sent for his

brother, Peter,

vi Moses, born in 1694; remained in England.
35 vii Francis, married, first, Glanisson, second,

Brush.

viii Elizabeth, born in 1701; remained in England.

4 Mary Anne^ Fontaine (James*, James^, James^,

Jacques^) was born in 1690. She is thus referred to by
her father: "April 1690 we named her Mary Anne,

Mary after my mother and Anne from the second name

of my wife." In 1716 she married Rev. Matthew Maury,
of France, and in the same year emigrated with her

husband, and other members of her family, to Virginia.

Matthew ]\Iaury was one of the twelve children of Rever-

end James Maury. These children were, Matthew,

James, Walker, Abraham, Benjamin, Richard, Fontaine,

Ann, Mrs. Strahan, Mrs. Barrett, Mrs. Lewis, and Mrs.

Eggleston. James, the second son, was the consul at

Liverpool, and filled that station for forty-five years. He
had five children. Mary Anne (Fontaine) Maury died

in 1755.
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"My brother i*eter's first wife Lizzie, was one of the

lovehest creatures I ever saw. God had endowed her

with all the virtues of a good Christian wife and a

watchful mother. She never let the least thing pass

in her children tliat had any appearance of evil in it,

and was very tender of them. His present wife is a

lovely sweet tempered woman and she, Mary Ann, and

Peter, have an unusual tenderness for each other
; and,

I believe, if they were her own children, she could not

show^ more tenderness to them. My brotb.er has two

children by her, a boy and a girl. The boy is named

Thomas. I hope God wall spare my brother's life to

raise them as he hath the other two who are examples
of piety and wisdom and a great comfort to their parents

and us." Reverend Peter Fontaine died in 1755. [See

Meade, pages 317, 318
; History of the Fontaines, by Miss

Ann Maury and Doctor Hawks, and ''Old King Wil-

liam," by P. N. Clark.] He was Rector of Westover

Parish.

Children (by first wife) :

i iMary Ann, born in 1718
;
married Isaac Wins-

ton (see Winston Family, No. 5).

7 ii Peter, married Elizabeth Winston.

Children (by second wife) :

iii Thomas,

iv A daughter.

7 Col. Peter^ Fontaine (Peter^, James*, James^,

James-, Jacques^), of Beaver Dam, Hanover County,

was born in 1720. He married Elizabeth, daughter of

William and Sarah (Dabney) Winston (see Winston

Family, No. 1). He was Surveyor of Halifax County

Virginia. With Clement Read of Lunenburg, he was



8
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9 William Winston^ Fontaine (John% Peter^,

Peter^, James*, James", James-, Jacques^) married and

was the father of

Rev. Wilham Spottswood, now of Reidville, North

Carolina.

10 CoL. William^ Fontaine (Peter°, Peter^,

James^ James^, James-, Jacques^) was born in 1753, in

Hanover County, Virginia. He married Anne Morris.

In 1774-5 he was a tutor in the family of Colonel

Wilham Cabel, Senior, of Union Hill, and commenced

his second year with his children and also John Nicholas,

Junior (son of John, Senior, who was a brother of

Robert Carter Nicholas, Treasurer), and his brother,

James Fontaine (afterward Major, who was killed at

Harmen's Depot in Kentucky, October 29, 1790), as

pupils. He gave up his school in order to enter the army,

and was chosen Captain of the First Expert Rifle Com-

pany raised in Buckingham District for the defense of

the Colony in 1775. He was attached to the Second

Virginia Regiment, October 21, of that year (William

Mumford, Colonel), and was on duty near WilHams-

burg early in November, 1775, to March, 1776. On Sat-

urday, February 24, he received the commission of Lieu-

tenant-Colonel of the Convention Guards, from 1779 to

June, 1781, part of the Seventeenth Battalion. He par-

ticipated in the reduction of Yorktown, October 19,

1781, of which he gave an account, as an eye witness,

in a letter to his family (Virginia State Papers, Volume

1, page 582). He was also a lay deputy at a convention

held at Richmond, Virginia, May 5 to May 8, 1790. A
letter from Colonel William Fontaine, dated July 20,

1809, written to General Breckenridge, will be found in

the Appendix of this genealogy.
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Children :

11 i James, married Juliet Morris.

14 ii Edmund, married Maria Louisa Shackelford.

27 iii Sarah married Alexander Fontaine Rose

(see Number 33).

11 James^ Fontaine (William^ Peter^, Peter^

James*, James^, James", Jacques^) of Rock Castle, mar-

ried Juliet Morris, of Sylvania. He died in 1872.

Children :

i William Morris,

ii James, died young.
12 iii Peter, married Mrs. Lydia Laidley.

iv Nancy, died young.
13 V Susan Watson, married Berkeley Minor.

vi John Dabney, died young.
vii Charles, died young,
viii Maury, died unmarried.

ix Joseph Morris.

X Sally Rose.

12 Peter^ Fontaine (James^ William^ Peter^

Peter'^, James*, James^, James-, Jacques^) married Mrs.

Lydia Laidley.

Children :

i James Morris.

ii Bessy Quarrier, died in infancy,

iii Keith Miles.

13 Susan Watson^ Fontaine (James^, William'^,

Peter^, Peter^, James*, James^, James^, Jacques"^) mar-

ried Berkeley Minor.
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Children :

i James Fontaine Minor,
ii Berkeley Alinor.

iii Charles Landon Carter .Minor, died in infancy.

14 Edmund^ I-oxtaixe (William", Peter", Peter\
James^ James^ James^ Jacques^) of ''Beaver Dam''
married Alaria Louisa Shackelford. Me died in 1809.

'

Children:

15 i Betsy Ann, married Thomas II. de Witt,
ii William Morris, died in early life,

iii Sarah Louisa, died young. .

ir iv Jane Katharine, married Richard Ilardaway
Meade.

19 V Mary Morris, married Thomas L. Brown.
VI Edmund, killed at the Battle of Manassas (firstm C. S. Army).

23 vii Lucy Dabney, married Chriswell Dabney.
23 vm John Boursiquot, married Elizabeth Winston

Price.

20 ix Richard .Morris, married Kate Minor.
X Rose Maury, died in infancy.

26 xi Rosaline Shackelford, married Thomas Cates-
by Jones.

L-5 Betsy Anx« Foxtaixe ('Edmund\ Wi liam^
Peter«, Peter^ Jamesr, James^ James^ Jacques^) married
Ihomas H. de Witt.

Children :

Louisa de Witt.

Edmund de W^itt.

Alary Brown de Wht, married W^illiam H.
Adams.

16
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iv Nora Braxton de Witt, died in childhood.

16 Mary Brown^^ de Witt (Betsy Ann^ Fontaine,

Edmund^, WilHam^, Peter^, Peter^, James*, James"',

James^, Jacques^) married WilHam H. Adams.

Children :

i Helen Adams,
ii Anthony Adams,
iii Fontaine de Witt Adams.

17 Jane Katharine^ Fontaine (Edmund^, Wil-

liam'', Peter^, Peter^, James*, James^, James^, Jacques^)
married Richard Hardaway Meade.

Children :

i Edmund Fontaine Meade, died young,
ii Lila Meade, married Benjamin B. Valentine.

18 iii Richard Hardaway Meade, married Eleanor

Prior Adkins.

iv Louisa Fontaine Meade, married Clarence Ca-

dot.

V Kate Fontaine Meade,

vi Maria Skelton Meade.

18 Richard Hardaway^^ Meade (Jane Katharine^

Fontaine, Edmund^, William'', Peter^, Peter^, James*,

James^, James^, Jacques^) married Eleanor Prior Adkins.

Child :

Richard Hardaway.

19 Mary Morris^ Fontaine (Edmund^, William^,

Peter^, Peter^, James*, James^, James^, Jacques^) mar-

ried Thomas L. Brown, of Charleston, West Virginia.

11 V V lA »i
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Children:

20 i Louisa Fontaine Brown, married Malcolm Jack-
son,

ii Edmund Fontaine Brov(^n.

21 iii Ann Conway Brqwn, married Philip Sidney
Powers.

20 Louisa Fontaine^^ Bro>(^n (Mary Morris^

Fontaine, Edmund^, William^, Peter°, Peter^, James*,

James\ James^ Jacques^) married Malcolm Jackson.
Children :

i Thomas Brown Jackson,
ii Anna Arbuthnot Jackson.

21 Ann Conway^^ Bro>^n (Mary Morris^ Fon-

taine, Edmund^, William^, Peter*^, Peter^, James*, James^,

James^, Jacques^) married PhiHp Sidney Powers.

Children :

i Thomas Brown Powers,

ii Louisa Fontaine Powers,

iii Ann Conway Powers.

22 Lucy Dabney^ Fontaine (Edmund^, William^,

Peter^, Peter^, James*, James^, James^, Jacques^) married

Chriswell Dabney.
Children :

i John Edward Dabney.
ii Chriswell Dabney.
iii Louisa Fontaine Dabney.
iv Lucy Dabney.
V Elizabeth Towles Dabney.
vi Edmund Fontaine Dabnev.
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23 Doctor John Boursiquot^ Fontaine (Ed-

mund^, William', Peter^, Peter^, James*, James^, James-,

Jacques^) was a surgeon in the Confederate States'

Army. He married Elizabeth Winston Price. He was

killed in battle.

Child :

24: I Ellen Stuart, married Albert Sidney Morton.

24 Ellen Stuart^^ Fontaine (John Boursiquot^,

Edmund^, William^ Peter^, Peter^, James"*, James^,

James-, Jacques^) married Albert Sidney Morton.

Children :

i Ellen Price Morton.

ii D'Arcy Paul Morton.

iii Albert Sidney Morton,

iv A daughter.

25 Richard Morris^ Fontaine (Edmund^, Wil-

liam', Peter^', Peter^, James*, James^, James-, Jacques^)
married Kate Minor.

Children :

i Edmund.
ii Richard Morris,

iii Katharine Minor,

iv Berkeley j\Iinor.

V Charles Landon Carter,

vi Maria Louisa Shackelford.

26 Rosaline Shackelford^ Fontaine (Edmund^,
William^ Peter^, Peter^, James*, James^, James^,

Jacques^) married Thomas Catesby Jones.

Children :

i Lou Bell Jones.
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ii Fontaine Jones.

iii Catesby Jones.

iv Roy Meriwether Jones.

V Rosalie Fontaine Jones.

27 Sarah Rose^ Fontaine (William^ Peter^,

Peter^, James^, James^, James-, Jacques^) married Alex-

ander Fontaine'* Rose (see Number 33). She died in

1863.

Children :

28 i Edmund Fontaine Rose, married Betty Maury.

29 ii Louisa Fontaine Rose, married John Potts.

30 iii Lawrence Berry Rose, married Eliza Welford.

31 iv Charles Alexander Rose, married ^lary Eliza

Rutherford.

28 Edmund Fontaine^ Rose (Sarah Rose^ Fon-

taine, William", Peter*', Peter% James\ James^, James-,

Jacques^) married Betty Maury.
Children :

i Alexander.

ii John,
iii Robert,

iv Sarah Fontaine.

29 Louisa Fontaine^ Rose (Sarah Rose® Fon-

taine, William^ Peter^ Peter^ James*, James^ James^

Jacques^) married John Potts of Washington, D. C.

Children :

i Rose Potts, married
,
of Austria.

ii Douglas Potts, Lieut., U. S. A.

iii Morris Templin Potts, Lieut., L^. S. A.

iv Elizabeth Hawley Potts.
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30 Lawrence Berry^ Rose (Sarah Rose^ Fon-

taine, William^, Peter^, Peter^, James"^, James^, James-,

Jacques^) married Eliza Wei ford.

Children :

i Lawrence,

ii Susan Welford.

31 Charles Alexander^ Rose (Sarah Rose^ Fon-

taine, William', Peter*^, Peter^, James*, James^, James-,

Jacques^) married Mary Eliza Rutherford.

Children (from papers loaned by Thomas L. Brown,

1904) :

i Samuel Rutherford.

ii Charles Alexander, married Logie Childs.

iii Charles.

32 Sarah^ Fontaine (Peter®, Peter^, James*,

James^, James-, Jacques^) was born in 1755. She mar-

ried Charles Rose. Bishop Meade gives a very flattering

account of the father of Charles Rose, the Reverend

Robert Rose, who was Rector of St. Ann's Parish, in

Essex, in 1725. He came from Scotland early in 1700.

His journal, which is full of interest for antiquarians,

commences in this Parish in 1746, which he says was

the twenty-first year of his incumbency. He was Ex-

ecutor and friend of Governor Spottswood, and was a

man of fine mind and education, and a universal genius.

He had four brothers. His brother Charles was the

minister of Cople Parish, in Westmoreland. He was

twice married and had four sons, Hugh Patrick, Henry,
and Charles. He died June 30, 1751. (Old Churches

and Families, page 396.)
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Children :

i John Rose,

ii Peter Rose,

iii Sarah Rose.

33 iv Alexander Fontaine Rose, married Sarah^ Fon-

taine (see Number 27).

33 Alexander Fontaine^ Rose (Sarah^ Fontaine,

Peter", Peter^ James^, James^, James^ Jacques^) married

Sarah Rose^ Fontaine, daughter of Colonel Williai^^

Fontaine (see Number 27). She died in 1863.

Children :

i Edmund Fontaine, married Betty Maury (see Num-
ber 28).

ii Louisa Fontaine, married John Potts (see Number

29).

iii Lawrence Berry, married Eliza Welford (see Num-
ber 30).

iv Charles Alexander, married Mary Eliza Rutherford

(see Number 31).

34 Mary Ann^ Fontaine (Peter^ Peter^ James*,

James^ James-, Jacques^) married, first, Bowles Armi-

stead (see Armistead Family, No. 41), and, second, as

his fourth wife, Colonel John Lewis, son of Fielding

Lewis, and nephew of General George Washington. John
Lewis is said to have been married five times. There are

several statements of the children of Mary Ann Fon-

taine by Colonel John Lewis, one of them being that she

had one daughter who married Keeling Terrell. Another

account gives two other Lewis children, Frances and

Howell. The author of this work is the great-grand-

daughter of Mrs. Bowles Armistead, through her grand-

son, John Selden.
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Children (by first husband) :

i Mary Armistead, married, first, Charles Alexander,

second. Dr. Wilson Cary Selden (see Alexander Fam-

ily, and Selden Family, No. 42).
ii Peter Armistead, married Martha Winston (see

W^inston Family),
iii Eliza Armistead, married Ludwell Lee (see Lee

Family).
Children (by second husband) :

i A daughter, married Keeling Terrell,

ii Frances Lewis,

iii Howell Lewis.

35 Rev. Francis^ Fontaine (James^, James^,

James^, Jacques^) was born in 1697. He came to Vir-

ginia, with other members of his family, in 1716, and

was the Rector of York, Hampton Parish, and Professor

of Oriental Languages at William and Alary College,

Virginia. He married, first, Mary Glannison, and, sec-

ond, . Brush. He died in 1769.

Children (by first wife) :

36 i Francis, married .

ii Mary, born in 1724.

iii John, born in 1726, settled near Newbern,
North Carolina,

iv Thomas, born in 1730 : died young.
Children (by second wife) :

V Tames Maury, born in 1738
;
a student at Wil-

liam and Mary College; was licensed to preach
in plantations from 1745, to October 10, 1763,

by the Bishop of London
;
in 1764, he was a

minister for a month at Gloucester, where he

resided, Petsworth and Kingston Parish, and
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then removed to Ware Parish, 1774-76
;

in

1767, he was elected a visitor to WilHam and

Mary College; in 1791 he was elected weekly

lecturer; once minister of i\bington and Ware,
Gloucester County, and kept a school near it;

in 1793, three hundred acres of land in the

Parish of Ware, Gloucester County, were given
to the Parish by Zachary Crips for a Glebe, and

were vested in James Maury, with others, and

enacted by Assembly in November, 1769.

vi Judith, born in 1740.

36 Francis^ Fontaine (Francis^, James"^, James^,

James-, Jacques^) was born in 1721. He w^as a student at

WilHam and Mary College from 1738 to 1752.

Children :

i Frances,

ii Mary.
37 iii Thomas, married Clarissa Benton,

iv Benjamin, born in 1754.

37 Thomas^ Fontaine (Francis^, Francis"', JamesS

James•^ James^ Jacques^) was born in 1752. He married

Miss Clarissa Benton.

Children :

i Thomas.

38 ii John, married M. Stewart,

iii Francis.

iv Peter.

39 V Benjamin B., married S. Beall.

vi Lucy, married Thompson.
vii A daug^hter. married Peachman.
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38 JoHN^ Fontaine (Thomas^ Francis^, Francis^,

James^, James^, James-, Jacques^) married M. Stewart.

Children :

i Henrietta, married Flewellyn.

ii Mary,
iii John,
iv Benjamin.
V Theophilus.

vi Frances,

vii Georgia.

39 Benjamin B.^ Fontaine (Thomas^, Francis^,

Francis^, James*, James^, James-, Jacques^) married S.

Beall.

Children :

i John Thomas, married, first, Marrast, second,

F. Butler,

ii Mary E., married C. Stewart.

iii Millicent, married Oueen.

iv Alfred Battle.

V Robert Augustus.



4



WEST FAMILYT





t^%





WEST FAMILY

Arms- Argent a^pesse dancettee sable.

Crest : Out of a ducal coronet or a griffin's
head azure,

ears and beak or.

Motto: Jour de ma vie.

Sir Thomas^ de West married Eleanor, daughter

and heiress of Sir John de Cantelupe, of Hempston-

Cantalupe of Devon, Knight, by Margaret, his wife,

daughter of John Lord Mohun, of Dunster. He was

Knio-ht of the Shire for Warwickshire, in the seventeenth

year'' of Edward II, having been knighted m 1326 and

was at the siege of Berwick and the battle of Halhdon,

luly 23 1333. In the reign of Edward III he served m

Flanders and in Brittany, and, for his services, was

created a baron. He died in the seventeenth year of

Edward III, leaving a son and heir,

1 i Thomas.

1 Sir Thomas^ de West (Sir Thomas^) fought

in the war with France in the nineteenth year of Edward

III at the Battle of Crecy, and in Gascony, in

the' thirty-third and forty-fourth years of that reign, and

also during the reign of Richard II, in the French and

Scotch wars. His wife was Alice, daughter of Reginald

Fitz-Piere, Baron of Wolversley. His son was.

2 i Thomas.

2 Sir Thomas^ de West (Sir Thomas^ Sir Thom-

asO was twenty-one years of age in the tenth year of

687
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Richard II. He served in the wars with France and

Scotland, and was knighted in 1399. He was summoned
to Parliament as a baron in the second and fifth years of

Henry IV. He married Joan, sister and heiress of Baron

de la Warr, and daughter of Roger, Lord de la Warr,

by his wife, Eleanor (daughter of John,, Lord Mowbray,
by Joan, daughter of Henry Plantagenet, Duke of Lan-

caster and grandson of Henry HI). He died April 14,

1405, leaving issue,

i Thomas, eldest son, a Peer of the Realm
;
married

Ida, daughter and co-heiress of Almeric de St.

Armand
;

served in France under the King
in the third year of Henry V, in the Battle of

Agincourt, and died about September 30, 1415,

without issue; succeeded by his brother.

3 ii Reginald, succeeded his elder brother, Thomas.

3 Reginald* West, Lord de la Warr (Sir Thom-

as^, Sir Thomas", Sir Thomas^) served in the French

wars in the fourth and fifth years of the reign of Henry
V. He was summoned to Parliament as Lord de la Warr,
a title inherited from his mother's family, and dating
from 1294. In the eighth year of the reign of Henry
VI he again served in France with thirty men-at-arms

and seventy archers. In the nineteenth year of Henry VI
he made a pilgrimage to the Holy Land, and also in the

twenty-fifth year of that reign to the Holy Land and to

Rome. He married twice, his second wife being Eleanor,

daughter of Henry Percy, Earl of Northumberland. He
died August 21, 1451, leaving a son,

4 i Richard.

4 Richard^ West, Lord de la Warr (Reginald*,



West Family 689

Lord de la Warr, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thom-

as^) succeeded his father. Fought in the War of the

Roses for the House of Lancaster, and, in the third

year of the reign of Edward IV, went abroad. He
married, first, Catharine, daughter of Robert, Lord Hun-

gerford, by his wife, Margaret, daughter and heiress of

WilHam, Lord Botreaux. His death occurred March 10,

1475, and he was succeeded by his son,

5 i Thomas.

5 Thomas^ West, Lord de la Warr (Richard^,

Lord de la Warr, Reginald"*. Lord de la Warr, Sir Thom-

as^, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas^) was eighteen years of

age at the time of his father's death, and was then with

the army in France. He was created a knight of the

Bath, in the fifth year of the reign of Henry VH. In

1497 he was one of the chief commanders at the Battle

of Blackheath, and was in the Battle of Speers in 1513.

He was made a Knight of the Garter in the second year
of Henry VIII, and attended the King at the Field of the

Cloth of Gold. He married Elizabeth, daughter of Hugh
Mortimer, and the sister and heiress of Sir John Morti-

mer, of Mortimer's Hall, Southamptonshire. His second

wife was Eleanor, daughter of Sir Roger Copley of

Gallon, Surrey.

Children (by first wife) :

i Thomas, succeeded his father as Lord de la

Warr; was at the siege of Therouenne and

the Battle of Tournay, in the fifth year of the

reign of Henry VIII
; knighted for his valor

in the battle, a knight banneret, and made a

Knight of the Garter, December 1, 1547
;
mar-

'

ried Elizabeth, daughter of Sir John Bonville,
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Knight ;
died at Oppington, September 25, 1554,

without issue, and was succeeded by his nephew,

William, the son of his brother, Sir George
West,

ii William, died without issue.

6 iii Eleanor, married Sir Edward Guilford, of

Hampstead Place, Kent,

iv Dorothy, married Sir Henry Owen, Knight.

V Elizabeth, married Charles Somerset, Earl of

Worcester, ancestor of the Dukes of Beaufort.

vi Anne, married Thomas, Lord Clinton, ancestor

of the Duke of Newcastle.

Children (by second wife) :

vii Owen, married Mary, daughter of Sir George

Guilford, of Hampstead Place, had daughters.

7 viii George, married Elizabeth, daughter and co-

heiress of Sir Anthony Moreton.

ix Leonard, member of Parliament for Shoreham,

Sussex, in 1554; married Barbara, daughter of

William Gascoigne, of Gawthorpe, Yorkshire.

6 Eleanor^ West (Thomas^ Lord de la Warr,

Richard^ Lord de la Warr, Reginald*, Lord de la Warr,

Sir Thomas^ Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas^) married Sir

Edward Guilford, of Hampstead Place, Kent.

A daughter, married John Dudley, Duke of Northum-

bria, and was the mother of the Earl of Leicester,

the favorite of Queen Elizabeth.

7 Sir George'' West (Thomas^, Lord de la Warr,

Richard^ Lord de la Warr, Reginald*, Lord de la Warr,

Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas^) married Eliza-

beth, daughter and co-heiress of Sir Anthony Moreton,
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of Leehdale, Gloucestershire, son of Sir Thomas Moreton

and nephew of the Archbishop and Cardinal, John More-

ton. Sir George died in September, 1538.

Children :

i Alargaret, married Thomas Arundel.

8 ii William, succeeded his uncle, Thomas, Lord

de la Warr.

8 William^ West, Lord Delaware (Sir George^

Thomas'^, Lord de la Warr, Richard^, Lord de la Warr,

Reginald^ Lord de la Warr, Sir Thomas", Sir Thomas^,
Sir Thomas'") succeeded his uncle, Thomas, as Lord

Delaware, but was debarred from the title because of

his attempt to poison him. He was at the siege of St.

Quinton in 1557. In 1568 he was created anew Lord

de la Warr (or Lord Delaware, as it was frequently

written). Lie was Ambassador to Scotland. His wife

was Elizabeth, daughter of Thomas Strange of Chester-

ton, in Gloucestershire. They had a son,

9 i Thomas.

9 Thomas^ West, Lord Delaware (William^,
Lord Delaware, Sir George', Thomas*^, Lord de la Warr,
Richard^, Lord de la W^arr, Reginald*, Lord de la Warr,
Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas-, Sir Thomas^) married Anne,

daughter of Sir Francis Knolles, K. G., whose wife was

a niece of Ann Boleyn, and, consequently, first cousin of

Oueen Elizabeth. He died March 24, 1603.

Children :

i Thomas, succeeded to the title o'f Lord Dela-

ware; born July 9, 1577; Governor of Vir-

ginia, and the ancestor of the present Earl

Delaware and Lord Sackville West, the late
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British Ambassador at Washington ;
died June

17, 1618.

ii Sir Robert, died during his father's Hfetime.

iii Captain T^rancis, born October 28, 1586; came

to Virginia in 1G08; Governor from 1627 to

1G29, and member of the Council; probably had

a daughter, Agnes, who married William Dan-

dridge (see Dandridge Family, No. 5).

lU iv Colonel John, married Anne .

10 Colonel John^^ West (Thomas^, Lord Dela-

ware, William^, Lord Delaware, Sir George', Thomas^,
Lord (le la Warr, Richard^, Lord de la Warr, Reginald"^,

Lord de la Warr, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas", Sir Thom-

as^) emigrated to \^irginia. He was a Burgess from 1629

to IGoU; Justice of York County in 1634, and Governor

of the Colony from May, 1635 to January, 1637. Hen-

ning's Statutes, Volume 5, page 223, gives the following:

*'On 28 April, 1635, Captain John West to act as Gover-

nor of Mrginia (in place of Sir John Harvey deposed)
till the King's pleasure is known." He was appointed
Marshal General in the year 1641, and was member
of the Council from 1631 until his death. He acquired

a large landed estate, much of it in King and Queen
County, where his descendants resided. Colonel John
West vvas honored by the Colonial Government for his

services to Virginia as follows (Ibid, page 547,

March 1G59-60) : "Whereas the many important
favours and services rendered to the Country of

Virginia by the noble family of the West, predeces-

sors to John West, their now only survivor, claim

at least that a grateful remembrance of their for-

mer merits be still continued to their survivor, it is
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ordered that the levies of the said Master West and his

family be remitted, and that he be exempted from pay-
ment thereof during Hfe." Bishop Meade gives the

following account of him: "He was born in Hampshire
Baronies

;
fil. Matric, Magdalen College 17 February,

1608, aged 18; B. A. 1 December, 1613; brother of Sir

Thomas West, third Lord de la Warr. He was born

December 14, 1590. He married Anne ^—
;

died

about 1659
; issue, one son, John."

Son :

11 i John, married Unity Croshaw.

11 Colonel John^^ West (John^°, Thomas^, Lord

Delaware, William*, Lord Delaware, Sir George^, Thom-
as*'. Lord de la Warr, Richard^, Lord de la Warr, Regi-
nald^, Lord de la W^arr, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas-, Sir

Thomas'^) of West Point, King William County, Vir-

ginia, married Unity, daughter of Major Joseph Croshaw,
of York County, Virginia (see Croshaw Family, Number

1). Major Croshaw left no heirs and Colonel West re-

ceived all his property. His estate "Poplar Neck," was

sold by Colonel West and Unity, his wife, in 1687 to

Edmund Jenings, Secretary of State, who named it

*'Rippon Hall," and died there June 2, 1727.

Children :

i Ann, married Henry Fox.

12 ii Thomas, probably married Martha .

iii John.
13 iv Nathaniel, married Martha .

12 TH0MAS12 West (John", John^^ Thomas^
Lord Delaware, William^, Lord Delaware, Sir George^,

Thomas^ Lord de la Warr, Richard^ Lord de la Warr,
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Reginald"*, Lord de la Warr, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas^,
Sir Thomas^) probably married Martha .

Children (see Henning's Statutes, Volume 5, page

297):
i Nathaniel,

ii Thomas,

iii Francis.

13 Nathaniel^^ yv^j-s^ (Johni\ John^o, Thomas^
Lord Delaware, William^, Lord Delaware, Sir George'',

Thomas^, Lord de la Warr, Richard^, Lord de la Warr,

Reginald*, Lord de la Warr, Sir Thomas^, Sir Thomas^,
Sir Thomas^) married, late in 1699, Martha

,
a

lady in her sixteenth year, he being many years older.

He was living October 30, 1723, and died soon after. In

the winter of 1724-5 his widow married, second, Gideon

Macon, who soon died. She married, third, in 1727,

Mr. Bigger, a Scotchman. Nathaniel and Martha

( ) West had one child, a daughter,' Unity, mar-

ried William Dandridge (see Dandridge family).
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THOMAS SELDEX'S DESCEXDAJ^TS.
*

A NOTABLE FAMILY REUNION IN OLD SAY-
.PROOK ~ CHIEF-JUSTICE WAITE AND
OTHER DISTINGUISHED PERSONS IN AT-
TENDANCE—THE HISTORY OF THE SEL-
DEN FAMILY.

SpecUa Dispatch to the New- York Times.
Old Saybrook, Conn., Aug. 22.~At last

tlie clans of Selden have been gathered to-
gether. A vigorous but ineffectual effort was
rnade last year to have a reunion of the descend-
ants of Thomas Selden, for it was thought that
the hundredth anniversary of the Republic was
a fitting occasion for such a meeting of the
members of a family who did so much to form
and to protect it. But this year the efforts of
the Connecticut Seldens were successful, and
to-day many members of the Sefden
family and persons related to it by
marriage assembled in Fenwick Grove,
i.djoining the gi-ounds of Fenwick Hall,- and
situated upon a little peninsula, with the mainl
body of the Sound lying on the west and south,

'

i-nd an extensive cove adjacent to the mouth of
'

the Connecticut Rive, on the east. The grove
'

^s
fitted up with stands and sheds, and as early

;

'c this morning at least 100 persons,
he moat part, were gathered to-

rn^,in platform, unraveling, as

ould, their ties of relationship ;

I Seldens amused themselves oa
and •'

merry-go-rounds." Twtf,
trains on the Connecticut Valley?
?ht additional members of the

:- .^rounds during the morning, and

^B
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Judge WH!t>, in his addruas to-dayfofl^w^da Itt '

'ory or tlii.s e.aiy settleLfi-ut iiid deveiepe;! tlie
iag fact that sluct! tb,e orixiu-.l grant to Jumtp],more thau tw.) hundied years a«?o, the ol

'

t.ratious—Mr. Wlili;jiu Beldeu bt-iugtiie in-eaent occupj^a''

-4iiid that tiJc oriijiiial deed is the only di . . . t i

^'la pla-^e. The veii»!r.ible parciiiuents were exhibii d. I

,nd look as tuou;,'h they would staud tke test of timo u

for 20t) yeiira IdivJier. It was arouad thia oki SeldeE
domicile that the Chief Justice spent most of his time
wht^ii a boy : aiid here he siill delights to pay an annual
rl^it. To-iuoiTow many or the descoii dauts propose to

meet there aud a^aiu revive ancestral reeoliectiouo.
From this s]>ot bo^an the disworsiou of the Seldeu.s iu tlie

early part of the l.isr century, aud cue di.-ipef'sii.ij -tjttt—
continaea over the couutry ; but Ehe repre-ieotatives pr^ -

ponderate iu theComieeticut VaU^y.
Many curious and enter 'ainuig thiuffs wore said by the

several .^p(;aker.s rcspeuliu;; these early settlers. In his

hi.storical address, Mr. Henry .U. Saldeu of Iladdaui

iVeck, to whom the success of the reunion is due, toUl

th" !Midi-:.'ner', for instance, hnw Oapt. Sarnuf^i Selden, the
third iutJie li:!e, scoureu his wifv.^ Acro-.;s in Chfscor
village lived the ciiariiiin>:, thoui^h soniowuat coquettish
Drburah iJudley. Tra<li  ion Mtatos that she Iikfd Carit.
SauDU'J, and that he ri-turned like for like; but th.j
records show tliic sue was eng,ii;ed to *' an-
other." one iJoaidiuh iiraiuiird. In duo time
the laari-ia^e hanus were i»osted up, cLalleii^-
iux any objection to the union of the twain;
Capt. 8;>ninel sees the annouucenieut and sulfus nientai
angr.ish ;

liUt nothius; daunted, he walks up to t iie bJinne
and makes obii^cMou by striking oat Brainerd's name
aud ins' rtiUK iiis own ! And on th'^ weddin.u-dav hois
there and 13 duly iiruTied rMDcbor'h. flistory is sihnT
aw to Isoadiaii's leeliu-s or line of acliou, but it i.< not I

hiirnt ..s r>> the '<.quei. Wiiei! 'Jau'. H miuei died, Bf l

'4i-i"^7-!^^">'''- iiiir used nfc thcL^
. . „. ..•. .i...-.

- .aioileu l\y on'  

^,;i •. ...-" j— "

ill :'.t;-vuiutioii.rrj' £.;::ica The oei'i- ni iipi

tl^eJ'H iu the o;U"lierCoIijni?\l days. Aniou'
aueesiors was Coi. »artl*iej tteideu, son •

ahle (iiu^ani. He *v"as a mau of Jorinue a

i. Ijd '.vhen old Gov. Trnuibull ralh-d for ;

troopo :or Wasnmgiou's ariiiy in-Nc  

crilica' yum:Jier of 177»>, C'^^h '"^fidea i

aicuou.<h i>ii-:i lifiy ycai > of aK*?> uud ii.iV..iK a iaiudy of

tweJv*' chihli'on, half of whoju wer>' si.ril voun^r. His I'ili

tary car^'er was short, uowcvHr, for hi> wa^ fair -a j)ri^

(»u the 15th of September. 177Gr<»ii '^hc; day of the re; . .. i

from New-York, aud died in prison iu October followiu;^.
He lies buried lu Wii.it »\ as oni-c tiio Old Btick Cloiich
sfrav'-yard, aud only a rod or two from the pres<^nt
i'itlBi'.HE BuildiiiK. His son Charles served in

Kbvolulion; aiso his nephew Ezra rfeldcu, who, a.s .^

tain, was one of Ilia picked corps lUat «t ivni> d ato'.'.y
•

Poivt. Nor was the pafriotiam of t!ie family conlJncd to l

the uialw .-^ide of the iioune, for we aro told tli'4t oh one
;

occasion, wLen assistance was neo<led to secnre t
' '

eat.le Iroiu a pariy of Tories, the Colonel's t

dauclit^r, Elizaberh, th^'n tha wife of J'
"'

living uc'+r Josliu's lio<;ke. on the Conu
lier husoand s cockod-hat and n!ilj*"try <^.»at a;i«l «tood i

. gnat d ai n,h! over tiio - ork. Too ?T>":i!:fr. -..'ho ?avo !
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